Public Document Pack

NOTICE OF MEETING
CABINET
TUESDAY, 14 JULY 2020 AT 12.00 PM
VIRTUAL REMOTE MEETING - REMOTE
Telephone enquiries to Joanne Wildsmith, Democratic Services Tel 9283 4057
Email: joanne.wildsmith@portsmouthcc.gov.uk
If any member of the public wishing to attend the meeting has access requirements, please
notify the contact named above.

Membership
Councillor Gerald Vernon-Jackson CBE (Chair)
Councillor Steve Pitt (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Dave Ashmore
Councillor Lynne Stagg
Councillor Suzy Horton
Councillor Matthew Winnington
Councillor Lee Hunt
Councillor Tom Wood
Councillor Darren Sanders
Councillor Hugh Mason

(NB

This Agenda should be retained for future reference with the minutes of this meeting.)

Please note that the agenda, minutes and non-exempt reports are available to view online on
the Portsmouth City Council website: www.portsmouth.gov.uk
Deputations by members of the public may be made on any item where a decision is
going to be taken. The request should be made in writing to the contact officer (above) by
12 noon of the working day before the meeting, and must include the purpose of the
deputation (for example, for or against the recommendations). Email requests are
accepted.
AGENDA
1

Apologies for Absence

2

Declarations of Interests

3

Record of Previous Decision Meeting - 10 March 2020 and Leader's
Statement (Pages 11 - 20)
A copy of the record of the previous decisions taken at Cabinet on 10 March 2020
are attached.
RECOMMENDED that the record of the decisions taken by Cabinet on 10
March 2020 be approved as a correct record.

1

4

Decision taken by the Chief Executive under Standing Order 58 - HIVE
Portsmouth (information item) (Pages 21 - 22)
A published item relating to the Strategic Partnership Agreement between the
HIVE and PCC was due to go to Cabinet on 26th March 2020. When the
Cabinet meeting was cancelled due to the COVID-19 restrictions on public
gatherings an urgent decision was taken by the Chief Executive in response to
the above matter in accordance with Standing Order 58 of the council's
Procedure Rules. The Chief Executive undertook the necessary consultations
on 27th March 2020, the notes of the meeting are attached.
(The decision to approve the Strategic Partnership has been taken and is not
subject to call-in.)

5

Modern Slavery Statement (Pages 23 - 46)
The report by Corporate Strategy, on behalf of the Chief Executive, seeks to
provide context to the council's Modern Slavery Transparency Statement and
seek approval to publish the statement on the council's website (appendix 1).
RECOMMENDED that Cabinet approves:
i)
The Modern Slavery Transparency Statement for publication on
the council's website (see appendix 1) and
ii)
The programme of work set out in section 5 of the report.
iii)
Full Council is asked to note the recommendations for information
only

6

LGBT+ Champion appointment - for Children and Young People
At the full Council meeting on 15 November 2019 a motion on Inclusive
Relationships Education was presented by Cllr Suzy Horton and passed by
the full council. This motion included a resolution to ask cabinet to appoint an
elected Member LGBT+ children and young people's champion.(Details of the
duties of this role is attached.)
The champion role was open to all members as outlined in the MIS item that
went on 7th February (attached). Expressions of interest were received from 4
members, Cllr Suzy Horton, Cllr Chris Attwell, Cllr Claire Udy and Cllr George
Fielding.
The members met with young people from the 4U group, Portsmouth Pride
Youth Society and Miltoncross School Diversity group on 28th February
(unfortunately Cllr Fielding was unable to attend). Each member gave a short
introduction to themselves. This was followed by some informal discussions
with the young people in small groups and then some well-considered
questions were posed from the floor to each of the members in turn. The
young people were really impressed by all the members and there was some
debate about whether they could do the role jointly or whether was important
to have one named overall Champion.
The young people gave a very clear message that they welcomed the support
from all of those who had expressed an interest. They wanted all of these
members to work together to champion LGBT+ young people but a majority
selected Cllr Claire Udy as their overall Champion.
2

This item is to seek the endorsement of Cabinet in accepting the choice of the
young people who were present. This was due to be considered by Cabinet
at the cancelled meeting of 26 March 2020 (due to COVID-19 restrictions).
RECOMMENDED: to appoint Cllr Claire Udy as Portsmouth's LBGT+
Children and Young People's Champion and to ask Cllr Udy to undertake
this role with support and input from Cllrs Suzy Horton, Chris Attwell
and George Fielding.
7

Appointments to Outside Bodies and Champion Appointments (Pages 47
- 50)
a) Outside Bodies
A schedule of nominations is compiled by Democratic Services (all groups
have been asked to put forward nominations) and this is based on the
previous portfolio responsibilities.
The political groups have generally asked that last year's representatives
continue in their positions and only the variations or new nominations are
reported for approval. Please note that some appointments may have more
nominations than there are places available.
b) Champion appointments
Cllr Tom Coles wishes to be appointed as an additional Armed Forces
Champion (Councillor Gerald Vernon-Jackson CBE was appointed last year
with Councillor Jonas BEM in a supporting role.)
Cllr Matthew Winnington wishes to be appointed as a Mental Health
Champion.
Cllr Darren Sanders wishes to be appointed as Homelessness Champion.
Cllr Luke Stubbs and Councillor Lee Hunt have been nominated as Heritage
Champions by their groups.
(Cllr Udy's nomination as LGBT+ Champion forms part of a separate agenda
item)
Nominations were also sought for Third Sector and City of Service Champion.

8

Discharge to Assess Unit at Harry Sotnick House (Pages 51 - 56)
The purpose report for the Chief Health & Care Portsmouth by the Assistant
Director Adult Social Care is to:
* Update Cabinet on the response by Adult Services to the updated guidance
of the 16th April 2020 providing the 14 day isolation period for people prior to
entering a care home longer term.
* Describe how the Health and Care Portsmouth response to providing
additional bedded capacity for a possible second peak in COVID-19
infections.
* Seek endorsement to continue exploring options to for a future long term
Discharge to Assess Unit within Harry Sotnick House.
RECOMMENDED that Cabinet:
(1) Endorse the continued operation of the 20 bedded 14 Day
isolation unit in the HSH Gun Wharf Unit, recognising that this is
3

dependent on continued funding from the temporary NHS Hospital
Discharge Scheme.
(2) Endorse the expansion of the unit by a further 26 beds for D2A
should there be a need as a consequence of a second COVID-19
peak, recognising that this will be dependent on additional
funding from the temporary NHS Hospital Discharge Scheme.
(3) Endorse continued work to develop plans to transition the 20 Gun
Wharf COVID beds to a mainstream Discharge to Assess unit,
recognising that this would be part of a wider system change. It
should also be acknowledged that this will require a more detailed
financial appraisal, together with a retargeting of existing funding
sources and potentially financial contributions from the wider
health and care system partners; to ensure it is financially
sustainable in the longer term. A further report will be presented
to Cabinet once the final costings and funding sources have been
identified in order to seek formal agreement to establish the unit.
9

Local Transport Plan LTP4 (Pages 57 - 128)
The purpose of the report by the Director of Regeneration is to seek approval
to commence statutory consultation on the draft Portsmouth Local Transport
Plan 4 (Appendix A) with stakeholders and the wider public.
RECOMMENDED that Cabinet approves the content of the draft
Portsmouth Local Transport Plan 4 strategy for statutory consultation.

10

Supporting rough sleepers and the hidden homeless: options for the
way forward (Pages 129 - 172)
The Cabinet Member for Housing requested officers to provide Cabinet with a
report outlining the support in place for rough sleepers and street
homeless prior to the COVID-19 emergency, the response in light of the
COVID-19 emergency and the work underway to continue to support
those individuals supported and the direction of travel for the longer term.
The report provides cabinet with an outline of:




The support in place prior to and during the COVID-19 crisis
The interim plan
The long term plan

RECOMMENDED:
(1)

That Cabinet note the provision in place prior to the COVID-19 crisis

(2)

That Cabinet commend the remarkable efforts of the local authority
and partners to meet the call from government to provide safe and
secure accommodation for rough sleepers and thank the wide range of
public services, the voluntary sector, the local communities, members,
officers and the Accor Hotel group & the local hotel management team
in continuing to support the emergency provision in place

(3)

That Cabinet note the learning to be used to underpin the solutions

4

moving forward
(4)

That Cabinet note the emergent MHCLG funding announcements
for the interim and long term plan and the work with the MHCLG to coproduce the interim and long-term plan.

(5)

That Cabinet approve the interim plan subject to funding being
made available, to last up to 12 months from the end of August 2020
and which includes these elements:
i. Use Private Rented Accommodation and purchased/subleased property at Local Housing Allowance rents for
those who need only financial support
ii. Use HMOs through the HMO housing organisation for
suitable for a private rental tenancy provided floating
support is available.
iii. Use a hotel or accommodation block for those who need
intensive onsite support that can best be provided in such
a setting alongside security.
iv. Use no more than 18 spaces between Kingston Point and
Hope House as the final accommodation option for those
not in the above categories. This will be accompanied by
intensive support, boundaries and ways to deal with
antisocial behaviour.

(6)

That Cabinet note the resourcing commitment to implement the
interim plan and endorse that the Assistant Director of Housing is asked
temporarily to focus on the delivery of the plans, alongside the crossparty and multi-agency Portsmouth City Rough Sleeping Partnership
Group ("The Partnership Group") to implement the plans.

(7)

Cabinet recognises that the potential cost of the interim plan is circa.
£2.5m and that the Council are working with MHCLG to prepare a bid to
the national fund made available for this purpose amounting to £105m,
in the event that there remains a shortfall between estimated costs and
funding identified, a further report will be prepared for Cabinet to
consider prior to entering into any additional financial commitment .

(8)

Cabinet therefore delegates authority to the Assistant Director of
Housing, working with the S151 Officer, to submit a bid for the funding
to support emergency, interim and long-term accommodation through
the mechanism identified in the letter from MHCLG on 24th June 2020
(Appendix 3).

(9)

That Cabinet agrees the following as principles for the long-term
plan:
i. All those in the interim accommodation to be supported to
find move on accommodation and given the opportunity
not to return to rough sleeping.
ii. Accommodation first, not accommodation only approach,

5

with support levels tailored to individuals.
iii. Developing the accommodation and support model to
provide learning and work opportunities.
iv. A range of accommodation and support ideally located in
Portsmouth, based on Government's desire to build, buy
and rent homes.
v. A financially sustainable model.
vi. An approach that provides accommodation and support
into sustainable housing but also supports the prevention
of homelessness and those who remain on the streets.
vii. Evidenced based using all the learning and data available
to create solutions.
(10) That Cabinet agrees to ask Government to help it overcome key
barriers that may impact on the long term plan, including:
i. Automatically paying Universal Credit to landlords taking
part
ii. Making sure payments cover the full cost of rent or Local
Housing Allowance, whichever is higher
iii. Suspend the rule that means under-35s claim at a single
room rate
iv. Work with the City Council to devise plans to help future
rough sleepers and to prevent homelessness
v. Assist in helping the city house those on the waiting list
and the homeless the City Council has statutory duties
towards.
(11) That Cabinet request the Portsmouth City Rough Sleeping
Partnership Group to develop the long term plan, based on these
principles, as outlined in the report.
(12) This Cabinet approves that this report forms the basis of the jointly
produced plan with MHCLG for exiting the current approach both in the
interim and long-term.
11

Waste Collections and Disposal Infrastructure (information report)
(Pages 173 - 176)
This information update report is to update the Cabinet on the future of
waste collections and the disposal infrastructure.

12

Financial Impact of Covid-19 Pandemic (Pages 177 - 188)
The purpose of the report by the Director of Finance and Section 151 Officer is
to:


Describe the overall forecast financial impact of the Covid -19 pandemic in
2020/21



Explain the extent of the financial support that has been provided by the
Council in response to the pandemic and the approach taken

6



As a consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic, evaluate the financial
resilience of the Council and its exposure to the prospect of the S.151
Officer issuing a Section 114 Notice



Propose a financial strategy to remain within the Budget parameters
approved by the City Council in February 2020

RECOMMENDED that:

1) The financial strategy described in Section 8 of this report be
approved
2) A further report be brought to a future meeting of the Cabinet to
propose a detailed plan for placing certain Capital Spending plans "on
hold" which will remain "on hold" until the overall financial impact on
the Council is known with reasonable certainty
3) Note that the plan to place Capital Spending "on hold" is a plan only,
and any cancellation of Capital Schemes would only be invoked in the
event that the Council needs to respond to a forecast financial impact of
the magnitude set out in this report.

13

UK Municipal Bonds Agency Framework Agreement (Pages 189 - 194)
The purpose of the report by the Director of Finance and Resources (Section
151 Officer) is to obtain the Council's approval to enter into a framework
agreement with the UK Municipal Bonds Agency (MBA). Entering in to the
framework agreement is a pre-requisite for borrowing from the UK MBA. The
framework agreement includes a guarantee under which the Council would be
guaranteeing the borrowing of other local authorities. The guarantee is
necessary to enable the UK MBA to lend to local authorities at rates below
those offered by the Public Works Loans Board (PWLB). The Council's liability
under the guarantee is limited to its proportion of the UK MBA's non-defaulting
loans up to a sum equal to the Council's total borrowing from the UK MBA. In
addition, the UK MBA will assess the credit worthiness of each local authority
at the time of accession to the framework agreement, at the time of entry into
a loan, and at least annually thereafter.
RECOMMENDED TO COUNCIL:
(a)
That the Council enter into a framework agreement with the UK
Municipal Bonds Agency;
(b)

That the City Solicitor (Monitoring Officer) and the Director of
Finance and Resources (Section 151 Officer) be given
delegated authority to sign the Framework Agreement and the
Certificate of Approval confirming that:
(1) the Council has the power to enter into the Framework
Agreement and to perform its obligations under it;
(2) the Council has approved the entering into of the Framework
Agreement and the proportional guarantee;
(3) all the necessary authorisations have been obtained and

7

decision making procedures followed and completed to enable
the Council to enter into the Framework Agreement and the
proportional guarantee.
14

Exclusion of Press and Public
“That, under the provisions of Section 100A of the Local Government
Act, 1972 as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information)
Act, 1985, the press and public be excluded for the consideration of the
following item on the grounds that the report(s) contain information
defined as exempt in Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government
Act, 1972”.
The public interest in maintaining the exemption must outweigh the
public interest in disclosing the information.
Under the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and
Access to Information) England Regulations 2012, regulation 5, the
reasons for exemption of the listed item is shown below.
Members of the public may make representation as to why the item
should be held in open session. A statement of the Council’s response
to representations received will be given at the meeting so that this can
be taken into account when members decide whether or not to deal with
the item under exempt business.
(NB The exempt/confidential committee papers on the agenda will
contain information which is commercially, legally or personally
sensitive and should not be divulged to third parties. Members are
reminded of standing order restrictions on the disclosure of exempt
information and are invited to return their exempt documentation to the
Local Democracy Officer at the conclusion of the meeting for shredding.)
Item

Paragraph

Company Directors (appendix A only, legal advice)

5

(paragraph 5 - information in respect of which a claim
to legal privilege could be maintained in legal
proceedings)
15

Board Composition of Portsmouth City Council Companies (Pages 195 248)
The report by the City Solicitor (with exempt appendix A circulated separately
to Cabinet Members) sets out the basis upon which it is necessary and
prudent to structure the Ravelin Group of companies. The basis for this is to
provide an appropriate vehicle to enable company activity to occur that is
efficient, legally accountable and transparent. The need to structure as
suggested is to enable PCC to trade and generate profit beyond merely
covering the initial cost of the activity.
RECOMMENDED that:
8

(1)
The City Solicitor prepares and drafts a protocol (drawn from best
practice and expert advice - referred to at Appendix A and Appendix D)
approved by the Governance and Audit Committee as a reference and
guide for the overall corporate governance structure (i.e. company
structure and board composition) relating to PCC owned companies and
incorporated within the PCC's constitution.
(2)
In accordance with the protocol at Appendix A, that the following
be approved in respect of the Ravelin Group companies:
(i)
A shareholder committee is established and is responsible for the
oversight of the Ravelin Group companies and all other future company
subsidiaries (where relevant).
(ii)
The Ravelin Group Shareholder Committee and draft terms of
reference set out in detail in Appendix B are approved.
(iii)
Following the approval of the establishment of the Ravelin Group
shareholder committee the previous delegations as contained within the
cabinet decision meeting dated 26 February 2019 shall cease and the
shareholder committee shall become the sole body exercising the
shareholder functions of Ravelin Group companies.
(iv)
Any amendments to finalise the corporate structure of the Ravelin
Group and all relevant subsidiaries required to maximise the tax
efficiency of the Ravelin Group and any other PCC companies is
delegated to the City Solicitor in consultation with the Leader of the
Council and the S.151 Officer.
16

Transport Recovery Plan (Pages 249 - 292)
In response to the transport challenges faced by the Covid-19 pandemic,
Portsmouth City Council has produced a draft Transport Recovery Plan,
in line with government's recommendations for encouraging safe and
sustainable travel as the city recovers from lockdown.
This report by the Director of Regeneration outlines the content of the
draft Portsmouth Transport Recovery Plan, including proposed
temporary measures to assist with the economic recovery of the city.
This report will also set out how the draft Transport Recovery Plan fits
with the emerging Local Transport Plan 4 (LTP4) and the wider transport
policy framework.
RECOMMENDED that Cabinet:
(1) Approves the strategic direction to PCC's Covid-19 transport
response as set out in the draft Transport Recovery Plan;
(2) Approves the delivery of the proposed temporary measures, and
process for prioritising further measures as set out in the draft
Transport Recovery Plan;

9

(3) Note that the measures proposed within the draft Transport
Recovery Plan are intended as temporary measures to be
implemented quickly in response to public health concerns and to
support the city's economic recovery. Therefore proposals will not
be subject to the usual public consultation process prior to
implementation;
(4)

Note that proposals in the draft Transport Recovery Plan are
conditional upon sufficient funding being provided secured
through government's Emergency Active Travel Fund;

(5) Give delegated authority to the Assistant Director for Transport to
amend the draft Transport Recovery Plan in line with the
recommendations of Cabinet and in relation to the agenda item on
LTP4 for this decision meeting.
17

Covid-19 - road to recovery and plans for the future (Pages 293 - 308)
The report by the Chief Executive provides the Cabinet with a proposed
framework for how the city might best position itself in response to the Covid19 pandemic.
RECOMMENDED that Cabinet:
(1)

Expresses its condolences to those that have lost loved ones, and
its huge appreciation to the many agencies and individuals that
have responded so selflessly and effectively to the Covid-19
pandemic.

(2)

Agrees the process for developing the Vision for the City
and alignment with its own priorities, outlined in Section 5.

This meeting is webcast (videoed), viewable via the Council's livestream account at
https://livestream.com/accounts/14063785

10

Agenda Item 3
CABINET
RECORD OF DECISIONS of the meeting of the Cabinet held on Tuesday, 10
March 2020 at 12.00 pm at the Guildhall, Portsmouth
Present
Councillor Gerald Vernon-Jackson CBE (in the Chair)
Councillors Steve Pitt
Dave Ashmore
Suzy Horton
Lee Hunt
Darren Sanders
Lynne Stagg
Matthew Winnington
Rob Wood
Tom Wood
15.

Apologies for Absence (AI 1)

16.

Declarations of Interests (AI 2)
Peter Baulf, as City Solicitor, had provided advice to members regarding their
role in debates relating to private sector housing, as either landlords or
tenants, and he had taken a different view in relation to the report before them
at this meeting as opposed to the previous Council debate. There were
therefore no pecuniary interests needing to be declared.

17.

Record of Previous Decision Meeting - 4 February 2020 (AI 3)
RESOLVED that the minutes of the previous Cabinet meeting held on 4
February 2020 be approved as a correct record to be signed by the
Leader.

18.

Draft Private Rental Sector Strategy for Portsmouth (AI 4)
Clare Hardwick, Head of Private Sector Housing, presented the report of the
Director of Housing, Neighbourhood and Building Services, which showed
how the survey results helped to shape the draft strategy. The report set out
the key aims and actions, including the establishment of a mediation service
and investigation of additional licensing. The aim was to consult on these for
3 months from the end of March.
A deputation was made by Councillor Corkery, as Labour Housing
Spokesperson. Deputations are not minuted in full but can be viewed as part
of the webcast record of the meeting here:
https://livestream.com/accounts/14063785/full-cabinet-10mar2020

1

Page 11

Councillor Corkery raised concerns from tenants regarding poor quality
housing conditions and rogue landlords and wanted full powers to be used to
enforce better conditions and an increased level of landlord accreditation and
more action taken through the HMO Governance Board to help address the
power balance between landlord and tenant.
Clare Hardwick responded to some of the points raised; with regards to
selective licensing, this can be applied to all properties and landlords (not
distinguishing between properties) and the strategy includes looking at HMOs
which have a greater impact on communities. The intention would be to take a
proportionate approach and she stressed this is a draft consultation to find out
the views of the public. The Leader asked that if a route was discounted the
reasons behind this be explained.
Councillor Sanders, as Cabinet Member for Housing, did not believe that
evidence of problems justified selective licensing, although this had been
considered and the House of Commons' review had found that it would not
work on its own. Selective licensing does not deal with those arriving
homeless or who are behind with their rent. The Greater Manchester review
had found a lack of support for tenants. The intention was for the proposed
Mediation Service would become the first such Housing Court. Cllr Sanders
favoured bringing back additional licensing for small HMOs and this needed to
be brought in in an integrated way.
Councillor Pitt felt that the Newham example of selective licensing was not
comparable (Clare Hardwick confirmed that there had been an issue there
regarding criminality of landlords, plus different demographics) and felt that
the involvement of ward councillors was important in helping report issues of
poor housing conditions. Paul Fielding, Assistant Director Housing, reported
that he would be meeting with the Registered Social Landlords later that day
to discuss their complaints procedures. Councillor Wood was supportive of
HMO issues being further considered; these were often raised by residents
groups at Planning Committee. Councillor Vernon-Jackson welcomed the
report and sought an ambitious plan which would help give support tenants
and help support landlords to be better.
The Leader asked that there be regular updates on progress.
DECISIONS:
(1)
The Cabinet approved the draft Private Rental Sector strategy for
Portsmouth (Appendix 1).
(2)
That officers will immediately begin to implement the actions
within the strategy that do not require any further permissions, budget
or resources, as identified in section 6 of this report.
(3)
The Cabinet authorised officers to undertake a consultation on
this draft strategy.
(4)
That officers bring back to Cabinet the results of the consultation,
along with a final strategy and action plan for approval and identify any
additional decisions required to implement the strategy.

2

Page 12

19.

Home Energy and Water Strategy (AI 5)
The Director of Housing, Neighbourhood and Buildings' report was presented
by Meredydd Hughes, Assistant Director Buildings, Andrew Waggott, Energy
Services Team Manager and Mark Sage, Tackling Poverty Co-ordinator. The
draft strategy had been out to consultation and now incorporated the feedback
from the public and key stakeholders (as set out in Appendix C) which had
been highly supportive. Appendix B set out the action plan of works and the
team had been successful in attracting additional external funding and further
funding for insulation works could be announced in the following day's
national budget. Mark Sage reported that a key part of the strategy was
tackling poverty and reducing the costs of energy, to provide a coherent and
visible offer for residents to access.
Councillor Sanders, as Cabinet Member for Housing, quoted some of the
targets within the strategy, including improving 500 homes and supporting
1,500 people in their energy spending and 1,500 people to improve their
water. Also there is a target to save 500 tonnes of carbon each year. He
welcomed the ambitious programme, which showed why PCC had won
Energy Efficiency Council of the Year again.
Councillor Winnington, as Joint Chair of the Health & Wellbeing Board (HWB),
reported that Mark Sage had brought the draft strategy to the HWB which has
a wide ranging membership (including police, probation, education as well as
health) where it had been well received. He welcomed this strategy which
would also benefit physical and mental health. The report authors were
thanked for this important piece of work and the Leader welcomed the work
taking place with landlord for the benefit of tenants

DECISIONS - The Cabinet:
(1)
noted the extensive consultation undertaken with key partners
and the wider public; and that the response of the consultation was
overwhelmingly positive and in agreement with the objectives laid out in
the draft strategy.
(2)
approved the final strategy for publication.
(3)
noted the development of a detailed action plan which will help to
expand the scope and scale of the help currently offered by the
authority; whilst acknowledging that this is a live document which will
be subject to further development.
(4)
noted the development of a marketing and communication
strategy which will reach and engage every household in Portsmouth;
whilst acknowledging that this is a live document which will be subject
to further development.
20.

Mainstreaming Proceeds of Crime (AI 6)
Ed Skinner, Regulatory Services Lead, presented the report of the Director
Culture, Leisure & Regulatory Services, and reported on the work undertaken
by Trading Standards which included tackling rogue traders and landlords.
Paragraph 4.4. of the report set out the areas which could benefit from these
3

Page 13

powers, which also included persistent fly-tipping, parking fraud, food
standards and adult social care dishonesties. Section 8 of the report set out
the advice that would be given to other departments (such as Planning and
Housing) on the use of the Proceeds of Crime Act (PoCA) and the proposal
was to invest in the appointment of a legal advocate.
Councillor Hunt, as Cabinet Member for Community Safety, was pleased that
the report showed how officers were working across services, as well as with
external bodies, to tackle fraudulent activities, using all the powers available.
There would need to be training of more investigators and it was expected
that the scheme would self-finance. He suggested an additional
recommendation for regular reports to his portfolio meetings and he
congratulated Richard Lee's team for their work.
Councillor Pitt, Deputy Leader, welcomed the work which tackled those
exploiting others, including the vulnerable. In response to a question from
Councillor Stagg, Mr Skinner reported that the intention would be to work with
the Safer Portsmouth Partnership in the future, using money retrieved to work
with young offenders, but the government took part of the proceeds with the
local authority retaining 37%.

DECISIONS: The Cabinet
(1) approved the actions as set out within Section 8 of the report,
namely the:
• development of Council wide processes, guidance and templates
for the comprehensive implementation of POCA frameworks across
all PCC services;
• use of risk assessed POCA interventions wherever possible;
• setting up of a £50,000 reserve to offset against costs incurred
during the process of pursuing actions via the Courts in respect to
criminal proceedings and POCA activities.
(2) Asked that regular update reports be brought to the Cabinet
Member for Community Safety's decision meetings.
21.

Administration fees for Appointeeship Services (AI 7)
Richard Webb, Finance Manager, presented this report which sought to
introduce fees for the appointeeship services in order to ensure the service
could continue to support future vulnerable adults. Fees would be kept as low
as possible. The report set out benchmarking with other local authorities and
the proposed engagement process before the introduction which was planned
for July 2020. In response to questions from Councillor Winnington, Cabinet
Member for Health, Wellbeing and Social Care, he drew members' attention to
the table at 5.15 which showed PCC fees of £10, compared to £15 for
external organisations, and it was not set at full cost recovery for the council
(which would be at a level of £21). Councillor Winnington commented that
4

Page 14

there had been a large in increase in clients for this non-statutory service, and
the increase was necessary to provide help, when it was not covered by
government funding.
DECISIONS - The Cabinet:
(1)
Agreed to introduce administration fees for Appointeeship
services from Monday 06 July 2020.
(2)
Agreed to set the weekly fees at the following rates for the
financial year 2020-21 from the above date:
For clients in residential care - £4.00
For clients in community based care - £10.00
(3)
Agreed to the mitigation arrangements in the case of hardship as
set out in paragraphs 5.20 and 5.21.
(4)
Agreed that the proposed fee rates above, will be inflated annually
in line with the inflation rate applied to the Adult Social Care fees and
charges from the financial year 2021-22.
(5)
Noted the proposed community support and engagement process
as detailed in section 7 of the report.
22.

Greening Portsmouth Strategy (AI 8)
Kelly Nash, Corporate Performance Manager, presented the report on behalf
of the Chief Executive|which set out the proposals to maximise the impact of
the significant planting programme for the city, its positive implications for
wellbeing and in countering carbon emissions. The aim was to plant 1200
trees per year.
Councillor Vernon-Jackson, Leader of the Council, welcomed the strategy
which he was seeing taking shape around the city and also Colas were
replacing trees when they had to take these out of the highway.
Councillor Ashmore, Cabinet Member for Environment & Climate Change,
welcomed the positive document which aimed to improve the environment
and air quality across the whole city. He was pleased that Friends of the Earth
and Wilder Portsmouth had been involved in its development. It would not
just be the planting of trees but would include other plants such as
wildflowers, and the Cabinet members thanked and congratulated the officers
for their work across departments.
Councillor Stagg and Councillor Horton welcomed the involvement of schools
and the interest of children in climate change. Cllr Stagg hoped that the
Planning Department would ensure that trees were replaced when removed in
new developments. Councillor Rob Wood urged some caution for trees to be
planted where appropriate. Councillor Hunt hoped that the new trees would be
protected and respected. Councillor Sanders welcomed this as an ambitious
5

Page 15

strategy for the city, which resisted net loss of green space, and he would
send the strategy to the Tree Council.

DECISION: Cabinet approved the Greening Portsmouth Strategy (set out
at Appendix A to the report).
23.

Forward Plan Omission re Annual Capital Strategy (AI 9)
The Cabinet noted:
(1)
(2)

24.

the omission to the Forward Plan for March 2020;
the publication of the omission notice.

Annual Capital Strategy - 2020/21 - 2029/30 (AI 10)
Julian Pike, Deputy Director of Finance & Section 151 Officer, presented this
update report going to Council, which outlined the principles formulated and
set out the impact of capital expenditure plans, including debt repayment, and
indicators for exposure (all set out in the appendices).
Councillor Vernon-Jackson, asked that he as Leader and the Deputy Leader
have oversight of progress on this during the year.
RECOMMENDED to Council:
(1)
That Part I of the Capital Strategy (Capital Expenditure and
Aspirations) be approved including:
a)
The Short / Medium / Long-term Aspirations set out in Appendix 1
(2) That Part II of the Capital Strategy (Borrowing and Investing in
Property) be approved including:
a)
The Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) for Debt Repayment
Policy (Part II, (paragraph 1.5)
b)
The investment indicators in Part II - Appendix 2 (part II,
paragraph 2.5)
c)
That the Director of Finance and Resources (Section 151 Officer)
will bring a report to the next Cabinet and City Council if (part II,
paragraph 2.5):
(i)
The Council's gross General Fund (GF) debt exceeds 400% of GF
net service expenditure or;
(ii)
Overall investment income from investment properties and long
term treasury management investments exceeds 7.9% of GF net service
expenditure.

25.

Treasury Management Policy 2020/21 (AI 11)
Julian Pike, Deputy Director of Finance & Section 151 Officer, presented this
report which set out significant policy amendments, which included avoiding
investment in fossil fuels unless they invest in renewable energy. With regard
to the changes to lending to Hampshire Community Bank, Councillor Vernon6

Page 16

Jackson, as Leader, would wish any lending proposal involving them to come
to Cabinet for decision (so added a recommendation g(ii)to reflect this).
RECOMMENDED to Council:
(a) that the upper limit for principal sums invested for longer than 365 days
contained in paragraph 4.7 of the attached Treasury Management Policy
Statement be approved;
(b) that the upper and lower limits on the maturity structure of borrowing
contained in appendix 5.1 of the attached Treasury Management Policy
Statement be approved;
(c) that the attached Treasury Management Policy Statement including the
Treasury Management Strategy and Annual Investment Strategy for 2020/21
be approved;
(d) That the Council will where it is financially responsible to do so, give
preference to investments that improve the environment, bring wider social
benefits, and are with organisations with good governance. In particular the
Council will:
(i) Avoid investments in fossil fuel extraction unless they are making
substantial investment into renewable energy technologies as part of a
strategy to become a clean energy supplier;
(ii) Consider the environmental, social and governance elements of credit
ratings in making investment decisions, provided that the overall risk profile of
the investment portfolio (including liquidity risk) and returns are not
compromised;
(e) that rated building societies be given the same lending limits as banks;
(f) that the Council will only lend to housing associations if they have a viability
rating of V1 and a Governance rating of G1 from Homes England;
(g) (i) that lending to Hampshire Community Bank (HCB) will be secured on
loans made by HCB to small and medium sized enterprises (SMEs) of the
highest credit quality which may not in turn be secured on tangible fixed
assets;
(ii)
That loan advances to HCB in accordance with (g) (i) above will be
subject to individual approval by Cabinet
(h) that the maximum duration of loans to HCB be reduced from 10 years to 5
years;
(i) As set out in paragraph 1.4 of the Treasury Management Policy Statement,
the Director of Finance and Resources (Section 151 Officer) and officers
nominated by him have delegated authority to:
(i) invest surplus funds in accordance with the approved Annual Investment
Strategy;
(ii) borrow to finance short term cash deficits and capital payments from any
reputable source within the authorised limit for external debt of £883m
approved by the City Council on 11th February 2020;
(iii) reschedule debt in order to even the maturity profile or to achieve revenue
savings;
(iv) to buy and sell foreign currency, and to purchase hedging instruments
including forward purchases, forward options and foreign exchange rate
swaps to mitigate the foreign exchange risks associated with some contracts
that are either priced in foreign currencies or where the price is indexed
against foreign currency exchange rates;

7

Page 17

(j) that the Director of Finance and Resources (Section 151 Officer) has the
power to delegate treasury management operations to relevant staff;
(k) that the Chief Executive, the Leader of the City Council and the Chair of
the Governance and Audit and Standards Committee be informed of any
variances from the Treasury Management Policy when they become
apparent, and that the Leader of the City Council be consulted on remedial
action (paragraph 1.2.2 of Treasury Management Policy Statement).
26.

Revenue Budget Monitoring 2019/20 (Third Quarter) to end December
2019 (AI 12)
Julian Pike, Deputy Director of Finance & Section 151 Officer, presented this
report which detailed the underspend of £667k; any underspend at the end of
the financial year would transfer for future capital resources.
DECISIONS:
(i) Cabinet Members noted:
(a) An overspend of £667,900 before further forecast transfers from/(to)
Portfolio Specific Reserves & Ring Fenced Public Health Reserve
(b) An underspend of £625,200 after further forecast transfers from/(to)
Portfolio Specific Reserves & Ring Fenced Public Health Reserve.
(c) That any actual overspend at year end will in the first instance be
deducted from any Portfolio Specific Reserve balance and once
depleted then be deducted from the 2020/21 Cash Limit.
(d) That on 11th February 2020 City Council approved that any
underspending for 2019/20 arising at year-end outside of those made
by Portfolios be transferred to Capital resources.
(ii) Directors, in consultation with the appropriate Cabinet Member, will
consider options that seek to minimise any forecast overspend
presently being reported and prepare strategies outlining how any
consequent reduction to the 2020/21 Portfolio cash limit will be managed
to avoid further overspending during 2020/21.

27.

Local Transport Plan 4 Development (AI 13)
Felicity Tidbury, Acting Assistant Director Transport, presented the report of
the Director of Regeneration. The production of the updated plan was a
statutory obligation and this now covered a longer period running to 2036. It
was proposed that the new vision, as outlined in the report and appendix, go
out to consultation before being due back at Cabinet in June 2020.
Councillor Stagg, as Cabinet Member for Traffic & Transportation, thanked the
officers involved for their hard work in accessing the various funding streams.
The plan needed to address the problems caused by increased car ownership
an 43k vehicles coming into the city each day, leading to congestion and air
pollution as well as the economic effects of delays in travel. This represented
an aspirational integrated transport strategy and she commended the chart
8

Page 18

appended to the report. Councillor Winnington commented on the cross
agency work with local businesses and health organisations. The Director of
Public Health was also keen to be involved.
DECISIONS - The Cabinet:
(1)
approved the draft vision and policy objectives for the Local
Transport Plan 4
(2)
agreed the continued development of the draft strategy in
accordance with the vision and policy objectives
(3)
agreed that the strategy be brought back to Cabinet and Full
Council for approval to consult in June.
28.

Exclusion of Press and Public (AI 14)
The confidential version of Social Value (appendix B only) was confirmed as
exempt information (and an open version had been made available). With
regard to the original, confidential version the resolution to maintain its
confidentiality was passed, on the grounds that it contained information
defined as exempt in part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act
1972.

29.

Social Value - a rent subsidy model (AI 15)
Tom Southall, Assistant Director Property & Investment, drew members'
attention to the new open version of Appendix B which gave a fictitious
example of how the model could work. He also pointed out that at paragraph
3.6 there would be reinvestment in the Housing Estate via the Housing
Revenue Account.
Councillor Vernon-Jackson paid credit to the involvement of Councillor
Jeanette Smith as former Cabinet Member for Resources. Councillor Smith
then gave a deputation, reading out the principles of Social Value, and
challenging whether this report met the aims as there had not been adequate
consultation with the community and voluntary sector. She was disappointed
that it had taken 2 years to come to Cabinet and did not show a partnership
approach and PCC had to act as a responsible landlord.
Tom Southall responded to points raised; the proposal was for standard terms
for occupation to be fair and he agreed that assets let should be fit for
purpose. Councillor Vernon-Jackson welcomed the proposal to look at wider
considerations than attracting the highest rent from PCC assets, as these
should be lowered if the project achieves a wider PCC objective. He would
favour monitoring progress to see how this worked with the voluntary sector.
Councillor Tom Wood, as Cabinet Member for Resources, felt that this was
formalising a process that had already been used in some cases, and he
welcomed the rent subsidy model which would help support organisations in
the city. Councillor Winnington also supported social value considerations
9

Page 19

being looked at, as had happened when the Langstone Harbour Board had
discussed the operation of the Hayling Island Ferry.
Councillor Pitt, as Cabinet Member for Culture & City Development, reported
on the range of property owned by PCC, which was subject to Landlords
Maintenance Budget, including garages and shops being let out on market
value, subject to the condition of the property. He felt that there is more work
to do on considering sub letting implications and reported that a separate
report on the Hive was due to come to the next Cabinet meeting.
At the end of the meeting the Leader thanked Cllr Rob Wood for his work and
contributions as Cabinet Member for Children and Families, who was
attending his last meeting.
DECISIONS:
(1)
Cabinet approved a property valuation framework where social
value can be taken into account when PCC is looking to rent out
property to third parties where their aims coincide with the objectives of
the Council;
(2)
Cabinet Members acknowledged that the service areas that
benefit from the third-party support recognise the discounted income in
their Portfolio cash limits and that equivalent savings may be necessary
to accommodate any reduced income.
(3) Cabinet requested a report back in 6 months' time regarding the
implementation and consultation with the voluntary sector to show how
this model is working.

The meeting concluded at 2.05 pm.

Councillor Gerald Vernon-Jackson CBE
Leader of the Council

10

Page 20

Agenda Item 4
Note of SO58 urgent decision teleconference with Chief Executive - the Hive - Friday 27 March 2020

Purpose: David Williams, Chief Executive, asked that a telephone conference facility be used for him
to consult on the urgent decision required on the Hive Partnership Agreement with PCC.
Reason for urgency: this item was identified as needing decision from the cancelled Special Cabinet
of 26th March 2020 9.15am, for which papers had been published (item 8 refers), due to the
Coronavirus measures meaning public meetings were suspended.
Teleconference Attendees:
Cllrs - Gerald Vernon-Jackson CBE (Leader of the Council), Donna Jones (Leader of the Opposition)
Tom Wood (Cabinet Member for Resources), Steve Pitt (Cabinet Member for Culture & City
Development) and Opposition spokespersons - Jeanette Smith, Claire Udy
Also present - Cllr Luke Stubbs, Deputy Leader of Opposition and representing Cllr Linda Symes
Officers - David Williams Chief Executive and Stephen Baily Director of Culture, Leisure & Regulatory
Services, Peter Baulf City Solicitor

The SO58 referral and paper on the HIVE had been circulated to all the required consultees on 26th
March by Democratic Services (JW); this item covers 2 portfolios, Resources and Culture & City
Development.
The Chief Executive asked the Director of Culture, Leisure & Regulatory Services to present his
report. Stephen Baily introduced his report for which the proposed agreement was intended to take
effect as from 1st April 2020, hence the urgency. The report set out the proposed governance
arrangements and the 4 goals of the HIVE, which included providing support to the voluntary and
community sector and to have model that could respond to challenging situations, such as the
current Coronavirus pandemic. The agreement formalised the close working relationship with PCC
and a model of community engagement; this would help in attracting funding and moving to
charitable status. The HIVE had received 1800 enquiries in a year, dealt with 105 organisations and
supported 150 volunteers and given funding advice to 135 small groups, which had been before
needing to respond to the recent Coronavirus situation.
Members' Comments
Cllr Gerald Vernon-Jackson, Leader, commented that the HIVE had shown how important it is in
responding to the Coronavirus pandemic and the effect on the local community, so the formal
agreement was needed. The HIVE staff were doing brilliant work in these circumstances.
Cllr Jeanette Smith had intended to make a deputation at Cabinet, had it taken place on 26 March,
to raise her concern at the reference to budget reduction for the HIVE, which needed to be
challenged in the current situation and she asked if the Section 151 Financial Officer had been asked
to make a release of monies (£200k) referred to in the Business Case? The Council and the HIVE are
working as partners to tackle Covid-19 and a lot of charities and voluntary organisations are
struggling due to this situation and therefore funding should be made available to assist. Cllr Smith
urged that funding be looked at and not reduced (as indicated) in 2021.

Page 21

Cllr Tom Wood supported the proposal to put the partnership arrangement between PCC and the
HIVE on a formal footing, which was essential in the current climate (and would have been the right
thing to do regardless).
Councillor Luke Stubbs asked about the structure of the agreement being 2-way and not 3-way to
include the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG). Stephen Baily responded that he believed there is
a separate agreement with CCG, and would look into this to confirm by email.
Cllr Donna Jones referred to section 3.8 which recommended the governing board composition of
PCC and trustees; she felt this was sensible for normal times but asked that the Leader consider
inviting other representatives to partnership meetings from the other groups in the current
emergency situation? She also asked about the budget for staffing (Section 7.1) and arrangements;
it was reported that the figure of £179,100 included staffing, who worked in partnership, rather than
on secondment. The Leader agreed that there should be cross-party input throughout the
Coronavirus response. Councillor Jones asked that both she and the Deputy Leader of the
Opposition, Cllr Stubbs be kept informed by telephone meetings.
Councillor Steve Pitt commented that elements of the report had been based on "business as usual",
setting out a transition fund. However in the short term the HIVE was responding to the national
emergency and the need for extra resources straight away was acknowledged and this formal
process would allow this to happen. Staff and volunteers were working around the clock to help
local residents.

Chief Executive's Decision
David Williams took on board the comments raised at this teleconference meeting, and took the
silence from other members as assent as all members had been given access to the necessary
documentation which formed part of this consultation process.
Requested Actions:
i) Chris Ward would be asked to provide a note on the financial situation; Stephen Baily would liaise
with Chris Ward.
ii) The Leader took on board the comments made regarding keeping members of the opposition
informed of progress
iii) Stephen Baily would respond on the CCG partnership position.
DECISION: The Chief Executive approved the Strategic Partnership agreement and that this
agreement is appropriately communicated across each directorate within PCC.
(This decision would be reported to all members via the Members' Information Service on 27 March
2020)
Meeting duration: 9.30 - 9.50am

Page 22

Agenda Item 5

Title of meeting:

Cabinet

Date of meeting:

14th July 2020

Subject:

Modern Slavery Transparency Statement

Report by:

Corporate Strategy - Lisa Wills

Wards affected:

All

Key decision:

No

Full Council decision:

No

1.

Purpose of report

The purpose of this report is to provide context to the council's Modern Slavery
Transparency Statement and seek approval to publish the statement on the council's
website (appendix 1)
2.

Recommendations

That Cabinet approves
i)
ii)
iii)

The Modern Slavery Transparency Statement for publication on the
council's website (see appendix 1) and
The programme of work set out in item 5.
Full Council is asked to note the recommendations for information only

3.

Background

3.1
The Modern Slavery Act 2015 (MSA 2015) applies to England and Wales and
includes the offences of human trafficking and slavery, servitude and forced or compulsory
labour. The Act consolidated and simplified existing offences and establishes a legal duty
under Section 52 for specified public authorities to notify the Home Office where there is
reasonable grounds to be believe a person may be a victim of modern slavery.
3.2
Section 54 of the MSA 2015 requires commercial organisations carrying out
business in the UK, with a turnover of at least £36 million, to prepare and publish
a slavery and human trafficking statement for each and every financial year.
3.3
A review of the legislation published in May 2019 recommended that Government
should extend section 54 requirements to the public sector and strengthen its public
procurement processes. The council published first statement in advance of this
recommendation in March 2019. This is the council's second published statement.
1 23
Page

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

3.4
The Local Government Association has published helpful guidance in relation to
preparing transparency statements which has been used to develop the draft statement
attached. Portsmouth City Council's existing statement is published on the LGA Portal
here: https://www.local.gov.uk/topics/community-safety/modern-slavery/transparencystatements. Not all local authorities have published a statement.
4.

Hampshire and Isle of Wight Modern Slavery Partnership

4.1
The council believes that tackling modern slavery and trafficking cannot be
addressed by one organisation alone. Portsmouth is therefore an active member of the
Hampshire and Isle of Wight Modern Slavery Partnership. The Partnership has undergone
a restructure over the past 18 months and senior managers responsible for adult and
children's safeguarding are represented on the core group. Other Council staff play an
active role in supporting the relevant sub-groups and have been involved in the
development of the most recent strategic plan (2020-23) available here:
https://www.modernslaverypartnership.org.uk/files/2115/9169/7447/Hamp_MSP_Strategy.
pdf
4.2
The partnership has also developed a clear referral pathway for victims of modern
slavery (appendix 2). It is helpful for members to note that in relation to the trafficking of
children, the council has developed a good working relationship with the Immigration
Enforcement Team, UK Border Force and the Police through quarterly meetings to share
intelligence and protect vulnerable children. Safeguarding procedures for children and
adults are implemented when required as referenced in the statement.
4.3
Staff from Learning and Development are leading the work to develop a consistent
e-learning package across the county as part of the training sub-group.
4.4
The partnership co-ordinator has provided helpful infographics from the national
Modern Slavery and Exploitation Helpline (see Executive Summary of data 2017-2019 at
appendix 3). More detailed information for Portsmouth has been requested from Police
colleagues; this will provide a better understanding of the issues locally and enable more
targeted action.
5.

Programme of continuous improvement

5.1
A local Modern Slavery Steering group has been established to take forward the
improvement programme set out in the statement. This will be reviewed annually
alongside the statement itself ensuring appropriate levels of awareness, response and
enforcement across the relevant council directorates.
5.2



The programme of work will include:
Finalising corporate performance indicators as part of a new corporate health
monitoring process.
Working in active partnership with the Hampshire and Isle of Wight Modern Slavery
Partnership to support a consistent approach and response to modern slavery and
trafficking

Page2 24
www.portsmouth.gov.uk






6.

Raising awareness of modern slavery by developing improved internal and external
communications
Extending the current and developing training to a wider staff group and developing
universal multi-agency safeguarding training as mandatory for all council staff.
Focus on ensuring that all supply chains are free from modern slavery, including
undertaking local risk assessments and audits.
Deliver community safety responses and disruption activities, working alongside
partner agencies such as the police, fire and health services.
Reasons for recommendations

6.1
This Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement sets out the Council’s
current position and future plans to understand all potential modern slavery risks related to
its business and to put in place steps that are aimed at ensuring there is no slavery or
human trafficking in its own business and/or in its supply chains.
6.2
The statement relates to activities during the financial year April 2019 to March
2020 and sets out a programme of work to be completed by the end of March 2021. For
the avoidance of doubt, the statement also applies to Portsmouth International Port.
Portico (previously known as MMD) are likely to prepare a separate statement.
7.

Equality impact assessment (EIA)

A preliminary EIA has been completed and is attached.
8.

Legal implications

The report confirms the basis upon which an organisation is required to prepare and
publish its statement relevant to the Modern Slavery Act.
9.

Director of Finance's comments

There are no financial implications arising from the recommendations. If there are
actions arising from the programme of work that require additional resource, a further
report will be brought to members.

………………………………………………
Signed by:

Appendices:
Appendix 1 Portsmouth City Council Draft Modern Slavery Transparency Statement
2019/20
Appendix 2 Adult victim referral pathway - June 2020
Appendix 3 Data Infographic - Modern Slavery and Exploitation Helpline 2017-19
3 25
Page

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972
The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a
material extent by the author in preparing this report:
Title of document
Local Government Association - Tackling
Modern Slavery - A council guide
Councillor Guide to Tackling Modern
Slavery

Location
LGA website
https://www.local.gov.uk/modern-slaverycouncil-guide
LGA website
https://www.local.gov.uk/councillor-guidetackling-modern-slavery

The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ deferred/
rejected by ……………………………… on ………………………………

………………………………………………
Signed by:

Page4 26
www.portsmouth.gov.uk

MODERN SLAVERY AND HUMAN
TRAFFICKING STATEMENT

Contents:
Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement

ID
Last Review
Date

March 2020

Next Review
Date

January 2021

Approval

Cabinet

Policy
Owner

Executive

Policy
Author

Lisa Wills

Advice &
Guidance

Strategy Unit

Location

Policyhub

Related
Documents
Applicability

Hampshire and Isle of Wight Modern Slavery Partnership
https://www.modernslaverypartnership.org.uk/files/2115/9169/7447/Hamp_MSP_Strategy.pd

This policy applies to all employees in the City Council, except those in schools

Page 27
Corporate statement

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking

March 2020

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

1. Introduction
1.1
The Council acknowledges the provisions set out in the Modern
Slavery Act (2015) and this statement is made pursuant to section 54(1) and the
recommendations arising from an independent review published in May 2019.
1.2
Portsmouth City Council is committed to preventing slavery and human
trafficking in its corporate activities and to ensuring that the services it
commissions (and where applicable, supply chains) are free from slavery and
human trafficking.
1.3
This Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement sets out the
Council’s current position and future plans to understand all potential modern
slavery risks related to its business and to put in place steps that are aimed at
ensuring that there is no slavery or human trafficking in its own business and/or in
its supply chains. For the avoidance of doubt, this statement also applies to
Portsmouth International Port. The statement relates to activities during the
financial year April 2019 to March 2020.
1.4
A statement will be issued annually, setting out relevant information in
respect of the previous financial year and published on the council's website
here: https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/your-council/policies-andstrategies/modern-slavery-and-human-trafficking-statement.
2.

Context

2.1
The council's role in relation to modern slavery is broader than that of
other commercial organisations required to publish a transparency statement,
and can be set out in four areas:





identification and referral of victims
supporting victims – this can be through safeguarding children and adults with
care and support needs and through housing/homelessness services
community safety services, enforcement and disruption activities both
independently and with partners
making sure procurement processes and supply chains are free from modern
slavery

2.2
The Council acknowledges its role in working across the city to raise
awareness of the signs of modern slavery, identifying those vulnerable to it and
responding with partners to reports and incidents. This work involves a variety of
council services and partners including the Port, UK Border Force, Police, Civil
Contingencies, Environmental Health and Trading Standards, Licensing,
Children's Social Care and Adults Social Care.
2.3
There are quarterly meetings between port colleagues and the Border
Force to share intelligence, and the police have a sophisticated database to
combat modern day slavery, which could be used to seek prosecution.

Page 28
Corporate Statement

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking

March 2020

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

2.4
The Modern Slavery Steering Group has been established to monitor
the program of continuous improvement set out in item X.
2.5
Work to protect children and vulnerable adults who are trafficked
and/or exploited is overseen by our local safeguarding boards including referral
processes to the national Independent Child Trafficking Advocacy Service
(https://www.portsmouthscb.org.uk/professionals/trafficking/) and multi-agency
specialist groups (Missing Exploited and Trafficked Group - MET). See links
below for further information:
2.5.1 Portsmouth Safeguarding Children Partnership
(https://www.portsmouthscb.org.uk/professionals/trafficking/) and
2.5.2 Portsmouth Safeguarding Adults Board
(http://www.portsmouthsab.uk/abuse/missing-exploited-trafficked/)
2.6
Reporting suspected modern slavery - please follow the links to the
Portsmouth Safeguarding Children Partnership and Portsmouth Adult
Safeguarding Board above.
3.

Legislative framework

3.1
The Government’s approach to tackling modern slavery has been
shaped by a number of international laws, conventions and protocols which the
UK has opted in to, ratified or is already bound by, including the: 1950 European
Convention on Human Rights (ECHR) the Modern Slavery Act 2015, Children Act
1989, Care Act 2014, Immigration Act 2016
4.

Organisational structure

Portsmouth City Council (PCC) is a unitary authority situated in Portsmouth within
the geographical county of Hampshire. PCC provides a wide range of statutory
and discretionary services, delivered both directly by the Council and through
external contractors.
4.1

The Council’s senior management structure can be found here:

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cou-senior-managmentstructure-2019.pdf
4.2

The Council’s constitution can be found here:

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/the-council/policies-andstrategies/constitution
5.

Procurement and supply chains and due diligence

5.1
PCC requires all suppliers of goods or services to have their own policy
relating to working practices for modern slavery, or for evidence to be available to
ensure their standards are in accordance with the City Council's expectations.
We request that our suppliers ensure the same of their own supply chains. Our
Supplier Selection Questionnaire includes a requirement to comply with the
Modern Slavery Act 2015

Page 29
Corporate Statement

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking

March 2020

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

5.2
Further, we would expect and request assurance that the practices of
companies and organisations operating within the EU adhere to Article 4 of the
European Convention on Human Rights concerning the prohibition of slavery and
forced labour.
5.3
The majority of contracts let and managed by the council are low risk
for labour exploitation. The programme of continuous improvement includes a
plan to identify the highest risk existing contracts and map the associated supply
chains.
6.

Hampshire and Isle of Wight Modern Slavery Partnership

6.1
PCC is an active member of the Hampshire and Isle of Wight Modern
Slavery Partnership (http://www.modernslaverypartnership.org.uk/ ) and supports
the delivery of the overarching strategy 2020-2023.
https://www.modernslaverypartnership.org.uk/files/2115/9169/7447/Hamp_MSP_
Strategy.pdf
7.

Relevant organisational policies, procedures and strategies

7.1
PCC has the following policies that describe its current approach to the
identification of modern slavery risks and the steps it takes to prevent slavery and
human trafficking in its operations.All policies are available to staff on Policyhub
and are also available by contacting the Council direct (please email
Lisa.Wills@portsmouthcc.gov.uk)

7.3 Whistle blowing policy
7.3.1
Though our whistle blowing policy the council encourages all its
employees, councilors, contractors, their agents and/or subcontractors,
consultants, suppliers and service providers to report concerns about any aspect
of service provision, conduct of officers and others acting on behalf of the
Council, or the supply chain. The policy is designed to make it easy to make
disclosures without fear of discrimination and victimisation.

7.4 Employee Code of Conduct
7.4.1
The council's employee code of conduct makes clear to employees the
actions and behaviour expected of them when representing the council. The
council strives to maintain the highest standards of employee conduct and ethical
behaviour when managing the supply chain.
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cou-part4c-employeecode-of-conduct.pdf
7.5 Recruitment policy
7.5.1
The council adheres to robust continuing employment
checks/standards, this includes ensuring identities and qualifications, UK

Page 30
Corporate Statement

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking

March 2020

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

address, right to work in the UK, (i.e. people bought into the country illegally will
not have a National Insurance number), suitable references and payroll
information.
7.5.2
The organisation uses only specified, reputable employment agencies
to source labour and always verifies the practices of any new agency it is using
before accepting workers from that agency.
8.

Safeguarding policies and procedures - children and adults

8.1
As previously mentioned, the council is fully involved in a multi-agency
approach to raising awareness of modern slavery and human trafficking
coordinated by local safeguarding boards. The boards currently provide city wide
governance in relation to identification, referral and support of vulnerable children
and adults who may be subject to exploitation. Please refer to the links previously
provided for details.
9.

Training

9.1
Modern slavery and human trafficking is included within the council's
safeguarding training for children and adults. This training is mandatory for the
social care workforce and is consistent across the county through the 4LSCB1
and 4LSAB executive groups. In addition to this an e-learning package is being
developed in partnership across Hampshire, and will be delivered as part of the
mandatory training programme for all council employees.
9.2
Council Directors have agreed to extend training to a wider group of
staff following an internal audit (see below) in order to increase opportunities for
identifying and responding to incidents and reports.
9.3
Training is also included in an annual programme designed to support
elected members of the council.
10.

Auditing and evidence

10.1
The Council is committed to a programme of scrutiny and continuous
improvement and has completed a detailed compliance audit during 2019.
Findings from the audit were considered by council directors in May 20202 and a
follow up audit circulated in June. Work arising from the risks identified, to be
undertaken during this 12 month period include:



Finalising corporate performance indicators as part of a new corporate health
monitoring process.
Working in active partnership with the Hampshire and Isle of Wight Modern
Slavery Partnership to support a consistent approach and response to
modern slavery and trafficking

1

4LSAB and 4LSCB refer to representatives from the four separate local authorities that make up
Hampshire and the Isle of Wight (Portsmouth, Southampton, IOW and Hampshire County) who meet
regularly to agree consistent policies and procedures across the area.
2 Timeline delayed due to Covid 19 pandemic

Page 31

Corporate Statement

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking







March 2020

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Raising awareness of modern slavery by developing improved internal and
external communications
Extending the current and developing training to a wider staff group and
developing universal multi-agency safeguarding training as mandatory for all
council staff.
Focus on ensuring that all supply chains are free from modern slavery,
including undertaking local risk assessments and audits
Establish risk assessment processes in non-social care related directorates).
Deliver community safety responses and disruption activities, working
alongside partner agencies such as the police, fire and health services.

Portsmouth City Council
(add signature)
Signature:
Gerald Vernon-Jackson, Leader

Date

Page 32
Corporate Statement

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Hampshire, IOW, Portsmouth and Southampton Modern Slavery Adult Referral Pathway
Out of Hours
Duty Contact numbers:
Hampshire 0300 555 1373
Isle of Wight 0300 555 1373
Portsmouth 0300 555 1373
Southampton: 023 8023 3344

Homeless Teams
Basingstoke 01256 844844
East Hants 01730 234415
Eastleigh 02380 688000
Gosport 023 9254 5476
Hart 01252 774420
Isle of Wight (01983) 823040
New Forest 023 8028 5234
Rushmoor 01252 398634
Test Valley 01264 368000
Portsmouth 023 9283 4989
Southampton 023 8083 2327

Potential Victim of Modern Slavery identified

Homeless

Adult Social Care/MASH Teams
Hampshire 0300 555 1386 adult.services@hants.gov.uk
Isle of Wight 01983 814980, safeguardingconcerns@iow.gov.uk
Portsmouth 02392 680810, PortsmouthAdultMASH@portsmouthcc.gov.uk
Southampton: 023 8083 3003 adultsocialcareconnect@southampton.gov.uk

Assessments/Police Notifications
Initial assessments, S.42 strategy meeting, Vulnerable Adults at Risk form
emailed to hampshire.mash.admin@hampshire.pnn.police.uk

If there is an immediate risk dial 999

Under
18

Consider the following:
If victim is destitute
In immediate danger – call 999
Basic welfare, housing, health, legal needs

Referral to Children’s Services
Departments:
Hampshire: 01329 225379
Isle of Wight: 0300 300 0901
Hampshire and IOW Children's MASH
Inter Agency Referral Form
Portsmouth 023 9283 9111
Southampton 023 8083 3336

Page 33

Referral to Barnardo’s Independent Child
Trafficking Guardian Service
on 0800 043 4303

Assessments to see if eligible for
temporary accommodation and have
recourse to public funds. If no refer
back to MASH/Information and
Advice Team

National Referral Mechanism (NRM) process to be explained by a First
Responder (FR) who has received specific training.
Has the victim consented to the NRM? Consent discussion to include:
what the NRM is, support available, possible outcomes & info. sharing

No

Complete the Duty to Notify online via
https://www.modernslavery.gov.uk/start

Yes
Positive
Reasonable
Grounds
NRM
Min. 45 days reflective period. Local
Authority to remain in contact during
this period to support with exit plan
as necessary.
Negative
Conclusive
Grounds
decision

Complete the NRM online at https://www.modernslavery.gov.uk/start
Ensure a record is kept.
Contact the Salvation Army if accommodation is requested on
mst@salvationarmy.org.uk or 0300 303 8151
Consider Pre-NRM Accommodation. Until Salvation Army accepts
referral immediate safeguarding responsibility remains with the Local
Authority
Negative Reasonable
Grounds decision
Reconsideration request
nrm@modernslavery.gov.uk

Sign Posting:
Housing – see contacts above
For information on legal advice, health,
education etc. please see local
provision mapping document on
https://www.modernslaverypartnership.
org.uk/training-and-resources/#victims
Follow on support necessary to avoid
further exploitation

Version: 001/Jun 2020

Positive Conclusive Grounds Decision

Further information:
Modern Slavery Helpline 08000 121 700

This page is intentionally left blank

3-year Executive
Summary
49%
of total MS

Modern Slavery & Exploitation
casesHelpline Summary 2017 - 2019

08000 121700

16,795
Helpline
calls

16,746
potential
victims
High level numbers
Potential victims
Helpline calls
Webforms
App Submissions
Nationalities
Referrals
MS Cases

2017
4886
3710
710
94
1441
1271

2018
7121
6012
1323
70
94
2281
1849

2019
4739
7073
2042
121
85
2338
1812

Non-MS types
Labour abuse
Domestic abuse
Forced marriage
Runaway/homeless
Child abuse/neglect

3-year average % of known nationalities

2018
831
84
14
58
40

2019
1112
163
8
96
58

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10

4.6% Albanian
4.8% Chinese
8.6% Vietnamese
4.4% Bulgarian

4.6% Thai

39% Romanian

Nationality No of PVs
Romania 2,622
Vietnam
576
England
466
Poland
458
China
320
Albania
311
Thailand
311
Bulgaria
292
India
224
Nigeria
139

3.3% Indian

26.3% 47%

0.1%

26.6%

309, 7%

114, 2%

373, 8%
331, 7%

Adult

Gender Breakdown

% age brackets where age known
(amalgamated)

Average % of adult/minor
breakdown

66%

Minor

Potential victims

2017
202
39
4
40
22

Top PV nationalities indicated
in UK 2017-2019 (amalgamated)

6.8% Polish

7% English

4,932
Modern
slavery
cases

4,266
webforms
and app
subs

6%

Unknown

High-level numbers

3-year Helpline Totals

28%

693, 15%

Female

2017
2018
2019

Male

1,547 2,288
1,476 3,280
1,292 2,290

Totals 4,416 7,858

4,462
referrals

Trans Unknown

0
3
2
5

1,051
2,362
1,054
4,467

1662, 36%

1190, 25%
15 and under

16-17

18-24

25-34

35-44

45-59

60+

5,342
signposts

to over 160 different
organisations

Page 35
Unseen UK, Charity number: 1127620 Company number: 06754171. Contact: 0303 123 0021, business@unseenuk.org

3-year Executive Summary
Criminal exploitation cases and
PVs
299

270
83

200

Domestic servitude

400

Domestic servitude cases and PVs

179

113
52

0

2017

2018

2019

Cases

PVs

Types of criminal
exploitation cases
83

100
20

48

22

46

65
1 3 13

0
Drugs

Begging

2017

2018

Shoplifting

2017

2018

2019

Totals

Cases 128
PVs
196

178
217

104
144

410
557

8.3%
of total modern slavery cases
Top 6 nationalities indicated
25

Labour exploitation cases and
PVs

55

26
27

32
28

2019

Nigeria

England

India

Pakistan

Philippines

Bangladesh

Breakdown of labour exploitation cases by top 6
sectors

5362

6000
3540

4000
2000

3294
990

711

886

0
2017

2018
Cases

2019

PVs

Top nationality of # of PVs indicated in labour exploitation
Nationality No of PVs
Nationality No of PVs
2,163
387
363
259

China
Albania
England
India

Sexual exploitation cases and PVs
2017 2018 2019 Total

1,601

262
517

219
615
421 1,712

2018

2019

Totals

194

362

365

921

60

136

131

327

82

132

106

320

82

95

80

257

33

38

24

95

0

31

18

49

Helpline.

Breakdown of age status

59
589

4
48

2017

447 international cases recorded indicating
situations in at least 60 other countries.
2,145 instances of labour abuse reported.
1,183 general information cases recorded by the

241

Adult

882

Minor

Unknown

abuse

Cases 134
PVs
774

195
167
157
143

Facts

Romania
Vietnam
Poland
Bulgaria

Labour

Sexual exploitation Labour exploitation

Criminal exploitation

Modern Slavery & Exploitation Helpline Annual Assessment 2019

Page 36

Car wash
Hospitality
Construction
Warehouse
Retail
Farm
Cleaning

2017
28
31
24
10
14
5
7

2018
210
73
51
37
23
9
18

2019
267
184
104
50
47
40
27

Totals
505
288
179
97
84
54
52

Unseen UK, Charity number: 1127620 Company number: 06754171. Contact: 0303 123 0021, business@unseenuk.org

Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA)
Integrated impact assessment (IIA) form December 2019

www.portsmouth.gov.uk
The integrated impact assessment is a quick and easy screening process. It should:
identify those policies, projects, services, functions or strategies that could impact positively or
negatively on the following areas:
Communities and safety
Regeneration and culture

Environment and public space
Equality & - DiversityThis can be found in Section A5

Directorate:

Executive

Service, function:

Strategy

Title of policy, service, function, project or strategy (new or old) :
Modern Slavery and Trafficking Statement

Type of policy, service, function, project or strategy:

★

Existing
New / proposed
Changed

What is the aim of your policy, service, function, project or strategy?
The Modern Slavery Act 2015 (MSA 2015) applies to England and Wales and includes the offences of
human trafficking and slavery, servitude and forced or compulsory labour. The Act establishes a legal
duty under Section 52 for specified public authorities
to 37
notify the Home Office where there is
Page
reasonable grounds to be believe a person may be a victim of modern slavery. Section 54 of the MSA

2015 requires commercial organisations carrying out business in the UK, with a turnover of at least £36
million, to prepare and publish a slavery and human trafficking statement for each and every financial
year. The Act is however, subject to an independent review in 2019 and the interim report has
recommended that all public sector organisations with a surplus turnover of £36m should be included in
the Act.
Has any consultation been undertaken for this proposal? What were the outcomes of the consultations? Has
anything changed because of the consultation? Did this inform your proposal?
No consultation has been carried out

A - Communities and safety

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
A1-Crime - Will it make our city safer?

★

In thinking about this question:
•
•
•
•

How will it reduce crime, disorder, ASB and the fear of crime?
How will it prevent the misuse of drugs, alcohol and other substances?
How will it protect and support young people at risk of harm?
How will it discourage re-offending?

If you want more information contact Lisa.Wills@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cou-spp-plan-2018-20.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?
The aim of this statement is to demonstrate the council's commitment to identifying, and eliminating moderns slavery, human
trafficking and forced labour in all its operations and supply chains and to set out a programme of improvement.

How will you measure/check the impact of your proposal?
A standing steering group has been established to monitor implementation locally. Portsmouth is an active
member of the Hampshire and IOW Modern Slavery Partnership and is supporting the development of measures
to monitor the extent of modern slavery in the city and the council's response.

A - Communities and safety

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
A2-Housing - Will it provide good quality homes?
In thinking about this question:
•
•
•
•

How will it increase good quality affordable housing, including social housing?
How will it reduce the number of poor quality homes and accommodation?
How will it produce well-insulated and sustainable buildings?
How will it provide a mix of housing for different groups and needs?

Page 38

★

If you want more information contact Daniel.Young@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/psh-providing-affordable-housing-in-portsmouth-april-19.
pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?
N/A

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?
N/A

A - Communities and safety

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
A3-Health - Will this help promote healthy, safe and independent living?

★

In thinking about this question:
•
•
•
•

How will it improve physical and mental health?
How will it improve quality of life?
How will it encourage healthy lifestyle choices?
How will it create healthy places? (Including workplaces)

If you want more information contact Dominique.Letouze@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cons-114.86-health-and-wellbeing-strategy-proof-2.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?

It is hoped that identifying victims of modern slavery and providing approporiate support will improve their mental and pysical
health, and their quality of life.

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?
As in A1 above - and via Portsmouth Adult and Children's safeguarding boards

A - Communities and safety

Yes

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
A4-Income deprivation and poverty-Will it consider income
deprivation and reduce poverty?

Page 39

★

No

In thinking about this question:
• How will it support those vulnerable to falling into poverty; e.g., single working age adults and lone parent
households?
• How will it consider low-income communities, households and individuals?
• How will it support those unable to work?
• How will it support those with no educational qualifications?
If you want more information contact Mark.Sage@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cou-homelessness-strategy-2018-to-2023.pdf
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/health-and-care/health/joint-strategic-needs-assessment

Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?
Most victims of modern slavery and trafficking are likely to be vulnerable for example, young people used to run drugs, immigrant
workers, people with complex needs (often mental health and substance misuse) or rough sleepers.

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?
As above in A1 and via safeguarding boards

A - Communities and safety

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
A5-Equality & diversity - Will it have any positive/negative impacts on
the protected characteristics?
In thinking about this question:
• How will it impact on the protected characteristics-Positive or negative impact (Protected characteristics
under the Equality Act 2010, Age, disability, race/ethnicity, Sexual orientation, gender reassignment, sex,
religion or belief, pregnancy and maternity, marriage and civil partnership,socio-economic)
• What mitigation has been put in place to lessen any impacts or barriers removed?
• How will it help promote equality for a specific protected characteristic?
If you want more information contact gina.perryman@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cmu-equality-strategy-2019-22-final.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?
Often victims of modern slavery and trafficking are from minority ethnic backgrounds. The Modern Slavery and Exploitation
helpline's Annual Assessment for 2019 identifies the top 10 nationalities of potential victims - in order - from 1-10 - Romania, China,
England, Albania, Thailand, Poland, Hungary, Urkraine, Brazil and Vietnam.

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?
Work with police and council colleagues to improve information about local prevalence and victims

Page 40

B - Environment and climate change

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
B1-Carbon emissions - Will it reduce carbon emissions?

★

In thinking about this question:
•
•
•
•

How will it reduce greenhouse gas emissions?
How will it provide renewable sources of energy?
How will it reduce the need for motorised vehicle travel?
How will it encourage and support residents to reduce carbon emissions?

If you want more information contact Tristan.thorn@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cmu-sustainability-strategy.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

B - Environment and climate change

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
B2-Energy use - Will it reduce energy use?

★

In thinking about this question:
•
•
•
•

How will it reduce water consumption?
How will it reduce electricity consumption?
How will it reduce gas consumption?
How will it reduce the production of waste?

If you want more information contact Triston.thorn@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/pln-portsmouth-plan-post-adoption.pdf
https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/documents/s24685/Home%20Energy%20Appendix%201%20-%20Energy%
20and%20water%20at%20home%20-%20Strategy%202019-25.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

Page 41

B - Environment and climate change

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
B3 - Climate change mitigation and flooding-Will it proactively
mitigate against a changing climate and flooding?

★

In thinking about this question:
•
•
•
•

How will it minimise flood risk from both coastal and surface flooding in the future?
How will it protect properties and buildings from flooding?
How will it make local people aware of the risk from flooding?
How will it mitigate for future changes in temperature and extreme weather events?

If you want more information contact Tristan.thorn@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/env-surface-water-management-plan-2019.pdf
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cou-flood-risk-management-plan.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

B - Environment and climate change

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
B4-Natural environment-Will it ensure public spaces are greener, more
sustainable and well-maintained?

★

In thinking about this question:
• How will it encourage biodiversity and protect habitats?
• How will it preserve natural sites?
• How will it conserve and enhance natural species?
If you want more information contact Daniel.Young@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/pln-solent-recreation-mitigation-strategy-dec-17.pdf
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/pln-portsmouth-plan-post-adoption.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

Page 42

B - Environment and climate change

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
B5-Air quality - Will it improve air quality?

★

In thinking about this question:
•
•
•
•

How will it reduce motor vehicle traffic congestion?
How will it reduce emissions of key pollutants?
How will it discourage the idling of motor vehicles?
How will it reduce reliance on private car use?

If you want more information contact Hayley.Trower@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/env-aq-air-quality-plan-outline-business-case.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

B - Environment and climate change

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
B6-Transport - Will it improve road safety and transport for the
whole community?

★

In thinking about this question:
•
•
•
•

How will it prioritise pedestrians, cyclists and public transport users over users of private vehicles?
How will it allocate street space to ensure children and older people can walk and cycle safely in the area?
How will it increase the proportion of journeys made using sustainable and active transport?
How will it reduce the risk of traffic collisions, and near misses, with pedestrians and cyclists?

If you want more information contact Pam.Turton@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/travel/local-transport-plan-3
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

Page 43

B - Environment and climate change

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
B7-Waste management - Will it increase recycling and reduce
the production of waste?

★

In thinking about this question:
• How will it reduce household waste and consumption?
• How will it increase recycling?
• How will it reduce industrial and construction waste?
If you want more information contact Steven.Russell@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

Page 44

C - Regeneration of our city

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
C1-Culture and heritage - Will it promote, protect and
enhance our culture and heritage?

★

In thinking about this question:
•
•
•
•

How will it protect areas of cultural value?
How will it protect listed buildings?
How will it encourage events and attractions?
How will it make Portsmouth a city people want to live in?

If you want more information contact Claire.Looney@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/pln-portsmouth-plan-post-adoption.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?
it is important for residents to know that Portsmouth City Council and it's multi-agency safeguarding boards are fully engaged in
tackling modern slavery and trafficking wherever it is identified in the city. This will improve the reputation of the city and make it a
place people want to move to and live in.

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?
Biennial Community Safety Survey - results for the 2020 survey will be published soon on the Safer Portsmouth
Partnership website.

C - Regeneration of our city

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
C2-Employment and opportunities - Will it promote the
development of a skilled workforce?

★

In thinking about this question:
•
•
•
•

How will it improve qualifications and skills for local people?
How will it reduce unemployment?
How will it create high quality jobs?
How will it improve earnings?

If you want more information contact Mark.Pembleton@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cou-regeneration-strategy.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?
Although the prevalence of this hidden crime is not known, there is an economic benefit to each individual supported out of slavery.
Moving victims into legitimate employment will advance their skills and personal development. This could also provide an overall
economic benefit to the city and help to prevent others from being removed from the labour market and into slavery.

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?
TBC

Page 45

C - Regeneration of our city

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
C3 - Economy - Will it encourage businesses to invest in the city,
support sustainable growth and regeneration?

★

In thinking about this question:
•
•
•
•

How will it encourage the development of key industries?
How will it improve the local economy?
How will it create valuable employment opportunities for local people?
How will it promote employment and growth in the city?

If you want more information contact Mark.Pembleton@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cou-regeneration-strategy.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?
Portsmouth City Council will work with businesses to tackling modern slavery and trafficking wherever it is identified in the city. This
will improve the reputation of the city and make it a place business want to invest.

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?
TBC

Q8 - Who was involved in the Integrated impact assessment?
Lisa Wills, Paddy May, Tristan Thorn

This IIA has been approved by:
Contact number:
Date:

Page 46

Culture Leisure and Economic
Development

Children, Families and Education

Education Advisory Board

Elementary Education Act Trust
Board

Annual

Annual

Cabinet Member for
Education,
spokespersons and
Chair of Education,
Children & Young
People Scruitny Panel

4 (These usually
include the Cabinet
Members for
Education and
Children & Families).

Aspex Visual Arts Trust
(Registered Charity and
Company)
Baffins Community Association
(Registered Charity)

Annual

1 (observer)

Annual

1

Buckland Community
Association (Registered Charity)

Annual

2

City of Portsmouth Sports
Council

Annual

3

Duke of Edinburgh Award
Scheme – Hampshire Forum
Eastney Area Community
Association (Registered Charity)

Annual

1

Annual

1

Farlington Marshes Management
Committee

Annual

4

Culture Leisure and Economic Development
Environment and Climate Change

Annual

1

Hampshire Archives Trust Annual Meeting
International Boatbuilding
Training College Portsmouth
Kings Theatre Trust Ltd
(Charitable Company)

Annual

1

Annual

1

Annual

2

Landport Community
Association (Registered Charity)

Annual

1

Maritime Archaeology Trust
(formerly Hants & Isle of Wight
Trust for Maritime Archaeology).

Annual

1

Mary Rose Trust (Registered
Charity and Company)

Annual

2 nominations (for
Trust approval) + Lord
Mayor ex oficio

Milton Village Community
Association (Registered Charity)

Annual

1

New Theatre Royal Trust
(Registered Charity and Company)

Annual

1

Overlord Embroidery Trust
Liaison Committee

Annual

Cabinet Member for
Culture, Leisure &
Sport + 2 others.

Paulsgrove Community
Association (Registered Charity)

Annual

1

Portsmouth Royal Dockyard
Historical Trust

Annual

1 can be a non
Councillor

Stacey Community Centre
Management Committee
Stamshaw & Tipner Community
Centre Association (GMC)

Annual

1

Annual

1

West Paulsgrove Scout &
Community Association

3 years

Standing Conference on
Problems Associated with the
Coastline (SCOPAC)
LGA Coastal Issues Special
Interest Group
Portchester Crematorium Joint
Committee

Annual

Portsmouth Plastic Free
Coastliines Steering group

Steve Pitt
11/06/2019

Cllr Hugh Mason

Suzy Horton
Tom Coles
Terry Norton
(3 x spokespersons)

2 or 3 meetings p.a. - dates are set as
required.nothing yet set for later in year as
trustees are asked their availability

Plus Chair or ECYP Panel = Frank
Jonas
11/06/2019
Suzy Horton
Hugh Mason
Rob Wood
Terry Norton
Matthew Atkins
11/06/2019

Cllr Gerald Vernon Jackson

Steve Pitt
11/06/2019
Darren Sanders
11/06/2019

4 times/yr - Last years dates: 11 July , 10 Oct ,
9 Jan 2020

Jason Fazackarley
Leo Madden
11/06/2019
Steve Pitt
Scott Payter-Harris
(1 vacancy)
11/06/2019
Chris Attwell
11/06/2019
Jennie Brent
11/06/2019

14 Nov at 2pm - usually lasts an hour

Fratton Community Association

changes in Nominations

1 observer

Appointments

Annual

Notes

Number of Appointees
required

Name of Body
Motiv8 (Registered Charity)

Period of service

Children,
Families and
Education

Appointing body

Agenda Item 7

Hugh Mason
Steve Pitt
Terry Norton
+ 1 vacancy
11/06/2019
Dave Ashmore
11/06/2019
PCC
(officer)
Rob Wood
11/06/2019
Hugh Mason
Luke Stubbs
11/06/2019

Cllr Stubbs' place to go to Cllr Symes
(Indep)

Claire Udy
11/06/2019

Matthew Winnington
11/06/2019
Rob Wood
Jason Fazackarley
& Lord Mayor ex officio
11/06/2019
Ben Dowling
11/06/2019
Will Purvis
11/06/2019
usually just one annual meeting in
September at D-Day Story but date will be
decided once reps are known - it usually
includes the Cabinet Member for Culture,
Leisure and Sport

Rob Wood
11/06/2019
Darren Sanders
11/06/2019
Leo Madden
11/06/2019

1

1

Annual

2 Cabinet Members

Annual

1 Councillor

Judith Smyth
Steve Pitt
Frank Jonas
11/06/2019
Claire Udy
11/06/2019

1 Not necessarily an
Meeting every two months,the next meeting
elected member.
is agreed at each meeting, starting at 7.30.

Annual

Cllr Gerald Vernon Jackson (in place
of Cllr Wood who will be appointed
as Lord Mayor)

(vacancy)
Hugh Mason
11/06/2019
Hugh Mason
11/06/2019
Steve Pitt
+ Jeanette Smith
11/06/2019
Will Purvis
11/06/2019

Page 47

Cllr Lee Hunt
Cllr Dave Ashmore

Annual

1

Southern Inshore Fisheries &
Conservation Authority
(formerly Southern Sea
Fisheries Cttee)
Southern Regional Flood &
Coastal Committee
Trading Standards South East
Limited (known as TSSE)

Annual

1

Portsmouth Disability Forum
(Registered Charity and Company)
Portsmouth Fostering Panel

Hampshire & Isle of Wight Local
Government Association

Improvement & Efficiency South
East (IESE)
LGA
representative
Improvement & Efficiency South
East (IESE)
LGA
representative - Non Exec
Director
Port Advisory Board

PUSH (Partnership for Urban
South Hampshire) Joint
Committee
PUSH Overview & Scrutiny
Committee
SIGOMA (Special Interest Group
of Municipal Authorities admin
by the LGA)

Planning Policy and City Development

Annual

1

Hugh Mason
11/06/2019

Infdefinite

1 member or officer

Member vacancy/officer

Annual

2

3 years

1

Cal Corkery
Suzy Horton
11/06/2019
(Vacancy)

ex officio

1

Once a month - Previous Dates:
9th April, 23rd April, 14th May, 31st May,
11th June, 9th July, 13th August , 10th
September, 8th October, 12th
November,10th December 2019
meet every 4-6 weeks

Annual

5

Annual

1 Fratton Ward
Councillor

Annual

Annual

3

No appointments until meeting needed
Last year meeting dates: May 7th, June11th ,
July 2nd, August 6th, September 10th,
October 1st, November 5th (Away Day),
December 3rd
Meeting held in Fratton Community Centre
12.00noon -2.00pm.
Previous meeting dates:
• 14 June 2019 (Annual) – HCC
• 27 September 2019 – Rushmoor BC
• 29 November 2019 – Havant BC
Meetings Held Quarterly

The Lord Mayor
11/06/2019

N/A

Dave Ashmore
Tom Coles (deputy)
11/06/2019

Judith Smyth
Gerald Vernon-Jackson
Lee Mason
11/06/2019

1
Darren Sanders
11/06/2019

ongoing

1
Rob Wood
11/06/2019

On-going

1 ex-officio (Cabinet
Member for PRED or
Port responsibility) + 5
Plus deputies if
required

Annual

1 + 1 deputy

For time
being

1 + deputy

Annual

1 + deputy

St Thomas's Cathedral Council

Annual

William Shepherd Charity &
Elizabeth Mary Claypitt Charity

Not stated

Building Control Partnership

Dave Ashmore
Graham Heaney (deputy)
11/06/2019
Lee Hunt
11/06/2019
Matthew Winnington
11/06/2019

Lord Mayor of Portsmouth’s
Coronation Homes - Board
Portsmouth and Havant Joint
Housing Group
Fratton Big Local

changes in Nominations

Solent Sea Rescue Organisation

Appointments

Number of Appointees
required
1 + deputy

Notes

Period of service
Annual

Name of Body

Environment and
Appointing
body
Climate Change
Environment and
Climate Change
Health, Wellbeing &
Social Care
Housing

Project Integra Strategic Board

Annual

There are 4 meetings a year and they are
held every quarter.

6pm at Fareham BC
the full schedule of 2020/21 Member
meetings will be set at the Full meeting and
AGM (which is the next one) . The annual
meeting takes place at the LGA annual
conference.

Judith Smyth
Hugh Mason
Gerald Vernon-Jackson
Steve Pitt
Donna Jones
11/06/2019
Gerald Vernon-Jackson
Steve Pitt as deputy
11/06/2019
Judith Smyth
Luke Stubbs as deputy
11/06/2019
Member vacancy/officer rep for
deputy
11/06/2019

1

Chris Attwell
11/06/2019

2

Churchwarden and vicar

1

Hampshire Buildings
Preservation Trust – Annual
Meeting (Registered Charity)
Minerals and Waste
Development Framework
Members’ Steering Group
PATCH Ltd (Registered Company)

Annual

Annual

Up to 3

Solent Forum

Annual

1

Tourism South East (Registered
Company)

Annual

2

South East Employers

Annual

1 + 1 deputy. Note:
that PCC used to be
able to appoint 2 reps
and 2 deputies.

Steve Pitt (member rep)
Head Of Planning (officer rep)
11/06/2019

Cllr Hugh Mason (Member Rep)

1
Vacancy

Annual

Ex officio for Cabinet
Member PRED.

Gerald Vernon-Jackson
11/06/2019

Cllr Hugh Mason

Cal Corkery
Tom Wood
Chris Atwell
11/06/2019
Ben Dowling
11/06/2019
Steve Pitt
Scott Payter-Harris
11/06/2019
Darren Sanders
Stephen Morgan (deputy)
11/06/2019

Page 48

Cllr Hugh Mason

Lynne Stagg
11/06/2019
Deputy - Vacancy

The joint committee meetings are held
annually in July in London.

Lynne Stagg 24/01/2020
Deputy - Vacancy
06/12/2019

Annual

Annual

1
Normally Cabinet
Member for T&T.

Lynne Stagg
11/06/2019

3 ex officio ( Cabinet
Member + group
spokespersons)

i) Graham Heaney
ii) Lynne Stagg (Cabinet Member)
iii) Simon Bosher
3 = T&T Cabinet Member and
spokespersons
11/06/2019

Page 49

changes in Nominations

Appointments

The joint committee meetings are held
annually in July in London.

1 + 1 deputy

1 + 1 deputy

Bus Lane Adjudication Service
Joint Committee (BLASJC)
(Linked with PATROL)

Solent Transport Joint
Committee (formerly known as
Transport for S Hants - Joint
Cttee
Transport Liaison Group

Notes

Ex officio
Cabinet
Member
for T&T

Number of Appointees
required

Period of service

Name of Body

Appointing body
Traffic and Transportation

National Parking Adjudication
Service Management Committee
- now known as Parking &
Traffic Regulations Outside
London (PATROL)

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8

Title of meeting:

Cabinet

Date of meeting:

14th July 2020

Subject:

Discharge to Assess Unit at Harry Sotnick House (HSH)

Report by:

Innes Richens - Chief Health & Care Portsmouth

Written by:

Andy Biddle - Assistant Director Adult Social Care

1.

Purpose of report

1.1.

The purpose of this report is to :
1.1.1. Update Cabinet on the response by Adult Services to the updated guidance
of the 16th April 2020 providing the 14 day isolation period for people prior to
entering a care home longer term.
1.1.2. Describe how the Health and Care Portsmouth response to providing
additional bedded capacity for a possible second peak in COVID-19 infections.
1.1.3. Seek endorsement to continue exploring options to for a future long term
Discharge to Assess Unit within Harry Sotnick House.

2.

Context

Following the increase in transmission of COVID-19 in March 2020, Portsmouth City
Council Adult Social Care was part of a health & care system-wide effort to support our
local NHS hospital to ensure as many hospital and critical care beds as possible were
available when needed to treat those who are most seriously ill at the peak of the covid-19
pandemic in the UK. This involved discharging people from hospital in a timely way and in
accordance with government requirements. The government was clear that people who
did not need acute hospital care must be discharged within three hours in order to create
capacity in the NHS, as published in Government guidance on 19th March 2020.
Additionally, the government issued guidance on 2nd April 2020 stating the expectation
that care homes make their full capacity available to support the national effort, helping to
move patients who no longer require acute care into the most appropriate setting, saving
lives and supporting the implementation of the hospital discharge guidance.

1 51
Page

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

As part of Portsmouth City Councils response to the national COVID-19 Hospital
Discharge Guidance, 20 beds were identified on the Gun Wharf unit within Harry Sotnick
House (HSH) to support the 19th March 2020 discharge requirements. These beds began
to be used from the 4th April 2020 with the monthly costs being incurred by the Council
being reimbursed by Portsmouth Clinical Commissioning Group, (PCCG) through the NHS
COVID-19 funding.
The Government's adult social care action plan published on the 16th April 2020 put an
onus on Local Authorities (LA) to support the private care home market to manage the
spread of Covid-19 from the acute setting. The Gun Wharf unit within Harry Sotnick
House (HSH) was remodelled to provide the 14 day isolation period for people prior to
entering a care home longer term. The funding for this unit was identified in the Minister for
Social Care's letter to Local Authorities of 14th May 2020. Gun Wharf became operational
from 1st June 2020 as a Discharge to Assess, (D2A) unit with the ability to provide isolation
if necessary. It is expected to maintain the unit for an agreed maximum of 6 months with
monthly reviews of activity. The monthly costs incurred by the Council will continue to be
reimbursed by Portsmouth CCG from the NHS COVID-19 funding; whilst this temporary
scheme remains in place.
A further 26 beds for D2A could be utilised at HSH if there was a second peak in the rate
of infections. This would enable an offer for both an Infectious ("hot") and a non-infectious
("cold") site with a total of 46 beds. To enable this would require no further structural
changes to the building. It is however, difficult to quantify the numbers of beds that may be
required for a possible second peak this option would be the preferred way forward for
Portsmouth
In the Cabinet Paper of 4th February 2020, there was a proposal for 'discharge to assess'
beds (option B). This stated "given the pressures that exist in discharging people
considered 'medically fit for discharge' (MFFD) from Queen Alexandra Hospital, (QA) there
is an option to use some bedded space for a short stay after hospital discharge for people
to receive re-ablement support to help them return home, if they cannot be discharged
directly home from QA. This enables people to make a longer term decision outside an
acute hospital and potentially avoid a long term placement".

3.

Recommendations
3.1. It is recommended that Cabinet:
•
•

•

Endorse the continued operation of the 20 bedded 14 Day isolation unit in the HSH
Gun Wharf Unit, recognising that this is dependent on continued funding from the
temporary NHS Hospital Discharge Scheme.
Endorse the expansion of the unit by a further 26 beds for D2A should there be a
need as a consequence of a second COVID-19 peak, recognising that this will be
dependent on additional funding from the temporary NHS Hospital Discharge
Scheme.
Endorse continued work to develop plans to transition the 20 Gun Wharf COVID
beds to a mainstream Discharge to Assess unit, recognising that this would be part
of a wider system change. It should also be acknowledged that this will require a
more detailed financial appraisal, together with a retargeting of existing funding

Page2 52
www.portsmouth.gov.uk

sources and potentially financial contributions from the wider health and care
system partners; to ensure it is financially sustainable in the longer term. A further
report will be presented to Cabinet once the final costings and funding sources have
been identified in order to seek formal agreement to establish the unit.

Proposal a future long term Discharge to Assess Unit at Harry Sotnick House
The vision was always to deliver a D2A unit with an environment and therapies so that
health and care services in Portsmouth could support medically fit people to their best
level of independence before an assessment of their longer term on-going care needs is
made. This would be done through in-house re-ablement and rehabilitation, and care coordinators (social workers) who support patients and their families throughout the
discharge process at HSH. These beds would support a timely discharge from hospital
and would also support care closer to home whilst re-enablement takes place.
These people can be frail but with the potential to improve in strength and confidence.
Assessing people when they have reached their optimum recovery means that they can
plan the most appropriate care for their future needs.
Many of the people were already on a D2A pathway in nursing homes as this is where the
beds were initially commissioned. This means they have far less access to therapy
services and nursing staff, and therefore many patients are spending longer in a nursing
home than they should.
4. Demand
Medically Fit For Discharge (MFFD) analysis both pre March 2020 and Post March 23rd
shows that in the period before March 2020 the MFFD for Portsmouth was 40 people per
day with an average length of stay of between 4-5 days. Post March 23rd the MFFD is
currently 10 to 12 people per day and the average length of stay is less than 24 hours. The
Charts below indicate the impact in the way that we are now working in the city has had on
both the MFFD and the Bed days lost at QA.

3 53
Page

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

This data is part of a suite of measures that is being used to ensure that the operating
model in place in the unit is contributing to:
 Maintaining MFFD at or below current levels
 That the unit is able to ensure that people are appropriately assessed to enable
them to return home or to as close to home as possible; maintaining an average
length of stay of 14 days or less
 Supporting people to live independently within the community, where it is
appropriate to do so, and minimise the need for costly residential placements
 Ensuring decisions about an individual's long term care needs are not made within
an acute hospital
5. The costs of D2A
Gun Wharf with a max. of 20 clients

POST
Deputy Manager
Assistant Unit Manager
Nurse (day)
Nurse (night)
Carer (day)
Carer (night)
General Assistant (Dom & Laundry)
Social worker
Physio
OT
Sub Total of staffing costs
Cover and Agency costs
Non Pay costs
TOTAL

# of
people

BAND
10
9
9
9
4
4
5
9
9
9

hrs per
shift
1
1
1
1
5
5
1
1
1
1

# of days TOTAL
worked in WEEKLY
a week
HRS

7.4
11.5
11.5
11.5
11
10
7.4
7.4
7.4
7.4

5
7
7
7
7
7
7
7
5
5

37
80.5
80.5
80.5
385
350
51.8
51.8
37
37

1080.1

2020/21
salary costs
using mid
spinal point

SHIFT
ALLOWANCE FTE
0%
17%
17%
33%
17%
33%
33%
17%
0%
0%

1.00
2.18
2.18
2.18
10.41
9.46
1.40
1.40
1.00
1.00

29.19

48,685
110,161
110,161
125,226
297,835
307,786
48,177
70,886
43,276
43,276
1,156,786
289,197
110,000
1,555,983

2020/21 salary costs
using top spinal point
51,304
116,737
116,737
132,701
308,538
318,847
51,313
75,117
45,859
45,859
1,211,708
302,927
110,000
1,624,634

6. Potential Long Term Funding Sources
Currently Health and Care Portsmouth spends circa £2.3 million on supporting winter
planning initiatives. If the Gun Wharf unit were to continue as a D2A unit post COVID-19
with an average length of stay of 14 days then there would no longer be a requirement for
many of these winter pressure schemes or winter grant initiatives to reduce the MFFD.
The work that we are undertaking on this is to identify all of these schemes and agree the
principles for decommissioning them to ensure that funding can then be diverted to fund
the unit and the discharge hub at St. Mary's for the long term.

Page4 54
www.portsmouth.gov.uk

7. Integrated Impact Assessment
An integrated impact assessment is not required as the recommendations do not have
a positive or negative impact on communities and safety, regeneration and culture,
environment and public space or equality and diversity.
8. Finance Comments
8.1 As highlighted within the report in order to respond to the COVID-19 health
emergency, a temporary isolation unit was established within the Gun Wharf
unit within Harry Sotnick House, in line with the national Hospital Discharge
Guidance.
8.2 The additional costs incurred by the City Council relating to the operation of this
unit are currently being reimbursed by the Portsmouth Clinical Commissioning
Group from the temporary NHS COVID funding. It is currently uncertain as to
how long this temporary funding arrangement will remain in place. Once the
funding scheme ends, then the financial liability for these costs will revert to the
City Council.
8.3 The report also explains the longer term proposal to transition the Gun Wharf
unit in to a Discharge to Assess Unit; once the requirement for an isolation unit
comes to an end. Section 5 of the report provides an initial costing summary for
the proposed operating model for the unit.
8.4 It will be necessary to prepare a more detailed costing and financial appraisal of
the options for this unit. Additionally, it will be necessary to identify long term
funding sources to meet the estimated £1.6m annual operating cost, through
retargeting funding from existing ASC schemes and source additional
contributions from health & care system partners. It will also be necessary to
quantify and retarget funding in the current financial year in order to ensure that
the proposal does not place an additional financial burden on the City Council in
2020-21.

9. Legal Comments
9.1 The report highlights the salient issues and represents a proportionate
response to the current situation. There are no legal issues relevant beyond
commenting that in terms of mitigating a risk what is proposed would go a long
way to defray concerns about the availability of care post hospital discharge.

Signed by (Director)

Appendices: Nil
5 55
Page

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9

Title of meeting:

Cabinet

Date of meeting:

Cabinet 14 July 2020

Subject:

Local Transport Plan 4 Approval to Consult

Report by:

Tristan Samuels Director of Regeneration

Wards affected:

All

Key decision:

No

Full Council decision:

No

1.

Purpose of report

1.1

This report seeks approval to commence statutory consultation on the draft Portsmouth
Local Transport Plan 4 (Appendix A) with stakeholders and the wider public.

2.

Recommendations
It is recommended that Cabinet:

2.1

approves the content of the draft Portsmouth Local Transport Plan 4 strategy for
statutory consultation

3.

Background

3.1

The Local Transport Plan (LTP) is a statutory document required of each Local
Transport Authority (LTA). The LTP sets out the long-term strategy, policies and
schemes to address the transport challenges and deliver transport improvements. A
short-term Implementation Plan detailing the particular transport improvements will
support the strategy.

3.2

It is for the LTA to determine the most suitable length for both the strategy and the
implementation plan elements. The strategy element of the draft Local Transport Plan 4
covers the period 2020-2036. For LTP3 implementation plans have been developed
and adopted on an annual basis following funding announcements.

3.3

The LTP4 will replace the current LTP3 (2011-2031). Whilst this remains current, the
significant changes in central government transport and wider policy means that an
updated long term, integrated transport strategy (LTP4) governing the period from 2020
to 2036 is required to ensure that we are able to plan effectively to deal with the
transport challenges we are currently facing.

3.4

A report to Cabinet on 10 March 2020 approved the draft vision and objectives of the
strategy and its continued development, as set out below:

1 57
Page

Our vision for Portsmouth:
By 2036 Portsmouth will have a people centred travel network that
prioritises walking, cycling and public transport to help deliver a safer,
healthier and more prosperous city.
Our Strategic Objectives:
Four objectives have been developed which outline the areas we will focus on:


Delivering cleaner air: Everyone who lives in, works or visits the city should be able to
breathe air that will not damage their health – there need to be fewer and cleaner
vehicles in the city.



Prioritising walking and cycling: Most trips within the city are short but despite this the
car is too often the default choice – more space is needed to safely walk and cycle in the
city.



Transforming public transport: Public transport connections are poor in some parts of
the city with buses slowed by traffic congestion – we need to prioritise rapid and reliable
public transport.



Supporting business and protecting our assets: Portsmouth’s ports and other
businesses are central to the success of the city – we need to ensure the transport
network allows business to prosper.

3.5

Following this, further work has been undertaken to develop twenty policies which
support the development of the vision and objectives, as shown in Appendix A.

3.7

Appendix B provides a draft indicative view of the types of schemes that may be
delivered from the policies developed. The vision and objectives set out in LTP4 will
support the council's corporate objectives.

3.8

The LTP is being developed alongside the new Local Plan to ensure there is close
integration between planning and transport. The duration of the new LTP4 to 2036,
aligns with the timescales for the emerging Local Plan.

3.9

A new parking strategy for the city is under development, which will consider parking
elements in further detail, this is being undertaken alongside a new Parking
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) to ensure a joined up approach between
planning and transport.

3.10

The LTP4 strategy provides the vision and demonstrates the ambition for the duration
of the plan. The delivery of the strategy is not funded and will be reliant on securing
funding, which, may come from external sources.

4.

Consultation Approach

Page2 58

4.1

The Transport Act 2000 as amended by the Local Transport Act 2008 places a duty on
local transport authorities to consult key stakeholders. Further duties require local
authorities to involve citizens in local decision making and service provision.

4.2

In accordance with statutory guidelines the consultation will be undertaken for 12
weeks. Consultation and engagement is important to ensure that this is a city owned
strategy which will establish behaviour change for travel and transport, and win the
hearts and minds of residents, visitors and those who work in the city.

4.3

Consultation will be undertaken on a designed version of the draft LTP4 strategy text in
Appendix A. The text based draft in Appendix A sets out a draft vision, objectives,
policies and package of possible interventions. The designed version will include the
same vision, objectives, policies and package of possible interventions but will convert
much of the document's content into infographics, providing a shorter more user friendly
document.

4.4

To support this consultation, consideration will be given to the results of other council
consultation and engagement work, including City Vision. Please note that feedback
from this work has been considered during the development of the draft LTP4 strategy.

4.5

The vision and objectives, policies, and possible interventions have been developed
through internal consultation with officers and Members and external engagement has
been undertaken with transport operators, interest groups and businesses through a
programme of workshops.

5.

Transport Recovery Plan June 2020

5.1

To respond to the current Coronavirus pandemic and the need to accommodate social
distancing on the travel network a Transport Recovery Plan has been developed, as
outlined in the Transport Recovery Plan July Cabinet paper. This delivers against the
draft objectives and vision approved by Cabinet in March 2020 and sets out measures
which will be delivered in the next 12 months to support recovery the draft LTP4
strategy takes into account the work of this recovery plan.

6.

Next steps

6.1

The development of the LTP is determined by a number of statutory processes. These
are set out below:


Habitat Regulation Assessment and Strategic Environmental Assessment
o A Habitat Regulation Assessment and Strategic Environmental Assessment
will be undertaken and consulted on.



Consultation and Engagement
o Public and stakeholder engagement will be undertaken for 12 weeks,
following approval from Cabinet



Adoption
o Revisions will be made to the report following public consultation, and it will
be submitted for adoption by Portsmouth City Council Full Council. At that
point, it will supersede LTP3 as the adopted LTP for the city.

3 59
Page

7.

Reasons for recommendations

7.1

A 12-week consultation with stakeholders and the wider public is a statutory
requirement of the LTP4 and is an important step in discussing with residents their
priorities for connectivity within Portsmouth, and the future direction of transport and
travel.

7.2

To ensure the LTP4 is accessible to the general public it is important to design it in an
engaging and user friendly way.

7.3

As the Local Transport Authority (LTA), under the Transport Act 2000 as amended by
Local Transport Act 2008 Portsmouth City Council has a statutory duty to produce a
LTP for Portsmouth. The 2008 Act requires the LTP to consist of a long term strategy
and a short term implementation plan. It permits LTAs to replace and amend the longterm strategy as and when appropriate.

7.4

The current LTP (LTP3 adopted in 2011) was prepared jointly with Hampshire County
Council and Southampton City Council and includes a joint strategy across South
Hampshire along with place specific actions. The LTP needs to be updated to take
account of the changing mobility and environmental challenges facing Portsmouth.

7.5

This plan will be superseded by the LTP4, and an Implementation Plan will be
developed for the financial year 2021/22 following adoption of the LTP4 in 2021.

8.

Integrated impact Assessment

8.1

An Integrated impact Assessment (IIA) has been produced for this strategy
development (Appendix C). Within the IIA, this strategy impacts positively on the
following sections:
Section A - Communities and Safety
A3 - Health
A4 - Income deprivation and poverty
Section B - Environment and climate change
B1 - Carbon emissions
B3 - Climate change mitigation and flooding
B4 - Natural environment
B5 - Air Quality
B6 - Transport
Section C - Regeneration of our city
C1 - Culture and heritage
C3 - Economy
A Full Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) is not deemed necessary at this stage,
however a full EIA will be undertaken as part of the finalisation of the LTP4. The
recommendations do not have a disproportionate negative impact on any of the specific
protected characteristics as described in the Equality Act 2010.

Page4 60

9.

Legal implications

9.1

As explained in the body of the report, the Council has a statutory duty under Sections
108 and 109 of the Transport Act 2000 ("the Act") (as amended by the Local Transport
Act 2008) as local transport authority for the City of Portsmouth to ensure that the
Council has up to date policies for the promotion and encouragement of safe,
integrated, efficient and economic transport to, from and within their area. Each local
transport authority must prepare a document to be known as the local transport plan
("LTP") containing its policies for the purposes above and its proposals for the
implementation of those policies.

9.2

For the purposes of this statutory duty, "transport" means:
(a) the transport required to meet the needs of persons living or working in the
authority's area, or visiting or travelling through that area, and
(b) the transport required for the transportation of freight;
and includes facilities and services for pedestrians.

9.3

In developing and implementing the policies referred to above the Council has specific
statutory duties to:
 take into account any policies announced by central government, and
 to have regard to any guidance issued by the Secretary of State for the purposes of
the LTP duty with respect to mitigation of, or adaptation to, climate change or
otherwise with respect to the protection or improvement of the environment.

9.4

The Council has a duty under Section 109 of the Act to keep the local transport plan
under review and in doing so to consult with:
 the Secretary of State,
 operators of any network or station, or any railway services, in its area
 operators or providers of other transport services in its area
 organisations appearing to the Council to be representative of the interests of users
of transport services and facilities in its area, and
 any other persons whom the Council consider appropriate to consult.

9.5

As soon as practicable after making any new plan or an alteration to the plan, the
Council must:
 publish the plan (or the plan as altered) in such manner as it thinks fit,
 send a copy of it to the Secretary of State,
 make it available for inspection by any person, and
 supply a copy of it (or any part of it) to any person on request either free of charge
or at cost.

10.

Director of Finance's comments

10.1

There are no direct financial implications of approving the draft vision and policy
objectives as the direction for the Local Transport Plan 4, however once it is adopted
physical works may be required to deliver it. These will be identified and appraised once
they become known, and a source of funding identified.

10.2

The cost of the Consultation will be met from existing cash limited resources.

5 61
Page

………………………………………………
Signed by:
Appendices: Appendix A - Draft Local Transport Plan Strategy 2020-2036
Appendix B - Draft Transport Strategy schemes 2020-2036
Appendix C - Integrated Impact Assessment

Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972
The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a material
extent by the author in preparing this report:
Title of document
None

Location

The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ deferred/ rejected
by ……………………………… on ………………………………

………………………………………………
Signed by:

Page6 62

Draft Local Transport Plan 4

Draft Local Transport Plan 4
2020 to 2036

I

Page 63

Draft Local Transport Plan 2020-2036

Contents
Glossary………………………………………………………….……………………………………………iii
Foreword…………………………………………………………………………………………………….vii
Executive Summary………………………………….......……………………………………………viii
1. Introduction ................................................................ Error! Bookmark not defined.
2. Key challenges and opportunities .................................................................................. 3
3. Our vision for Portsmouth................................. Error! Bookmark not defined.0
4. Our strategic objectives ..................................... Error! Bookmark not defined.1
5. Delivering our vision for Portsmouth ........... Error! Bookmark not defined.4
6. Implementation Plan .......................................................................................................... 37

ii

Page 64

Draft Local Transport Plan 2020-2036

Glossary of terms
Like many sectors the world of 'Transport' has its own jargon and acronyms. This glossary
provides definitions for terms that are used within this document.
Accessible This means that transport services are easy to access for all, including anybody
who experiences limited mobility and, or people who may be using wheelchairs
Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) An area where national air quality objectives set by
the government are not being achieved and changes are needed to reduce air pollution
levels
Artificial Intelligence Computer systems used to carry out tasks, usually requiring human
intelligence
Autonomous Vehicles Autonomous vehicles currently on the road are semi-autonomous
with some functionality that does not need a driver, such as self-parking or auto-collision
avoidance features. In the future there could be fully autonomous vehicles that don't need a
driver at all
Carbon Footprint The total greenhouse gas emissions generated by a person, household or
organisation, usually measured over the course of a year
Car Club Offers members access to locally parked vehicles without being tied to ownership
Clean Air Zone (CAZ) A zone where a package of measures will be brought forward to
improve air quality in order to meet the national air quality objectives set by the government.
It may or may not include a charging element. Portsmouth City Council has been directed by
government to implement a Class B Charging CAZ
Connected Vehicles Vehicles that use technology to communicate with each other and the
world around them, to help the driver or vehicle make assisted decisions. A basic example is
GPS information that helps find the quickest route
Collaborative Traffic Management Use of online/cloud based traffic management systems
to coordinate management of Strategic Road Network (SRN) with Local Highway Authority
(LHA) networks
Consolidation centres This is where goods are delivered from many suppliers. Then, when
needed, multiple goods are collected as part of a fuller load by smaller more environmentally
friendly vehicles, for example into the city centre reducing the impact of freight journeys. The
centres can be:



Macro - large centres on the edge of cities, goods are delivered by Heavy
Goods Vehicles (HGVs) or trains and collected by smaller vehicles
Micro - small centres in neighbourhoods, goods are delivered by larger vans
and collected by smaller electric vans or electric cargo bikes

iii

Page 65

Draft Local Transport Plan 2020-2036

Council Priorities Each year, the council sets out its priorities. These are the areas where we
will be focusing our efforts to improve life in the city for everyone.
Our five priorities are:
1)

Make Portsmouth a city that works together, enabling communities to thrive and
people to live healthy, safe and independent lives.

2)

Encourage regeneration built around our city's thriving culture, making
Portsmouth a great place to live, work and visit.

3)

Make our city cleaner, safer and greener.

4)

Make Portsmouth a great place to live, learn and play, so our children and young
people are safe, healthy and positive about their futures.

5)

Make sure our Council is a caring, competent and collaborative organisation that
puts people at the heart of everything we do.

Cycle Hangars These are covered structures that provide secure cycle parking in locations
where it is difficult to store bicycles. For example in residential areas where terrace properties
have no rear access. In these locations the hangars are located where car parking spaces
would have been, providing space for six bicycles
Demand Responsive Transport This is a form of shared transport that can be pre-booked
by individuals which offers services that have the flexibility to alter their routes based on
demand for trips, rather than by using a fixed route and timetable
Electric Vehicle (EV) A vehicle that uses one or more electric motors for propulsion. Distinct
from a hybrid vehicle that uses two or more sources of power, such as diesel and electricity
First and Last Mile trips These are the trips made at either end of a longer public transport
journey and may be from your house to a transport interchange, or between a transport
interchange and your place of work, a school or a leisure location. They are usually short
distance trips that may not be well-served by local public transport, but may be possible to
make with more flexible 'Shared Transport' or 'Demand Responsive Transport' (see individual
definitions in glossary)
Filtered Permeability A road that allows through-access for walking and cycling, but
removes it for motor traffic
Future Transport Zone (FTZ) A zone that will provide a real-world testing ground for
innovative ways to transport people and goods. We are part of the Solent Transport
partnership that has secured funding from government for a FTZ in Portsmouth. This will trial
innovative measures to provide new modes of travel and ways to plan and pay for it,
alongside innovative measures to reduce the impacts of freight movements in the city

iv

Page 66

Draft Local Transport Plan 2020-2036

Heavy Goods Vehicle (HGV) or Large Goods Vehicle (LGV) A large vehicle that's purpose
is to transport heavy loads (these terms cover all commercial trucks that feature a gross
combination mass of over 3500kg)
Kerbside space The area in which the carriageway (road) joins the footway (path). Kerbside
space can be utilised (drop off and loading) and enforced (double yellow lines) in a manner
of ways to enhance road space for users
Lane Permit Scheme A means of requesting space to carry out work on the highway either
as a statutory undertaker or as a highway authority in line with New Roads and Streetworks
Act (NRSWA) 1991
Lane Rental Scheme Allows a local highway authority to charge works promoters for the
that street and road works occupy the highway
Local Cycle and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP) A strategy document that sets out
the approach to developing local cycling and walking networks over a ten-year period. This
is part of the Government's strategy to double the number of cycling journeys made and
substantially increase walking activity by 2025
Local and District Centres Focus points that encompass a grouping of units (such as
shopping facilities)
Low Traffic Neighbourhood - A street or group of streets in which through vehicle traffic is
removed or discouraged
Local Transport Plan (LTP) A strategy document that sets out the vision, objectives, policies
and implementation plan for improving all of the transport network. This document is the
LTP, Edition 4 for Portsmouth
Micro mobility Any range of modes making use of small vehicles, principally e-scooters and
bicycles, including e-bikes
Mobility as a Service (MaaS) An on-line platform or smartphone app that allows a user to
view travel options, timing, costs associated with a range of shared and public transport
modes and to book and pay for such journeys.
Mobility Hubs Locations, usually at key transport interchanges such as train or bus stations,
piers, busier bus or rapid transit stops, which provide access to a range of transport modes
and facilities. These can include rail, bus, rapid transit, cycle and scooter hire, car club, cycle
parking but also facilities such as shopping lockers, cafes and bike shops. They are designed
to make it easier for people to access the core public transport network and make ‘first or
last mile’ trips by other modes.
Mode of Transport This refers to the different ways people and goods can be transported
such as public transport, Heavy Goods Vehicles (HGVs), bicycles, walking and private car.
Mode Share The proportion of trips made by each mode of transport.

v

Page 67

Draft Local Transport Plan 2020-2036

Mode Shift A change in the proportion of trips made by different modes of transport, often
reflecting changes to the transport network or the services that use it
My Journey Online site for travel information and advice in Hampshire
Multi-Purpose Vehicle (MPV) A type of car that offers a more spacious interior and taller
ride height than a standard car. Often referred to as a minivan or people carrier
On-Demand Buses As with Demand Responsive Transport, these buses would operate on a
pre-booked basis by individuals, rather than on a fixed route and schedule
Parklet A green space created to be publically accessible, usually in an urbanised
environment in a former roadside parking space
Play Streets Street's where the road is closed to through traffic for periods of time to allow
children to safely play outside
Pro-Active Network Management Use of technology and collection of data to predict
changes in highway flow/use and to react to mitigate impacts of change
Public Realm The space between buildings that is open to the public, including streets,
squares, forecourts, parks and open spaces
Rapid Transit High capacity, high frequency, road based public transport services that often
run in dedicated lanes separate from general traffic with priority at junctions to ensure fast
and reliable journey times. The proposed rapid transit network in Portsmouth will form part
of the South East Hampshire Rapid Transit scheme
Residents Parking Zone A zone where car parking is only permitted on-street for vehicles
that have an eligible parking permit
Shared transport This is a demand-driven vehicle-sharing arrangement, in which people
share a vehicle over time, like car clubs, car share, and bike or scooter hire schemes. This can
save the user money and reduces vehicles on the road
Smart Parking App An app that allows drivers to see the availability of on street pay and
display parking spaces near to their destination
Solent Go is a pay as you go top up card that allows passengers to travel seamlessly across
South Hampshire using buses and ferries
Sustainable Transport Any form of transport that produces low or zero levels of carbon
emissions, including walking, cycling and public transport
Transforming Cities Fund (TCF) This is a funding package from government that aims to
improve productivity and spread prosperity through investment in public and sustainable
transport in England’s city regions. Portsmouth City Council is part of a partnership that has
secured funding from government from the Tranche 1 TCF, and are submitting a rebid for

vi

Page 68

Draft Local Transport Plan 2020-2036

Tranche 2 TCF funding to bring forward the next phase of the South East Hampshire Rapid
Transit network in Portsmouth
Workplace Parking Levy (WPL) A scheme that places a charge on employers who provide
workplace parking for employees. The funds raised are used towards future sustainable
transport schemes
Zero Emission Vehicles These are vehicles that produce no carbon emissions at their point
of use. They may be powered by electric or other fuel sources such as hydrogen

vii

Page 69

Draft Local Transport Plan 2020-2036

Foreword
Portsmouth has an exciting and positive plan for change in the city to boost economic
prosperity, delivering inclusive growth and sustainable development. As part of this
regeneration we must ensure connectivity which will be delivered alongside promoting
cleaner air, and reducing carbon emissions meaning that the transport system needs to
change.
Investing in the creation of an inclusive travel system and delivering connectivity across our
communities, by prioritising walking, cycling and public transport over general traffic will
enable us to meet those challenges.
We must ensure travel works for everyone, including residents, people who work in the city
and visitors, through creating an inclusive, active and sustainable network which will allow for
a safer, healthier and thriving city.
The draft Local Transport Plan is being developed alongside the emerging Local Plan for
Portsmouth up to 2036. Many of the improvements will take longer to deliver but it is crucial
to make a difference from day one. Therefore we will include short-term as well as medium
and long-term deliverables.
I am delighted to endorse this draft Local Transport Plan and its ambitious approach, to take
the city's transport and travel network forwards over the next sixteen years. The strategy will
support the climate and air quality challenges we face and respond to changing attitudes
and behaviours towards travel. I look forward to seeing the transport network evolve to meet
the demands of today and for the future.

Councillor Lynne Stagg
Cabinet Member for Traffic and Transportation

viii

Page 70

Draft Local Transport Plan 2020-2036

Executive Summary
The need for a new Local Transport Plan
For a range of reasons, people living in many UK towns and cities have become more
dependent on the car. In Portsmouth this has resulted in unsustainable levels of carbon
emissions from transport, unhealthily polluted air, regular traffic congestion problems and
severely reduced levels of physical activity.
We recognise that a new approach is needed to how transport is managed in the city, based
on an understanding of the city and how it works (Section 2). Action is needed now to shape
a future that accommodates changing travel patterns and the city’s growth, in a more
sustainable way. Through this draft plan we are striving to create an environment that makes
it easier for people to choose sustainable travel when making every day journeys around
Portsmouth.
This plan is for everyone who travels in and around the city. It responds to a range of key
local challenges, each of which also bring opportunities if we can take the right decisions
now. These key challenges include:


Managing the impact and recovery from COVID-19 outbreak



The climate emergency



Poor air quality in areas of the city



Changing attitudes to travel and personal mobility



Changes to future mobility



Deprivation and inequality



Poor walking and cycling infrastructure



The dominance of the private cars and traffic congestion



Supporting the future growth of the city



Enhancing public transport connections



The need to work across administrative boundaries

This draft Local Transport Plan sets out the vision, objectives and policies that are needed to
respond positively to these challenges and includes an Implementation Plan. This draft plan
outlines the changes to travel and transport we believe will create a cleaner, greener and
safer Portsmouth.

ix

Page 71

Draft Local Transport Plan 2020-2036

Our vision for Portsmouth

By 2036 Portsmouth will have a people
centred travel network that prioritises
walking, cycling and public transport to
help deliver a safer, healthier and more
prosperous city.

x

Page 72

Draft Local Transport Plan 2020-2036

Our strategic objectives
To achieve the vision for Portsmouth we must create an environment that supports residents,
workers and visitors with better choices as they travel in Portsmouth.
Four objectives have been developed which outline the areas we will focus on:

Delivering cleaner air:
Everyone who lives in, works or visits the city should be able to breathe air that will not
damage their health – there need to be fewer and cleaner vehicles in the city.

Prioritising walking and cycling:
Most trips within the city are short but despite this the car is too often the default choice –
more space is needed to safely walk and cycle in the city.

Transforming public transport:
Public transport connections are poor in some parts of the city with buses slowed by traffic
congestion – we need to prioritise rapid and reliable public transport.

Supporting business and protecting our assets:
Portsmouth’s ports and other businesses are central to the success of the city – we need to
ensure the transport network allows business to prosper.

xi

Page 73

Draft Local Transport Plan 2020-2036

Our policies
We will put in place policies that support the delivery of each of our objectives. Our policies,
and how they relate to the objective and vision, are set out in the diagram below.

xii

Page 74

Draft Local Transport Plan 2020-2036

To deliver cleaner air we will:
Introduce a charging Clean Air Zone (CAZ) supported by a number of complementary
measures, such as:


providing more Electric Vehicle (EV) charge points, including at taxi ranks



progressive tightening of taxi licensing rules



using the parking permits fee to encourage low emission and fewer vehicles



changing parking capacity and pricing, including expanding Park and Ride



exploring ways to discourage private off-street car parking while promoting
alternatives to car use.

To prioritise walking and cycling we will:
Reallocate road space, so that we can provide traffic-free cycle routes and high-quality
walking connections. This will also provide space to safely accommodate new technologies,
such as electric bikes (e-bikes) and electric scooters (e-scooters).
Cycle parking will form part of our response, alongside reducing traffic in residential streets,
the city centre and high streets.

To transform public transport we will:
Introduce a new South East Hampshire Rapid Transit (SEHRT) network and dedicate more
road space to it, along with local bus networks. We will also work with bus, coach, rail and
ferry operators to deliver wider improvements to services across the city. Building on the
Solent Go work we will include higher frequency services and continue to simplify fares.
Improved interchanges at stops and stations alongside local ‘Mobility Hubs’ will help
integrate public transport with ‘first or last mile’ transport such as cycling, cycle hire and escooters, to deliver a truly seamless travel experience.

To support business and protect our assets we will:
Focus on providing more reliable access to the ports for essential traffic and will deliver
freight consolidation centres that reduce the number of large vehicles on our streets, while
reducing costs for businesses. We will ensure that works on the highway are properly
coordinated and kerbside space is used as efficiently as possible.

xiii

Page 75

Draft Local Transport Plan 2020-2036

Our implementation plan
Our Implementation Plan sets out the transport interventions that will be delivered over the
lifetime of this plan and will be fundamental in delivering our vision. These include major
schemes, such as the charging CAZ, SEHRT and new traffic free cycle routes, as well as a wide
range of local schemes, behaviour change programmes and strategies.
We recognise that our plan is ambitious and that we will need to draw in funds beyond the
budgets we have currently available. We will build on our excellent track record of winning
funding from government while investigating new ways of raising funds. As the transport
interventions are developed we will work openly and collaboratively with local communities,
businesses, transport operators, neighbouring local transport authorities, key stakeholders
and interest groups to ensure that together we deliver a shared vision for our city.

xiv

Page 76

Draft Local Transport Plan 2020-2036

1.

Introduction
Why we are producing a new draft Local Transport Plan

1.1

Portsmouth City Council plays a central role in maintaining and improving the city's
transport networks. Over recent years our collective dependence on private car use,
has resulted in unsustainable levels of carbon emissions from transport, unhealthy
polluted air, regular traffic congestion and severely reduced levels of physical activity.

1.2

A new approach is needed, with action now to shape a future where people choose to
leave their cars at home, or not own a car, when making everyday journeys in our city.
A 21st Century Portsmouth requires a dynamic transport network that is accessible, safe
and affordable whilst prioritising walking, cycling and public transport travel. We are
striving to create an environment that will make this possible.

1.3

The benefits of reducing car use in favour of everyday walking, cycling and public
transport usage will be transformational. Portsmouth will become a more pleasant,
fairer and prosperous place to live, work and visit. The benefits include:


Reducing carbon emissions and addressing the climate emergency.



Cleaner air, which means everyone is healthier and fewer lives are cut short by
exposure to unsafe levels of air pollution.



People living healthier lives and reducing the burden of illness placed upon the
NHS from widespread physical inactivity.



Optimising journey times, by most efficiently using all available movement
networks rather than overburdening our highways with cars and good vehicles.



Improved journey reliability, including port traffic and deliveries to homes and
businesses across Portsmouth, helping the city’s economy to prosper.

1.4

Some of what we are proposing will mean changes to how we live our everyday lives.
However, the recent COVID-19 pandemic has demonstrated our ability to quickly
adapt to change. The policies set out in this Local Transport Plan will enable
Portsmouth to not simply ‘recover’ from the effect of the pandemic, but instead to
thrive and define a new healthier approach to life in the city. Immediate short term
actions are needed to kick-start this process and we have therefore prepared a
separate ‘Transport Recovery Plan' (June 2020) that sets out what we are doing now to
keep the city safe, healthy and moving as we return to work, school and everyday life
following the pandemic.

1

Page 77

Draft Local Transport Plan 2020-2036

How Portsmouth’s draft Local Transport Plan will deliver change
1.5

This plan is for everyone who travels into and around the city.

1.6

The plan sets out the vision for how we want our city to be by 2036, the four strategic
objectives that underpin this vision, and a set of policies for each objective, that detail
how we will get there.

1.7

The plan is supported by an Implementation Plan that includes the individual schemes
that we will take forward as part of delivering the vision. The LTP and Implementation
Plan are supported by a wider set of documents that taken together will guide
transport decision making in the city.

1.8

We recognise that to achieve our vision we must work closely with neighbouring
authorities across the Solent and South East region. We will build on the excellent
partnership working we have already established to ensure we work strategically with
our neighbours. Throughout this document we have identified where there is a
particular need to work across borders or where doing so creates opportunities.

1.9

We have set out in the next section some of the key challenges facing the city. Many of
these – such as a growing city, changing travel demand and technological advances –
will happen whether we plan for them or not. Addressing them through this plan
enables us to think ahead, capitalise on opportunities, and shape our city for
generations to come.

2

Page 78

Draft Local Transport Plan 2020-2036

2.
2.1

Key challenges and opportunities
Portsmouth, like other towns and cities across the UK, faces a number of urgent
challenges. While significant, each also presents opportunities if we take the right
decisions now. These key challenges and opportunities are set out below.

Managing the impact and recovery from COVID-19 outbreak
2.2

The COVID-19 pandemic necessitated immediate and widespread changes to the way
the city operates and to people’s lives. A nationwide ‘lockdown’ was imposed to slow
the spread of the virus which dramatically reduced travel demand as offices, shops and
industry closed. We expect that there will continue to be significant disruption to travel
through 2020/21, with social distancing restrictions likely to remain in place – reducing
the capacity of public transport services and making queuing on footpaths to access
shops and services more common. If everyone who previously caught the bus or train
chooses instead to drive, the city will become gridlocked and air quality will worsen.

2.3

However, even out of this terrible crisis there are opportunities. In some circumstances
individuals and businesses have learned how to make better use of digital meeting
platforms and home-working, thereby reducing travel demand. There has also been
widespread uptake in walking and cycling as people made this part of their daily
exercise, reduced traffic levels have resulted in less noise, air pollution and safer streets,
while many have had the opportunity to explore their local area increasing their
appreciation of the local community they live in.

2.4

Since the government introduced lockdown measures in March 2020, use of motorised
traffic in the city has decreased to as low as 34% of pre-lockdown levels and cycling
numbers have increased to as much as 156% compared to last year (2019).

2.5

We can support people to continue using active travel for shorter journeys by
delivering the policies set out in this plan. The Council’s ‘Transport Recovery Plan'
(June 2020) sets out our plan for a year from 2020 to help the city recover from the
COVID-19 pandemic.

The climate emergency
2.6

A Climate Emergency was declared by Portsmouth City Council in March 2019,
pledging to achieve net zero carbon emissions in Portsmouth by 2030. To work
towards this target, a multi-organisation Climate Board has been established. This
announcement complements the current policy direction at national government level,

3

Page 79

Draft Local Transport Plan 2020-2036

including, for example the proposals to ban the sale of petrol and diesel cars in 2035,
or possibly 2032. The 'Greenest ever budget' was approved at Full Council on 13th
February 2020, pledging bold actions to address the climate emergency.
2.7

The opportunity here is to realise the benefits of a carbon neutral city. Some of these
have been seen during the COVID-19 crisis and include less traffic, more local walking
and cycling, cleaner air, safer streets and less noise pollution (see section 2.4). If we can
provide the conditions that enable people to choose to travel less by car while still
accessing what they need day to day we can secure many of these benefits for the long
term.

Poor air quality in areas of the city
2.8

Poor air quality is the largest environmental risk to public health in the UK. Studies
have shown that long-term exposure to air pollution reduces life expectancy and
worsens conditions such as respiratory and cardiovascular diseases. Portsmouth City
Council has been served with Ministerial Directions, requiring the Council to achieve
compliance with legal limits for NO2 in the shortest possible time. Technical modelling
undertaken in fulfilment of these Ministerial Directions demonstrates that introducing a
Class B charging Clean Air Zone (CAZ) in the city is likely to be the most effective
measure to deliver cleaner air and meet the legal obligation faced by the council.

2.9

The opportunity here is to reduce traffic, particularly the most polluting vehicles, so
that there is more space for walking, cycling and public transport, hence cleaner air for
everyone. We will aim for continual improvement of air quality, beyond the maximum
limits for NO2 set by the government.

Changing attitudes to travel and personal mobility
2.10 Over the last twenty years there has been a significant change in how often, when,
where, why and how we travel. As a nation, we travel less per head of population than
we did over the past two decades, with 11% fewer trips made in 2018 than in 19961.
Such changes in behaviour are a result of a combination of factors including changing
demographics, changes to how and where we shop, advances in technology and
changing land-use patterns; including an increase in out of city centre shopping
centres. Such factors are influencing our attitudes to travel and personal mobility. Our

1

DfT National Travel Survey data

4

Page 80

Draft Local Transport Plan 2020-2036

transport infrastructure must be planned in a way that keeps up with these changing
trends and patterns of travel demand.
2.11

These changes in how we travel are likely to prevail, as younger people delay learning
to drive and buying a car; instead spending more money on technology and on the
'sharing economy'. There is a growing expectation that transport services will be more
flexible, with information on travel options, journey times, costs, fare payment and
disruption alerts accessible via smartphones. In addition, with all of us spending more
time socialising and shopping on-line, demand for high street floor space will continue
to shift. High streets in town centres are expected to fulfil new functions; potentially
becoming more leisure oriented, facilitating co/home-working, and meeting the
demands of a growing residential population within the city.

2.12 This presents an opportunity for reduced car use and ownership, as technology
enables the delivery of more flexible mobility services that better meet evolving
patterns of urban living and associated travel demand.

Changes to future mobility
2.13 As well as changing attitudes to travel and mobility, innovative new technologies like
on-demand buses, autonomous vehicles and shared micro-mobility services (e-bike
and e-scooter hire), are expected to become more widely available. Smartphones and
‘Mobility as a Service’ apps will allow flexible access across these services to enable
people to pick and choose the options that meet their needs for every journey. Freight
consolidation centres will help to reduce the number of large delivery vehicles
requiring access into the city by transferring freight onto small electric bikes and vans.
Drone technologies could also offer new possibilities to reduce traffic, with initial trials
being undertaken to transport medical supplies from Hampshire to St Mary's Hospital
on the Isle of Wight during the COVID-19 pandemic.
2.14 While some of these technologies may disrupt established norms (such as fixed-route
public transport services), they present a positive opportunity to improve the
attractiveness of sustainable, shared transport to encourage an overall reduction in car
use. Funding awarded for the Solent Future Transport Zone (FTZ) will support further
drone and other trials. These projects will test and deliver new forms of personal
mobility and sustainable urban logistics services, supporting innovative and efficient
movement of people, and goods in urban areas. Our transport network must be
flexible enough to adapt to the changes that we cannot foresee.

5

Page 81

Draft Local Transport Plan 2020-2036

Deprivation and inequality
2.15 Although Portsmouth’s economy has grown faster than the UK and Solent average in
the recently, Gross Value Added (the value of goods and services produced in an area)
in Portsmouth is still 10% below the southeast average due to a slowing of growth
since the financial crisis in 2008.2
2.16 Portsmouth has high levels of deprivation with the highest levels close to the city
centre. These are also areas where car ownership levels are among the lowest in the
city, but residents there are the most severely impacted by environmental risks from
road traffic - through poor air quality, road danger, noise and severance of main roads
separating communities. The range of employment and other opportunities available
to people living in Portsmouth is currently greater if you own a car. A national study
identified Paulsgrove as a ‘left behind’ community suffering from poor connectivity and
long journey times3. Often those on the lowest incomes are forced to own a car
because public transport doesn’t get them to their work easily or at the times they
need. Improving travel options across the city by walking, cycling and public transport
is vital to reducing deprivation and making our city a fairer place for everyone. Public
transport has also been shown as vital to social inclusion of individuals and maintaining
the vitality and vibrancy of low-income neighbourhoods4.
2.17 The opportunity here is to improve the life chances of those in the most deprived areas
by providing better walking, cycling and public transport services so that everyone can
more easily access the opportunities the city has to offer.

Poor walking and cycling infrastructure
2.18 We have prepared a Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP) that has
identified a package of cycling and walking routes required across the city and this has
informed the development of this plan. Evidence from the LCWIP found that 75% of
the cycle routes surveyed were sub-standard. A key issue is that there are no fullysegregated, continuous cycle routes into the city centre. The introduction of this type
of infrastructure, complemented by improved local conditions in high streets and
residential areas, is crucial to encouraging significant growth in cycling across the city.
2.19 The opportunity here is to rapidly grow the number and range of people who make
everyday walking and cycling trips through the provision of better routes. We have a
great advantage as Portsmouth benefits from one of the highest population densities
Portsmouth and South East Hampshire Transforming Cities Fund Strategic Outline Case 2020
Local Trust 2019, Left behind? Understanding communities on the edge
4
Joseph Rowntree Foundation 2018, The value of new transport in deprived areas: Who benefits, how and why?
2
3

6

Page 82

Draft Local Transport Plan 2020-2036

in the UK, which results in nearly 90% of commuting trips being shorter than 10km,
and over 60% shorter than 5km5. These are distances that can be easily covered on a
bike by most people in less than 30 minutes.

The dominance of the private car and traffic congestion
2.20 Limited public transport options and a fragmented walking and cycling network, mean
the majority of travel in Portsmouth is undertaken by car. Cars make up around 80% of
journeys into the city6, with around 40% of trips entirely within the city also being by
car, despite these trips having an average length of 5km7. This leads to congestion,
further reducing the attractiveness of taking public transport, walking and cycling.
Analysis of the Real Time Information (RTI) system reveals that bus passengers wait on
average 20%-30% more than they might expect based upon the scheduled timetable
due to the impact of congestion8.
2.21 The opportunity here is to reduce the dominance of cars. This can be achieved through
reallocating road space so that there is more space to walk and cycle and more priority
for public transport. This will create a more pleasant and resilient city, with cleaner air
and a healthier population.
2.22 Portsmouth suffers from congestion at peak times, with vehicles travelling on average
32% more slowly than the national average9. This causes frustration, increases air
pollution and has an impact on the economy. Current predictions are for a significant
growth in demand for traffic entering the city unless action is taken, which would lead
to an increase in traffic of 26%10 and delay of over 50% by 203611. There simply isn’t the
room on our majority island city to build new roads to meet this demand and therefore
we have to encourage more people to use the most efficient modes of transport –
walking, cycling and public transport. At the moment the level of congestion on the
streets and limited bus priority slows down buses, as well as making cycling and
walking unattractive, all of which encourages greater car use.
2.23 The opportunity here is to reduce congestion, making business and the ports more
efficient, improving air quality and helping to ensure that those who must travel by
private vehicle, such as people with significant mobility impairments, can do so quickly

Census 2011 TTW data
Google Environmental Insights Explorer
7
Ibid
8
TCF SOBC
9
Portsmouth Transforming Cities Fund application form
10
Transforming Cities Fund SOBC
11
Solent Transport PT Vision
5
6

7

Page 83

Draft Local Transport Plan 2020-2036

and efficiently. This is central to ensuring we have an economy that can provide good
quality jobs and prosperity for all of those who live and work in the city.

Supporting the future growth of the city
2.24 The population of Portsmouth has increased by around 25,000 (15%) over the last
twenty years. Continued growth is expected up to 2036, with around 17,000 new
homes and 7,000 new jobs12. Given the density of the city, the majority of this will need
to be delivered through a mix of brown field and infill sites. In the only two major
development sites identified across the city, Tipner West and Horsea, ambitions for car
free development have been outlined. Good transport links are vital to ensure these
sites are connected sustainably to the wider city. The emerging Local Plan will deliver
this continued growth, and transport will be integral to this development. The
transport network must be reconfigured to accommodate more travel in a way that
improves quality of life and opportunity for all without increasing traffic.
2.25 The opportunity here is for growth to contribute to a more vibrant city and crucially for
the travel demand generated by the new residents and workers to help support and
fund better walking, cycling and public transport infrastructure, as well as more
frequent public transport services. This will bring benefits to the whole city, including
existing residents.

Enhancing public transport connections
2.26 Bus travel is not always seen as competitive, with buses often experiencing delays from
congestion, leading to unreliability, particularly at peak times of the day. Rail journeys
are relatively slow in comparison to car journeys, particularly for trips between
Portsmouth and Southampton, and they are infrequent.
2.27 The opportunity here is to significantly improve the environment for public transport,
with dedicated bus lanes, and work with operators to transform bus and rail services.
Transformed public transport is central to improving travel in the city and ensuring
fewer people choose to travel by car.

The need to work across administrative boundaries
2.28 Around 40,000 people travel into the city for work every day, with 30,000 travelling out
to work elsewhere13, which means only part of these journeys will be in the city.

12
13

Portsmouth Economic Development and Regeneration Strategy 2019-36
Census 2011

8

Page 84

Draft Local Transport Plan 2020-2036

Therefore, we must work closely with our neighbours to create the conditions that
allow everyone to travel as sustainably as possible. Moreover, some of our key policies,
including the delivery of a rapid transit network, require close coordination with our
neighbours if they are to be successful.
2.29 The opportunity here is to secure the clear benefits of close cooperation and strategic
thinking with our Local Transport Authority neighbours. We have already
demonstrated this by securing government funding for a range of transformational
schemes, such as Tranche 1 of the South Hampshire Rapid Transit network and the
Future Transport Zone fund. Working together will allow us to prepare more effective
strategies that have a positive impact across the whole region.

9

Page 85

Draft Local Transport Plan 4 2020-2036

3.
3.1

Our vision for Portsmouth
We have developed an ambitious vision to deliver transformation in transport and
travel within the city and wider city region. By improving the quality and extent of
walking, cycling and public transport networks, and embracing new technology-led
mobility options, we will enable people to proactively choose less car-dependent
lifestyles. Our vision is that:
By 2036 Portsmouth will have a people centred travel network
that prioritises walking, cycling and public transport to help
deliver a safer, healthier and more prosperous city.

3.2

Four strategic objectives support the vision, each of which is further expanded upon
with a set of detailed policies. Delivering on these objectives will be our main focus
throughout the period of this plan. The objectives are set out in Section Error!
Reference source not found., with polices and the outcomes we want to achieve in
Section Error! Reference source not found..

3.3

Our Implementation Plan (Section 8) sets out the detail of the type of schemes we will
deliver over the lifetime of the plan.

10

Page 86

Draft Local Transport Plan 4 2020-2036

4.
4.1

Our strategic objectives
To achieve the vision for Portsmouth we must create an environment that supports
residents, workers and visitors to walk, cycle and use public transport. Our objectives,
and the rationale for each are set out below. They are how we believe the identified
challenges should be tackled to realise the opportunities. These objectives and the
supporting policies will inform all the land use and transport planning, design, delivery,
and operational decisions that we make as a Council.

Delivering cleaner air
4.2

Everyone who lives in, works or visits the city should be able to breathe air that will not
damage their health. Unfortunately today this is not possible. Extensive research
conducted to develop Portsmouth Local Air Quality Plan shows that significant
intervention is required to improve air quality in the city. Air Quality and Transport
Modelling demonstrated that a charging Clean Air Zone (CAZ) would be required to
reduce air pollution to within legal limits in the shortest possible time.

4.3

The CAZ in isolation is unable to deliver the levels of reduction of pollution needed and
will therefore be augmented by a number of complementary measures. These include:
providing more EV charge points, including at taxi ranks; progressive tightening of taxi
licensing rules; using parking permit fees to encourage low emission and fewer
vehicles; changes to parking capacity and pricing, including expanding Park and Ride;
and exploring ways to discourage private off-street car parking while promoting
alternatives to car use.

Prioritising walking and cycling
4.4

Most trips within the city are short but despite this the car is too often the default
choice. This is likely to be related to the poor walking and cycling infrastructure, which
is unappealing and creates fears around safety, as well as the perceived convenience of
the car14. We will reallocate road space, so that we can provide traffic-free cycle routes

14

ITS Leeds 2011, Understanding Walking and Cycling

11

Page 87

Draft Local Transport Plan 4 2020-2036

and high-quality walking connections. This will also provide space to safely
accommodate new technologies, such as e-bikes and e-scooters. Moreover, cycle
parking will also form part of our response, alongside reducing traffic in residential
streets, the city centre and high streets.

Transforming public transport
4.5

Whilst the city benefits from five train stations and some high frequency bus corridors,
there are limited public transport services in some areas of the city, and a lack of
priority slows buses down, making them less attractive. This means that it is routine for
people to use private cars for very local journeys. We will introduce a transformational
new South East Hampshire Rapid Transit (SEHRT) network, which will build on the
existing Eclipse route in Gosport. Across the city, more street space will be dedicated to
SEHRT and local bus networks leading to faster and more reliable journeys. We will
work with bus, rail and ferry operators to deliver wider improvements to services across
the city, higher frequency services and continue to simplify fares. Furthermore,
improved interchanges at stops and stations alongside local ‘Mobility Hubs’ will help
integrate public transport with ‘first / last mile’ transport such as cycling, cycle hire, escooters, to deliver a truly seamless travel experience.

Supporting business and protecting our assets
4.6

The success of the economy in Portsmouth is intertwined with the International Port
and Naval Base. The ports, along with the thousands of other businesses and
organisations within the city, must be served by an efficient transport network,
consequently we will seek to ensure the main highway accesses to the city are focused
on supporting essential trips that cannot easily be made by other modes. This is central
to delivering a prosperous city, with an economy that can provide good quality jobs for
everyone who lives and works here. We will support the delivery of freight
consolidation centres that can reduce the number of large vehicles on our streets,
whilst reducing costs for business. Funding from the successful Future Transport Zones

12

Page 88

Draft Local Transport Plan 4 2020-2036

bid will support this proposal. We will ensure that works on the highway are properly
coordinated and kerbside space is used efficiently.

13

Page 89

Draft Local Transport Plan 4 2020-2036

5.

Delivering our vision for Portsmouth
Supporting a resilient city

5.1

As we have seen in Section 2, Portsmouth is facing a range of challenges. While the
most immediate may be COVID-19, others such as the climate emergency also demand
significant changes to how we live our lives and travel. Portsmouth must be resilient in
the face of these challenges and able to adapt over the coming years. In implementing
the policies in this plan, our focus will be on keeping people healthy and safe and
maintaining essential travel while the impacts of COVID-19 are still being felt. The
following principles will guide this process while helping the city emerge stronger once
the immediate crisis is over.
1)

Reduce travel demand. This is essential to cope with reduced capacity on public
transport while ensuring the highway network continues to function safely. We
will encourage businesses and organisations to reduce travel demand during
peak hours. This will include encouraging greater working from home, staggering
arrival and departure times for staff and pupils and re-moding journeys to nonmotorised modes where possible. We will facilitate greater use of on-line services
by providing improved consolidation facilities, including collection lockers that
can minimise the impact of multiple delivery vehicles.

2) Making best use of limited capacity. This is essential because the capacity of
public transport has significantly reduced and there is not enough space for
everyone to drive on the highway network. For example one traffic lane can carry
2,000 people per hour in cars, 14,000 on bikes or 19,000 on foot15. To ensure that
everyone who needs to travel can do so quickly and safely we will prioritise
walking, cycling and emerging modes such as e-scooters above car use. We will
focus our efforts on key routes to the city centre, local centres, health and
education facilities and major employment sites, using research gathered
through LCWIP route audits and consultation with ward councillors.
3) Keeping people safe. This is essential if people are to have the confidence to
access the city over the coming months. There will be places where people
continue to gather during this crisis, including bus stops and train stations, shops
and pharmacies. We will provide more space for pedestrians where possible in

15

UITP, making the most out of scarce road space

14

Page 90

Draft Local Transport Plan 4 2020-2036

these locations so that they can access the city safely, taking into account social
distancing guidelines.
4) Improving our lives locally. This is essential to deal with the likely increase in
local travel within our neighbourhoods as work from home becomes a norm and
residents carry out their day to day activities nearby. To give people the
confidence to walk and cycle locally we will provide additional space for walking
and cycling and reduce ‘rat running’ traffic in residential streets and provide
improved connections to local centres and green spaces through initiatives such
as low traffic neighbourhoods and school streets.

15

Page 91

Draft Local Transport Plan 4 2020-2036

The policies
5.2

We have developed a set of policies for each objective, that detail how we will get
there, as illustrated below, a number of policies sit within each of the four objectives.

5.3

The remainder of this section sets out all of the policies, and why we are bringing them
forward, how they will be delivered and what the outcomes of each will be.

16

Page 92

Draft Local Transport Plan 4 2020-2036

Delivering cleaner air
5.4

Air pollution has significant and negative impacts on health, and disproportionately
affects the most vulnerable in society such as children, older people and those with
pre-existing medical conditions. Moreover, poor air quality may worsen the impacts of
COVID-19 for those who catch it16. As transport is one of the largest single contributors
to air pollution, this plan will be the main lever we have to improve air quality.

Policy 1: Implement a Government directed city centre Clean Air Zone
in 2021
Why this policy?
5.5

There are currently five Air Quality Management Areas (AQMAs) in Portsmouth where
annual monitoring of nitrogen dioxide levels have historically shown an exceedance of
national standards for air quality. These are clustered around road links into the city,
including the city centre. Modelling carried out as part of the Air Quality Local Plan
work shows that a Class B charging CAZ, which charges the most polluting buses,
coaches, taxis, private hire vehicles and heavy goods vehicles to drive within the zone,
will reduce nitrogen dioxide levels where they are highest.

How will it be delivered?
5.6

The Class B charging CAZ will begin operation in 2021 and we will work with public
transport operators, the taxi and private hire trade, the coach industry and HGV fleet
managers to ensure they are ready for the scheme and can begin to green their fleet.
This will include providing financial support for retrofit (where available) and
replacement of the most polluting vehicles so that businesses can continue to operate
their vehicles within the zone without being liable for a daily charge. This will be
supported by a range of measures, including those taken forward in the policies below,
which will seek to reduce the numbers of businesses and individuals disproportionately
impacted by the introduction of the charging CAZ. This will be set out in a more
detailed strategy for how the charging CAZ will be implemented in the city.

16

Exposure to air pollution and COVID-19 mortality in the United States: A nationwide cross-sectional study, 2020

17

Page 93

Draft Local Transport Plan 4 2020-2036

5.7

We will investigate the potential for the charging CAZ to be adapted as a low carbon
zone in the future, allowing it to contribute to the city’s objective of becoming carbon
neutral by 2030.

Policy 2: Support infrastructure for alternative fuelled vehicles
Why this policy?
5.8

The use of electric and alternatively fuelled vehicles, including fleet vehicles, taxis and
private cars, have a significant role to play in delivering cleaner air in the city. With the
government intending to ban the sale of diesel and petrol cars, including electricpetrol hybrid vehicles by 2035 and possibly 2032 we need to significantly increase the
availability of the electric charging infrastructure and plan for greater use of fuels such
as hydrogen.

5.9

Portsmouth’s bus fleet has become significantly cleaner in recent years, but with air
quality still poor along the main bus routes, operators have a significant part to play in
helping the city deliver cleaner air, alongside those operating goods vehicles, taxis and
private hire vehicles. Operators have begun to embrace the challenge. This includes
through using government grants to retrofit all 105 commercial buses which pass
through the most polluted parts of central Portsmouth, while also independently
upgrading other buses to offer an improved customer experience as well as cleaner
technology.

How will it be delivered?
5.10 We will continue our pioneering On-street Residential Chargepoint Scheme that has
seen electric vehicle charging points incorporated into lamp columns across the city,
which is both cost effective and minimises obstruction of the footway. As well as onstreet EV charge points we will introduce more off-street charging points into Council
owned car parks. This policy will be delivered alongside our Parking Strategy. We will
also require EV charging infrastructure where car parking is provided in new
developments. Partnership working is important here to ensure that there is a network
of EV charge points across the wider Solent region.
5.11

Taxis and private hire vehicles often make a large number of short and localised trips.
These short trips are well suited to zero emission vehicles and we will seek to provide a
network of rapid charging hubs at key locations across the city such as on strategic
corridors and at ferry ports. As these are rolled-out, we will tighten licensing
requirements for taxis and private hire vehicles to incentivise the uptake of zero
emission vehicles.

18

Page 94

Draft Local Transport Plan 4 2020-2036

5.12 Alternative fuels, such as hydrogen, are being trialled across the UK and vehicles
powered in this way produce only water from the exhaust. The Council will work with
organisations who wish to undertake trials in the city where the net life-cycle carbon
emissions, including in producing and transporting the fuel, is zero.
5.13 Experience across the UK has demonstrated that alternative fuels such as hydrogen
and electric can dramatically reduce emissions without compromising the reliability or
capacity of services. To achieve greater usage in alternative fuels can require new
infrastructure and in a highly built-up city such as Portsmouth that can be challenging.
We will work with operators to help identify potential alternative fuel technologies that
would be suitable for the city and bring forward trials. In addition, we will support new
bus facilities – for example expanded Park and Ride and bus depot sites – that include
the facilities to support zero emission vehicles. Partnership working across the Solent
region will be important here, as depot or fuelling infrastructure provided outside the
city could contribute to delivering this policy.

Policy 3: Maintain the residents' parking permit system while
encouraging fewer, cleaner vehicles and supporting Car Clubs
Why this policy?
5.14 Around 67% of households in Portsmouth own one or more cars17. Given the terraced
nature of many of our streets – where generally there is only room for one car outside
a house and no off-street parking space – this means that demand for on-street
parking can often exceed supply, particularly in areas such as Central Southsea. In
response we have introduced Residents’ Parking Zones (RPZs) to better manage
parking and make access to parking on-street fairer for all residents. Of those
households that currently have car parking permits, 18% hold two and therefore will be
parking their second car outside neighbouring properties.

How will it be delivered?
5.15 In RPZs the price for permits increases according to the number of cars a household
has. In zones with the greatest parking pressure, households are limited to a maximum
of two permits. We will introduce differential charging for permits of the first vehicle
according to emissions. If it is electric the permit will be free and if it emits 100g/km or
less the charge for the first permit is reduced by 50%. There will be no discount for a
second or third vehicle to discourage multiple vehicle ownership. By charging more for

17

Census 2011

19

Page 95

Draft Local Transport Plan 4 2020-2036

permits for the most polluting vehicles, while reducing the fee for the least polluting,
we can encourage car owners to switch to cleaner vehicles. Increasing charges for
second permits, as is currently the case, and considering whether additional permits
should be allowed for households with multiple cars, will encourage households to
own fewer vehicles. We will continue to investigate other ways of controlling parking
in RPZs where parking levels are reaching, or exceeding capacity.
5.16 A key part of reducing demand to own private cars will be to provide residents with the
confidence that they can access a car when needed for trips that cannot easily be made
by other modes – for example collecting bulky items. We will support the introduction
of a Car Club scheme within the city to facilitate this, and research has found that each
Car Club vehicle takes an average of six private cars off the road18.

Policy 4: Expand the Portsmouth Park and Ride to reduce pollution
and congestion in the city centre
Why this policy?
5.17 The Portsmouth Park and Ride (P&R) at Junction 1 of the M275 was opened in 2014
and currently has 665 car parking spaces. Nearly half of all traffic entering the city
passes the P&R on the M275 and therefore expanding the P&R, alongside reducing
parking provision within the city, means that more traffic can be intercepted before it
reaches the city centre, while still ensuring people can get into the city quickly and
conveniently. This policy is a key part of reducing pollution and congestion and
delivering cleaner air. The expansion of the P&R will allow us to release existing
Council owned parking sites in the city centre, promoting regeneration and greater
vibrancy.

How will it be delivered?
5.18 Our proposals for the expansion of the P&R site include multi-decked parking for at
least 2,650 cars and a Transport Hub that will provide cycle parking, taxi rank, a car and
bicycle rental facility, public conveniences, landscaping, and ancillary offices and units.
The expanded P&R site will link to the proposed new cycle network (see Policy 7) with
Park & Cycle facilities provided, linking to trials of e-scooters and cycle hire (see Policy
10). The expanded P&R will allow us to release car parking in the city centre for
development. This will be focused on those car parks serving destinations that are easy
to access by public transport or improved cycle connections. This will be taken forward

18

CoMoUK England & Wales Car Club Annual Survey 2017/18

20

Page 96

Draft Local Transport Plan 4 2020-2036

in more detail in the Portsmouth Parking Strategy. As well as P&R services accessing
the city centre, we will seek to extended services to key attractions within the city, such
as the seafront. The expansion of the P&R, which provides a direct, reliable and
affordable alternative to driving by car, will be complemented by restrictions on access
for general traffic to the city centre (see Policy 9).

Policy 5: Explore private non-residential parking restrictions to
encourage mode shift and help pay for improved walking, cycling and
public transport infrastructure
Why this policy?
5.19 Around 60% of people who work in Portsmouth commute by car, despite the majority
of these trips being less than 10km in length19. One of the reasons behind this is the
availability of cheap or free parking at their workplace. Although there will always be
the need for some essential parking, whether for operational reasons or for Blue Badge
holders, much of this parking could be used more productively given it sits vacant for
much of the time. For example new commercial or residential buildings, new green
and social spaces, and improved cycle parking would not only intensify activity within
the city, but also help to encourage more people to walk, cycle and use public
transport for their journeys to work.
5.20 Providing attractive alternatives to the car, increasing the cost and reducing the
number of private non-residential parking spaces will be a key part of bringing about
the change in travel patterns needed to achieve our vision for the city. A Workplace
Parking Levy (WPL) is one of the ways in which we can deliver these benefits.
5.21 Councils across the country are evaluating the introduction of WPLs. This is partly
because the UK’s first WPL, in Nottingham, has been hugely successful. Unlike in other
comparable cities, traffic congestion has fallen since the launch of Nottingham’s WPL,
CO2 levels reduced dramatically (albeit not just because of the levy), while some
organisations made more efficient use of parking - including the city’s Universities.20
The WPL has also raised considerable revenue, which has allowed the Council to fund a
tram network. This has been integral to Nottingham now having some of the highest
levels of public transport use in the UK outside of London. Furthermore, all of this has
been achieved with very little evidence of negative impacts on businesses21.

Census 2011
Centre for Cities 2017: Funding and financing inclusive growth in cities
21
Centre for Cities 2017: Funding and financing inclusive growth in cities
19
20

21

Page 97

Draft Local Transport Plan 4 2020-2036

How will it be delivered?
5.22 We will investigate the potential for a WPL for Portsmouth. This will be investigated in
close consultation with businesses to ensure that it does not negatively impact the
economy and offers benefits to business. These benefits could include re-using land
more productively, ensuring a healthier more productive workforce, and providing
more efficient transport networks that reduce traffic congestion on the road network
and enhance the range of quality of walking, cycling and public transport routes.

Policy 6: Deliver residential and business behaviour change initiatives
to encourage people to walk, cycle and use public transport
Why this policy?
5.23 Travel behaviour change programmes can have a significant impact on the ways
people choose to travel; with businesses seeing decreases in car use of up to 50%22,
while similarly big increases in walking, cycling and public transport can be achieved
for residents23. Additionally, bringing infrastructure investment together with behaviour
change programmes can have the biggest impacts24. Furthermore, people who are
more active tend to suffer from less illness, with benefits for individual quality of life as
well as wider benefits to businesses through reduced absenteeism25.

How will it be delivered?
5.24 We will build on the work already being done through our My Journey programme to
continue providing residents with the information, incentives and help they need to
travel more sustainably. We will ensure that behaviour change programmes
complement the infrastructural investment that is set out throughout this plan.
Additionally, we will continue our school travel planning work, building on schemes as
Bikeability and Pompey Monster to encourage behaviour change through working with
school children and parents.

DfT, Making Travel Plans Work: Lessons from UK Case Studies
DfT, Making Personal Travel Planning Work: Case Studies
24
Ibid
25
DfT, Working Together to Promote Active Travel: A Briefing for Local Authorities
22
23

22

Page 98

Draft Local Transport Plan 4 2020-2036

Prioritising walking and cycling
5.25 Our policies are designed to ensure that walking and cycling are the first choice for
everyday trips, incorporating physical activity into our daily lives. Experience from
around the world tells us that a city where more people walk and cycle and where
fewer people have to drive, will provide a higher quality of life26 and deliver quieter
streets and safer routes to school.

Policy 7: Reallocate road space to establish a cohesive and continuous
network of attractive, inclusive and accessible walking and cycling
routes accompanied by cycle parking facilities
Why this policy?
5.26 In terms of energy use, carbon emissions and use of street space, walking and cycling
are the most efficient ways to travel for short distances27. Given Portsmouth's compact
nature and the short length of many trips, we believe we can achieve the kind of ‘active
travel’ levels seen in leading cities such as Oxford and Cambridge where up to 40% of
people walk and cycle to work, compared to 25% currently in Portsmouth28. Some of
the barriers to achieving this include poor quality public realm, crossings and footways
and a lack of safe cycle routes. Portsmouth also has some of the highest levels of cycle
theft in the region, partly because of a lack of secure cycle parking in the city and fear
of theft is a significant deterrent to more cycling29.
5.27 Making the street environment safer and more attractive to walk and cycle in is a key
part of minimising people’s reliance on cars, as well as addressing the climate
emergency and improving air quality.

How will it be delivered?
5.28 As part of our Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP) we have identified
a network of walking and cycle routes in the city that connect residential areas with the
city centre, local high streets, employment and health sites. To support the identified
Arcadis, 2017: SUSTAINABLE CITIES MOBILITY INDEX
Stefan Gossling 2020: Why cities need to take road space from cars - and how this could be done, Journal of Urban Design
28
Census 2011 TTW
29
Portsmouth Future Mobility Zone bid application
26
27

23

Page 99

Draft Local Transport Plan 4 2020-2036

network we will deliver protected continuous cycleways, as well as widened and
higher-quality footways, improved crossings and bring forward public realm schemes
in local centres to improve their attractiveness. This will require the reallocation of road
space from general traffic and removal of car parking along these routes. As a result of
the COVID-19 crisis delivering high quality walking and cycle routes will be of the
highest priority if we are to keep the city moving and make best use of limited
capacity. Given the difficulty in providing off-street cycle parking in the city we will
provide more Cycle Hangars in residential streets, as well as more secure parking in the
city centre, local centres and other areas of high demand, particularly focused along
the new LCWIP routes.

Policy 8: Manage parking through parking controls and introduce a
network of Low Traffic Neighbourhoods that reduce ‘rat running’
traffic in residential streets
Why this policy?
5.29 Over the last few decades car ownership has increased, which has resulted in more
street space being given over to parked cars and more traffic passing through local
streets. This has tended to squeeze out many of the things that make our cities
pleasant places to live – meeting neighbours, children playing in the street and walking
and cycling without fear of traffic danger.

How will it be delivered?
5.30 We will introduce Low Traffic Neighbourhoods in residential areas so that the only
vehicles on the streets are for residents or those visiting. This can be achieved as
simply as placing planters or bollards in the carriageway. Evidence from London,
suggests that this dramatically reduces overall traffic volumes and encourages more
people to walk and cycle more often30. The combination of residential streets that are
safer to walk and cycle and a high-quality longer distance cycle network (Policy 6) will
be key to encouraging more people to travel sustainably. As a result of the COVID-19
crisis delivering more space to walk and cycle locally will be central to helping improve
our local lives.

30

London Borough of Waltham Forest, Comparison of Vehicle Numbers Before and After the Scheme and During Trial

24

Page 100

Draft Local Transport Plan 4 2020-2036

Policy 9: Improve the city centre, local and district centres by reducing
or removing general traffic, with access focused on walking, cycling
and public transport
Why this policy?
5.31 If city centre, local and district centres are to be successful, we believe they must be
attractive places to visit. All too often they are dominated by moving traffic and parked
cars, leaving narrow footways and poor air quality. During the COVID-19 crisis, the
need for more space for people to socially distance on the footways and for cleaner air,
is more pressing than ever. Evidence from across the UK suggests that investing in
better public realm and managing traffic so that more people walk, cycle and use
public transport results in higher levels of footfall, reduced vacancy rates and improved
road safety31. There is also a large body of evidence that suggests that those who travel
to a local centre by bus, walking or cycling make more trips and spend more over the
course of a month than those who travel by car32.

How will it be delivered?
5.32 We will reallocate road space and give priority to walking, cycling and public transport
in the city centre, building and learning on experience from Palmerston Road and
Commercial Road as well as in local centres, such as London Road. In addition to
providing more space for walking, cycling and public transport, we will also provide
more social spaces by changing some parking spaces into community spaces (parklets)
and through investigating alternative uses for the Council owned car parks. During the
COVID-19 crisis, the need to provide the capacity for people to access key city and
local centres safely is crucial. This policy will be central to making best use of limited
capacity and keeping people safe. We understand that as an island city there is a
certain amount of essential traffic that cannot be removed or rerouted and this is
considered in Policy 15.

31
32

Living Streets 2018, The Pedestrian Pound: The Business Case for Better Streets and Places
TfL 2018, Walking and Cycling: The Economic Benefits

25

Page 101

Draft Local Transport Plan 4 2020-2036

Policy 10: Deliver innovations in micro-mobility to promote transport
choice and active transport options
Why this policy?
5.33 There is growing demand for micro-mobility, including e-scooters and shared bike
schemes. Although e-scooters are not yet legal to use on the public highway the
government is consulting on whether or not this should be the case and has recently
announced that they will encourage trials across the UK in response to the COVID-19
crisis. In practice people across the country are already taking to the streets on escooters. Micro-mobility provides an affordable, convenient, low-energy alternative to
the private car and can perform a particularly useful role in the first or last mile of a
journey, for example making it easier to get to a train station or bus stop from home
or, at the other end of a journey, to your final destination. As such we see these modes
playing an important role in enabling convenient and seamless travel across the city
without a car.

How will it be delivered?
5.34 We are investigating participating in a Government e-scooter trial scheme. We will
introduce a trial shared e-bike scheme in the city as part of the Future Transport Zone
programme and will ensure all of our infrastructure improvements make it safer for
those who may choose to use e-scooters or other forms of micro-mobility. Alongside
improved walking and cycling connections and greater priority for walking and cycling,
delivering micro-mobility is part of making best use of limited capacity during the
COVID-19 crisis.

26

Page 102

Draft Local Transport Plan 4 2020-2036

Transforming public transport
5.35 Our policies are designed to ensure that public transport in the city is attractive,
reliable and accessible to the whole community, whilst also being environmentally
sustainable. Public transport can move well over ten times as many people as cars in
the same amount of space, while creating much less pollution per person. With
significant growth in travel demand anticipated over the coming years it is essential
that a much larger proportion of trips are made by public transport. The immediate
impact of the COVID-19 crisis has been to dramatically reduce the capacity of public
transport to allow for social distancing. The remaining capacity should be used by
those unable to use other modes, particularly key workers. Over the lifetime of this
plan, as social distancing measures are relaxed, we anticipate that public transport will
remain a central component of delivering a more sustainable city.

Policy 11: Develop a rapid transit network that connects key locations
in the city with South East Hampshire, and facilitates future growth
Why this policy?
5.36 Developing new rapid transit connections, with new vehicles, improved stops, easy
ticketing, real time service information and dedicated routes, is critical to meeting
growing demand for travel into and across the city. The proposed network will connect
the city with over 40% of the new homes and 70% of the new jobs anticipated over the
lifetime of this plan. Moreover, new rapid transit connections will transform public
transport connectivity for existing communities, making it easier for everyone to access
their work, friends, families and leisure activities without the need for a car. Where
schemes with high levels of priority have been delivered in the UK they have often
resulted in large increases in public transport demand, while decreasing traffic volumes
along their routes. This can be seen in the nearby Eclipse Bus Rapid Transit between
Gosport and Fareham where there has been a 65% growth in patronage over seven
years, including 20% mode shift from car to rapid transit33.

33

Transforming Cities Fund SOBC

27

Page 103

Draft Local Transport Plan 4 2020-2036

How will it be delivered?
5.37 We will introduce the first stages of the South East Hampshire Rapid Transit network
that will connect the mainland with the city centre, as well as many of the city’s main
growth locations. This includes growth at Tipner and Horsea Island, which would be
linked by a new bridge. To make sure journey times are reliable we will reallocate road
space so that priority is given to rapid transit. Our modelling work suggest that
journeys times should be 20% quicker by rapid transit than existing services as a
result34. These physical changes will be supported by improved stops and interchanges
(Policy 13) and improved ticketing and digital integration across modes (Policy 14).

Policy 12: Prioritise local bus services over general traffic to make
journeys by public transport quicker and more reliable and support
Demand Responsive Transport services
Why this policy?
5.38 Bus use within Portsmouth is currently relatively low at 7.7%, with fewer people
travelling by bus than in nearby Southampton (9.6%) and Brighton (14.7%)35. Providing
an attractive local bus service is vital to encouraging more people to travel sustainably
in the city. Providing enhanced services, with greater reliability and quicker journey
times also puts more opportunities within reach of everyone. An enhanced public
transport network will make Portsmouth more inclusive, with national research
indicating that a 10% improvement in bus service connectivity reduces social
deprivation by nearly 4%36.

How will it be delivered?
5.39 Alongside our proposals for rapid transit we will also focus on working with bus
operators to improve local bus services, particularly focusing on less well served
connections east-west in the city. To help achieve this we will reallocate road space and
use dynamic bus priority at junctions to ensure that local buses have priority over
general traffic, better connecting our city by bus. These physical changes will be
supported by improved stops, interchanges, (Policy 13) ticketing and digital integration
across modes (Policy 14). We will also work with operators to trial Demand Responsive
Transport (DRT) as a way of making it easier for people to make more sustainable trips
by shared transport where local bus services are unlikely to be viable or as a ‘first / last
Transforming Cities Fund SOBC
Census 2011
36
KPMG 2016, A Study of the Value of Local Bus Services to Society
34
35

28

Page 104

Draft Local Transport Plan 4 2020-2036

mile’ trip that connects people to the proposed rapid transit network (Policy 11). We
will bring forward trials of DRT as part of our successful Future Transport Zones bid.

Policy 13: Deliver high quality transport interchanges, stations and
stops
Why this policy?
5.40 The ability to make seamless journeys across different modes of transport is essential if
people are to live car independent lives in Portsmouth. The ease of interchange and
quality of the environment at stations and stops is key to this. Moreover, if the network
is to be attractive to everyone then interchanges must be accessible to those with
more limited mobility, such as disabled travellers, those with buggies or carrying
luggage. These spaces must also feel safe, as well as offering places for people to sit.
The need to better cater for ‘first or last mile’ journeys, which are those trips made
getting to and from public transport services usually made by other modes, is also
essential if people are to have a seamless experience.

How will this policy be delivered?
5.41 As part of delivering rapid transit, stops and interchanges along its route will be
upgraded to include enhanced Real Time Information and well-lit waiting facilities with
places to sit, as well as introducing features such as cycle parking, cycle hire docks and
other shared transport features to improve ‘first / last mile’ connections. We will
enhance the public realm at key transport interchanges, such as train stations, to
improve their quality while ensuring that onwards travel by foot is easy through
providing convenient and direct crossings, safe routes and clear wayfinding. These
spaces must also be accessible to all, providing step-free access. Through our work
winning funding for Future Transport Zones, we will introduce Mobility Hubs at key
interchanges throughout the city as a way of delivering this seamless travel. Mobility
Hubs could bring together public transport services with shared transport such as car
club, cycle hire, taxi pick up and drop off, as well as information and other facilities
such as cafés, cycle repair shops and EV charge points. Shopping pick-up lockers could
also be included as part of a wider approach to micro consolidation (see Policy 16). The
improvements described above, particularly those around existing stops and stations,
will be crucial to our COVID-19 response as part of keeping people safe.

29

Page 105

Draft Local Transport Plan 4

Policy 14: Work with public transport operators to deliver integrated,
efficient and affordable services promoting local and regional
connectivity
Why this policy?
5.42 One of the consistent features of cities that have high levels of public transport use,
such as Brighton, Nottingham and London, is that they have integrated ticketing across
multiple transport operators and types. This makes travel by public transport simpler,
removing confusion around ticket or operator restrictions, as well as more affordable.
The Solent Go platform, developed through a partnership with local bus operators and
Solent Transport, has made it easier to travel by bus and ferry across the Solent region.
However, a significant number of very short trips are still made by car in the city and
may partly be because the cost of making these trips is perceived to be high by public
transport. A significant priority expressed by residents and other stakeholders during
the City Vision for Portsmouth Conference was greater integration of transport and
ticketing and simpler and cheaper fares37. The cost of public transport can be a
particular issue for younger people who can suffer from higher unemployment and
lower pay in work.

How will it be delivered?
5.43 We will work with operators to expand the Solent Go platform so that it is simpler than
ever to board services across multiple operators and modes, potentially including rail.
Through our work winning funding for Future Transport Zones we will seek to develop
this into a Mobility as a Service (MaaS) platform, with integration across modes that
caps fares for daily and weekly journeys, as is seen in London and elsewhere. We will
investigate using this more integrated ticketing platform to offer mobility credits to
those not using their cars as an incentive to try alternative modes. We will seek to
agree a simplified fare structure that should make short trips across the city cheaper by
public transport, as well as focusing on affordability for younger people.

37

Imagine Portsmouth March 2020, The city Vision for Portsmouth Conference Output

30

Page 106

Supporting business and protecting our assets
5.44 Our policies are designed to ensure that a well maintained and dynamic transport
network provides the opportunity for businesses and other organisations to flourish
and prosper, creating a healthy economy that delivers high quality jobs. With huge
technological changes on the horizon and a growing population, there is both the
need and the opportunity for businesses and the Council to do things differently,
reducing costs, reducing impacts and maximising opportunity. The medium to longterm impact of COVID-19 on Portsmouth’s economy is likely to be significant.
Therefore, the need to ensure our transport system makes it as easy as possible for
people to do business in the city is more pressing than ever.

Policy 15: Protect access to the Ports and Naval Base
Why this policy?
5.45 Portsmouth has been shaped by its relationship to the Ports and Naval Base and is
home to the Royal Navy and two-thirds of its surface fleet. The presence of Portsmouth
International Port makes the city a gateway to the world, with around a million tonnes
of goods entering and leaving the city every year, as well as 10.5 million passengers38.
The on-going success of the international port, alongside the Naval Base and the ports
at Portsmouth Harbour and Gunwharf, is core to the economy and to the livelihoods of
many residents. Additionally, Portsmouth is one of only three vehicle ferry routes to the
Isle of Wight (IoW). A significant proportion of the traffic generated by these
destinations cannot be transferred to other modes – families travelling in a car and,
freight crossing the Solent or Channel, and the movement of military equipment and
specialised vehicles. These vehicles should be able to access the port as efficiently as
possible.

How will it be delivered?
5.46 To ensure the success of the Ports and Naval Base the key connections from the
mainland through the city, particularly the M275, must operate efficiently. This will be
achieved through a range of measures. Wherever possible commuting trips to the
ports should be made by walking, cycling or public transport and this will be enabled
through the policies set out above and through development of bespoke behaviour
38

Portsmouth International Port Statistics Books 2019

31

Page 107

change measures for the port. Local trips should not be made on the M275 wherever
possible, this will be achieved by providing better alternatives for local trips,
introducing Intelligent Transport Systems to better manage demand, reducing access
to the M275 within the city and investigating a water taxi between Tipner and the port.
Targeted capacity improvements will be investigated where this can be done without
creating additional demand and adding to congestion on the surrounding network.

Policy 16: Support businesses and other organisations to consolidate
their operational journeys, including use of zero emission vehicles for
last mile deliveries
Why this policy?
5.47 In recent years, the growth in commercial traffic, particularly light vans, has been
greater than for any other type of vehicle39. The reasons for this are complicated but
changes in retail habits, technology, supply chain logistics and taxation for company
cars are all factors40. If we are to reduce the impact of traffic on our city than there
needs to be a reduction in commercial traffic, not just private cars. Our focus is on
reducing the impact of ‘last mile’ deliveries and servicing in sensitive areas, such as the
city centre, local and district centres and residential streets, bringing benefits to the
city, while allowing the operational needs of businesses to be met and deliveries of
personal items to be made with fewer, more efficient vehicles.

How will it be delivered?
5.48 Working with businesses we will seek to encourage the consolidation of deliveries from
multiple businesses onto fewer and more environmentally friendly vehicles, such as
zero emission vans and cargo bikes. This reduces the total number of vehicles required,
particularly larger more polluting vehicles, and can increase efficiency and reduce
costs. We will seek to do this through the planning system, by securing Delivery
Servicing Plans and land for consolidation (see Policy 17), as well as through our wider
behaviour change engagement work (see Policy 6). We have seen large scale changes
to delivery patterns during the COVID-19 crisis, including greater use of consolidation,
and this demonstrates the capacity of businesses to change. We will seek to build on
the lessons learnt through this, including the impacts of changing hours and
consolidation of deliveries on local congestion, air quality and residential amenity.

39
40

DfT Road Traffic Estimates: Great Britain 2018
Ibid

32

Page 108

Policy 17: Deliver micro and macro freight consolidation centres to
serve Portsmouth's businesses and residents
Why this policy?
5.49 One fully loaded HGV travelling in once with its goods then unloaded onto e-cargo
bikes for the ‘last mile’ deliveries, can replace multiple lightly loaded heavier vehicles
circulating in sensitive areas. To deliver these benefits there needs to be consolidation
capacity available in the right locations across the city.

How will it be delivered?
5.50 We will seek to trial consolidation facilities at a range of scales to support the ambition
of reducing congestion and pollution, as well as benefiting businesses by reducing the
costs of inefficient supply chains and lightly loaded vehicles. Out-of-city macro
consolidation centres located on key routes can reduce the total number of vehicles
entering the city by increasing vehicle loading and coordinating deliveries and
suppliers across clusters of businesses. Micro consolidation must be based close to
specific locations with high demand for deliveries, such as business parks, student halls
or, with the rise of online shopping, residential areas. Furthermore, Micro consolidation
can include lockers or other collection points, which could be located at Mobility Hubs,
where goods can be collected following a shopping trip to the city centre or after work
at the end of the journey home, thereby reducing the need to drive. We recognise that
many businesses have limited storage space and therefore the placing and
management of consolidation facilities should be capable of fulfilling ‘just in time’
deliveries.

Policy 18: Introduce a Lane Rental scheme to maximise co-ordination
of street works and roadworks, and review loading restrictions to
minimise impacts on traffic sensitive routes during peak periods
Why this policy?
5.51 Uncoordinated and drawn out road works have a significant impact on the operation
of the road network across the UK, causing unnecessary congestion and frustration for
all road users. Experience in London and Kent has been that a lane rental scheme,

33

Page 109

where those who wish to dig up the road must first secure a permit for their works, has
been highly effective at reducing congestion41.

How will it be delivered?
5.52 We will bring forward a lane rental scheme, alongside an operational permit scheme,
that will be applied to traffic sensitive routes during peak periods to reduce congestion
and improve journey time reliability. This will encourage improved planning and
coordination of street works by the utilities companies, without penalising their
infrastructure renewal programmes or hampering essential emergency works.
Additionally we expect it to incentivise more efficient working practices, further
reducing potential traffic congestion. Moreover, we will investigate measures such as
restrictions on loading times on major routes in to the city, to prevent congestion
caused by loading, and reduce the impacts on journey time for public transport.

Policy 19: Maintain our highway infrastructure
Why this policy?
5.53 For the last decade highway maintenance budgets have been under significant
pressure as the grant made available from government has been reduced and it is
unlikely that this will change in the near future. Nonetheless, if we are to get the most
out of the network, it needs to be well maintained, consequently we will adopt new
technologies and innovative ways of working to do more with less.

How will this it delivered?
5.54 We will continue to work collaboratively with our highway maintenance partner in the
development of robust maintenance regimes, inspection and testing procedures,
supported by an accredited asset management strategy. A better maintained highway
network is crucial to supporting more people to walk and cycle.

Policy 20: Proactively manage kerbside space to enable flexible use
for essential access
Why this policy?
1.1.1 Over the coming years we will dedicate more kerb side space to improve the public
realm making it easier to walk, cycle and take public transport. While this will transform

41

Transport Network (16 February 2018), DfT to roll out lane rental after trials show 'huge benefits'

34

Page 110

the quality of the public realm in the city it will result in more pressure on the
remaining kerb side space. Businesses must still be able to operate efficiently and
those with a need to park a car close to their destination must still be able to do so. To
achieve this we will adopt more dynamic management of kerbside space, particularly in
the city centre, local and district centres. This will bring together physical sensors
allowing real time monitoring of demand for parking and loading bays with modern
computing power and smartphones.

How will it be delivered?
5.55 We have already introduced smart sensors in around 4,000 parking bays across the
city, which is providing benefits to the people who use them and enables the Council
to better understand parking demand across the city. We will continue to roll out and
improve these systems so that drivers can identify available spaces more quickly
without circulating unnecessarily. We will build on this success to investigate systems
that allow the use of kerbs to change throughout the day as demand shifts and for
spaces to be bookable to encourage greater efficiency. This would also include the
ability for the use of kerb side space to adapt to short term changes in demand for
example special events, congestion or emergencies. More detail on this will be set out
in the Parking Strategy.

Achieving the vision
5.56 We have developed a set of key outcomes for our policies that we believe are essential
to delivering the vision of the plan. These outcomes focus on what we think success
looks like and will be used to monitor the effectiveness of the policies in the future.
5.57 The key outcomes, and how we think our strategic objectives will contribute towards
achieving them, are set out in Error! Reference source not found..

35

Page 111

Table 5-1: How our policies will achieve the key outcomes
Key Outcomes

Delivering Cleaner Air Prioritising Walking
and Cycling

Transforming Public Supporting Business
Transport
and Protecting our
Assets

Improved air quality
Reduced car ownership
Greater access to car club
Cleaner private vehicle fleet
Cleaner bus fleet
Reduced carbon footprint
Increased use of P&R
Increased cycling
Better quality places
Improved perception of walking
routes
Improved perception of cycle routes
Greater access to cycle routes
Increased walking and cycling to
school
Increased footfall in District and
Local centres
Reduced number of collisions
Reduced dominance of car and vans
in city streets
Improved access to opportunities
Reduced bus journey time
Reduced rail journey time
Improved perception of public
transport
Increased use of bus and rapid
transit
Increased use of rail
More businesses with active travel
plans
Reduced perception of congestion
Improved perception of highway
network
More freight consolidation
More reliable journeys along key
routes
More sustainable growth
More innovation
Indirect impact
Direct impact

36

Page 112

6.

Implementation Plan
Our delivery plan

6.1

We have developed proposals for indicative schemes that may be implemented to
deliver the objectives as seen in the following diagram.

37

Page 113

Draft Local Transport Plan 4

Page 114
1

Draft Local Transport Plan 4

Making it happen
6.2

We recognise that this plan is ambitious and if we are to deliver it we will need to
draw-in funds beyond current available budgets. Delivering the plan will therefore
involve securing funding from central government as well as bringing in funding from
other sources. This may include financial and infrastructure contributions from any
development that this transport plan will help to unlock and deliver mechanisms that
enable the Council to capture some of the uplift in land value resulting from new
transport improvements, and reinvesting revenue from innovative measures that could
be considered by the Council.

6.3

We know that we cannot deliver this plan on our own and therefore we will continue to
work closely with our neighbours and partners across the Solent region. Our winning
funding bids to the government for the Future Transport Zones and Tranche 1 of the
Transforming Cities Fund have demonstrated a solid track record of strong partnership
working. We will build on this and engage with a wide range of partners, including
Solent Transport, Hampshire County Council, the South Hampshire Bus Operators
Association and Transport for the South East. As well as needing to work together to
secure funding, many of our interventions will need to be delivered in partnership with
our neighbours and other organisations, as we have set out above in Error! Reference
source not found..

6.4

The proposed transport interventions are at different stages of development, with
some, such as the Clean Air Zone and South East Hampshire Rapid Transit, being well
developed – with others earlier in the design process. If our proposals are to deliver
transformative change, then we will need to involve a wide range of local stakeholders
in their design and development. As these proposals are developed we intend to work
openly and collaboratively with local communities, businesses, key stakeholders and
interest groups to ensure we collaborate in delivering a shared vision, and more
sustainable transport outcomes, for our city.

1

Page 115

This page is intentionally left blank

Draft Local Transport Plan 2020-2036
Potential schemes

1

By 2036 Portsmouth will
have a people centred
travel network that
prioritises walking, cycling
and public transport to
help deliver a safer,
healthier and more
prosperous city.

Mobility as a
service platform
and mobility
credits

Mobility as a
service
Improved transport
platform and
interchanges
mobility
credits Prioritise access to local district
and city centres

Page 117

Artificial Intelligence and
Proactive Network Management

Transport Recovery
Plan
Portsmouth &
Southsea
station cycle
hub

Access to Ports
Encouraging
behaviour change

Transport
Recovery Plan

for road works

This page is intentionally left blank

Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA)
Integrated impact assessment (IIA) form December 2019

www.portsmouth.gov.uk
The integrated impact assessment is a quick and easy screening process. It should:
identify those policies, projects, services, functions or strategies that could impact positively or
negatively on the following areas:
Communities and safety
Regeneration and culture

Environment and public space
Equality & - DiversityThis can be found in Section A5

Directorate:

Regeneration

Service, function:

Transport Planning

Title of policy, service, function, project or strategy (new or old) :
Local Transport Plan (LTP4)

Type of policy, service, function, project or strategy:
Existing

★

New / proposed
Changed

What is the aim of your policy, service, function, project or strategy?
As the Local Transport Authority, the council has a statutory duty under the Transport Act 2000, as
amended by the Local Transport Act 2008, to produce an LTP for the Portsmouth administrative area.
The council makes the decision on the time period
covered
Page
119by the Plan and when it is refreshed.
However, it is felt appropriate that the plan is prepared alongside the Portsmouth Local Plan covering

the period to 2036.
LTP4 consists of two parts, the overall strategy and the implementation plan. The implementation plan
and prioritisation process will be updated to align with the new strategy. LTP 4 will sit alongside the
TfSH joint sub regional strategy but it provides the local context, strategy and priorities for Portsmouth.
Has any consultation been undertaken for this proposal? What were the outcomes of the consultations? Has
anything changed because of the consultation? Did this inform your proposal?
Whilst no consultation has been carried out to date, stakeholder workshops were undertaken in March 2020 for transport operators
and interest groups. An LTP Working Group was established with internal colleagues from different departments within the
Council, in order to give weekly feedback on proposed policies in the LTP. Feedback from these workshops and the working group
has been used to shape the LTP prior to the consultation which is due to be undertaken in autumn 2020.

A - Communities and safety

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
A1-Crime - Will it make our city safer?

★

In thinking about this question:
•
•
•
•

How will it reduce crime, disorder, ASB and the fear of crime?
How will it prevent the misuse of drugs, alcohol and other substances?
How will it protect and support young people at risk of harm?
How will it discourage re-offending?

If you want more information contact Lisa.Wills@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cou-spp-plan-2018-20.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?

How will you measure/check the impact of your proposal?

A - Communities and safety

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
A2-Housing - Will it provide good quality homes?
In thinking about this question:
•
•
•
•

How will it increase good quality affordable housing, including social housing?
How will it reduce the number of poor quality homes and accommodation?
How will it produce well-insulated and sustainable buildings?
How will it provide a mix of housing for different groups and needs?

Page 120

★

If you want more information contact Daniel.Young@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/psh-providing-affordable-housing-in-portsmouth-april-19.
pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

A - Communities and safety

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
A3-Health - Will this help promote healthy, safe and independent living?

★

In thinking about this question:
•
•
•
•

How will it improve physical and mental health?
How will it improve quality of life?
How will it encourage healthy lifestyle choices?
How will it create healthy places? (Including workplaces)

If you want more information contact Dominique.Letouze@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cons-114.86-health-and-wellbeing-strategy-proof-2.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?

A key focus of the Local Transport Plan will be to reduce private car dependency. Encouraging modal shift to more sustainable
options, including active travel, which in turn will have a positive impact on the health of Portsmouth residents. Reducing car
dependency will also improve air quality through reduced trips inside the Portsmouth boundary.

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?
The LTP is a strategic document that sets the tone for transport policy until 2036. Policies will be measured
against their fit into the strategic priorities as set out in this document and will therefore individually serve as a
measure of the LTPs ongoing impact.

A - Communities and safety

Yes

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
A4-Income deprivation and poverty-Will it consider income
deprivation and reduce poverty?

Page 121

★

No

In thinking about this question:
• How will it support those vulnerable to falling into poverty; e.g., single working age adults and lone parent
households?
• How will it consider low-income communities, households and individuals?
• How will it support those unable to work?
• How will it support those with no educational qualifications?
If you want more information contact Mark.Sage@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cou-homelessness-strategy-2018-to-2023.pdf
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/health-and-care/health/joint-strategic-needs-assessment

Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?
The strategy will promote more affordable travel options.

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?
Public transport usage numbers will be regularly monitored to understand if affordability measures are increasing
patronage.

A - Communities and safety

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
A5-Equality & diversity - Will it have any positive/negative impacts on
the protected characteristics?

★

In thinking about this question:
• How will it impact on the protected characteristics-Positive or negative impact (Protected characteristics
under the Equality Act 2010, Age, disability, race/ethnicity, Sexual orientation, gender reassignment, sex,
religion or belief, pregnancy and maternity, marriage and civil partnership,socio-economic)
• What mitigation has been put in place to lessen any impacts or barriers removed?
• How will it help promote equality for a specific protected characteristic?
If you want more information contact gina.perryman@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cmu-equality-strategy-2019-22-final.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?
The LTP will be subject to stakeholder engagement and public consultation in order to address its impact on protected
characteristics and to integrate the perspectives of these groups. Schemes that come from the LTP will be subject to their own
individual EIAs to ensure that impacts to protected characteristics are fully understood and mitigated. At the present time Members
are looking at accessibility through a scrutiny panel and this work will be incorporated into the LTP.

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?
Stakeholder engagement through forums such as the Portsmouth disability forum.

Page 122

B - Environment and climate change

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
B1-Carbon emissions - Will it reduce carbon emissions?

★

In thinking about this question:
•
•
•
•

How will it reduce greenhouse gas emissions?
How will it provide renewable sources of energy?
How will it reduce the need for motorised vehicle travel?
How will it encourage and support residents to reduce carbon emissions?

If you want more information contact Tristan.thorn@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cmu-sustainability-strategy.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?
The LTP will focus on reducing private car dependency through improvements to, and the promotion of alternative transport modes
such as walking, cycling and public transport, therefore reducing carbon emissions within the city.

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?
The LTP is a strategic document that sets the tone for transport policy until 2036. Policies will be measured against their fit into the
strategic priorities as set out in this document and will therefore individually serve as a measure of the LTPs ongoing impact.

B - Environment and climate change

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
B2-Energy use - Will it reduce energy use?

★

In thinking about this question:
•
•
•
•

How will it reduce water consumption?
How will it reduce electricity consumption?
How will it reduce gas consumption?
How will it reduce the production of waste?

If you want more information contact Triston.thorn@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/pln-portsmouth-plan-post-adoption.pdf
https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/documents/s24685/Home%20Energy%20Appendix%201%20-%20Energy%
20and%20water%20at%20home%20-%20Strategy%202019-25.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

Page 123

B - Environment and climate change

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
B3 - Climate change mitigation and flooding-Will it proactively
mitigate against a changing climate and flooding?

★

In thinking about this question:
•
•
•
•

How will it minimise flood risk from both coastal and surface flooding in the future?
How will it protect properties and buildings from flooding?
How will it make local people aware of the risk from flooding?
How will it mitigate for future changes in temperature and extreme weather events?

If you want more information contact Tristan.thorn@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/env-surface-water-management-plan-2019.pdf
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cou-flood-risk-management-plan.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?
The LTP's focus on reducing car dependency will help to pro actively mitigate future changes in temperature through reduction of
green house gases. The LTP will also support and promote sustainable modes of travel.

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?
The LTP is a strategic document that sets the tone for transport policy until 2036. Policies will be measured
against their fit into the strategic priorities as set out in this document and will therefore individually serve as a
measure of the LTPs ongoing impact.

B - Environment and climate change

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
B4-Natural environment-Will it ensure public spaces are greener, more
sustainable and well-maintained?

★

In thinking about this question:
• How will it encourage biodiversity and protect habitats?
• How will it preserve natural sites?
• How will it conserve and enhance natural species?
If you want more information contact Daniel.Young@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/pln-solent-recreation-mitigation-strategy-dec-17.pdf
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/pln-portsmouth-plan-post-adoption.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?
The strategy will make places more attractive.

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

Page 124

B - Environment and climate change

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
B5-Air quality - Will it improve air quality?

★

In thinking about this question:
•
•
•
•

How will it reduce motor vehicle traffic congestion?
How will it reduce emissions of key pollutants?
How will it discourage the idling of motor vehicles?
How will it reduce reliance on private car use?

If you want more information contact Hayley.Trower@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/env-aq-air-quality-plan-outline-business-case.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?
The LTP will focus on reducing dependence on the private car, and encouraging modal shift in Portsmouth, which will in turn
improve air quality through a reduction in vehicle emissions. Measures to support and encourage active and sustainable travel
modes will support reductions in local air pollution.

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?
Whilst difficult to specifically measure, levels of air quality in the city are recorded and assessed, giving an
indication of overall improvements to the levels of air pollution.

B - Environment and climate change

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
B6-Transport - Will it improve road safety and transport for the
whole community?

★

In thinking about this question:
•
•
•
•

How will it prioritise pedestrians, cyclists and public transport users over users of private vehicles?
How will it allocate street space to ensure children and older people can walk and cycle safely in the area?
How will it increase the proportion of journeys made using sustainable and active transport?
How will it reduce the risk of traffic collisions, and near misses, with pedestrians and cyclists?

If you want more information contact Pam.Turton@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/travel/local-transport-plan-3
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?
The LTP will set out the strategic priority for transport schemes to prioritise sustainable and active modes of travel such as walking,
cycling and public transport use. Measures to improve and support such modes of travel will be included in the plan.

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?
The LTP is a strategic document that sets the tone for transport policy until 2036. Policies will be measured against their fit into the
strategic priorities as set out in this document and will therefore individually serve as a measure of the LTPs ongoing impact.

Page 125

B - Environment and climate change

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
B7-Waste management - Will it increase recycling and reduce
the production of waste?

★

In thinking about this question:
• How will it reduce household waste and consumption?
• How will it increase recycling?
• How will it reduce industrial and construction waste?
If you want more information contact Steven.Russell@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

Page 126

C - Regeneration of our city

Yes

No

★

★

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
C1-Culture and heritage - Will it promote, protect and
enhance our culture and heritage?
In thinking about this question:
•
•
•
•

How will it protect areas of cultural value?
How will it protect listed buildings?
How will it encourage events and attractions?
How will it make Portsmouth a city people want to live in?

If you want more information contact Claire.Looney@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/pln-portsmouth-plan-post-adoption.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?
Through the LTP's focus on reducing private vehicle dependency and prioritising public transport and active travel, accessibility for
events and attractions will be improved for visitors utilising these modes of transport.
The reduction of congestion and subsequent pollution will make Portsmouth a safer and more appealing place for residents to live
and work, and for people to visit.

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?
Through engagement with culture and leisure, public transport operators and monitoring such as Park & Ride
usage internally.

C - Regeneration of our city

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
C2-Employment and opportunities - Will it promote the
development of a skilled workforce?

★

In thinking about this question:
•
•
•
•

How will it improve qualifications and skills for local people?
How will it reduce unemployment?
How will it create high quality jobs?
How will it improve earnings?

If you want more information contact Mark.Pembleton@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cou-regeneration-strategy.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

Page 127

C - Regeneration of our city

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
C3 - Economy - Will it encourage businesses to invest in the city,
support sustainable growth and regeneration?

★

In thinking about this question:
•
•
•
•

How will it encourage the development of key industries?
How will it improve the local economy?
How will it create valuable employment opportunities for local people?
How will it promote employment and growth in the city?

If you want more information contact Mark.Pembleton@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cou-regeneration-strategy.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?
Traffic congestion is barrier to growth in the region, reducing this through modal shift will encourage development in the city.
Improving connectivity and active and public transport access will enable lower income and isolated residents to access the wider
employment market.

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?
Engagement with businesses and public transport operators to monitor issues and usage. Modal use monitoring as appropriate.

Q8 - Who was involved in the Integrated impact assessment?
Daniel Hughes, Hayley Chivers

This IIA has been approved by:
Contact number:
Date:

Page 128

Agenda Item 10

Title of meeting:

Cabinet

Date of meeting:

14 July 2020

Subject:

Supporting rough sleepers and the hidden homeless: options
for the way forward
James Hill (Director of Housing Neighbourhoods and Building
Services)

Report by:

Wards affected:

All

Key decision:

No

Full Council decision:

No

1. Purpose of report
1.1. The Cabinet Member for Housing requested officers to provide Cabinet with a report
outlining the support in place for rough sleepers and street homeless prior to the
COVID-19 emergency, the response in light of the COVID-19 emergency and the
work underway to continue to support those individuals supported and the direction
of travel for the longer term.
1.2. The report provides cabinet with an outline of
1.2.1. The support in place prior to and during the COVID-19 crisis
1.2.2. The interim plan
1.2.3. The long term plan
2. Recommendations
2.1. That Cabinet note the provision in place prior to the COVID-19 crisis
2.2. That Cabinet commend the remarkable efforts of the local authority and partners to
meet the call from government to provide safe and secure accommodation for rough
sleepers and thank the wide range of public services, the voluntary sector, the local
communities, members, officers and the Accor Hotel group & the local hotel
management team in continuing to support the emergency provision in place
2.3. That Cabinet note the learning to be used to underpin the solutions moving forward
2.4. That Cabinet note the emergent MHCLG funding announcements for the interim and
long term plan and the work with the MHCLG to co-produce the interim and longterm plan.

1

Page 129
www.portsmouth.gov.uk

2.5. That Cabinet approve the interim plan subject to funding being made available, to
last up to 12 months from the end of August 2020 and which includes these
elements:
2.5.1. Use Private Rented Accommodation and purchased/sub-leased property at
Local Housing Allowance rents for those who need only financial support
2.5.2. Use HMOs through the HMO housing organisation for suitable for a private
rental tenancy provided floating support is available.
2.5.3. Use a hotel or accommodation block for those who need intensive onsite
support that can best be provided in such a setting alongside security.
2.5.4. Use no more than 18 spaces between Kingston Point and Hope House as the
final accommodation option for those not in the above categories. This will be
accompanied by intensive support, boundaries and ways to deal with antisocial
behaviour.
2.6. That Cabinet note the resourcing commitment to implement the interim plan and
endorse that the Assistant Director of Housing is asked temporarily to focus on the
delivery of the plans, alongside the cross-party and multi-agency Portsmouth City
Rough Sleeping Partnership Group ("The Partnership Group") to implement the
plans.
2.7. Cabinet recognises that the potential cost of the interim plan is circa. £2.5m and that
the Council are working with MHCLG to prepare a bid to the national fund made
available for this purpose amounting to £105m, in the event that there remains a
shortfall between estimated costs and funding identified, a further report will be
prepared for Cabinet to consider prior to entering into any additional financial
commitment .
2.8. Cabinet therefore delegates authority to the Assistant Director of Housing, working
with the S151 Officer, to submit a bid for the funding to support emergency, interim
and long-term accommodation through the mechanism identified in the letter from
MHCLG on 24th June 2020 (Appendix 3).
2.9. That Cabinet agrees the following as principles for the long-term plan:
2.9.1. All those in the interim accommodation to be supported to find move on
accommodation and given the opportunity not to return to rough sleeping.
2.9.2. Accommodation first, not accommodation only approach, with support levels
tailored to individuals.
2.9.3. Developing the accommodation and support model to provide learning and
work opportunities.
2.9.4. A range of accommodation and support ideally located in Portsmouth, based
on Government's desire to build, buy and rent homes.
2.9.5. A financially sustainable model.
2.9.6. An approach that provides accommodation and support into sustainable
housing but also supports the prevention of homelessness and those who
remain on the streets.
2.9.7. Evidenced based using all the learning and data available to create solutions.
2

Page 130
www.portsmouth.gov.uk

2.10. That Cabinet agrees to ask Government to help it overcome key barriers that may
impact on the long term plan, including:
2.10.1.
Automatically paying Universal Credit to landlords taking part
2.10.2.
Making sure payments cover the full cost of rent or Local Housing
Allowance, whichever is higher
2.10.3.
Suspend the rule that means under-35s claim at a single room rate
2.10.4.
Work with the City Council to devise plans to help future rough sleepers
and to prevent homelessness
2.10.5.
Assist in helping the city house those on the waiting list and the
homeless the City Council has statutory duties towards.
2.11. That Cabinet request the Portsmouth City Rough Sleeping Partnership Group to
develop the long term plan, based on these principles, as outlined in the report.
2.12. This Cabinet approves that this report forms the basis of the jointly produced plan
with MHCLG for exiting the current approach both in the interim and long-term.
3. Background - Statutory Responsibilities
3.1. The Housing Act 1996 and Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 gives the City Council
statutory responsibilities for homelessness. These involve advice and assistance to
almost all households who are homeless, or threatened with homelessness, but to
offer accommodation only if set criteria are met.
3.2. If a homeless person has no entitlement to public funds, does not meet the priority
criteria for need or is deemed to have intentionally caused their homelessness the
City Council has no ongoing duty to provide accommodation.
3.3. People that sleep rough in the city and/or access homelessness services typically
do not meet one or more of these statutory criteria. As a result the City Council has
no statutory duty to house this group and are referred to as Non-Priority Homeless
(NPH).
3.4. The City Council's statutory responsibilities are set out in its Homelessness Strategy
2018 - 2020. The City Council's policy in how it allocates housing to those in housing
need is contained in the Portsmouth Allocation Scheme - Affordable Homes For
Local People.
3.5. As at 29th June 2020 there are 150 households in temporary accommodation waiting
for suitable social/affordable housing to become available and 2,233 on the housing
register in varying degree of priority housing need. The COVID-19 crisis has
impacted on the supply of social/affordable housing and the normal functioning of
the wider housing system. It is likely that the numbers in housing need, to whom the
City Council owes a housing duty, will rise as a result of the crisis.

3

Page 131
www.portsmouth.gov.uk

3.6. Although the statutory requirement to provide accommodation are limited,
successive administrations have sought to provide support to those rough sleeping
and street homeless. Moving from the initial 'winter shelter' provision to one that now
extends the provision all year round. This is now known as the Night Bed Service.
3.7. The Government also had a commitment to "end the blight of rough sleeping by the
end of the next Parliament" (May 2024). The City Council also has tackling
homelessness and its causes among its 2019 Corporate Priorities.
3.8. The current approach and detail is contained in the Rough Sleeping & Street
Homelessness Strategy (2018-2020).
3.9. A cross member party and multi-agency Partnership Group which is independently
chaired has oversight of the strategy and the implementation of the strategy
3.10. The homelessness work (statutory and non-statutory) also reports to the Health
and Wellbeing Board.
4. The support in place prior to the COVID-19 Crisis for NPH
4.1. Portsmouth has had an all year round Night Bed Service for NPH since Dec 2017.
This provides emergency shelter, and an opportunity for engagement with support
for homeless individuals who would otherwise be rough sleeping. This service has
developed since it began in response to demand and learning. Starting at 45 beds,
by March 2020 it had increased to 57 beds split across Hope House, Milton Road
and Kingston Point, Kingston Road. Two Saints and the Society of St James are
commissioned providers for the services.
4.2. It also runs a Day Service, based at Yew House, Milton Road. This service
complements the Night Bed Service by providing advice and support around housing
needs during the daytime, in addition to practical support in terms of breakfast,
showers, laundry facilities, lockers and IT access. The service was open between
8am and 4pm. However, opening hours were increased in late 2019 to 8am to 8pm,
along with a 'Homeless Healthcare' pilot that enabled on-site healthcare. This has
seen fewer ambulances attend the Day Service, reducing the need for hospital visits.
4.3. The funding for the services uses a mixture of funding sources. The City Council
provides some general fund funding, Rough Sleeping Initiative grant funding from
the Ministry of Housing Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) and housing
benefit entitlements linked to the accommodation. The nature of the funding remains
short term with a dependency on grants which typically do not have certainty beyond
each financial year.
4.4. A key issue for The Partnership Group as part of the implementation of the Rough
Sleeping & Street Homelessness Strategy (2018-2020) was the exploration of an
accommodation and support model with a longer term sustainable funding model.

4

Page 132
www.portsmouth.gov.uk

4.5. The provision in place has been underpinned with strong data collection to help
understand the problems and to inform the solutions. The Partnership Group have
access to a suit of measures which over time have created an understanding of the
level of need.
4.6. Over the 27 months between the service starting and the start of the COVID-19
crisis, 766 separate individuals used the service (plus 15 who booked a bed but did
not arrive) with an average of six new users a week. This is a key piece of learning
that helps understand why the level of demand has been felt for the accommodation
offered during the COVID-19 crisis.
4.7. It should be noted that these arrangements are further complimented by support
offered via the voluntary and community sector, for example in the provision of food,
additional shelter during the winter periods and outreach support.
5. The support currently place during the COVID-19 crisis for NPH
5.1. Prior to the lockdown measures, officers from Housing and Public Health had been
discussing what impact COVID-19 would have for those in a shelter hostel setting
with shared facilities. The initial focus was on ensuring that the provision remained
open as a critical and essential service. Accommodation was identified that could
provide a means of self-isolating but it became apparent that additional
accommodation would be required.
5.2. On 26th March 2020 the Prime Minister's Homelessness Advisor, Dame Louise
Casey, issued an email called 'Everyone in' in which she mentioned how authorities
were working with rough sleepers "to ensure that everybody is inside and safe".
Government guidance tasked the City Council with providing all NPH with a place
they could self-isolate in if required.
5.3. City Council officers stepped up their work to find suitable accommodation that would
hold the 57 night bed users, plus the estimated 20-30 homeless sleeping on the
streets and with capacity for additional demand.
5.4. At the end of March 2020 many accommodation providers were closing down
operations, but after an initial deal with a hotel fell through, officers contacted Accor
(owners of Ibis hotels). Both parties agreed to use Ibis Budget Fratton Way on 1st
April 2020.
5.5. The facility was supported from the beginning by security contractors and the support
providers (SSJ and Two Saints) from the merged day and night services.
5.6. People entered the hotel from 2nd April 2020. All entrants then and since received
temperature checks and Government guidance, especially about hand washing and
social distancing.

5

Page 133
www.portsmouth.gov.uk

5.7. As a result of continual growth in the number of people from Portsmouth who
approached the City Council needing the service, Accor and the City Council agreed
to use the Ibis Portsmouth on Winston Churchill Avenue in late April 2020.
5.8. A Temporary Hotel Management Group (THMG) was formed to oversee the
emergency provision with links to the City Council's business continuity gold
command structure. THMG and operational sub-groups included the Police, hotel
security and Accor. The arrangement enabled a quick and agile response to the
standing up of the provision and ongoing management of the provision.
5.9. The Partnership Group remain sighted on the work through updates and the chair of
the partnership group in a member of THMG.
5.10. During lockdown, when shops were difficult to access and food outlets were
closed, food was provided daily for all users, thanks to the Council, HIVE Portsmouth
and many volunteers. Where users generally have higher support needs, they
receive three meals a day to enable them to stay within the hotel as much as
possible. Where users are more able to manage independently, residents receive
breakfast and an evening hot meal every day.
5.11. Funding has come from the Government's COVID-19 non-ring fenced
government support grant.
6. Learning for the provision of support before & during the COVID-19 crisis
6.1. The Partnership Group had gained a lot of insight in overseeing the Night and Day
services. The response to the COVID-19 crisis and the movement at speed to a selfcontained accommodation model has created a unique opportunity to learn from the
experience in managing the accommodation and in the opportunity to engage with
those accessing the accommodation through the housing assessments.
6.2. Appendix 1 outlines the learning points and will be used in the interim and longer
term plans.
6.3. As of 1st July 2020, approximately 214 individuals have been supported in the two
Ibis Hotels and the property offered by a service provider.
6.4. Since 26th March 2020 an average of 16 new NPH individuals require
accommodation, with an average of six per week moved to other mostly longer term
accommodation arrangements (i,e. private sector housing).
6.5. This growth is in line with the picture previously seen in the Day and Night service
and shows that people become homeless for a variety of reasons and may dip in
and out of homelessness.
6.6. Everyone who presents as homeless is assessed by the City Council's Housing
Needs, Advice and Support team and will complete a homelessness application.
The information collected during the homelessness application process and
6

Page 134
www.portsmouth.gov.uk

feedback from support staff in the hotels enables the correct support. That
assessment is also vital in helping to inform the plans to support individuals going
forward.
6.7. The results of the assessments provide a core set of data which should shape the
internal and longer term plans. It enables the solution to be linked directly to the need
of individuals.
6.8. The housing assessments and health assessments is gaining information that can
be used to help find the type of accommodation and support required to meet the
need. The data has shown that:





25%
28%
39%
8%



In addition 14 people have no recourse to public funds.

will require supported housing with intensive support
will require supported housing or PRS with floating support
can access the PRS with start-up financial support (e.g. rent deposits)
have indicated they want to re-unite with family or friends

6.9. Any learning going forward will need to consider the experience of the residents
around the Ibis in Fratton. As has been reported in local media, local residents made
complaints about the behaviour of some of the individuals using the hotel provision.
The City Council issued a press release in response (Appendix 2).
6.10. All complaints were investigated by the council and action taken against users of
the hotel where appropriate. The use of 24/7 security and support providers on site
were all aimed to minimise the impact of facility, especially as everyone was
becoming used to how it needed to function. In addition the City Council worked
closely with the Police so that when incidents did occur they were investigated
properly.
7. MHCLG Support and Funding
7.1. On 2nd May 2020, the MHCLG announced that a specialist taskforce has been
created to lead the next phase of the government’s support for rough sleepers during
the pandemic. Spearheaded by Dame Louise Casey, the taskforce will work closely
with councils in England on plans to ensure rough sleepers can move into long-term,
safe accommodation once the immediate crisis is over, ensuring as few people as
possible return to life on the streets. It aims to ensure that thousands of rough
sleepers in emergency accommodation continue to receive the physical and mental
health support they need they continue to self-isolate from the virus.
7.2. On 24th May 2020, the MHCLG announced a £433m programme to provide 6,000
new homes with support for rough sleepers, with 3,300 of those homes in the first
year. Charities would receive a further £6m, with £700,000 earmarked for care
leavers at risk of homelessness.

7

Page 135
www.portsmouth.gov.uk

7.3. On the 24th June 2020, the MHCLG provided detail (Appendix 3) on the funding
package to be made available to support the ongoing interim arrangements and the
longer term plans for rough sleepers.
7.4. MHCLG's Rough Sleeping and Homelessness Advisers have been working with the
City Council to help support and shape local plans. This includes how previously
provided funding, such as the Rough Sleeping Initiative, can be repurposed now that
the challenges have fundamentally changed.
7.5. Officers will continue to work with the MHLCG on all aspects of the work and any
bids related to the interim as the detail of the funding availability emerges.
8. Moving Beyond the initial emergency COVID-19 crisis response
8.1. The hotels were an immediate response to the COVID-19 situation and the
requirement to bring 'everybody in'. Between the start of April and mid-June officers
have focussed on setting up the arrangement, dealing with the growth in numbers,
and ensuring that the arrangement was contractually secure for the emergency
period. The opportunity has also been taken to gain information about individuals,
their circumstances and where they could move on.
8.2. What has become apparent is that this solution was only suitable for a short period
of time. The reasons for this are:
8.2.1. Cost - The costs for this emergency accommodation have been borne by the
City Council's hardship fund, which was been provided by the government. This
fund is limited and needs to be used efficiently and effectively.
8.2.2. Hotels coming back to operation - The providers of the hotels, Accor, are a
commercial organisation who have seen a large number of their hotels in the UK
and beyond closed due to the COVID-19 crisis. Whilst the temporary use of
them in Portsmouth has been on a commercial basis, they have confirmed their
desire for the service to exit the hotels by the end of August 2020.
8.2.3. Sustainable arrangements - whilst the initial response was remarkable given
the speed with which Portsmouth was required to respond the current
accommodation has limitations and creates operational issues. The IBIS Fratton
hotel provided an immediate response to the COVID-19 crisis but has limited
space internally and externally beyond the self-contained bedrooms and the
behaviours of some individuals has created negative feedback from residents
living near the hotel. The interim and longer term plans will have the benefit of
using all the learning as outlined in Section 6 of this report.
8.3. The City Council's Public Health team says NPH can be accommodated in a place
where they have their own bedroom but access shared bathrooms and other
facilities, provided the local outbreak plan identifies suitable isolation facilities in the
event of a positive test for COVID-19. In addition, MHCLG in a letter dated 3 July
said "all communal night shelters should remain closed at the present time."
8

Page 136
www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Therefore, until lockdown has formally ended it would not be acceptable to provide
NPH with shared bedrooms, and this is a model the City Council may wish to move
away from regardless of an end to lockdown.
8.4. It is also clear that there are options which are impractical, these include
8.4.1. Exit from the hotel provision and return to the Day and Night Services
8.4.1.1. Consideration has been given to the emergency accommodation being
ended and the service returning to the previous provision of 57 night beds
at Kingston House and Hope House and the day service at Yew House.
This solution would result in no new costs on the council surrounding the
accommodation of this cohort. However this option would not provide a
solution to the 92% of the hotel users (195 people) that, through
assessment, have stated that they do not have accommodation to return to.
The accommodation is also limited as it functioned preCOVID-19 with
shared sleeping spaces. It is therefore not a practical option to exit from the
hotels.
8.4.2. Exit from the hotel provision to a long term solution
8.4.2.1. Consideration has been given to the possibility of leaving the
emergency accommodation and moving directly into a new, long-term
model of accommodation and support. At this stage this is not practical for
the following reasons:
8.4.2.1.1.
Multi-agency involvement in the long term plan- It is proposed
that The Partnership Group, supported by City Council officers,
consider the complex problem of non-priority homelessness in the city,
explore funding options and develop some principles upon which a
long term plan can be based.
8.4.2.1.2.
Support contracts - is significant flexibility within the Public
Contracts Regulations (2015) to considerably vary the scope of
existing contracts or enter into new arrangements via non-advertised
negotiation where a true unforeseeable emergency arises on a short
term basis. However, any new agreements, or changes to existing
arrangements that constitute a material change in scope that cannot
be linked to pre-existing options, or in the absence of such options
increase the lifetime value of the contract by more than 10% of the
overall lifetime value of the contract, the length of the contract
commitment for the new arrangement / variation must be time limited
to either cover the time it is needed for in the case of a short term
requirement or in the case of a medium / long term requirement the
time in which a compliant procurement process can be effectively
undertaken, effectively limiting the duration to no more than 1 year.
8.4.2.1.3.
At this stage whilst the MHCLG have announced longer term
funding availability the detail is yet to be released. How any longer term
plan is funded and can be made sustainable remains uncertain.
9

Page 137
www.portsmouth.gov.uk

8.4.2.1.4.

Time to find ideal locations and suitable accommodation.

8.5. It is clear that arrangements will need to be considered that continue to meet the
holding position of 'everybody in' with an interim plan to continue to do so in a
sustainable way whilst also working on a longer term plan. Both have
interdependencies and overlaps.
9. Proposed Interim Plan
9.1. An interim plan which enables the service to move into a more sustainable solution
whilst the permanent solution is planned, commissioned and delivered is required.
Learning gained from the emergency accommodation has been used to shape what
this interim solution should look like. It is proposed that the plan is:
9.1.1. Available from August (or as soon as possible afterwards), noting that different
elements of the proposal will move at different timescales. Where it is possible
to enable individuals to move into alternative accommodation that work is
happening and will continue.
9.1.2. Financially sustainable - using MHCLG funding and council funding
9.1.3. Suitably located to maximise access to services.
9.1.4. Can facilitate the required support. It is vital that the support services can work
with residents in the interim setting
9.1.5. Have the right amount of multi-agency support to help people to move on
9.1.6. Provide approximately 220 places. Although the approaches during the
COVID-19 emergency continues to grow, it is unrealistic for the council to
continue to grow this provision at that rate indefinitely. Therefore all efforts will
focus on finding accommodation for the 220 people currently accommodated in
the hotels.
9.1.7. Provide furnished individual rooms with bathrooms to ensure self-isolation in
the event of an outbreak alongside communal space
9.1.8. Food dependent upon setting. Food will not be provided to those in HMOs
where individuals have the facilities to manage their own food. Food may be
provided in other settings if the logistics make it possible, and in a way which
does not create a financial strain upon the City Council.
9.2. The interim plan includes the following solutions:
9.2.1. Use of Private Rented Accommodation. This is both a short-and long-term
solution that can start quickly. As identified, approx. 82 people have been
assessed as suitable for moving into the Private Rented Sector (PRS) with
financial support. At current rates, no growth in numbers and a positive rental
market within the city, this will take approximately 9 months to achieve. Whilst
waiting for a permanent move on into the PRS, it is proposed that individuals are
housed in one of the other interim options identified in sections 9.2.3 - 9.2.5 of
this report.
9.2.1.1. The City Council is already taking steps to help the private rented
sector. A pilot package of measures to help people into PRS was approved
10

Page 138
www.portsmouth.gov.uk

in February 2020. 25 flats have been let to homeless since January 2020
using temporary resources provided by MHCLG access funding, although
this will be skewed due to COVID19 lockdown. It is felt that between 75100 placements per year into the PRS could be made by this team.
9.2.1.2. Although there is significant availability of PRS properties in the city, it
is currently unknown how many of them would ultimately be suitable for
homeless people. Despite the rise in the Local Housing Allowance (LHA)
rate from April 2020, it is still well below the median rent in the private sector.
Despite this barrier, it can be initially estimated that 10% (73) of available
PRS tenancies may be suitable for NPH.
9.2.1.3. An issue outlined within the draft PRS Strategy agreed by the Cabinet
in March 2020, is landlords' perception that rough sleepers are likely to be
a high risk so landlords need assurance when offering them a tenancy.
Ongoing discussion with landlords through groups like the Portsmouth &
District Private Landlords Association will be important to work through the
issues.
9.2.2. Use purchased/sub-leased property at Local Housing Allowance rents.
This is another long-term solution that can work quickly, albeit not before 1st
August 2020. The City Council can buy or sub-lease property which it can make
available for rent. This must be separate from the social housing provided
through the allocations process, and the buyback properties being purchased to
resolve temporary accommodation. Whilst waiting for a permanent move on into
such accommodation, it is proposed that individuals are housed in one of the
other interim options identified in sections 9.2.3 - 9.2.5 of this report.
9.2.3. Use HMOs through a housing third party. Approximately 60 people have
been identified as suitable for a private rental tenancy but only where floating
support is available. It is proposed that this group of people are placed into a
housing third part solution on an interim basis which their long-term move is
found. The aim is that the housing third party can provide at least 60 places at
£25 per night per person. This requires a 12-month commitment.
9.2.4. Use a large hotel or accommodation block. At least 53 people have been
identified as needing intensive onsite support which can only realistically be
provided in a suitable communal setting where support, and security, can be
available. A hotel or accommodation block is the proposed solution. Where
locations have already been investigated, it appears that an initial commitment
of at least 12 months is needed.
9.2.5. Use Kingston Point and Hope House. The current contractual arrangements
with SSJ and Two Saints mean that these two facilities will remain available for
NPH until at least the end of the financial year. However, the guidance from
Public Health means that this capacity is 18 across both sites, not 57. These
facilities should continue to be used for those NPH who cannot be safely housed
in the other facilities, or have been excluded from the other facilities. This should
11

Page 139
www.portsmouth.gov.uk

become the final accommodation option offered to rough sleepers who present
with generally unacceptable behaviour, and a continuation here to exhibit
dangerous or anti-social behaviour should result in exclusion from the service.
The learning from the hotel is that intensive support, boundaries and a way to
deal with antisocial behaviour must be provided if this is to work.
9.3. The resources required to deliver this interim plan are identified in section 10 of this
report.
9.4. The successful delivery of this interim plan in not entirely within the control of the
City Council as it depends upon a number of external factors and agreements being
reached with third parties. The risks of the interim plan include:
9.4.1. Finding a suitable and affordable hotel or accommodation block within the
timescale for a 9-12 month let
9.4.2. Reaching an agreement with the HMO housing third party
9.4.3. Enough private landlords wanting to rent to NPH
9.4.4. The gap between Local Housing Allowance and private rental rates being
covered by Discretionary Housing Payment
9.4.5. Suitable City Council officer resources, both amount and skill level, to deliver
the plan being available.
9.5. Other work
9.5.1. Some Registered Social Landlords (Housing Associations) have committed to
working with the MHCLG and local authorities to support homelessness. Officers
will continue to engage with housing associations to link the support on offer to
the interim and long term plans
9.5.2. Officers are part of the Homelessness and Rough Sleepers working group
which is a sub-group of the regional 'Protecting our vulnerable residents group'
to look at the issues collectively across Hampshire. That work will continue in
parallel to the need to quickly address the issue facing the city.
9.5.3. The City Council has been in discussions with owners of accommodation
around the city, including University of Portsmouth. It is expecting its full
accommodation offer to remain available and as many students as possible to
be physically present in the city.
9.5.4. The City Council has the opportunity to look to its Housing Company, Ravelin
to explore options for the building and leasing of housing to support NPH.
10. Support to deliver the interim plan
10.1. An indicative financial model is attached in Appendix 4. At the time of submission
of the report final agreements on the interim solution with providers had not been
reached. However the costs are based upon discussions with a number of potential
suppliers.
10.2. These costs are estimates at the time of writing and may be offset by several
factors:
12

Page 140
www.portsmouth.gov.uk

10.2.1.
Negotiation with providers, either to reduce the rate or to reduce the
commitment time
10.2.2.
Reallocation of resources from other activities. This would mean that
other services may be reduced or postponed.
10.2.3.
More people leaving the system of their own volition
10.2.4.
The long term solutions (PRS and purchase of properties) becoming
available more quickly than anticipated.
10.3. It is recognised that there is not a previously agreed budget for this work, and
there are no funds for the Interim or long term plans agreed at this stage. However
MHCLG has announced £105m for interim arrangements up to the end of this
financial year alongside bids for funding to build homes in the longer-term. It has
asked the City Council to 'co-produce' a plan for the interim and long-term.
10.4. It is also proposed that the Assistant Director of Housing is supported to focus
primarily on the statutory and non-statutory homeless work, temporarily for the next
three months, subject to review to provide a dedicated senior lead for the work. That
will sit alongside the current resources allocated to the work, including the rough
sleeping coordinator.
11. Long term plan
11.1. The interim plan represents the step between the emergency accommodation and
the long-term/permanent solution. Whilst it is possible that some of these interim
solutions may become long-term accommodation options, there are several reasons
why a long term plan is still required. These are:
11.1.1.
As is evidenced elsewhere in this report, the City Council changed the
provision that was available for NPH within a few days, and did so under
lockdown conditions. Whilst officers have learned a lot about the cohort, how it
operates etc There is much more that needs to be learned to make a fully
function system for the NPH which goes beyond the model of the past.
11.1.2.
It is unclear what impact and real change the emergency model is
making to the lives of the NPH it is housing. Whilst a small number have been
moved into other accommodation, it is unclear if this will give permanent change.
Learning from the interim plan will provide more evidence.
11.1.3.
The needs and views of a wide range of stakeholders need to be taken
into account, and evidence needs to be presented and considered. This exists
through The Partnership Group.
11.2. The aim of the interim plan is that it will exist for approximately twelve months.
This will allow time to begin to put in place the accommodation and support needed
to ensure a long-term solution.
11.3. It is proposed that oversight of the details of the plan will lie with the cross-party,
multi-agency Partnership Group. The Health and Wellbeing Board will remain
sighted on the work through the updates arising from the Homeless Strategy and
Rough Sleeping and Homelessness Strategy.
13

Page 141
www.portsmouth.gov.uk

11.4. The Rough Sleeping and Street Homeless Strategy creates a clear direction of
travel prior to the COVID-19 crisis but it is recognised that the response to the
COVID-19 has created a unique opportunity and collective desire to continue to hold
those provided with emergency accommodation and avoid those individuals
returning to rough sleeping.
11.5. Cabinet may further wish to reinforce the direction of travel for The Partnership
Group, endorse the scope of work and reinforce the principles for the Group.
11.6. Cabinet may wish the partnership group to use the following principles as they
develop a longer term plan and solutions, for example:
11.6.1.
All those in the interim accommodation to be supported to find move on
accommodation and given the opportunity not to return to rough sleeping.
11.6.2.
Accommodation first, not accommodation only approach, with support
levels tailored to individuals
11.6.3.
Developing the accommodation and support model to provide learning
and work opportunities
11.6.4.
A range of accommodation and support ideally located in Portsmouth
based on Governments desire to build, buy and rent homes
11.6.5.
A financially sustainable model
11.6.6.
An approach that provides accommodation and support into
sustainable housing but also supports the prevention of homelessness and
those who remain on the streets
11.6.7.
Evidenced based using all the learning and data available to create
solutions
11.7. And ask The Partnership Group to consider key questions, for example
11.7.1.
11.7.2.
11.7.3.
11.7.4.
11.7.5.
11.7.6.
11.7.7.

Type of accommodation? Self-contained or shared?
Location? In Portsmouth or wider?
Min and mix size of ‘spoke’ accommodation? 10-40?
Support? Day service and night beds, or 24/7?
Support model? PCC or external?
What is required from a successful support provider?
How best to engage with the various groups around the city?

11.8. Alongside these, the following details should be considered:
11.8.1.
The long term role for the private sector in providing move on
accommodation
11.8.2.
The long term role of the City Council in the purchase, provision or lease
of property through the expansion of existing mechanisms such as the buyback
scheme.
11.8.3.
The long term role for other Registered Housing providers
11.8.4.
The minimum and maximum sizes of suitable properties for intensive
support
14

Page 142
www.portsmouth.gov.uk

11.8.5.

The contractual model for accommodation and support.

11.9. The Partnership Group also can work with colleagues across Hampshire to
ensure the benefit of a regional approach to addressing the issues collectively faced
by local authorities across Hampshire.
12. Reasons for recommendations
12.1.
The current emergency COVID-19 response for NPH remains needs to remain
and is a key response to the MHCLG call to provide accommodation for those that
would otherwise be rough sleeping.
12.2.
The report outlines the need to consider a more sustainable interim plan and
solutions to support that commitment alongside the opportunity to use all the learning
to inform a long term plan
13. Integrated impact assessment
13.1. An Integrated Impact Assessment to be completed with final report (Appendix 5)
14. Legal implications
14.1. The report and recommendations proposed will enable the City Council to further
its compliance with the statutory duties contained in the Housing Act 1996,
Homelessness Act 2002 and in particular the Homelessness Reduction Act 2017,
which requires housing authorities to focus efforts on preventing homelessness.
14.2. The recommendations proposed with the aim of delivering a longer term plan will
also enable the City Council to keep its homelessness reviews and strategy plan
relevant and up to date.
14.3. It is within the Cabinet's powers to approve the recommendations proposed.
15. Director of Finance's comments
15.1. The rough sleeping team have identified a number of accommodation sources in
order to implement the interim plan. The cost of this plan could potentially amount
to circa £2.5m for 12 months of provision and the Council are working with MHCLG
to prepare a bid to the recently announced £105m fund for this purpose.
15.2. At this stage it is unclear whether the City Council will receive grant funding from
MHCLG that will be sufficient to cover the costs of the interim plan. If the Council
were to receive an allocation at levels consistent with previous distribution
methodologies for Rough Sleepers and Homelessness then a sum of circa
£600,000 to £700,000 would be allocated..
15.3. The City Council are in a position where the current accommodation arrangements
will end at the end of August and there remains funding uncertainty or that funding
15

Page 143
www.portsmouth.gov.uk

has been announced and there is a shortfall between the cost of the plan and the
funding identified. In the event that a funding shortfall arises, a further report will
be required to be considered by Cabinet prior to entering to financial commitments
beyond the funding identified.
15.4. It is expected that the on-going costs of making housing provision for the
Homelessness and Rough Sleepers, after the interim plan has come to an end,
will be lower than £2.5m per annum as the homeless transition through to the
alternative accommodation envisaged in the longer term plan. In the event
therefore that a funding shortfall arises for the interim plan, it may be of a shorter
term nature.
Signed by:
……………………………………………………………………………….
James Hill, Director of Housing, Neighbourhood and Building Services

16

Page 144
www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Appendices:
Appendix 1 - Learning about the Night Bed Service 2017-2020
Appendix 2 - City Council press release June 2020
Appendix 3 - MHCLG letter 24 June 2020
Appendix 4 - Approximate cost model for the interim plan
Appendix 5 - Integrated Impact Assessment
Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972
The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a
material extent by the author in preparing this report:
Title of document

Location

PCC Homeless
strategy

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/couhomelessness-strategy-2018-to-2023.pdf

PCC Rough Sleeping
and Street Homeless
strategy

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documentsexternal/street-homelessness-rough-sleeping-partnershipstrategy-final-august-2018.pdf

PCC Housing
Allocation Scheme

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documentsexternal/portsmouth-housing-allocation-scheme.pdf

Information report on
rough sleeping (9th
March)

https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/documents/s26241/Res
ources%20for%20Rough%20sleeping%20info%20report.pdf

Letter from Minister
of Housing Luke Hall
MP (26th March)

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/
system/uploads/attachment_data/file/876466/Letter_from_Min
ister_Hall_to_Local_Authorities.pdf

Conservative Party
Manifesto 2019

https://assets-global.websitefiles.com/5da42e2cae7ebd3f8bde353c/5dda924905da58799
2a064ba_Conservative%202019%20Manifesto.pdf

17

Page 145
www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Announcement
regarding Dame
Louise Casey

https://www.gov.uk/government/news/dame-louise-casey-tospearhead-government-taskforce-on-rough-sleeping-duringpandemic

Draft PCC Private
Rental Sector
Strategy

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/prsstrategy-report-appendix-1-strategy.pdf

MHCLG launch of
Rough Sleeping
taskforce

https://www.gov.uk/government/news/dame-louise-casey-tospearhead-government-taskforce-on-rough-sleeping-duringpandemic

Portsmouth News
story 23rd June 2020

https://www.portsmouth.co.uk/news/politics/coronavirus-howportsmouth-councils-safe-space-rough-sleepers-causedcontroversy-anti-social-behaviour-2891935

The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ deferred/
rejected by ……………………………… on ………………………………

………………………………………………
Leader of the City Council

18

Page 146
www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Supporting rough sleepers and the hidden homeless: options for the way forward
Appendix 1 - Learning from the operation of the Night Beds Service 2017-2020
The introduction of the night bed service in 2017 and the data available has supported
the learning around the needs and aspirations of individuals who are rough sleeping.
Key learning as follows:
Demand - the amount of demand has at times exceeded the capacity of the service
despite increasing the capacity of the service from 45 to 57 night beds, as an example
during:
January 2020 - 38 people could not book a night bed
February 2020 - 59 people could not book a night bed
March 2020 - 50 people could not book a night bed
It is important to note that homelessness does not affect a static group of people as
can be seen from the following table which shows the numbers of individuals that have
used the night bed service and their length of stay from December 2017 to March
2020.
Length of stay

number of individuals

0 (no show)
1 night
2-7 nights
1 week to 1 month
1 month to 3 months
over 3 months

15 (2%)
149 (19%)
202 (26%)
174 (22%)
125 (16%)
116 (15%)

781
Organising the service across two locations has positive benefits including managing
complex relationships between individuals and more flexibility in meeting individual
needs but does have its constraints
The communal nature of the Night bed service does not suit everyone as many
individuals have complex (social, addiction, physical and mental health) needs and
providing the necessary support can be difficult in this setting.
Housing alone does not provide the solution. The complexity of needs requires
collaboration with partners to ensure accommodation is sustainable. This includes
collaboration with Mental Health Services, Recovery Services, Adult Social Care, and
the voluntary sector and other organisations as needed.
Individuals who leave the service frequently access the service again. Complexity of
needs means that individuals face challenges and are unable to engage with the
support services either due to not being the right time in their recovery for instance or
the method of delivery does not enable them to sustain alternative housing options.
Individuals need somewhere to be during daytime hours, due to the limited opening
hours of the day and night services this has not been possible.
1

Page 147

Supporting rough sleepers and the hidden homeless: options for the way forward

The increased opening hours of the Portsmouth Day Service, as a result of the Cold
Weather Funding, has been positive. Individual rough sleepers and support providers
reported a benefit of being able to access a service and hot meal in the evenings and
Night Bed Services reported a beneficial impact in terms of the presentation of
individuals accessing the Night Beds.
A significant number of individuals accessing the Homeless Night Beds and Day
Service choose not to engage with support relating to mental health, recovery or
alternative housing options. The establishment of the Homeless Medical Team and
specialised housing support within the Day Service has demonstrated however that
where support services are located within homeless services and tailored to the needs
of rough sleepers, individuals are more likely to access support tailored to them and
provided on site
Arrangements with service providers
The service providers for the Homeless Night Service, Two Saints and Society of St
James, are both commissioned by Portsmouth City Council to deliver well-established
services supporting homeless individuals in the city.
Two Saints are commissioned to deliver the "Core Homeless" supported housing
service, which includes a 32 bed hostel provision at Hope House in Milton Road. The
Society of St James are the contracted provider for the Homeless Day service until
2021.
In the case of Two Saints the night service provision, currently 27 additional beds at
Hope House and four extra night support staff, was added as an additional schedule
to the Core Homeless service contract. There is the facility to raise a contract variation
each year to continue the night service and to add any additional provision as required.
The Core Homeless service contract runs until April 2023, with the option of two further
36 month extensions.
Society of St James has been providing a further 30 beds as night shelter
accommodation within a building it owns in Kingston Road. A contract procedure
waiver was agreed on the basis of the city's need to meet its obligations having been
awarded funding to address rough sleeping; the direct award was justified to the
Society of St James as it was already delivering daytime homeless support, and had
a suitable facility available to also provide a night shelter.
The contract agreed with Society of St James was initially 12 months in length from
April 2019, but with an option to extend until March 2022 has been activated. The
contract can be ended in March 2021 with three months' notice provided, or extended
into the second year without needing further negotiation. The contract can be varied
each year to reflect any changes in funding or service provision.
***No contractual changes or variations have been made during the emergency
provision.

2

Page 148

Supporting rough sleepers and the hidden homeless: options for the way forward

Appendix 2 - Press release June 2020
Life changing support for rough sleepers in Portsmouth
Over a hundred of Portsmouth's rough sleepers have been housed in hotels across the city
for the past two months to give them self-contained accommodation during the coronavirus
outbreak.
It is part of an unprecedented emergency operation to get all rough sleepers off the streets,
to prevent the spread of coronavirus.
James* is just one of the people being housed in a hotel after a breakdown in his
relationship and losing his job.
"I was staying in lodgings when this all kicked off and the man I was staying with was older
and had underlying health conditions so I had to move on. I spoke to the council and they
said they'd help me to find somewhere to stay and put me up in the Ibis hotel. I was there for
a few nights and kept myself to myself but there were never any problems for me.
"They looked after me well and the support staff couldn’t do enough. They even helped me
to carry all of my bags and help me move in! I've moved on now and I'm in a private rental
and I'm going back to work a week on Monday."
Cllr Darren Sanders, Cabinet Member for Housing said: "I've been really pleased to hear all
of the good stories about the positive impact this is having on people's lives. There are
people using the hotels that haven't been accommodated or slept in a bed for years.
"Our teams are working together to ensure that those using the hotel are getting the best
support they can. This is being supported by our Community Wardens who are providing
additional outreach support to rough sleepers, the youth service, library services, catering
staff from the Civic Office's staff café and The Hub, as well as support from HIVE
Portsmouth."
The providers of the homeless service, The Society of St James and Two Saints are
continuing to work with the council to ensure everyone can access support in a safe
environment.
Lucy*, Senior Support Worker within homeless services said: "During the first few days in
March managing social distancing at the homeless day service and night shelters was really
difficult. I felt awful that people were only able to come into the day service for half an hour at
a time.
"You could tell those using the service were concerned about coronavirus and this grew day
by day. I was so happy when I was able to tell people that they would be moved to a hotel
and I could tell how excited they were. When I visited the hotel the next day it was so quiet
because they hadn't been in a real bed for such a long time!
"I love that we have all of the services under one roof, all the support staff are here, mental
health nurses, wellbeing services - there is so much support for people. We have two
bedrooms for one to one sessions and even a donation room.
"The local community have really pulled together. We have charity shops donating clothes,
local supermarkets donating food packages and we even received Easter eggs for the
guests, staff and volunteers!

Page 149

Supporting rough sleepers and the hidden homeless: options for the way forward
"I'm proud to be part of this. Everyone is working together to make the most of a strange
situation."
As well as support from homeless services, there are also volunteers delivering food to the
residents of the hotel.
Helen has been volunteering at the hotel through HIVE Portsmouth since March and has
been delivering food for residents at the hotel 3 times a day, 6 days a week. Ex-teacher
Helen has been furloughed and wanted to help out.
“I’ve found it really rewarding, they are interesting people and in the main really friendly. I
even recognise some of them from my local area. I’m amazed at how beautifully kept many
of the rooms are, they keep their belongings beautifully, better than your average student
halls I should think.
“They are stuck in one room, they might go out for fresh air, bit of a smoke but otherwise
there is nowhere for them to go. They are stuck in a small room. I have a small house and
garden and a family back home, I would not change places…the residents are incredibly
cheery in the circumstances”.

Page 150

Luke Hall MP
Minister for Rough Sleeping and Housing
Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local
Government
4th Floor, Fry Building
2 Marsham Street
London SW1P 4DF

To All Chief Executives in England

Tel: 0303 444 3460
E-Mail: luke.hall@communities.gov.uk
www.gov.uk/mhclg

24 June 2020
Dear Chief Executive,
COVID-19 Response: Funding support for those in emergency accommodation
and EEA Rough Sleepers
I last wrote to you on 28 May regarding moving onto the next phase of accommodating those
in emergency accommodation. I wanted to provide an update on this following the next steps
support plans you recently submitted to MHCLG and the work of the Rough Sleeping COVID19 Taskforce spearheaded by Dame Louise Casey.
Firstly, thank you all for the incredible work you and your teams have undertaken and
continue to undertake to respond to the COVID-19 crisis, and in particular, for your work to
support vulnerable rough sleepers to self-isolate. Providing accommodation offers to the vast
majority of rough sleepers, people who were in communal sleeping spaces and those at risk
of rough sleeping is a truly remarkable achievement which has saved lives. I would also like
to thank you for the speed at which you have worked to provide our Department with your
next step plans. These are a crucial step in our work to continue to protect vulnerable people
and towards ending rough sleeping.
Funding support for those in emergency accommodation
We remain committed to ensuring that as many people as possible who have been brought in
off the streets in this pandemic do not return to the streets. We know that you will need our
support to do achieve this and that many of you have sought funding certainty. That is why
we have today announced an additional £105 million to help local authorities implement a
range of support interventions for people placed into emergency accommodation during the
COVID-19 pandemic. This includes supporting moves into the private rented sector, helping
individuals to reconnect with friends or family, and extending or procuring interim
accommodation.
This funding is in addition to that announced on 24 May which will provide 3,300 long-term,
safe homes for vulnerable rough sleepers this year. Together, these funding streams will
support us to deliver a comprehensive Next Steps Strategy, which will support thousands of
individuals to stay safe during the pandemic and beyond. The Government will provide
additional details about this funding over the coming weeks.

Page 151

I am also pleased to announce that a further £16 million in funding will be made available this
financial year – bringing the total to £23 million – to tackle the substance dependence
treatment needs of this population. This will help to build on and maintain the engagement
people have had with substance dependence services whilst in emergency accommodation
as they move into safer, long term accommodation.
This takes the total amount provided by Government this year to support vulnerable rough
sleepers and those at risk of becoming homeless to over half a billion pounds.
We intend to work with local authorities to enable you to share good practice, and to track
progress in the steps you are taking to help the most vulnerable in our society.
EEA Rough Sleepers
We also understand that some of the individuals currently accommodated across the
England under this initial emergency approach are EEA nationals who are not in
employment, some of whom may have limited move on options. I know from my contact with
various local authorities that this is a significant concern.
It is for this reason the Government is now taking unprecedented action in temporarily,
nationally suspending an EU derogation (normally applied through Article 24(2) of
the EU Free Movement Directive) to enable you to accommodate and support a specific
group of rough sleeping EEA nationals for up to 12 weeks.
In September 2019 the suspension was applied in areas with acute and concentrated
numbers of EEA nationals who were sleeping rough – Greater London, Luton Bedford and
Milton Keynes. This has allowed us to break the cycle of homelessness for many of these
individuals, helping them become economically active and to prevent the tragic loss of life,
which is our biggest concern for those on the streets.
In the Autumn 2019 snapshot, there was a 21% reduction in EU national rough sleepers in
London from 610 in 2018 to 481, and work continues to support more individuals to enter
work and secure accommodation.
Following the success of this approach and in recognition of the ongoing challenges faced by
local authorities, the Government will now be extending these powers nationally as of 24
June 2020. These powers will allow local authorities to support certain EEA nationals who
are not eligible for other types of support until the end of the transition period (31 December
2020), at which point new rules will apply under the new immigration system. In practice this
will mean that local authorities in the circumstances outlined in Annex B will be able to offer
up to three months of emergency accommodation, alongside floating support to rough
sleepers.
This approach does not extend to statutory services or welfare benefits. It means that job
seeking, EEA national rough sleepers who meet the criteria, will be eligible for your nonstatutory homelessness services, such as hostels, on the same basis as those who are
currently eligible for these services e.g. UK national rough sleepers and EEA national
workers.. It does not provide them with priority over UK national rough sleepers and
accommodation and support is limited to a maximum of 3 months.

Page 152

Next steps
Your MHCLG adviser will be in touch shortly to discuss this in more detail and to answer any
questions you might have. They, along with the Taskforce, will be available to support you
throughout this process. Likewise, over the coming weeks, the Government will provide
additional details about the £105 million of funding.
Thank you for continuing to support some of the most vulnerable people in our society.

LUKE HALL MP

Page 153

Annex A – Q&A
Q. What is the ‘Suspension of the Derogation’?
• The UK currently applies an exemption (derogation) from Article 24(2) of the Free
Movement Directive to the need for equal treatment between UK and EEA citizens who
are exercising free movement rights during their initial three months in the UK and when
they are here as ‘jobseekers’ (as defined by the Immigration (European Economic Area)
Regulations 2016).
• The government has chosen to temporarily suspend the derogation for up to 7 months.
• This will allow a specific group of EEA nationals who are rough sleeping to access certain
non-statutory homelessness services. This will extend to a one time, maximum of three
months, emergency accommodation and floating support.
• During this time individuals will be supported into employment or supported to return
home and connected with services there, should this be the most suitable option.
• By providing accommodation it will support eligible job seeking EEA nationals to find
employment and regularise their stay in the UK.
• This approach does not extend to statutory services or welfare benefits. In practice it
means that job seeking, EEA national rough sleepers who meet the criteria will be eligible
to access basic non-statutory homelessness services.
• This is a short-term measure which will allow government to take immediate action to
support these individuals.
Q. Why have you chosen to do this?
• The suspension of the derogation was introduced in Greater London, Luton, Bedford and
Milton Keynes in September 2019 and in the Autumn 2019 snapshot count, there was an
overall decrease in EU nationals sleeping rough. In addition, for the first time in six years,
there was a decrease in the number of people estimated to be sleeping rough in London
and the largest decrease since 2010.
• We want to support EEA nationals to find employment and regularise their status in the
UK or return to their country of origin and connect with services there, should that be the
best option available.
Q. How long will this approach be applied?
• The approach will be limited to a maximum of seven months – from 24 June 2020 until 31
December 2020.

Page 154

Annex B – Circumstances in which we have chosen to suspend the current derogation
in relation to Article 24(2) of the Free Movement Directive
Local Authorities in England may provide limited support offers to EEA nationals exercising
their treaty rights as job seekers (and people in their initial 3 months) who have been
sleeping rough or have been temporality placed in emergency accommodation for the
purposes of self-isolation, on the basis that not doing so, would lead to a greater burden on
the state – through pressure on local services e.g. Outreach services, COVID Care and
Protect, accident and emergency, police. It is therefore temporary and limited to specific
groups as defined by the government.
1. Not all EEA national exercising treaty rights are entitled to support, only those that meet all
of the criteria specified below (this is on a temporary basis until 31 December 2020, subject
to review):
•

Individuals who have been verified as sleeping rough by an outreach worker.

•

Individuals who need assistance in the first instance (assistance will be time limited and
will not include repeat provision).

•

Of these individuals, only those who are considered job seekers in line with Home Office
guidance on qualified persons:
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment
_ data/file/759064/eea-qualified-persons-v6.0ext.pdf; or those individuals who are in their
first three months of residence within the UK.

•

Individuals must be willing to engage with navigators/support workers.

•

Individuals must be willing to engage with employment support/training and job searching
to either enter or improve their position in the labour market or accept an offer of
reconnection.

•

Those individuals who are assessed to be outside of the scope of the stipulations
outlined above must have support withdrawn as soon as this is established. Unless there
are reasons which mean the individual requires shielding or treatment from COVID-19, or
the individual is seeking to reconnect to their home country.

2. Support offers are predicated on point 1 and must not exceed the criteria specified below:
•

Single access only.

•

Time-limited – up to 12 weeks in order to find employment and accommodation, up to 4
weeks to establish options for the individual and facilitate a reconnection.

Page 155

This page is intentionally left blank

Supporting rough sleepers and the hidden homeless: options for the way forward

Total number to
find
accommodation
for from August
2020

200

Appendix 4 - Approx. cost
model for Interim plan
Private Rental Sector (will
move from Interim
Accommodation)

Number of
people

Page 157

Timescale
Staff

PCC staffing
costs (pa)

Notes

82
Already began. Will take 6
months for all to move here
(with additional resources).
Until moved they will be
housed within the Housing
Network or Intensive Support
Block options

HMO Housing organisation
80

Intensive support block
(hotel or large communal
accommodation)
102

Subject to negotiation this
is available from August for
a minimum of 12 months

Subject to negotiation this is
available from August for a
minimum of 12 months

£75,482

£45,849

£0

Assumes 2xFTE additional band
7 resources to help find
properties, broker
arrangements, and support the
individual into a sustainable
tenancy

Assumes 1xFTE additional
band 9 resource to help be
the link with the housing
organisation, payments, HB
etc. This is based on the
current need for a person
to support each Ibis

Assumes the 1xFE Rough
Sleeping Coordinator (band
10) as the link on the hotel,
payments, security, HB etc.
This is based on the current
need for a person to support
each Ibis

Kingston &
Hope house

Total

18

Available
now until
end of
FY2020/21
£0

£121,331

Supporting rough sleepers and the hidden homeless: options for the way forward
Private Rental Sector (will
move from Interim
Accommodation)
One off
Accommodation costs (total)

Notes

Page 158

Revenue
costs for 1
year (total)

Notes

£123,000

HMO Housing organisation
£0

Assumes that an average of
£1500 per person is needed to
pay for bond or rent in
advance. In theory this money
should return to PCC at the end
of the tenancy but should be
considered as a grant.

£49,200

Assume a rent top up of £100
per month needed to cover the
gap between LHA rate and
private rent. However as it
would take time to move
people in, it is assumed that
the cost in the year if 50% of
this. Possible this could be
paid from Housing Benefit
Discretionary Housing Payment

Intensive support block
(hotel or large communal
accommodation)
£500,000

Kingston &
Hope house
£0

£623,000

£0

£2,099,040

Deep clean up and
dilapidations based upon an
offer from a hotel chain

£788,400

Assumes the Housing
organisation quote of £27
per person per night (VAT
to be confirmed)

£1,261,440

Assumes £32 per night per
person (ex VAT) based upon
offer from a hotel chain and
in line with Accor price.

Supporting rough sleepers and the hidden homeless: options for the way forward

Private Rental Sector (will
move from Interim
Accommodation)

Support

Additional
support
costs (pa)

£0

Page 159
Contribution

£0

notes

Total

Total cost to
PCC (above
what is
currently
committed)

£200,000

Assumes that SSJ and Two
Saints need additional
resources, above what is
currently contracted

Notes
Housing
Benefit
contribution

HMO Housing organisation

£247,682

Intensive support block
(hotel or large communal
accommodation)

£200,000

Kingston &
Hope house

£0

£400,000

£0

-£705,147

£0

£2,538,224

Assumes that support in
hotel is covered by current
contracts with SSJ and Two
Saints. However security of
two people would cost
approx. £4k per week,
£200,000pa based upon
current security costs from
Fort Roche

-£249,166

-£455,982

Assumes that 80% of
benefit can be recovered at
the £78.81 per week rate

Assumes that 80% of
benefit can be recovered at
the £115.38 per week rate

£785,083

£1,505,458

This page is intentionally left blank

Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA)
Integrated impact assessment (IIA) form December 2019

www.portsmouth.gov.uk
The integrated impact assessment is a quick and easy screening process. It should:
identify those policies, projects, services, functions or strategies that could impact positively or
negatively on the following areas:
Communities and safety
Regeneration and culture

Environment and public space
Equality & - DiversityThis can be found in Section A5

Directorate:

HNB

Service, function:

Homelessness and Rough Sleeping

Title of policy, service, function, project or strategy (new or old) :
Supporting rough sleepers and the hidden homeless: options for the way forward from the emergency
accommodation used as part of COVID-19

Type of policy, service, function, project or strategy:
Existing
New / proposed

★

Changed

What is the aim of your policy, service, function, project or strategy?
Using existing strategies for homelessness and rough sleeping, this is the high level plan of how to
move from emergency accommodation housing 214 rough sleepers into interim accommodation and
then into a permanent service
Page 161

Has any consultation been undertaken for this proposal? What were the outcomes of the consultations? Has
anything changed because of the consultation? Did this inform your proposal?
No consultation due to the COVID-19 crisis and the need to move at pace

A - Communities and safety

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
A1-Crime - Will it make our city safer?

★

In thinking about this question:
•
•
•
•

How will it reduce crime, disorder, ASB and the fear of crime?
How will it prevent the misuse of drugs, alcohol and other substances?
How will it protect and support young people at risk of harm?
How will it discourage re-offending?

If you want more information contact Lisa.Wills@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cou-spp-plan-2018-20.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?
Previous to Covid 19, those who were rough sleeping or homeless without a priority need for accommodation were supported
through the Day and night service, which offered 57 beds. If a bed was not available rough sleepers were on the streets or "hidden
homeless" such as sofa surfing.
During COVID-19 a bedroom with a self-contained bathroom has been available for anyone who wants one and has enabled rough
sleepers to exit the streets in to a safer form of accommodation.
The plan outlines how this kind of support will continue for the rough sleepers who have come into the new system, and how they
will be helped into move on accommodation and, where required, provided with support from social care and public health.
The will mean that anyone who wants to remain off the streets will have a chance to do so.
In addition
Public Health are heavily involved in the plan to help prevent substance misuse issues and support any physical and emotional
wellbeing health needs.
Children's Social Care are included to ensure that Unaccompanied underage asylum seekers are supported fully
The system has had the involvement of the Police since the beginning and this is helping them in supporting victims of crime and
dealing with those in this cohort who have been offending.

How will you measure/check the impact of your proposal?
Crime statistics
Activity of the Community Wardens when dealing with Rough Sleeper issues

A - Communities and safety

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
A2-Housing - Will it provide good quality homes?
In thinking about this question:
•
•
•
•

How will it increase good quality affordable housing, including social housing?
How will it reduce the number of poor quality homes and accommodation?
How will it produce well-insulated and sustainable buildings?
How will it provide a mix of housing for different groups and needs?

Page 162

★

If you want more information contact Daniel.Young@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/psh-providing-affordable-housing-in-portsmouth-april-19.
pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

A - Communities and safety

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
A3-Health - Will this help promote healthy, safe and independent living?

★

In thinking about this question:
•
•
•
•

How will it improve physical and mental health?
How will it improve quality of life?
How will it encourage healthy lifestyle choices?
How will it create healthy places? (Including workplaces)

If you want more information contact Dominique.Letouze@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cons-114.86-health-and-wellbeing-strategy-proof-2.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?

As in A1 this plan is aimed at helping those who have been street homeless or rough sleeping to move into an accommodation first
model where they will be supported into a property. this will have the support of Public Health and Adult Social Care to provide
intensive support where needed. It will improve the lives of those who have been homeless and encourage them to make healthier
lifestyle choices which will impact on their physical and emotional well-being.

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?
Public Health assessments

A - Communities and safety

Yes

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
A4-Income deprivation and poverty-Will it consider income
deprivation and reduce poverty?

Page 163

★

No

In thinking about this question:
• How will it support those vulnerable to falling into poverty; e.g., single working age adults and lone parent
households?
• How will it consider low-income communities, households and individuals?
• How will it support those unable to work?
• How will it support those with no educational qualifications?
If you want more information contact Mark.Sage@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cou-homelessness-strategy-2018-to-2023.pdf
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/health-and-care/health/joint-strategic-needs-assessment

Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?
this plan is focused on rough sleepers and homeless. The vast majority are in poverty, single adults who need support to rebuild
their lives. The plan will put in place support to obtain the appropriate benefits to enable a tenancy to be sustained. Users of the
service will be signposted to places where they can be supported to access training and opportunities for employment.
All individuals who choose to use the service will be offered support from a range of providers including the voluntary sector which
will be appropriate to their needs, this will contribute to the establishment of relationships which will mitigate any negative impact.

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?
Number of people supported into sustainable accommodation
Number of people supported into education, employment or training

A - Communities and safety

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
A5-Equality & diversity - Will it have any positive/negative impacts on
the protected characteristics?

★

In thinking about this question:
• How will it impact on the protected characteristics-Positive or negative impact (Protected characteristics
under the Equality Act 2010, Age, disability, race/ethnicity, Sexual orientation, gender reassignment, sex,
religion or belief, pregnancy and maternity, marriage and civil partnership,socio-economic)
• What mitigation has been put in place to lessen any impacts or barriers removed?
• How will it help promote equality for a specific protected characteristic?
If you want more information contact gina.perryman@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cmu-equality-strategy-2019-22-final.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

Page 164

Page 165

B - Environment and climate change

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
B1-Carbon emissions - Will it reduce carbon emissions?

★

In thinking about this question:
•
•
•
•

How will it reduce greenhouse gas emissions?
How will it provide renewable sources of energy?
How will it reduce the need for motorised vehicle travel?
How will it encourage and support residents to reduce carbon emissions?

If you want more information contact Tristan.thorn@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cmu-sustainability-strategy.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

B - Environment and climate change

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
B2-Energy use - Will it reduce energy use?

★

In thinking about this question:
•
•
•
•

How will it reduce water consumption?
How will it reduce electricity consumption?
How will it reduce gas consumption?
How will it reduce the production of waste?

If you want more information contact Triston.thorn@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/pln-portsmouth-plan-post-adoption.pdf
https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/documents/s24685/Home%20Energy%20Appendix%201%20-%20Energy%
20and%20water%20at%20home%20-%20Strategy%202019-25.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

Page 166

B - Environment and climate change

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
B3 - Climate change mitigation and flooding-Will it proactively
mitigate against a changing climate and flooding?

★

In thinking about this question:
•
•
•
•

How will it minimise flood risk from both coastal and surface flooding in the future?
How will it protect properties and buildings from flooding?
How will it make local people aware of the risk from flooding?
How will it mitigate for future changes in temperature and extreme weather events?

If you want more information contact Tristan.thorn@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/env-surface-water-management-plan-2019.pdf
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cou-flood-risk-management-plan.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

B - Environment and climate change

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
B4-Natural environment-Will it ensure public spaces are greener, more
sustainable and well-maintained?

★

In thinking about this question:
• How will it encourage biodiversity and protect habitats?
• How will it preserve natural sites?
• How will it conserve and enhance natural species?
If you want more information contact Daniel.Young@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/pln-solent-recreation-mitigation-strategy-dec-17.pdf
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/pln-portsmouth-plan-post-adoption.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

Page 167

B - Environment and climate change

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
B5-Air quality - Will it improve air quality?

★

In thinking about this question:
•
•
•
•

How will it reduce motor vehicle traffic congestion?
How will it reduce emissions of key pollutants?
How will it discourage the idling of motor vehicles?
How will it reduce reliance on private car use?

If you want more information contact Hayley.Trower@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/env-aq-air-quality-plan-outline-business-case.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

B - Environment and climate change

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
B6-Transport - Will it improve road safety and transport for the
whole community?

★

In thinking about this question:
•
•
•
•

How will it prioritise pedestrians, cyclists and public transport users over users of private vehicles?
How will it allocate street space to ensure children and older people can walk and cycle safely in the area?
How will it increase the proportion of journeys made using sustainable and active transport?
How will it reduce the risk of traffic collisions, and near misses, with pedestrians and cyclists?

If you want more information contact Pam.Turton@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/travel/local-transport-plan-3
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

Page 168

B - Environment and climate change

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
B7-Waste management - Will it increase recycling and reduce
the production of waste?

★

In thinking about this question:
• How will it reduce household waste and consumption?
• How will it increase recycling?
• How will it reduce industrial and construction waste?
If you want more information contact Steven.Russell@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

Page 169

C - Regeneration of our city

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
C1-Culture and heritage - Will it promote, protect and
enhance our culture and heritage?

★

In thinking about this question:
•
•
•
•

How will it protect areas of cultural value?
How will it protect listed buildings?
How will it encourage events and attractions?
How will it make Portsmouth a city people want to live in?

If you want more information contact Claire.Looney@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/pln-portsmouth-plan-post-adoption.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?
The aim of the plan is to create a pathway to a system where rough sleepers do not need to be on the streets. This will reduce rough
sleeping in shopping and tourism areas and encourage people to feel more safe when in th city.

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?
Regular counts of people sleeping on the streets and continued engagement wiht Outreach/Floating Support
Services

C - Regeneration of our city

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
C2-Employment and opportunities - Will it promote the
development of a skilled workforce?

★

In thinking about this question:
•
•
•
•

How will it improve qualifications and skills for local people?
How will it reduce unemployment?
How will it create high quality jobs?
How will it improve earnings?

If you want more information contact Mark.Pembleton@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cou-regeneration-strategy.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

Page 170

C - Regeneration of our city

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
C3 - Economy - Will it encourage businesses to invest in the city,
support sustainable growth and regeneration?

★

In thinking about this question:
•
•
•
•

How will it encourage the development of key industries?
How will it improve the local economy?
How will it create valuable employment opportunities for local people?
How will it promote employment and growth in the city?

If you want more information contact Mark.Pembleton@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cou-regeneration-strategy.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

Q8 - Who was involved in the Integrated impact assessment?
Paul Fielding

This IIA has been approved by:
Contact number:
Date:

Page 171

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 11
THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY
(Please note that "Information Only" reports do not
require Equality Impact Assessments, Legal or
Finance Comments as no decision is being taken)

Title of meeting: Full Cabinet
Subject: Waste Collections and Disposal Infrastructure
Date of meeting: 14 July 2020
Report by: James Hill, Director of Housing, Neighbourhoods and Building Services
Wards affected: All

1. Requested by Cllr Gerald Vernon-Jackson, Leader of the Council
2. Purpose To update the cabinet on the future of waste collections and the disposal
infrastructure.
3. Information Requested
3.1.

Background Portsmouth is responsible for both waste collection and disposal.
Portsmouth is in a joint contract for waste disposal with Hampshire County Council
(HCC) and Southampton City Council (SCC). The waste disposal authorities have
provided waste disposal facilities across the County. This includes three Energy
Recovery Facilities (ERFs), two Material Recovery Facilities (MRFs), a network of
26 Household Waste and Recycling Centres (HWRCs), two composting sites, along
with a number of waste transfer stations. The infrastructure is jointly owned by PCC,
HCC and SCC.

3.2.

The administration declared a climate emergency in March 2019. A key element of
the strategy to tackle this is linked to waste management - and in particular
increasing the opportunities for residents to recycle more. Already action has been
taken to provide a number of carton bring banks across the City and a weekly food
waste collection trial is underway with a further trial planned for September 2020.
The administration are asking the waste team to develop plans to:




Provide more food waste collections and increase the amount of food waste
collected
Deliver waste collections in a 'green' collection fleet - electric, or hydrogen
Provide an anaerobic digestion plant to treat food waste from Portsmouth and
Hampshire generating green energy

This needs to be delivered whilst working within the constraints of the Council's
finances.
3.3.

Provision of further food waste collections - An initial trial of food waste
collection began in September 2019 and has seen almost 50% of food waste
removed from the black bag waste in the areas where it is being trialled. More trials
1 173
Page

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY
(Please note that "Information Only" reports do not
require Equality Impact Assessments, Legal or
Finance Comments as no decision is being taken)
are scheduled to begin in September 2020. The aim is to roll out further separate
weekly food waste collections across the City from October 2021. The Council is
also keen to increase the range of materials collected at the kerbside as well as
continue to provide a weekly collection service.
3.4.

Green Collection Vehicle Fleet - The Waste Collection Contract is due to end on
30 September 2021. Consideration is currently being given to the re-provision of
this service with an option for extending the term of the contract. A full procurement
exercise will be undertaken with consideration also given to an in house provision
as part of this work.

3.4.1.

The future service provision will aim to deliver a 'green' waste collection fleet. The
waste management team have been asked by the administration to consider the
opportunities for both electric and hydrogen powered refuse collection vehicles for
any new fleet.

3.5.

Infrastructure - Anaerobic Digestion Provision - To deliver more food waste
collections we need a secure disposal route for the waste collected. Food waste
is processed at an Anaerobic Digestion Plant (AD) and is recycled into biogas and
digestate. Portsmouth is currently trialling food waste collections. Further trials are
planned for the Autumn, working towards increasing collections from October 2021.
An information report was presented to Cabinet on 19 March 2020.

3.5.1.

The disposal authorities have not provided anaerobic digestion (AD) facilities and
currently food waste is taken to a plant in Hurn, Bournemouth. There is limited AD
provision in Hampshire, and the waste team are preparing a business case for
provision of an AD facility which is due to be considered in July. This disposal facility
could provide a food waste route for Portsmouth and the other local authorities in
Hampshire.

3.6.

Infrastructure - Materials Recovery Facility - The administration is keen to
increase the range of materials that residents can recycle but the current MRFs
cannot be retrofitted to accommodate the sorting equipment. PCC is working with
HCC and SCC on a business case to provide a container MRF which would replace
the existing MRFs at Portsmouth and Alton. This would enable us to collect
additional materials at the kerbside which could include plastic pots, tubs and trays,
cartons and glass - supplementary to the current items collected.

3.7.

Environment Bill - In addition to the administration's ambitions to improve waste
and recycling services and tackle the Climate emergency, the Government is also
progressing the Environment Bill through Parliament. This Bill proposes a number
of changes to waste services. These include:



Consistent collections (so that all LA's collect the same materials for recycling,
frequency of collection)

Page 2174
www.portsmouth.gov.uk

THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY
(Please note that "Information Only" reports do not
require Equality Impact Assessments, Legal or
Finance Comments as no decision is being taken)


Deposit Return Scheme (DRS) - could apply to glass and plastic bottles and steel
and aluminium drinks cans.
Extended producer responsibility (EPR) - expected to be the mechanism by which
funding is provided for additional burdens - services not currently provided although it is anticipated that this will be linked to compliance with consistent
collections, and improved performance.



DEFRA have stated that further consultations will be issued in Spring 2021 with
many of the initiatives expected to begin from 2023 onwards - although there may
be some delays due to the impacts of COVID-19
4. Timelines
4.1.

There are a number of pieces of work currently underway that will impact upon the
final future of waste collections and disposal infrastructure, these are;






AD business case
Twin stream MRF business case
Collection service modelling and business case
New waste collection contract
procurement to begin Environment Bill actions to be implemented

July 2020
Sep - Dec 2020
Nov - Dec 2020
Sep 2020
TBC. 2023

4.1.1. Over the coming months, the business cases should be complete, and the
administration will be in a position to agree the future of waste collections and what
infrastructure we need to deliver. We should also have a clearer idea of when and
how the legislative changes from the Environment Bill will impact on waste
management services.
4.2.

It is worth noting that the work in these area is progressing, but may be impacted by
the COVID-19 pandemic.

………………………………………………
Signed by James Hill, Director Housing, Neighbourhoods and Building Services
Appendices:
None
Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972
The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a
material extent by the author in preparing this report:
Title of document
None

Location
None
3 175
Page

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY
(Please note that "Information Only" reports do not
require Equality Impact Assessments, Legal or
Finance Comments as no decision is being taken)

Page 4176
www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Agenda Item 12

Agenda item:
Decision maker:

Cabinet
Governance Audit & Standards Committee (for information)

Subject:

Financial Impact of Covid-19 Pandemic

Date of decision:

14 July 2020

Report by:

Director of Finance & Resources (Section 151 Officer)

Wards affected:

All

Key decision:

No

Budget & policy
framework decision:

No

1.

Executive Summary

1.1

An Executive Summary of the financial implications arising from the direct impact of the
Covid-19 pandemic including the cost of the response is set out below.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
 At the outset of the pandemic emergency, the Secretary of State gave a commitment
that he would "give councils the resources they need to respond and I mean it"
 The forecast overall cost to the Council of the Covid-19 pandemic is currently £32m, to
date Government have provided financial support of £12m leaving a forecast shortfall of
£20m for the financial year 2020/21

Page 177

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY (Cont'd)
 A summary of the £32m additional costs (red), income losses (gold) and funding reductions
(purple) is illustrated below:

Business
Rates
£1.0m

ASC
Provider
Market &
PPE
£6.9m

(2.5%)

Homeless
nes &
Rough
Sleeping
£2.4m
Looked
After
Children
£1.5m

Council
Tax
£1.1m
(1%+LCTS)

Home to
School
Transp.
£0.7m

HRA
£1.2m

£32m
Impact
Other
Income
£2.8m

Temp.
Mortuary
£0.8m

Parking
Income
£2.8m

Other
Costs
£2.5m

Property
Income
£3.1m

Leisure
Centres
£1.5m

Port Dues
£3.4m

 On 2 July, the Secretary of State announced that a further funding package will be made
available to Local Authorities, the details of this for Portsmouth have yet to be published
and therefore the extent to which it will reduce the overall current shortfall is unknown.
 The forecast £20m shortfall remains uncertain and:
 Will improve once the details of the new funding package are received
 Could improve if the expected impact lessens
 Could deteriorate if there is a second peak or the expected impact worsens
 To remain within the approved Budget parameters, a Deficit Recovery Strategy is
proposed which includes a range of measures including earmarking funds from the
Council's Corporate Contingency, MTRS Reserve and placing some Capital Spending
plans "on hold"

Page 178

2.

Purpose of Report

2.1 The primary purpose of this report is to:
 Describe the overall forecast financial impact of the Covid -19 pandemic in 2020/21
 Explain the extent of the financial support that has been provided by the Council in
response to the pandemic and the approach taken
 As a consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic, evaluate the financial resilience of the
Council and its exposure to the prospect of the S.151 Officer issuing a Section 114
Notice
 Propose a financial strategy to remain within the Budget parameters approved by the
City Council in February 2020

3.

Recommendations

3.1 It is recommended that:
1) The financial strategy described in Section 8 of this report be approved
2) A further report be brought to a future meeting of the Cabinet to propose a detailed plan
for placing certain Capital Spending plans "on hold" which will remain "on hold" until the
overall financial impact on the Council is known with reasonable certainty
3) Note that the plan to place Capital Spending "on hold" is a plan only, and any
cancellation of Capital Schemes would only be invoked in the event that the Council
needs to respond to a forecast financial impact of the magnitude set out in this report.

4.

Background

4.1

On 17 March 2020, the City Council invoked its Corporate Business Continuity Plan in
response to the emergence of an accelerating infection rate of Covid-19. The Council
moved to Business Critical Services only and its emergency response structure (Gold
Command1) was activated. All non-essential staff were sent home (although remaining
available for work) and as many staff as possible that were engaged in business critical
services were set up to work from home where it was practical and effective to do so. This
action was designed to both protect staff and minimise the prospect of staff absence and
thus causing the failure of business critical services.

4.2

By 23 March 2020, after a series of isolation steps to delay the spread of infection, lockdown
measures had begun to be put in place nationally.

1

Gold Command at PCC is the group responsible for making operational decisions in direct response to an
emergency and comprises Senior Management across all of the Council's functions supported by Emergency
Planning and attended by the Leader and Deputy Leader. It feeds into the wider Hampshire and Isle of Wight Local
Resilience Forum.

Page 179

5.

The Council's Approach to Providing Financial Support

5.1

Even at the early stages of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Council was preparing for the
significant financial impact that the emergency could have on the Council's financial
position. Whilst the scale of the financial impact was uncertain, it had the potential to be
substantial and de-stabilise the Council's financial resilience. In turn, this could place the
ongoing delivery of the Council's business critical and essential services at risk. In
readiness, the Council's Gold Command received and approved a report from the Council's
Director of Finance & Resources (verbally on 06 April 2020 and formally on 09 April 2020)
which proposed a targeted approach to any financial support arrangements to be applied
across its activities as well as the accompanying financial governance regime to be adopted
throughout the emergency period of the pandemic.

5.2

These arrangements are set out in brief below:
Types of Financial Support
Support available from the Council includes:
1. Cash Flow support - e.g. Changes to payment terms, Payment in Advance, Deferral of
income due
2. Direct financial support e.g. Additional Payments, Grant or continuation of payments
through disruption / suspension of service
3. Pass through of Government Provided Support - e.g. Business Rate Reliefs, Business
Grants and Council Tax Support.
General Principles for Financial Support
1. Provider of last resort
Given the extent of the uncertainty surrounding the Council's financial position and that
some financial impacts felt locally would be of such significance that it would be beyond
the means for the Council to respond adequately, the Council should adopt a "Provider
of Last Resort" approach, ensuring the following:
a. All Government support has been exhausted
b. Bank support has been exhausted
c.

Parent / Shareholder support has been exhausted

d. Organisation's own Balance Sheet strength is not sufficient.
2. A Proportionate approach targeted towards greatest need
The following approach is adopted in order to ensure that the Council's limited financial
support is targeted to need and to eliminate, as far as possible, any profiteering at the
expense of need.
a. Case by Case approach (no "blanket" approaches) - every organisation / individual
is affected in a different way and has different levels of financial support available
to them.

Page 180

3. Transparency - Individuals / Organisations must demonstrate that they are at risk / in
need
To demonstrate need, the following information (where available) is required to operate
on a transparent basis. These will be indicators of risk / need and future viability:
a. Cash flow
b. Balance Sheet
c.

Other evidence

d. Declarations and accounts available for inspection.
4. Reasonable prospects of future viability (see above also)
If it is clear that an organisation will not survive this emergency period even with an
appropriate level of financial support from the Council, it would be a waste of valuable
resources that could be directed elsewhere. Support in these circumstances should only
be considered if crucial short-term goods / services are required to deal with the
Emergency.
Indicators to test future viability are described above.
5. Maximising the impact of the Council's Financial Support
a. A staged approach with periodic reviews so that any support can be flexed upwards
or downwards according to current and emerging circumstances - this will limit risk
of allocating too much or too little, provide the opportunity for other support
measures to take effect and enable a flexible response
b. Where appropriate, a rationed or negotiated level of support or payment for service
to ensure any emergency funding is "stretched" as far as possible across as many
vulnerable areas as possible
c.

Where appropriate, getting the best deal in terms of price to enable, overall, the
Council's financial support to "stretch" further.

6. Other Support
a. Guidance and signposting to national financial support schemes
b. Lobbying on behalf of businesses and individuals through:
i) Formal structures to Central Government (e.g. LRF, LEPs, Government
Departmental Forums / Contacts)
ii) Councillors and MPs
iii) Associations (e.g. LGA, SOLACE, ADASS, ADCS, SIGOMA, Professional
Bodies).

Page 181

6.

Government Funding & Priorities for Financial Support

6.1

The government announced its first tranche of Emergency Funding for Councils of £1.6bn
on 24 March 2020 and a further tranche of £1.6bn on 18 April 2020. Portsmouth City
Council's share of this, in total, amounts to £12m. On 2 July 2020 Government issued a
further statement that they would be providing "further measures as part of a comprehensive
package of support for local authorities". Headline national allocations and principles have
been released but the details of this for councils individually have not and therefore are not
yet factored into the Council's forecasts.

6.2

Across all communications from Ministers, they have signalled that Councils should
prioritise the following service areas throughout the emergency:
 Adult Social Care
 Children’s Services
 Public Health Services
 Fire and Rescue Services
 Waste Collection Services
 Shielding the clinically extremely vulnerable
 Homelessness and rough sleeping
 Domestic Abuse
 Supporting the NHS
 Managing excess deaths
 Support for re-opening the country

6.3

Until the announcement of this further funding package on 2 July, Government had made
far less mention of the other financial impacts on Councils such as losses of income and
reductions in funding from Council Tax and Business Rates, which together have a greater
financial impact on the Council than the additional costs referenced by Government (listed
above).

6.4

Set against the £12m of Emergency Funding from Government are forecast additional costs
plus reductions in income and funding amounting to £32m (see Executive Summary chart),
leaving an overall forecast shortfall of £20m. This is discussed in further detail in Section 8
of this report.

6.5

The extent to which the latest funding announcement will contribute towards the current
£20m shortfall is, at this stage, unclear and it remains unclear whether or not there will be
further funding allocated from Central Government to help meet any remaining shortfall.
The Secretary of State however, has made it clear that Councils should not expect
Government to meet all shortfalls that they experience, especially for spending that is not
explicitly in alignment with the Government's policy and guidance relating to the Emergency.
By way of example, the Secretary of State and Ministers have written to Councils stating
the following:

Page 182

“This is both a local and a national challenge and it is vital that we work together to use
available resources as wisely as possible. This might include redeploying staff or bringing
in volunteers, or prudent use of financial reserves"
Robert Jenrick 30 April 2020
“We wouldn’t want anybody to labour under a false impression that what they are doing
will be guaranteed funded by central government"
Robert Jenrick 05 May 2020

"But as you can imagine it is only fair that central government supports things that are
open to all rather than individual choices by local councils.”
Robert Jenrick 05 May 2020

"The package we are delivering is designed to help councils through the coming months
and, whilst there will be some shared financial pain, it continues to meet our commitment
to stand with local government as it delivers vital support for our communities during the
pandemic"
Simon Clarke 02 July 2020

7.

Council Response and Overall Financial Impact

7.1

In response to the pandemic, the Council has provided a wide range of financial support
across services to residents, businesses, the voluntary sector, commercial tenants, contract
providers and suppliers generally. Some of the more significant elements of support
include:















7.2

External Care Homes - funding of additional staffing, additional care packages,
guaranteeing income levels and PPE
Hotel accommodation for the homeless
Funded food deliveries for the vulnerable (via the HIVE)
Flexible payment terms for Council Tax Payers
Flexible payment terms for Business Rate Payers
Free use of car parks and removed enforcement to enable key workers to park close
to their homes
Road closures to improve social distancing
Financial relief for the City's Leisure Centres provider
Contributions to the cost of temporary mortuary facilities
Pitch relief for market traders
Rent deferral scheme for commercial tenants
Flexible payment terms for Brittany Ferries
Flexible contracting arrangements with key suppliers
Supporting Community Centres to submit furlough claims

The Council has been mindful to balance its own financial resilience in order to underpin the
delivery of critical and essential services with the emergency needs of the residents and

Page 183

businesses of the City. The Council has taken a responsible approach to meeting
emergency spending for the direct costs associated with the emergency such as providing
financial support to the Adult Social Care provider market, procuring necessary Personal
Protective Equipment (PPE) and providing accommodation for the homeless and rough
sleepers whilst also seeking to ensure that any financial support for residents, suppliers and
external organisations is provided on a case by case basis with demonstration of need. The
Council has also been careful to observe the guidance received from the Cabinet Office in
relation to Public Procurement Notices in its dealings with suppliers and the flexibility that
the Council has offered. In this way the Council has maintained an approach to target limited
financial resources to those at risk and in most need.
7.3

Nevertheless, the financial position as a consequence of this Emergency is serious.
Following two tranches of Emergency Government funding totalling £12m, the Council still
has a forecast financial shortfall of £20m across both General Fund and Housing Revenue
Account activities as described below:
Description

£m

Additional Costs
Unachievable Budget Savings
Income Losses (e.g. Rents, Fees and Charges)
Funding Losses (i.e. Council Tax and Business Rates)
Sub-Total Impact

12
3
15
2
32

Less: Emergency COVID-19 Funding
Total Shortfall

(12)*
20

*Excludes the 3rd Tranche of Funding announced on 2 July 2020, which is as yet unknown.

7.4 As described above, the major financial impact of the emergency has been driven by the
additional costs and the loss of income. Crucially, the forecast £20m shortfall follows the
Government's current stated planning assumptions and with no second wave.
7.5 A more detailed breakdown of the overall additional costs (red), income losses (gold) and
funding reductions (purple) was described previously in the Executive Summary.
7.6 An overall financial impact is forecast at £20m is significantly beyond the approved budget.
Due to the level of uncertainty associated with this forecast, which will depend substantially
on both the depth of the forthcoming recession and the level of any further Government
funding, an emergency budget at this stage would be premature.
7.7 The Council, however, has an obligation to plan its financial management responsibly and is
required to formulate a robust financial strategy to be able to deal with the potential shortfall
should it arise. Without such a strategy, the S.151 Officer would need to consider if a Section
114 Notice to the Council should be issued or at least make recommendations for an
Emergency Budget to be considered by Full Council.
7.8 A Section 114 Notice refers to Section 114 of the Local Government Finance Act 1988. It has
been described as the bankruptcy process for Local Authorities. The process is governed
under legislation and involves the S.151 Officer issuing a report to Full Council setting out the
financial position of the Council, that it is failing in its responsibility to maintain a Balanced
Budget and that the Council is being given 21 days' notice to consider a response. However,
during that time spending and other financial activity is suspended. Maintaining a Balanced

Page 184

Budget effectively means not drawing on the Council's Reserves to the extent that General
Reserves would fall below the minimum level of £8.0m.
7.9 The Chief Financial Officer (CFO) must explore all avenues before issuing a Section 114
Notice but should issue a notice where necessary. The Chartered Institute of Public Finance
& Accountancy (CIPFA) has recently issued guidance to S.151 Officers which proposes that
there should be a temporary modification to existing guidance in order to create an
opportunity, within existing statutory limits, to enable an exploration of what further options
and/or financial assistance may be available.
The proposed modifications are as follows:


At the earliest possible stage a CFO should make informal confidential contact with
MHCLG to advise of financial concerns and a possible forthcoming Section 114
requirement



The CFO should communicate the potential unbalanced budget position due to Covid19 to MHCLG at the same time as providing a potential Section 114 scenario report to
the Council's Executive (Cabinet) and the external auditor

In practice, this means it should not normally be necessary for a Section 114 report to be
issued while discussions with the Government that would address the issue are in progress.

8.

Financial Resilience and Financial Strategy

8.1 The Council is not allowed to either set (or maintain) a deficit budget or to draw upon its
General Reserves to the extent that they fall below the minimum level of £8m. Over the
period of the Council's Medium Term Financial Strategy, the level of headroom above the
minimum level of reserves that would be available to mitigate against all financial risks over
the period is £9.3m, however this is predicated on the Council making cumulative budget
savings of £6m over that period in accordance with its approved Medium Term Financial
Strategy.
8.2 Given the forecast deficit of £20m compared with available General Reserves of £9.3m, (or
just £3.3m if the Council's budget savings are not met), the Council is currently operating
significantly outside of the Budget parameters set by Full Council.
8.3 Adopting a Deficit Recovery Strategy will enable the Council to continue to operate without
the need to consider either an Emergency Budget or, if necessary, emergency spending
controls and service reductions under a Section 114 Notice. Once adopted, the strategy will
need to be developed into a more detailed plan shortly after, identifying savings amounting
to £20m. The strategy itself (described below) identifies a contribution of £10m from
Reserves and Contingencies leaving a remaining balance of £10m to be found by placing
previously approved spending decisions "on hold" until such time as the overall financial
position becomes clearer and therefore whether those capital spending plans can proceed or
actually need to be deleted. The proposed strategy will involve the following:


Earmarking £5m of the Council's Corporate Contingency - leaving a residual £5m for all
other known and unknown financial risks that may arise during the year



Earmarking £5m of the MTRS Reserve which currently holds an uncommitted balance
of £8m - leaving just £3m only to fund future Spend to Save schemes and any costs of
redundancies that may be required

Page 185



Identifying the remaining sum (currently estimated at £10m) of Capital Schemes that
have been funded by Revenue and placing those Capital Schemes "on hold"

8.4

A further report will be considered by the Cabinet to determine those Capital Schemes to
place "on hold". Once the overall financial position is known with more certainty and should
that plan need to be invoked, it may require an "In Year" revision to the approved Budget to
be proposed by the Cabinet and considered by Full Council.

8.5

Whilst at the time of writing, the financial impact to the Council of the latest funding
announcement of 2 July 2020 is unknown, assuming all other assumptions remain intact,
the Council's £20m shortfall will reduce. The extent of any improvement is not yet known.

8.6

The funding package from Government includes the following:


An additional non-ringfenced national grant allocation of £500m
To date the Council has received £12m from a national allocation of £3.2bn. £500m
represents a further 15% on top of the current £3.2bn allocation. The Government
has indicated that the distribution methodology for this latest £500m will not be the
same as the previous distribution methodologies.



Non Tax Income Scheme
Some re-imbursement for irrecoverable income losses (£15m for PCC) but only from
some of the affected income streams



Irrecoverable Tax Losses
Government have stated that they will consider the issue of irrecoverable Council
Tax and Business Rates (£2m for PCC) as part of the forthcoming Spending Review.

9.

Other Financial Support Provided Directly by Central Government

9.1

Outside of the £12m provided to the City Council (from the £3.2bn national sum) to deal with
the immediate more general impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic, Central Government has
provided additional funding / financial support on a more targeted basis to particular sectors.
Some of this funding has been channelled through Local Authorities to distribute whilst other
funding has been allocated direct.
Local Authority Administered Funding

9.2

Funding administered by the City Council is summarised below:
 Council Tax - A £1.9m allocation from the National Hardship Relief Fund - this has
provided the 8,500 households in Portsmouth in receipt of Local Council Tax Support
with a further £150 reduction in their Council Tax bill.
 Business Rate Relief - £46m Business Rate Relief. This provides 1,609 businesses
in the Retail, Hospitality and Leisure sectors with 100% reduction in their Business
Rates for 2020/21.
 Business Rate Relief - £0.4m Business Rate Relief. This provides 34 Nurseries in
the City with a 100% reduction in their Business Rates for 2020/21.

Page 186

 Small Business Grants - £21.7m to provide 2,178 Small Businesses with a £10,000
grant.
 Retail Hospitality & Leisure Grant - £17.9m to provide 967 businesses in the Retail,
Hospitality and Leisure sectors with a grant of either £10,000 or £25,000 depending
on the size of their property.
 Discretionary Grant Fund - £1.9m to provide grant funding of up to £10,000 (and
exceptionally £25,000) for small businesses that "fell through the cracks" of the grant
schemes for the Small Business Grants and Retail, Hospitality and Leisure Grants.
 Rough Sleeping Grant - £19,000 to support rough sleepers or those at risk of rough
sleeping to self-isolate and prevent the spread of Covid-19.
 Emergency Accommodation and Rough Sleepers - £105 million to help local
authorities implement a range of support interventions for people placed into
emergency accommodation during the COVID-19 pandemic. This includes
supporting moves into the private rented sector, helping individuals to reconnect with
friends or family, and extending or procuring interim accommodation.
 Infection Control Fund - £1.5m to support adult social care providers, including those
with whom the Local Authority does not have a contract, to reduce the rate of Covid19 transmission in and between care homes and support wider workforce resilience.
 Test and Trace service - £1.6m to develop tailored outbreak control plans, working
with local NHS and other stakeholders to reduce the spread of the virus in their area.
 Re-opening High Streets Safely - £191,000 to support a range of practical safety
measures including new signs, street markings and temporary barriers.
 Emergency Active Travel Fund - £961,000 (indicative allocation) to protect and
increase transport services, level up infrastructure and regenerate local economies
after the coronavirus (Covid-19) outbreak. To allow people to travel to hospitals,
supermarkets or their place of work, to get to their destination safely and quickly,
while helping ensure there is enough space for them to observe social distancing
guidelines.

10.

Conclusion

10.1

In total over £27bn of funding has been provided by Government both directly and indirectly
to Local Authority areas to support the Covid-19 pandemic response. Nevertheless, the
City Council is facing a forecast financial shortfall of some £20m after all government funding
received to date has been taken into account.

10.2

Whilst the £20m financial shortfall may reduce, it is still expected that the residual shortfall
will be a serious cause for concern for the Council and, if realised may require the Council
to consider a revision to its Budget during the year. Given the level of uncertainty attached
to this forecast, it is premature to consider revising the Budget at this stage. The Council
does, however, have an obligation to plan responsibly in order to protect the financial
resilience of the Council which underpins the continued delivery of its critical and essential
services throughout this pandemic.

Page 187

10.3

The financial strategy contained in Section 8 of this report identifies the measures that need
to take place to meet the Council's obligations for the prudent management of the Council's
financial affairs, and enables the Council to continue to operate under the normal budget
management framework until such time as the overall financial position is known with
greater certainty.

11.

Integrated Impact Assessment (EIA)

11.1

An integrated impact assessment is not required at this time since no spending decisions
are being proposed as part of the proposed strategy.

12.

City Solicitor’s Comments

12.1

The Council has a legal responsibility to set and maintain a "Balanced Budget" and the
Cabinet has a responsibility to deliver its services within the Budget approved by Full
Council. The Cabinet has authority to approve the recommendations made in this report.

13.

S.151 Officer's Comments

13.1

All of the financial information is reflected in the body of the report.

………………………………………………
Signed by: Section 151 Officer

Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972
The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a material
extent by the author in preparing this report:
Title of document
Various Government communications

Location
Office of Director of Finance & Resources

The recommendation(s) set out above were approved / approved as amended / deferred / rejected
by the Cabinet on 14 July 2020.

………………………………………………
Signed by: Leader of Portsmouth City Council

Page 188

Agenda Item 13
UK Municipal Bonds Agency Framework Agreement

Title of meeting:

Cabinet
City Council

Date of meeting:

14 July 2020 (Cabinet)
21 July 2020 (City Council)

Subject:

UK Municipal Bonds Agency Framework Agreement

Report by:

Chris Ward, Director of Finance and Resources (Section
151 Officer)

Wards affected:

All

Key decision:

Yes

Full Council decision:

Yes

1. Purpose of report
The purpose of the report is to obtain the Council's approval to enter into a
framework agreement with the UK Municipal Bonds Agency (MBA). Entering
in to the framework agreement is a pre-requisite for borrowing from the UK
MBA. The framework agreement includes a guarantee under which the
Council would be guaranteeing the borrowing of other local authorities. The
guarantee is necessary to enable the UK MBA to lend to local authorities at
rates below those offered by the Public Works Loans Board (PWLB). The
Council's liability under the guarantee is limited to its proportion of the UK
MBA's non-defaulting loans up to a sum equal to the Council's total borrowing
from the UK MBA. In addition, the UK MBA will assess the credit worthiness
of each local authority at the time of accession to the framework agreement,
at the time of entry into a loan, and at least annually thereafter.

1

Page 189

UK Municipal Bonds Agency Framework Agreement

2. Recommendation
(a) That the Council enter into a framework agreement with the UK
Municipal Bonds Agency;
(b) That the City Solicitor (Monitoring Officer) and the Director of
Finance and Resources (Section 151 Officer) be given delegated
authority to sign the Framework Agreement and the Certificate of
Approval confirming that:
(1) the Council has the power to enter into the Framework Agreement
and to perform its obligations under it;
(2) the Council has approved the entering into of the Framework
Agreement and the proportional guarantee;
(3) all the necessary authorisations have been obtained and decision
making procedures followed and completed to enable the Council
to enter into the Framework Agreement and the proportional
guarantee.
3.

Background
Most local authority borrowing is undertaken with the Public Works Loans
Board (PWLB). The PWLB accounts of 84% of the City Council's
borrowing. PWLB rates are driven by gilt rates, ie. government borrowing,
but include a margin. PWLB rates were raised to 1% above gilts in 2010
(from 0.2% above gilts previously), subsequently reduced to 0.8% above
gilts in 2012. PWLB rates were raised again to 1.8% above gilts in
October 2019, subsequently rates for Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
borrowing were reduced back to 0.8% in March 2020. This is an effective
increase of 1.6% for borrowing by the General Fund. The PWLB has a
long history of changing the amount, and the rate at which it lends to local
authorities.
The Government is currently consulting on new PWLB lending terms
which could include a reduction in PWLB rates for borrowing by the
General Fund, but could also exclude authorities undertaking commercial
activities. The Government's definition of commercial activities is currently
unclear, but the Government has indicated that it could include acquiring
income generating assets, other than housing, with the intention of
holding them indefinitely. This could include some of the Council's long
established activities including the commercial port.

2

Page 190

UK Municipal Bonds Agency Framework Agreement

The Local Government Association (LGA) has set up a municipal bonds
agency. The municipal bonds agency will sell bonds in the capital markets.
These are tradable debt instruments where by pension funds, financial
institutions and other lenders will lend to the municipal bonds agency. The
municipal bonds agency will then lend the funds raised to local authorities.
This should increase competition in the market and reduce the cost of local
authority borrowing.
The Council has previously purchased £150,000 of ordinary shares in the UK
MBA. The UK MBA is now close to issuing its first bonds to facilitate
borrowing by groups of local authorities. In order to grow the UK MBA, and to
ensure its survival, it is now necessary for local authorities to enter into the
framework agreement and to borrow from the UK MBA.
4.

Reasons for recommendations
The reasons for the recommendation is to reduce the Council's dependence
on the PWLB and to continue to help facilitate the development of the UK
MBA which would offer a number of long term benefits including:
 Cheaper access to borrowing for local authorities than that offered by the
PWLB;
 Loans from the municipal bonds agency should be cheaper to reschedule
(ie. redeem and replace);
 Increased opportunities for local authorities to lend to each other;
 Insulate local authorities from future policy changes by the PWLB
regarding access and interest rates.
The Council has previously purchased £150,000 of ordinary shares in the UK
MBA. If local authorities do not borrow from the UK MBA, this investment will
be lost.

5.

Integrated impact assessment
The contents of this report does not significantly impact Portsmouth's
communities (other than through the finances of the City Council), or equality
and diversity.

6.

Legal Implications

6.1

The UK Municipal Bonds Agency (UKMBA) is a lending body owned by local
authorities and the Local Government Association. Its purpose is to provide
loan finance to local authorities at favourable interest rates.

6.2

The Framework Agreement is the form of overarching loan document through
which the UKMBA's pooled credit arrangement operates.
3

Page 191

UK Municipal Bonds Agency Framework Agreement

6.3

The contributions mechanism and proportional guarantee embodied in the
Framework Agreement are central elements in the credit structure which
effectively provide the level of assurance to the loan finance market required
to secure the favourable loan rates for local authorities.

6.4

The contributions mechanism and proportional guarantee do entail a degree
of financial risk exposure to the Council in that they could operate to make the
Council liable for the default of other Local Authorities in respect of payments
under loans taken from the UKMBA.

6.5

There are, however, factors which help to mitigate this risk and, in particular:






6.6

UKMBA undertakes to assess rigorously the credit status of any local
authority before advancing any loan finance and to keep that assessment
under regular review.
The Council's liability under the contributions mechanism and the proportional
guarantee will be subject to a cash limit equal to the total amount borrowed by
the Council from the Agency and outstanding at any given time.
The Council's liability under the guarantee is proportional to the Council's
share of the UKMBA's loan book at the time when a demand is made under
the guarantee. Other local authorities taking loan finance under the scheme
will also be required to give the requisite guarantee proportional to their own
outstanding borrowing from the UKMBA.
Significant liability for the Council under contributions mechanism and the
proportional guarantee is only likely to arise in the event of multiple local
authority financial failures.
It is noted that in addition to executing the Framework Agreement the Council
will be required to provide to UKMBA a Certificate of Approval signed by the
Council's Monitoring Officer and s151 Officer confirming that (1) the Council
has power to enter into the Framework Agreement and to perform its
obligations under it (2) the Council has approved the entering into of the
Framework Agreement and the proportional guarantee and (3) all necessary
authorisations have been obtained and decision making procedures followed
and completed to enable the Council to enter into the Framework Agreement
and the proportional guarantee.

4

Page 192

UK Municipal Bonds Agency Framework Agreement

7.

Director of Finance and Resources (Section 151 Officer)’s comments

All financial considerations are contained within the body of the report and the
attached appendices

………………………………………………
Signed by Director of Finance and Resources (Section 151 Officer)

Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government
Act 1972
The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied
upon to a material extent by the author in preparing this report:
Title of document
1
UKMBA Final Framework
Agreement

Location
Financial Services

5

Page 193

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 15

Title of meeting:

Cabinet

Date of meeting:

14 July 2020 (report previously published for 26 March Cabinet)

Subject:

Board Composition of Portsmouth City Council companies

Report by:

City Solicitor

Wards affected:

All

Key decision:

No

Full Council decision:

No

1.

.

Purpose

1.1

This report sets out the basis upon which it is necessary and prudent to structure
the Ravelin Group of companies. The basis for this is to provide an appropriate
vehicle to enable company activity to occur that is efficient, legally accountable and
transparent. The need to structure as suggested is to enable PCC to trade and
generate profit beyond merely covering the initial cost of the activity.

1.2

Given the general power of competence under the Localism Act is not an absolute it
is to be remembered that the ability to charge and or trade are constrained by
sections 3 and 4 to the extent that the default position is to correctly structure a
trading arm with this in mind.

1.3

Given that the position is that to trade effectively structures within a company
construct need to be created the paper sets out below in detail the obligations and
responsibilities of the Directors, Members and Officers in a liability and behaviour
sense as if they are acting outside the PCC environment.

1.4

It is to be noted that the structuring suggested is aimed at protecting those involved
and enabling onlookers to be satisfied that such companies as PCC have are being
commercially run and effectively governed by the relevant elected Members involved.

1.5

The purpose of this report is to provide Members with advice on the board
composition of companies to which Portsmouth City Council ("PCC") is the sole
shareholder and in particular to approve the necessary constitutional internal
decision making structures in terms of exercising the PCC shareholder function
going forward.

1.6

To activate the dormant Ravelin Group of companies which were set up following a
Council decision on 12 April 2016.

1 195
Page

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

1.7

To draw from best practice guidance and expert external legal advice in terms of local
authority companies generally as well as the legal responsibilities of company
directors whilst seeking to operate in a collaborative and transparent manner.

1.8

Make recommendations on the governance structure of the Ravelin Group to enable
the subsidiary companies to begin trading as well as providing advice relevant to all
companies under the control of PCC so that Members may wish to decide (in light of
the advice and recent experience) whether a protocol is to be developed to ensure
consistency in the future management of PCC controlled companies by way of a
shareholder committee structure.

1.9

This report sets out options in terms of PCC owned company director board
membership composition, taking the following into account:i.
ii.
iii.
iv.
v.
vi.

vii.

The expert external legal advice sought1;
Best practice generally
The legal responsibilities of company directors as set out in statue and at
common law;
Potential conflicts of risk - members; and
Potential conflicts of risk - statutory officer.
The membership of any board when PCC are seeking to rely on a particular
legal exception pursuant to the Public Contract Regulations 2015 ("PCR's");
and
The desire to work in a uniform, collaboratively and transparent manner
across PCC as a whole.

2.

Recommendations

2.1

It is recommended that:

2.2

The City Solicitor prepares and drafts a protocol (drawn from best practice and expert
advice - attached at Appendix A and Appendix D) approved by the Governance and
Audit Committee as a reference and guide for the overall corporate governance
structure (i.e. company structure and board composition) relating to PCC owned
companies and incorporated within the PCC's constitution.

2.3

In accordance with the protocol at Appendix A, that the following be approved in
respect of the Ravelin Group companies:

2.4

A shareholder committee is established and is responsible for the oversight of the
Ravelin Group companies and all other future company subsidiaries (where
relevant):-

2.5

The Ravelin Group Shareholder Committee and draft terms of reference set out in
detail in Appendix B are approved.

1

Bevan Brittan - Board Composition advice at appendix A

Page 2196
www.portsmouth.gov.uk

2.6

Following the approval of the establishment of the Ravelin Group shareholder
committee the previous delegations as contained within the cabinet decision meeting
dated 26 February 2019 shall cease and the shareholder committee shall become
the sole body exercising the shareholder functions of Ravelin Group companies.

2.7

Any amendments to finalise the corporate structure of the Ravelin Group and all
relevant subsidiaries required to maximise the tax efficiency of the Ravelin Group
and any other PCC companies is delegated to the City Solicitor in consultation with
the Leader of the Council and the S.151 Officer.

3.

Background

3.1.

The Board composition of the companies owned and controlled by PCC has been
comprehensively reviewed and considered in the context of :(i)

(ii)
(iii)

3.2.

PCC is currently the sole shareholder/wholly owns the following companies:





3.3.

best practice (including advantages and disadvantages of appropriately
experienced external directors on such board(s) in the Local Authority
context);
external legal advice in relation to potential conflicts of interest; and
legal duties enshrined by common law and statue required of company
directors hold.

Ravelin Property Limited;
Ravelin Group Limited.
Portico Shipping Limited;
Victory Energy Supply Limited.

Following the Ravelin Group cabinet report dated 26 February 2018 a review of the
current structure of Ravelin Group Limited ("Ravelin Group") and Ravelin Property
Limited ("Ravelin Property") was carried out. The current board membership is set
out below for reference.
Ravelin Hold Co

Ravelin Property

Tristan Samuels
Wayne Layton
Julian Pike

Tristan Samuels
Tom Southall
Julian Pike

3.4.

It will be noted that when these companies were initially incorporated they included
statutory officers and Members of the then administration.

4.

The Shareholder

4.1.

The shareholders are the owners of any company. In all current cases PCC is the
sole shareholder of PCC owned companies. In relation to Ravelin, PCC is the sole
shareholder of Ravelin Hold Co which in turn, is the sole shareholder of Ravelin
Property and potentially any further subsidiaries.
3 197
Page

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

4.2.

Shareholders control a company through the appointment and removal of directors
and certain statutory rights. In addition, shareholders may exercise control in
accordance with rights given to them either in the articles or a separate contract with
the company: "a shareholder's agreement".

4.3.

The shareholder's agreement will put mechanisms in place to provide PCC with
strategic control over the operation of the company through the right to approve a
business plan and the requirement that certain listed decisions - "reserved matters".
Reserved matters are those which are referred back to PCC and are not within the
ability of the directors to decide upon. Whether or not the company is to be structured
as a Teckal company or not (see section 10 below above) will have an impact on the
reserved matters.

4.4.

An example set of reserved matters which seek to ensure that control of the
company is reserved to PCC as Shareholder are found within schedule 1 of the
Bevan Brittan advice2. For example:-

4.5.

i.

The removal of any directors (including any terms on which such directors
are removed from their office as directors) other than Council appointed
directors;

ii.

Adopting or amending the Business Plan of each respective Company and
any in-year changes; and

iii.

Agreeing or approving any other material services to be provided by the
Company to a third party the total value of which the Board reasonably
expects will exceed £100,000 [value used for example purchases only].

There are a number of ways upon which PCC can exercise the shareholder function.
The premise is about the strategic control over the companies' activities and
therefore the legal advice concludes it is usual for this function to be exercised by
the Members of PCC. Depending on the level of control retained under the
shareholder's agreement this could be through all shareholder decisions:4.5.1. going to Cabinet;
4.5.2. a committee of Cabinet (shareholder committee) being established to
undertake some or all decisions (see point 5 below), or,
4.5.3. certain decisions being delegated to certain Members (e.g. portfolio holder)
and / or senior officers.

Note - It could well be that the structure of the governance of any PCC company is a mixture
of all three - noting that PCC (acting as shareholder) can delegate any decision making as
per the above.
5.

2Bevan

Shareholder Committee.

Brittan - Board Composition advice - appendix A - schedule 1

Page 4198
www.portsmouth.gov.uk

5.1.

The Cabinet has authority to undertake shareholder functions of Ravelin Hold Co
and to supervise and approve any substantial matters of any subsidiary company.
There is a need to ensure that decision making is both flexible and conducted in a
timely manner whilst noting the need to conflict of interest issues.

5.2.

The proposed governance structure for the Ravelin Group of companies is
contained within appendix B. This sees a proposal of a new shareholder committee
being established. This model could be equally applied to other PCC owned
companies.

5.3.

The shareholder committee shall consist of a majority from the Administration and 1
Member from all other parties, drawn from the elected Members of the Council.
Subject to below, other Members of the Council (who are not directors of any of the
companies concerned) may attend and vote as substitutes in the event that an
appointed Member of the Shareholder Committee is unable to attend.

5.4.

As the role of the Shareholder Committee is to advise and discharge executive
functions in relation to company matters and to exercise the role of the Shareholder
Representative, only Cabinet members can be members of the Shareholder
Committee with voting rights, although other Cabinet members and non-Cabinet
members can be invited to attend, without voting rights along with 1 member from
each opposition group who shall be invited to attend who will not have voting rights.

5.5.

The Leader will be the chairman of the Shareholder Committee and will have the
casting vote in the event that a majority decision cannot be reached. A Vice Chair
will be selected from the elected members of the Shareholder Committee.

5.6

The necessary quorum for the meeting will be no less than 3 elected and vote rights
bearing Cabinet Members of the Council present.

5.7.

Meetings

5.7.1 The Shareholder Committee will meet as regularly as required to ensure proper
exercise of its functions but not less than quarterly.
5.7.2 The members of the Shareholder Committee may invite the Chief Executive,
Section 151 Officer, City Solicitor, Officer of the Council or their deputies and any
other persons as required who will be the advisors to the Shareholder Committee.
5.7.3 It is anticipated that the directors of companies will be invited if their input is
required to make an informed decision.
5.8.

Administration

5.8.1 The agenda of the meeting together with any supporting documentation will be
provided to members of the Shareholder Committee at least 5 working days in
advance. This notice period may be waived if the Chair of the Shareholder
Committee so agrees.
5 199
Page

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

5.8.2 The meetings of the Shareholder Committee will be minuted which will
subsequently be approved at the next meeting.
5.9

It is proposed that following the approval of the establishment of the shareholder
committee, the structure of Ravelin Group shall look as described in appendix B:
If approved, the role of the shareholder committee shall be as detailed in the terms of reference
(appendix B) and summarised below:-



Exercise shareholder function of Ravelin Group companies;



Approve or reject business plans of Ravelin Group Companies;



Monitor performance and financial delivery against business plans;



Exercise decision making over Reserved Matters;



Approve or reject appointment of directors.

6.

The role of a director.

6.1.

The role of the director does have some limitations placed upon it, as appointed
directors will be in control of the operation and management of a company subject
to the control of PCC acting as shareholder (as prescribed by the shareholders
agreement) (see: shareholder at section 4 above).

6.2.

Many of the duties of directors were not prescribed by statue but rather, have evolved
through the courts and have become established in the body of case law. Including
(but not limited to):-

6.3.

i.

fundamental duty of all directors and those acting in a fiduciary capacity to act
honestly and in good faith and in the best interests of the company and its
members as a whole; and

ii.

a duty to exercise a reasonable degree of skill and care in any dealings
between the company and third parties.

The companies Act 2006 codified such director's duties and sets out a statutory
statement of duties - this is detailed at section 8 below. It should be noted that this
is not a comprehensive list of duties and does not covers all duties that a director
may owe to a company.

Size and composition.
6.4.

There is no set size or composition of a board of any local authority owned company.
The company purpose will affect the structure, including whether the entity is to be
a 'Teckal' company or not (see section 10 below). The issues PCC should consider
in respect of the board composition of each company include (but are not limited to):

Page 6200
www.portsmouth.gov.uk

i.

the appropriate mix of skills and experience required;

ii.

the extent to which any board will be made up of executive or non-executive
members. Executive being those who are employees of the company, and
non-executive being those not employed, being either officers or members
from PCC and / or independent directors;

iii.

the required mix of skills and experience required;

iv.

the need to demonstrate sufficient control when required for a Teckal
company (see section 10 below) independence if required to achieve noncontracting authority status).

v.

the potential conflicts which could hinder the effective operation of the board
or present issues for individuals when acting within PCC.

vi.

The purpose and commerciality of the company. The membership of the
board will need to comprise and to speak well with the market of the particular
speciality (housing development etc.) to ensure fluidity in terms of responding
to market needs.

6.4.1. The key terms of the letter(s) of appointment of directors, such terms will
include:i.

The availability of the director - noting the requirements for frequent
board meetings in the early trading phases; and

ii.

The need for flexibility in terms of last minute board meeting
requirements in cases of emergency decisions during the early
incorporation phase.

6.5.

The Bevan Brittan advice note 3 sets out the key considerations which should be
taken into account when looking at the relevant skills and experience of the board
(see section 6 of appendix A). This should be reviewed on a case by case basis for
any newly created company noting the objective and functions of the company.

6.6.

The relevant skills and experience of each individual director needs to be reviewed
against the company aims, purpose and functions (pursuant to the business case).
Bevan Brittan provide the example of: "if the property company is concerned with
implementation of development projects the board should have individuals
with skills and experience relevant to that function".

6.7.

In accordance with best practice, there should be a mechanism by which
independent people selected through open recruitment should be considered for
membership on any PCC owned company board on the basis of the specific skills,
expertise and experience.

3

Bevan Brittan - Board Composition advice - appendix A

7 201
Page

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

7.

Local Authority Companies - structures - best practice guidance.

7.1.

Deemed as "one of the notoriously difficult areas of law"4 is the issue of members
and officers being tasked with decision making requiring the disclosure of interests
in other external organisations (companies). This is apparent with issues arising out
of a conflict of interest when persons are involved in a dual capacity - i.e. a member
and/or statutory officer who is also a director.

7.2.

Members and officers who are appointed to act for external companies must keep at
the forefront of their minds that they will owe fiduciary duties to both PCC and any
relevant other company. When acting for PCC - acting in the best interests of the
Council, council taxpayers and the wider public interest. Equally if acting as a director
of a company as an officer and/or member ensuring they are acting in the best
interests of the company, meaning their shareholders, their employees and their
creditors.

7.3.

In January 2016, the Cabinet Office published Guidance for Directors of Companies
Fully or Partly owned by the Public Sector attached at appendix C. This is a helpful
note which highlighted the law5 regarding directors liabilities in terms of conflict and
indemnity.

7.4.

Following on from this the Code of Practice (committee structure and officer
example) developed by The Lawyers in Local Government Group (attached at
appendix D - ("the Code")) was drafted to assist local authorities to work their way
through difficult issues arising when setting up a wholly and/or party owned
company.

7.5.

The Code sets out a detailed best practice approach to the practical implications of
how a Council as a (shareholder) member of a company might make decisions
relating to that company through a separate Council shareholder committee
providing oversight from a shareholder's perspective of the company's business and
take relevant decisions on "reserved matters". - see section 4.4 above.

7.6.

The best practice guidance confirms (note the below in italics is taken directly from
the guidance provided within Appendix D):The structure [described above] creates a governance process whereby, so far as
appropriate under this Code’s principles, the company is left to get on with its
business. Following the UK Corporate Governance Code, the companies will utilise
a unified board, with appropriate non-executive directors providing outside expert
help and with board committees (such as an audit committee) to provide oversight
and ensure delivery.
The Leader, in turn, will seek to inform the executive decisions and to hold the
company to account by utilising a reflection of the company board structure in the
form of a Shareholder Committee, including external expertise and sub-groups. The

4
5

Local authority Companies and Partnerships - practical handbook - Robert Hann
s.117 Companies Act 2006

Page 8202
www.portsmouth.gov.uk

role of this group is to provide the necessary oversight from a shareholder’s
perspective that the parameters, policies and boundaries that the executive as the
shareholder has established for the company are being adhered to. In it, the Leader
(or his or her appointee) remains the decision maker but the shareholder
committee act as advisors in the making of those executive decisions.
Such a Shareholder Committee is considered to be an effective means of
governance of the companies. This is because it allows for decision making and
discussion in an informed atmosphere, which also provides the executive with:
•
•

a mechanism to communicate the shareholders’ views to the company; and
a means to evaluate the effectiveness of the company board and the delivery
of the company performance against strategic objectives.

It is intended that the Leader (or his/her appointee) will make most decisions
concerning the executive’s role in respect of company interests at meetings of the
Shareholder Committee (in a similar manner to the Leader’s executive decisions
made at various partnership boards and the health and well-being board).
It is envisaged that key decisions concerning the companies will, however, still
normally be made at meetings of the Cabinet.
8. Members.
As advised by Bevan Brittan, whilst members can be directors of PCC owned
companies, this can create conflict issues for members relating to:


the Code of Conduct for Members; and



the risk of decisions made by Members who are also directors of the
company being challenged on the basis of bias or predetermination or
bias.

8.1.

Directors who are Members must disclose any potential conflicts of interests and
observe the requirements of the Code of Conduct of PCC6 and a clear audit trail of
this is necessary. Members acting as directors need to bear in mind (when
undertaking their PCC role) to behave in ways which avoid any suggestion of bias
or predetermination.

8.2.

Whilst the Monitoring Officer ("MO") is potentially able (in limited and prescribed
circumstances) to grant a dispensation which covers disclosable pecuniary
interests7 this does not avoid always the potential of accusations of bias or
predetermination.

8.3.

It is difficult in practical terms for the member to deal with a matter and it lays both
the member and PCC open to allegations of bias and potential challenge.

6
7

Localism Act 2011
Localism Act 2011

9 203
Page

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

8.4.

Directors owe duties and are personally liable to a company (under both statute8 and
at common law - for example in relation to confidentiality). These duties are to:







Act within powers 9
Promote the success of the company10;
Exercise independent judgement 11;
Exercise reasonable skill, care and diligence12
Avoid conflicts of interest 13;
Not to accept benefits from third parties;14 and
Declare interest in a proposed transaction or arrangement with the
company15.

8.5.

Members acting as directors may be faced with regular conflicts in relation to the
above duties, in particular the duties to promote the success of the company, to
exercise independent judgement, and to avoid conflicts of interest.

9.

Officers.

9.1.

The Bevan Brittan advice16 does conclude that it is generally easier to manage the
conflicts for an "officer director" than for a Member as requirements around conflicts
are usually contained in the contract of employment or implied at common law. As
such, this is a key area that PCC must consider in terms of reviewing employment
terms as well as the letter of appointment for directors. PCC can agree to (i) officers
continuing to act despite potential conflicts; (ii) agree not to take action against them
where they are required to act contrary to the interests of PCC due to their role as
director; and (iii) agree to their remuneration as a director.

9.2.

The conflict issue is still very apparent however, and there is a risk that officers who
are also directors of PCC companies may (if they are involved in making decisions
about the company wearing their PCC officer hat) be open to challenge that their
decision is influenced by bias and/or by pre-determination (that they have made their
mind up because of the company role and are not making the decision objectively
and fairly).

9.3.

The Bevan Brittan advice17 concludes that the risk is best mitigated by PCC not
putting Council officers who are responsible for material decisions relating to
a company as directors of the company. Furthermore it concludes and advises
against statutory officers (monitoring officer, s.151 officer and the Head of
Paid Service) being appointed as directors as they may be required to
undertake their statutory roles in relation to the company at some point which
would raise difficult conflicts. Subject to the objects of the company, this could in
the future be extended to other 'statutory' directors such as Director of Children's

8

The majority consolidated within the Companies Act 2006 ("CA 2006")
s.171 CA 2006
10
s.172 CA 2006
11
s.173 CA 2006
12
s.174 CA 2006
13
s.175 CA 2006
14
s.176 CA 2006
15
s.177 CA 2006
16
Bevan Brittan - Board Composition advice - appendix A
17
Bevan Brittan - Board Composition advice - appendix A
9

Page 10
204
www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Services, Director of Adult Services and Director of Public Health being directors of
relevant companies.
9.4.

It should be noted that PCC (acting as shareholder) has the greater degree of control
and it is key to note the shareholders role to fully make any decision as to
membership of any PCC company board.

10. Teckal.
10.1.
The "Teckal" (named after the legal case) exemption allows for PCC to
structure a company in such a way so that contracts can be awarded without a tender
under the Public Contract Regulations ("PCRs")18 (i) by PCC to said company (ii) by
said company to PCC and (iii) by one company to another. PCC may potentially be
able to rely on this exemption if contracting with any of the companies in a way that
might otherwise trigger an obligation to run a compliant procurement - i.e. a direct
award. The PCR's prescribe a number of conditions which must be met in order for
the company to benefit from the exemption, including:-

10.2.



PCC must exercises a degree of control which is similar to that which
it exercises over its own departments (the control limb);



80% of the activities of the company are entrusted to it by PCC (the
activities limb); and



where there is no private participation in its capital.

If PCC wishes to use the Teckal exemption then the governance framework will
need to be designed and implemented to ensure compliance with the "control" limb
of the test, this will be prescribed within the shareholders agreement and include:

right to appoint and remove specified number of board directors;



sign off a periodic business plan – this may be an annual plan or a multiyear plan updated on a rolling basis; and



exercise control over key decisions through the requirement for
unanimous approval of certain reserved matters.

11.

Integrated Impact Assessment.

11.1.

The contents of this report do not have any relevant equalities impact and therefore
an Integrated Impact Assessment is not required.

12.

Legal implications

12.1.

The City Solicitor's comments are contained within this report.

18

Regulation 12(1) Public Contract Regulations 2015

11 205
Page

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

13.

Director of Finance's comments

13.1.

There are no additional financial implications expected to arise from the
recommendations contained within this report.

………………………………………………
Signed by:

Appendices:
Appendix A- Bevan Brittan - Board Composition Advice
Appendix B - Ravelin Group Shareholder Committee and draft terms of reference
Appendix C - published Guidance for Directors of Companies Fully or Partly owned by the Public Sector
Appendix D - Code of Practice (committee structure and officer example) developed by The Lawyers in
Local Government Group

Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972
The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a material extent by the
author in preparing this report:
Title of document

Location

The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ deferred/ rejected by
……………………………… on ………………………………

………………………………………………
Signed by:

Page 12
206
www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Appendix B
Ravelin Group Shareholder committee
TERMS OF REFERENCE

1. Purpose of the Shareholder Committee

1.1. The purpose of the Shareholder Committee is to exercise the shareholder
functions of the Council for Ravelin Group companies and provide the
strategic oversight and guidance and to represent the Council as Shareholder
Representative at meetings with the companies.

1.2. In particular, the Shareholder Committee will be responsible for:

1.2.1.

Incorporating and winding down of any Ravelin Group companies,
including constitutional matters such as:-

1.2.1.1. Varrying Articles of Association;
1.2.1.2. Changing the names of companies and registered addresses;
1.2.2.

Approving Shareholders Agreements;

1.2.3.

Approving the annual Business Plans of the companies;

1.2.4.

Approving any action which is inconsistent with the approved
Business Plan;

1.2.5.

Monitoring performance of the companies against the approved
Business Plans;

1.2.6.

In consultation with Section 151 Officer, approving any investment of
funds together with any terms of loan agreement to Ravelin Group
companies;

1.2.7.

Appointing and dismissing of directors;

1.2.8.

Approving major business transactions;

1.2.9.

Approving the issuing or reduction of share capital;

1.2.10.

Approving the appointing of the auditors; and

1.2.11.

Approving any other matter which is defined as the Reserved Matter
in Shareholders Agreements.

Page 207

2. Membership
2.1.

The shareholder committee shall consist of a majority from the Administration
and 1 Member from all other parties, drawn from the elected Members of the
Council. Subject to below, other Members of the Council (who are not
directors of any of the companies concerned) may attend and vote as
substitutes in the event that an appointed Member of the Shareholder
Committee is unable to attend.

2.2.

As the role of the Shareholder Committee is to advise and discharge
executive functions in relation to company matters and to exercise the role of
the Shareholder Representative, only Cabinet members can be members of
the Shareholder Committee with voting rights, although other Cabinet
members and non-Cabinet members can be invited to attend, without voting
rights.

2.3

The Leader will be the chairman of the Shareholder Committee and will have
the casting vote in the event that a majority decision cannot be reached. A
Vice Chair will be selected from the elected members of the Shareholder
Committee.

2.4

The necessary quorum for the meeting will be no less than 3 elected and vote
rights bearing Cabinet Members of the Council present.

3. Meetings

3.1

The Shareholder Committee will meet as regularly as required to ensure
proper exercise of its functions but not less than quarterly.

3.2

The members of the Shareholder Committee may invite the Chief Executive,
Section 151 Officer, City Solicitor, Officer of the Council or their deputies and
any other persons as required who will be the advisors to the Shareholder
Committee.

3.3

It is anticipated that the directors of companies will be invited if their input is
required to make an informed decision.

4. Administration

4.1

The agenda of the meeting together with any supporting documentation will
be provided to members of the Shareholder Committee at least 5 working
days in advance. This notice period may be waived if the Chair of the
Shareholder Committee so agrees.

4.2

The meetings of the Shareholder Committee will be minuted which will
subsequently be approved at the next meeting.

Page 208

Page 209

This page is intentionally left blank

Guidance for Directors
of companies fully or
partly owned by the
public sector
January 2016

Page 211

© Crown copyright 2016
Produced by Cabinet Office
You may re-use this information (excluding logos) free of charge in any format or
medium, under the terms of the Open Government Licence. To view this licence,
visit http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence/ or
email: psi@nationalarchives.gsi.gov.uk
Where we have identified any third party copyright material you will need to obtain
permission from the copyright holders concerned.
Alternative format versions of this report are available on request from
FED@cabinetoffice.gov.uk.

Page 212

Contents
About this guidance

4

Who should read this Guidance?

4

Director’s responsibilities and duties

5

All company Directors

5

Directors appointed by a public sector body

5

Conflicts of interest

7

Liabilities and Indemnity protection

9

Directors’ Liabilities

9

Indemnity protection

9

Other resources

10

Page 213

About this guidance
This guidance paper is to help Directors of companies owned by the public sector (e.g. joint
venture companies), in full or in part, to understand their duties and responsibilities, including
identifying and managing conflicts of interest. It should be read in the context of other
documents that cover aspects of public sector governance and ethical guidelines including
but not limited to:
•
•
•
•

Managing Public Money (MPM) (specifically the principles and standards set out in section
1.1 of the MPM)
Code of Conduct for Board Members of Public Bodies
Guidance on Probity and Conflicts of Interest for Public Appointments
The Civil Service Code

Who should read this Guidance?
All Directors of companies fully or partly owned by the public sector.
"Director" is defined, under section 250 of the Companies Act 2006, to include any person
occupying the position of director, by whatever name called, which includes de facto
directors (i.e. not formally appointed but carry out all the duties of and makes decisions as a
director) and shadow directors (i.e. anyone who is directly ‘calling the shots’ at a company or
an area within the company).

Page 214

Director’s responsibilities and duties
All company Directors
Notwithstanding civil service and public sector responsibilities, all Directors of companies
have legal responsibilities, as defined under the Companies Act 2006, and under a wide
variety of other laws and regulations such as insolvency and health and safety legislation.
The general duties of directors are set out in Chapter 2 of Part 10 of the Companies Act
2006:•
•
•
•
•
•
•

to act within powers in accordance with the company’s constitution and to use those
powers only for the purposes for which they were conferred
to promote the success of the company for the benefit of its members as a whole
to exercise independent judgement
to exercise reasonable care, skill and diligence
to avoid conflicts, or possible conflicts between interests as a Director and the interests of
the company
not to accept benefits from third parties, if they may be regarded as likely to give rise to a
conflict of interest
to declare any direct or indirect interest in a proposed transaction or arrangement.

Directors appointed by a public sector body
Directors appointed by a public sector body have the same responsibilities as any other
director under the Companies Act 2006. They must also continue to act in accordance with
other applicable legislation, relevant civil service and public sector guidelines, including
around managing public money and standards for conduct in public life.
It is worth noting that a civil servant’s responsibilities to the relevant Government Department
can place demands on him / her as director that make it unrealistic to expect the same
degree of independence as one can expect from a director that is not a civil servant. This can
sometimes create apparent or real conflicts of interest between the priorities of the relevant
Government Department and of the Company in question.
These potential conflicts should be explored and resolved when the respective Company is
established and when individual Directors are appointed, including making sure there is
effective governance in place .. This may include seeking advice from e.g. Her Majesty’s
Treasury (HMT), Cabinet Office (CO), The Shareholder Executive (ShEx) and external advice.
In line with the MPM guidance of this type of conflict, Directors of public bodies which are
constituted as a company should take care that fulfilling these personal responsibilities does
not conflict with their duties as a board member of a public body.

Page 215

Useful contacts:
Cabinet Office (Commercial Models): Thomas Vogt-Skard (Tel 07920 703092)
Useful resources include:
•
•
•
•

Managing Public Money (HMT)
Code of Conduct for Board Members of Public Bodies (CO)
Guidance on Probity and Conflicts of Interest for Public Appointments DCMS
The Civil Service Code (Civil Service)

Page 216

Conflicts of interest
All Directors have a legal duty to avoid conflicts of interest.
Section 175 of the Companies Act 2006 sets out the directors’ duty to avoid conflicts of
interest; Section 175(1) of the same states that: “A director of a company must avoid a
situation in which he has, or can have, a direct or indirect interest that conflicts, or possibly
may conflict, with the interests of the company.”…
For a Director who is a public servant, a conflict of interest might occur where e.g.:
•

•

there are conflicts between different professional duties (“professional conflicts of
interest”). For example where a Director is a member of two boards, or where a Director
has competing loyalties to their public sector employer and the commercial venture to
which they have been appointed director; or
there are conflicts between Director duties and private interests, for example a financial or
family interest (“personal conflicts of interest”).

Conflicts of interest can be actual, potential or perceived.
•
•
•

Actual - there is a real conflict between duties and interests.
Potential - there could be a conflict between duties and interests.
Perceived - a third party could form the view that there is a conflict between duties and
interests.

It is impossible to define all instances of a conflict of interest, so in many cases a reasonable
degree of openness and judgment is required by Directors to assess the nature and extent of
a conflict of interest.
Under s175(4) of the Companies Act 2006 the duty to avoid conflicts of interest is not
infringed—
•
•

if the situation cannot reasonably be regarded as likely to give rise to a conflict of interest;
or
if the matter has been authorised by the directors.

The duty to avoid conflicts of interest will continue to apply after a person ceases to be a
director as regards the exploitation of any property, information or opportunity of which he
became aware when he was a director.
All conflicts of interest must be disclosed to the board of Directors (excluding the director
affected). If you are unsure whether you have a conflict of interest it is always better to
disclose it to your board and consider seeking independent legal advice. Directors who are
public servants should also disclose the matter to their line manager.

Page 217

There will be situations, determined on a case by case basis, in which conflicts of interest can
be managed. For example, there may be scope within the organisation’s constitutional
documents (in its current form or as properly amended) to:
•
•
•

reserve certain issues to be decided by specific participants only, rather than the entire
board
impose a restriction on directors from voting on issues where they may have a conflicting
interest
expressly allow a director to vote on a matter in which they have a conflicting interest,
provided that the nature and extent of the conflict is fully disclosed to the board

A failure to acknowledge and manage a conflict of interest could cause a significant
reputational risk, may result in disqualification and have financial consequences for the
Director. Moreover, some conflicts can also have criminal implications. Remember, if you
think you might have a conflict of interest, always disclose it and consider seeking
independent legal advice.

Page 218

Liabilities and Indemnity protection
Directors’ Liabilities
Chapter 7 of Part 10 of the Companies Act 2006 deals with directors' liabilities.
The directors' duties are owed to the company, so shareholders or third parties will normally
only have a cause of action against the company, not against individual directors, where
directors breach their duties.
However, directors may also incur personal liabilities, both civil and criminal, for their acts or
omissions in directing the company. It is beyond the scope of this guidance to list all the
various matters for which directors can be held to be liable but Directors can be exposed to
numerous claims for personal liability arising from wrongdoing while managing the company.
For example, a director may incur liability:
•
•
•
•

•

To the company for breach of the director's general duties under the Companies Act
2006 or for wrongful trading under the Insolvency Act 1986;
To third parties, such as an investor for misrepresentation;
To employees for discrimination under the Equality Act 2010;
Under legislation imposing personal liability on directors, such as health and safety
legislation, environmental legislation, the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, the
Corporate Manslaughter and Corporate Homicide Act 2007 and the Bribery Act 2010;
and
For costs incurred in defending civil, criminal or regulatory proceedings.

Indemnity protection
Where there is a publicly owned company, Government will decide on a case by case basis,
with regard to the Companies Act 2006 whether it will offer any kind of indemnity to
Directors. Under section 232(1) of the Companies Act 2006, any provision that purports to
exempt a director (to any extent) from any liability that would otherwise attach to the director
in connection with any negligence, default, breach of duty or breach of trust in relation to the
company is void.
Paragraph A5.4.19 of the MPM guidance provides additional clarification of the Government’s
position on indemnifying Directors; setting out that it is common for departments to give
certain kinds of indemnity to civil servants involved in legal proceedings or formal enquiries as
a consequence of their employment, perhaps by acting as a board member of a company.
Please refer to the MPM guidance for more information.

Page 219

Other resources
Some other resources that Directors may wish to consult include:
•
•

•

The National Audit Office has published a report on managing conflicts of interest in the
public sector.
Training courses for civil servants that are company directors are available both from Civil
Service Learning (CSL) and suitable training for company directors is also available from
the Institute of Directors (IoD).
UK Corporate Governance Code.

Page 220

GUIDANCE
NOTE
THE GOVERNANCE OF COUNCIL INTERESTS IN COMPANIES
- CODE OF PRACTICE (cabinet and scrutiny example)
Contents
1.
Introduction

1

2.

Background
(a) local authority trading
(b) the local authority company
(c) other local authority entities

1

3.

Guidance

5

4.

Principles of Governance of Council Companies
I. Controls and freedoms
II. Relationship, integrity and accountability
III. Understanding of roles

5

5.

Ownership and Control of the Company

7

6.

The Shareholder Group

9

7.

Scrutiny

10

8.

Investment and Finance

12

9.

Companies Structure

12

10.

The Company’s Board

13

11.

Conflicts of Interest

16

12.

Managed Services, Support Arrangements and Employees

17

Appendices
A1.

Shareholder Group Terms of Reference

20

A2.

Shareholder Agreement Outline

24

Page 221

A3.

Director’s duties Briefing Note

CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES
CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE

Page 222

25

Pg 1
February 2018

The Governance of Council Interests in Companies Code of Practice
1.

Introduction

1.1

The purpose of this Code of Practice is to provide a reference point to the
Council [local authority] and interested parties (councillors, officers, company
representatives and contractors) in understanding the requirements of the
Council in setting up a local authority company, and in particular a local
authority trading company (LATC), and how the governance arrangements for
that company will work once set up.

1.2

The OECD/G20 helps define corporate governance by saying that it:
- “involves a set of relationships between a company’s management, its board,
its shareholders and other stakeholders; and
- “provides the structure through which the objectives of the company are set,
and the means of attaining those objectives and monitoring performance are
determined”.1

1.3

This Code of Practice therefore sets out how the Council will normally go about
managing those relationships and ensuring that a company will go on to deliver
the objectives established for it by the Council. It also briefly explains and
makes reference to the law and basic requirements placed upon a local
authority in establishing or owning companies.

1.4

The Code of Practice is set out as:
• an explanatory background;
• a set of guiding principles; and then
• a set of working expectations.

1.5

Attached, as appendices, are also key documents used in this process.

2.

Background
(a) Local authority trading and the local authority trading company 2

2.1

There are long-established powers for councils to trade. Among the most
important is the Local Authorities (Goods and Services) Act 1970, which
authorises councils to enter into agreements with other local authorities and
other designated public bodies, for the provision of goods, materials and
administrative, professional and technical services, for the use of vehicles, plant
and apparatus and associated staff, and for the carrying out of maintenance.
Payment terms are set out in an agreement. These are not limited to cost

“G20/OECD Principles of Corporate Governance - OECD Report to G20 Finance Ministers and
Central Bank Governors” - September 2015
2 Source: Local Government Association Briefing
1

CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES
CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE

Page 223

Pg 2
February 2018

recovery. The 1970 Act is the bedrock of trading within the public sector and
there is substantial experience of its operation. But the Act is limited in scope.
For example, it does not allow trading with the private sector or the public at
large. Other established trading powers are specific in nature, such as the Local
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, which enables councils to
enter into agreements with anyone for the use of spare computer capacity.
2.2

The Local Government Act 2003 added new possibilities to charge for services,
to both provide extra services at cost and to trade with the private sector. Under
the 2003 Act, the Government authorizes trading by means of a trading order.
The Trading Order currently in force was made in 20093, which permits all
councils in England to trade or "to do for a commercial purpose", anything which
they are authorised to do for the purpose of carrying on their ordinary functions,
which includes use of the granted general power of competence.

2.3

Under that 2003 Act and Trading Order, as augmented by the Localism Act
2011, for a local authority to exercise the power to do things for a commercial
purpose (which the authority couldn’t otherwise do), then it must be done
through a company. Councils are thus enabled to establish a company by which
they can trade with the private sector for a profit - that is to enter into commercial
contracts. The profits may then go back to the council through dividends or
service charges.

2.4

The reason given for this legislative requirement was that:
“local authorities and their trading arms have to be on a level playing field
with the private and commercial sector in both a positive and negative way.
They should not be at a disadvantage, but they should not have an
outstanding advantage. Taxation is a particular issue. It is right to carry
forward the requirement that such bodies should be companies and trading
as such.”

2.5

To exercise the power to establish a company and trade, a local authority must
first approve a business case ('a comprehensive statement') covering:
- the objectives of the business;
- the investment and other resources required to achieve those objectives;
- any risks the business might face and how significant these risks are; and
- the expected financial results of the business, together with any other
relevant outcomes that the business is expected to achieve.

2.6

That business case is then implemented and refreshed by way of a business
plan, which should be updated and submitted for approval each year, to guide
the company in carrying out its continuing activities.

2.7

The local authority must also recover the costs of any accommodation, goods,
services, staff and anything else they supply to the company under any
agreement or arrangement. This is an absolute requirement and distinct from

3

The Local Government (Best Value Authorities) (Power to Trade) (England) Order 2009

CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES
CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE

Page 224

Pg 3
February 2018

the various rules on procurement or providing state aid.
2.8

Other important legal, commercial and financial considerations for councils or
fire and rescue authorities setting up a trading company include company law
issues, the cost of bidding for contracts, tax liability (corporation tax and VAT),
EU procurement law and state aid rules and employment law (TUPE and
pensions).
(b) The Local Authority Company

2.9

The kind of company that must be utilized to enable the Council to trade in this
way is defined in Part V of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 (‘LGHA
89’). That lists:
- a company limited by shares;
- a company limited by guarantee and not having a share capital;
- a company limited by guarantee and having a share capital;
- an unlimited company;
- a society registered or deemed to be registered under the Industrial and
Provident Societies Act 1965.

2.10 The LGHA 89, and the current Order4 made under it, places local authority
companies into one of three categories, being controlled or influenced by the
local authority (a regulated company) or a company in which the local authority
has a minority interest. It then goes on to set out a number of additional
restrictions and requirements to which the local authority and the regulated
company (or society) and any subsidiaries must adhere.
2.11 The reasons for these extra requirements were described by the Government
of the day, when setting out the reasons for the LGHA 89, as being that:
"when a company is effectively under the control of a local authority… the
most significant controls that Parliament has laid down for the conduct of
local authorities should apply to that company."
2.12 These requirements cover issues of audit, payments, delivery of information to
the authority’s members and identification. For example, a regulated company
is required to mention that it is a company controlled, or as the case may be
influenced, by a local authority, naming the relevant authority or authorities, on
all relevant documents, which are defined by reference to the companies
legislation and are the same documents on which a company is required to
disclose its registered name5, such as business letters, its order forms and its
websites.
(c) Other Local Authority Entities

4

The Local Authorities (Companies) Order 1995
“…being of any kind mentioned in paragraphs (a) to (d) of section 349(1) of the 1985 Act” - now
Regulation 24 of the Company, Limited Liability Partnership and Business (Names and Trading
Disclosures) Regulations 2015 made under the replacement section 82 of the 2006 Act.
5

CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES
CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE

Page 225

Pg 4
February 2018

2.13 If it isn’t needed as a means by which it can trade, a local authority is free to
involve itself in any one of a number of different forms of sole and joint ventures
to best assist it in achieving its goals and aims, which may or may not involve
establishing an entity that has a separate legal personality. These may also be
as above, companies as defined by the Companies Act and which can include
an industrial or provident society or a community interest company. They may
alternatively be established as a distinct trust, with the council or appointees as
trustee. They may be embodied as limited liability partnerships. They may also
exist simply as unincorporated partnerships, with other public bodies or private
persons (that can often act as if they were a distinct entity), such as the Local
Economic Partnership.
2.14 There are certain rules yet to be brought into force, and the Secretary of State
holds reserve powers, that may require, prohibit or regulate the taking of
specified actions by entities connected with a local authority and those
appointed to or representing the local authority at them6. In this respect:
- “entity” means any entity, whether or not a legal person, and
- an entity is stated to be “connected with” a local authority if financial
information about that entity must be included in the local authority’s
statement of accounts.
2.15 Whilst this Code of Practice will apply to all companies in which the Council has
an interest, it may not be as appropriate for the governance of the Council’s
relationship with other entities which it is connected to, is a member of or has
an interest in. In these instances, regard will be had to this Code but its
application will be determined on a case by case basis.
Limited Liability Partnerships
2.16

Particular amongst these is the limited liability partnership (LLP), which are an
increasingly common entity of which local authorities are a member. A limited
liability partnership is a body corporate (with legal personality separate from
that of its members) and is formed of ‘two or more persons associated for
carrying on a lawful business with a view to profit’7. An LLP will also file annual
accounts and be registered with Companies House.

2.17 LLP’s have a number of advantages for local authorities, including significant
tax advantages and that it lies outside of the regulation applicable to local
authority trading companies. Unlike a company, however, an LLP is not a
vehicle by which the Council can undertake commercial activities via the
general power of competence under the Localism Act 2011 or the charging and
trading powers under the Local Government Act 2003, so a key disadvantage
is that it must rely on specific local government powers and the vires of the
functions included must be carefully considered. An LLP is also not suitable for
later conversion to a company or to be formed as a charitable body. An LLP is,
therefore, very well suited to forming joint ventures to deliver local government
6
7

Section 212 Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007
Limited Liability Partnership Act 2000

CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES
CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE

Page 226

Pg 5
February 2018

functions such as land and property development8.
2.18 The cross-application of this Code will therefore particularly apply to limited
liability partnerships (LLP), where the management agreement will reflect many
of the elements of the articles or shareholder agreement referred to below. This
will include, for example, the same reserved decision making in respect of
appointment of representatives to the partnership management board, receipt
of financial and other information by the Council and that the venture is limited
to only undertaking its business in accordance with the approved business plan.

3.

Guidance

3.1

In exercising the power to establish a local authority trading company (LATC),
local authorities were obliged under the 2003 Act to have regard to Statutory
Guidance. The “General Power for Local Authorities to Trade in Function
Related Activities Through a Company”9 was issued and it is to this document
that this and other councils in establishing the companies have had regard to.

3.2

That Statutory Guidance is now out of date, however, and was withdrawn as of
17th June 2014. Whilst new guidance is awaited, the withdrawn guidance
nevertheless remains useful and largely very relevant. Where it is still relevant,
this Code has had regard to it and, where associated with the principles of this
Code, accompanying direct quotes from the Government Guidance are
included throughout.

3.3

All listed companies are subject to the UK Corporate Governance Code10. The
Council will expect all of its companies and their subsidiaries, and indeed any
company with which it is associated, to adopt the “comply or explain” approach
of the UK Corporate Governance Code as a demonstration of best practice in
corporate governance.

3.4

The Corporate Governance Guidance and Principles for Unlisted Companies in
the UK11 and also the Corporate Governance Handbook12 have additionally
been utilised in the compiling of this Code of Practice.

3.5

The Council itself has adopted a NNN Council Code of Corporate Governance
and the approach of this Code of Practice will fall to be associated with the
provisions of that Code.

4.

Principles of Governance of Council Companies

4.1

In setting out the governance relationship between the Council and its

“Structures for Collaboration and Shared Services: Technical Notes” (DCLG)
First published: 29 July 2004: UK Govt Archive
10 September 2014: Financial Reporting Council
11 First edition: November 2010: Institute of Directors (IoD) and European Confederation of Directors’
Associations (ecoDa)
12 Third edition 2013: Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators (ICSA)
8
9

CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES
CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE

Page 227

Pg 6
February 2018

companies, group of companies and organisations it has invested in, this Code
has three key underpinning principles. These are as follows, preceded by a
relevant quote on the subject from the Government Guidance.

I. Controls and Freedoms
The Guidance:
4.2

“A successful company will be one that works alongside the authority in
delivering joint objectives. The authority will have to consider how to balance
the need to assist the company to achieve its trading objectives with the
principles of transparency, accountability and probity.”
The Principles

4.3

It is recognised that, whilst appreciating this should not be unfettered, a trading
company needs to be given commercial freedoms to enable it to succeed.

4.4

Accordingly, governance arrangements will seek to ensure that:
• the company will be provided with sufficient freedoms to achieve its
objectives; and
• the Council will retain sufficient controls to ensure that its investment is
protected, that appropriate social and financial returns on investment can be
obtained and that the trading activities of the companies are conducted in
accordance with the values of the Council.

II. Relationship, Integrity and Accountability
The Guidance:
4.5

“It is important that trading companies can operate on an equal footing with their
competitors, but it is equally important that they are not used as a device for
inhibiting legitimate public access to information about local government and
local government services.”
The Principles

4.6

It is recognised that, whilst appreciating its procedures operate in a way that
protects the company’s commercial interests, those procedures should ensure
that the Council can carry out its functions as an investor, as a trustee of public
funds and a local authority committed to both due responsibility for the exercise
of its functions and for providing a vision for the City.

4.7

Accordingly, governance arrangements will seek to ensure that:
• the executive can make investment decisions based upon complete and
accurate consideration of business cases and business plans;

CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES
CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE

Page 228

Pg 7
February 2018

• the executive can evaluate social and financial benefits and returns on
investment; and
• the Council’s overview and scrutiny committees are able to exercise their
powers in relation to the executive’s decision making
in a manner that ensures the companies can provide full and frank financial and
business reporting against their business plans and be open to an appropriate
level of scrutiny without fear of commercial confidentiality being breached.

III. Understanding of role
The Guidance:
4.8

“A trading company will be a separate legal entity from a local authority. It will
derive its legal authority from its Memorandum of Association and the
Companies Acts. Its directors and officers will derive their authority from the
articles of association and the law relating to companies.
…
“Those “who are appointed directors will participate directly in the activities of
the company, and are answerable to the company and have the powers and
duties of company directors whilst they do so.
…
“Local authority members and officers should be aware of potential conflicts of
interest when carrying out their roles for their authorities, or when acting as
directors of trading companies.”
The Principles

4.9

It is recognised that, as company ventures have a separate legal personality to
the local authority, the success and good governance of the company venture
depends upon those involved understanding their role and responsibilities
collectively and individually.

4.10 Accordingly, governance arrangements will seek to ensure that there is
sufficient induction, training and other materials in place so that:
• their legal duties;
• stewardship of assets;
• the provisions of the governing documents;
• the external environment; and
• the total structure of the organizations and the venture
are appropriately understood by Members of the Council in their role as part of
the executive or of overview and scrutiny, by officers of the Council associated
with these duties and by the directors of the companies.

CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES
CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE

Page 229

Pg 8
February 2018

5.

Ownership and control of the company

5.1

NNN Council, the local authority as a corporate body, will be a member of the
company. The membership will be as guarantor if a company limited by
guarantee or, as will be the norm if a LATC, the holder of shares (perhaps the
only share) in a company limited by shares.

5.2

The rights and duties as a member of the company will, however, almost always
fall to be exercised as an executive responsibility. This means that decisions to
be taken by the Council as a member of the company (as shareholder) fall to
be decided on by the elected Mayor/Leader. In the normal way, therefore, these
functions may be delegated by the Mayor/Leader to the cabinet or an officer
and will be subject to key decision and access to information rules, call-in and
review by overview and scrutiny committee.

5.3

For ease of use, where decisions are to be taken by the local authority as a
member of a company, those decisions are referred to in this Code as being
taken by ‘the executive’.

5.4

The authority of the shareholder is exercised where decisions of the company
are reserved for approval of the executive before they can be implemented, but
also directly in the form of a shareholder’s written resolution or at the company’s
general meetings.

5.5

At the company general meetings the executive will be present and voting as a
member of the company, where this presence and voting will be in the form of
a single person known as the ’shareholder representative’.

5.6

Decisions to be made by the executive, rather than left to the company itself,
are known as ‘reserved matters’. Reserved matters cover such things as the
approval of the company’s annual business plan or mid-year amendments to it,
the appointment of directors, certain key financing decisions and so forth. These
are established either through agreement with the company, known as a
shareholders agreement, or as set out in the company’s governing articles of
association.

5.7

The relationship between the local authority (and the companies it is a member
of) is governed by these and other key documents that are required to establish
a local authority company, and a trading company in particular. In establishing
the local authority’s company and then in governing the relationship with what
is now a separate legal personality, the executive will need to put in place the
following documents:
• The business case which assesses the risk involved in the proposed trading
enterprise and decides whether or not it should be established and proceed
to trade; the ‘comprehensive statement’ referred to in 2009 Order. It starts
the process of business planning.
• The articles of association, or the memorandum and articles of association
as it used to be called, which is the constitution of the company. This is the
legal documents required to set up a limited company and give details of its

CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES
CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE

Page 230

Pg 9
February 2018

name, aims and authorised share capital, conduct of meetings, appointment
of directors and registered office.
• The shareholders agreement, or management agreement, which sets out
the rights of the Council as the sole or co-shareholder and how it can
exercise those rights. It details the powers of the board of the company and
how and when the shareholder might influence those powers. It is important
to note that the shareholder agreement is capable of being developed and
added to as the company develops.
• The financial agreements which are the commercial agreements that set
out what assistance is to be provided and on what terms. This may be purely
financial, such as a direct loan or a facility such as a parental guarantee, and
made on commercial terms. It may also be in the form of goods, services or
staff to be provided and set out in a resourcing agreement or a service level
agreement, which is likely to be on a service charge or cost recovery basis.
The agreements may require regular and detailed access to information and
financial reporting to the Council and/or holding company.
• The business plan which sets out the objectives of the business, how they
are to be achieved and standards met adjusted in the light of experience and
changing circumstances. It is a comprehensive analysis of the business
situation at a particular point in time. It is often referred to as the annual
business plan because it is expected to be submitted for shareholder
approval annually.
5.8

A model shareholder agreement for use with the holding company, setting out
the principal decisions reserved for the executive’s approval, including
subsidiaries of the company as a group, is outlined at Appendix 2.

6.

Shareholder Group or Board

6.1

The structure described above creates a governance process whereby, so far
as appropriate under this Code’s Principles, the company is left to get on with
its business. Following the UK Corporate Governance Code, the companies will
utilise a unified board, with appropriate non-executive directors providing
outside expert help and with board committees (such as an audit committee) to
provide oversight and ensure delivery.

6.2

The Mayor/Leader, in turn, will seek to inform the executive decisions and to
hold the company to account by utilising a reflection of the company board
structure in the form of a Shareholder Group, including external expertise and
sub-groups. The role of this group is to provide the necessary oversight from a
shareholder’s perspective that the parameters, policies and boundaries that the
executive as the shareholder has established for the company are being
adhered to. In it, the Mayor/Leader (or his or her appointee) remains the
decision maker but the Group act as advisors in the making of those executive
decisions.

6.3

Such a Shareholder Group is considered to be an effective means of

CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES
CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE

Page 231

Pg 10
February 2018

governance of the companies. This is because it allows for decision making and
discussion in an informed atmosphere, which also provides the executive with:
• a mechanism to communicate the shareholders’ views to the company; and
• a means to evaluate the effectiveness of the company board and the delivery
of the company performance against strategic objectives.
6.4

It is intended that the Mayor/Leader (or his/her appointee) will make most
decisions concerning the executive’s role in respect of company interests at
meetings of the Shareholder Group (in a similar manner to the Mayor/Leader’s
executive decisions made at various partnership boards and the health and
well-being board). It is envisaged that key decisions concerning the companies
will, however, still normally be made at meetings of the Cabinet.

6.5

The Terms of Reference for the Shareholder Group are set out at Appendix 1.

7.

Scrutiny

7.1

The overview and scrutiny committees have a significant role to play to ensure
that the company is able, and the executive has properly required the company,
to make sufficient returns for the investment to be worthwhile and, indeed,
ensure that the social objects set for it are not lost in the drive towards the
overriding and essential requirement for the company to be economically
successful.

7.2

It is the executive, the Mayor/Leader and Cabinet, who is responsible for
approving the business case to establish a company, of setting the right balance
between the economic, social and environmental objects of a company when it
is established and of subsequently exercising the Council’s powers as
shareholder.

7.3

Once established, the company must then get on with the business of delivering
the objectives with which it has been tasked, within the parameters set for it. It
must be otherwise free, however, to operate in its own best interests and to
compete on an even basis with its competitors in the marketplace.

7.4

Again, it is the executive, either generally or when considering reserved
matters, to whom the company must answer and by whom it is held to account
for its success, or failure, in achieving the objectives set for it.

7.5

The key role of overview and scrutiny is then to advise the executive and hold
it to account on behalf of the wider public interest and its role within the Council.

7.6

This creates a flow of information and accountability, in which
-

the company needs to get on with the business of delivery;

-

the executive needs to make the company decisions reserved to it and to
hold the company to account for performing against them; and

CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES
CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE

Page 232

Pg 11
February 2018

-

Members as part of overview and scrutiny need to advise on or scrutinise
the decisions of the executive.

This needs to be done in a trading environment that requires them all to make
speedy and reactive commercial decisions and to handle often highly valuable
and commercially sensitive information.
7.7

Overview and Scrutiny, to fulfil its role, requires a means of access to the
sensitive information and debate that inform the Shareholder Group and the
Mayor/Leader’s decision making, without either oppressing that process or
endangering its own strictly non-executive role.

7.8

To this end it is considered that the Chair of Overview and Scrutiny
Management Board (OSM) is best placed to be involved, use his/her knowledge
of this committee and its remit to sift the information and be alert to those
matters that need to be bought to the overview and scrutiny committees’
attention and be investigated further. Accordingly, the Chair will be invited to
the forum created to handle this crucial information flow, the Shareholder
Group. To retain the independence required of the OSM Chair, this is not
membership as direct advisor as part of the decision making, but as an informed
observer.

7.9

Overview and Scrutiny committees may then review any matter concerning the
Council’s companies and make proper use of its full powers and function,
having had these matters drawn to its attention by, and with the benefit of, a
fully informed Chair.

7.10 In carrying out any such review, the Government Guidance states that:
“The local authority should ensure that its overview and scrutiny committees
are able to exercise their powers in relation to the discharge of local authority
functions under the relevant legislation.
7.11 To this end, the legal framework for local authority companies includes an
express requirement concerning the provision of information to Members of the
Council, which reflects the similar provision in relation to local authorities
generally. This states that a local authority regulated company “shall provide to
a Member of the Council such information about the affairs of the company as
the member reasonably requires for the proper discharge of his duties.”13
7.12 The exception here is that the company cannot be required to provide
information in breach of any enactment, or of an obligation owed to any person.
7.13 It is also worth noting that, where a Member or an officer has become a member
or director of a local authority company, the local authority must make
arrangements for them to be open to questioning about the company’s activities
by Members of the Council at a meeting of the authority, or a committee or subcommittee, or by cabinet members in the course of proceedings of the cabinet
or a committee of the cabinet. Importantly, the Member or officer is not required
13

Article 7, Local Authorities (Companies) Order 1995

CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES
CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE

Page 233

Pg 12
February 2018

to disclose confidential information about the company.

8.

Investment and Finance

8.1

The balance of how each company venture may be financed will be assessed
and set out in the business case, required at the very beginning of the venture
and the incorporation of the company as described above, and in business
plans as made or amended and agreed by the executive. Each decision will
take into account state aid implications and such matters as where legislative
and regulatory requirements demand full cost recovery or standard commercial
terms to be applied.

8.2

Where the purpose of a company is to better utilise assets owned by the
Council, for example, the principal investment in the company is likely to be
those assets. The assets may then be made use of by the company through
their being transferred in their entirety from the Council to the company or by
being provided to the company by the Council under a lease, loan or use
agreement.

8.3

Investment at the initial stage of a trading company will normally be by way of
purchase of share capital, either directly in the company or, more likely, via
NNN Holding Limited, often together with a loan or loan facility on commercial
terms. This is to fund those costs which arise at the start of the company or
company joint venture, including the holding company and its subsidiaries, to
cover initial set up costs, working capital costs and collateral costs. For
purchased company interests, share value should reflect the fair value of the
going concern.

8.4

Direct investment may well also be by various other forms of agreement. This
may be for the supply of monies, directly as a loan or under a parental
guarantee, credit agreement, facility and so forth, which should be on standard
commercial terms. It may also be for the supply of goods, property or staff, as
described above and at section 12 below.

9.

Companies Structure

9.1

The principal means by which the local authority will normally own and hold
interests in its trading and other forms of company will be through a single
company (the Company), acting as a holding company. Wherever practically
feasible and advantageous to the authority, each of the individual company
ventures will then be a subsidiary of the single company and they will operate
together as part of the a group of companies.

9.2

The primary objective of a group structure is that the Company, as a holding
company, is able to provide a single point of focus for leadership of the
authority’s commercial activity, communication with the authority, utilisation of
shared resources and as a forum for strategic decision-making across the
group. Its board of directors will set the overall strategy in relation to the

CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES
CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE

Page 234

Pg 13
February 2018

activities of its subsidiaries.
9.3

In doing so, the board of the Companywill also sign off all business plans and
hold its subsidiaries to account. The executive, supported by the Shareholder
Group, will approve any decisions that would have an effect on the
shareholder’s rights and hold the group of companies to account as a whole.

9.4

The subsidiary companies will, therefore, be expected to adopt a common
‘group’ approach, with the managing director and the Company’s board holding
a clear leadership role on behalf of the authority. This will, for example, involve
the group of companies:
(a)
using existing Council policies and strategies where appropriate andthe
company and its subsidiaries, wherever practicable;
(b)
adopting a common approach across the group on branding and its
finance, ethics and procurement policies and practices;
(c)
being required by the authority to have the holding company approve the
procurement and authorisation of spend levels set by each company for
its directors and staff; and
(d) also having more detailed matters to be set as a common approach by
the company for itself and its subsidiaries by the holding company, where
it considers that that will increase effectiveness, efficiency and engender
common understanding, which is likely to include such things as group
financial procedure rules, fraud and whistle-blowing policies, decision
making levels and procedures, capability and disciplinary procedures,
health and safety practices and so forth.

9.5

The Company will similarly provide a natural home and conduit for support and
control roles that will be common across the group, such as company
secretarial services, procurement, finance and human resources. These fall into
two groups. The first is those services that would be better employed directly
by the holding company, such as financial and payroll systems for example.
The other are those provided as managed services to the companies by the
Council, under a resourcing agreement (or service level agreement), because
this is more cost effective, appropriate or is a demand of the shareholder, such
as HR or company secretarial and legal services. (This is described further at
section 12 below).

9.6

The secondary purpose is financial, in that group companies can share VAT
registration where appropriate and can be treated as holding group accounts.
The latter means that reporting is as one set of accounts and that profit and loss
can be distributed across the group, setting one off against another, as might
be desired to meet the aims and values set for the group.

9.7

The executive will approve the appointment of auditors for the group and its
accounts will appear as part of the Council’s financial statements.

10.

The Company’s Board

10.1 The Government Guidance advised that a local authority company will be run
CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES
CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE

Page 235

Pg 14
February 2018

by its board of directors answerable to the shareholders, in accordance with the
articles of association, and goes on to suggest that a board of between 3 and 8
directors is most likely to be practical (although this will be dependent on the
circumstances of each company). The participating Local Authority should be
represented on the board of its company.
10.2 The representatives who are appointed directors by the executive will
participate directly in the activities of the company and are answerable to the
company and have the powers and duties of company directors whilst they do
so. Accordingly, the Government Guidance goes on to suggest that this
requirement in a trading company and the accompanying conflict of interests
that may arise means that officers are better placed to fulfil this role.
10.3 Whilst it will therefore be the norm that officers, not members, will be appointed
as directors, this should not prevent the Council from appointing Members as
directors where that is considered to be in the best interests of the company
and the Council. If Members of the Council are appointed as directors of a
company, the following paragraphs should be borne in mind and, in particular,
that the member notes that:
-

Conflicts of interest may be waived by a company but, as a matter of public
law, never in the decision making of the Council: the Council Member /
company director will always have a conflict of interest when it comes to
their role as a councillor that must be resolved and resolved in the favour of
the company. A Member as director, therefore, must not be a party to
making a decision of the Council affecting the company, but may proffer
evidence or advice to the Council on the company’s behalf when invited to
do so.

-

Liaison should be through the key Member and/or officer concerning the
company and the Council’s activities

-

The Member’s Code of Conduct applies to a Member’s activity as a director,
except only where it directly conflicts with the interests of the company and,
where that may be the case, the potential conflict notified to the company
secretary and to the Council’s monitoring officer.

-

The only monies or other remuneration to be received by the Member in
connection with the directorship will be as a special responsibility allowance
(SRA) given by the Council to the amount of the corresponding SRA in the
Members’ Allowances Scheme.

10.4 As the holding company for the group, the Company board of directors will be
formed of:
• Executive directors, being:
o the managing director;
o with the option of the managing directors of the authority’s principal trading
companies where appropriate
• Non-executive directors, being:
o a chief officer of the Council (Chair of the Board);
CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES
CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE

Page 236

Pg 15
February 2018

o independent person(s) appointed to bring oversight, experience and skills
that would be advantageous and appropriate for the companies;
o other senior officers of the Council as appropriate; and
o Members of the Council if considered advantageous and appropriate.
10.5 The chair of the board of directors, as Council appointee, will have a deciding
say to be exercised through means of a ‘golden vote’ procedure on the board.
This approach is to ensure that the Council’s officers will always be able to outvote the directly appointed directors on the holding company. Such matters as
the quorum requirement for board meetings of the company and the like will be
expected to reflect that objective.
10.6 The Company will have two standing committees, which will be as follows:
• The Remuneration Committee, which will conduct appointments and
remuneration decisions and recommendations to the Council (where an
appointment is not wholly reserved to the Council).
• The Audit Committee, which will fulfil the same role and function as the
Council’s Audit Committee, the outputs of which will feed into the holding
company board, the company business plans and the Council’s own
statement of accounts and Annual Governance Statement.
10.7 In respect of the individual wholly owned trading companies, non-trading
(Teckal) companies and joint ventures, the appointment of directors of the
company will be as are considered best to meet the requirements of the
subsidiary or venture concerned.
10.8 Where an officer or Member is placed on a company board, he or she will be
provided with an indemnity for their actions in that role. This is provided for
under the Local Authorities (Indemnities for Members and Officers) Order 2004.
It should be noted, however, that any such indemnity only covers actions taken
honestly and in good faith.
10.9 Appointments of an officer as a company director will be of the relevant post or
office of the Council, not as an individual. This will be reflected within each of
the companies’ articles in that if any one of the Council appointed directors
ceases to be an employee, office holder or Member of the Council, as
applicable, then they automatically also cease to be a director of the
company.
10.10 The remuneration of officers of the Council appointed directors to a company
controlled or influenced by the Council, other than permitted expenses, will be
met by the Council and not the company. This is because, whilst that director’s
overriding duty is to the company, that person’s role as director on the company
board is only because of, and in fulfilment of, their employment as an officer of
the Council, for which they are remunerated by the Council under that contract
of employment. The position on the company is an inherent part of their job, for
which payment is not to be made twice, directly or by different persons, for the
same work.
CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES
CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE

Page 237

Pg 16
February 2018

10.11 That is not to say that the Council would fail to recognise that the position of an
officer appointed as a company director or company officer will include distinct
and potentially onerous additional responsibilities. Rather, it is that it is the
Council that needs to recognise the value of those responsibilities, through a
job evaluation process or other means by which the Council sets salaries, in
considering any review of an officer’s remuneration. To do otherwise risks a
future action against the officer or the Council and, if a payment were made to
a Council officer by the company that was considered to be a fee or reward
accepted under the colour of his or her office or employment other than his
proper remuneration, that officer may also have committed a criminal offence14.
10.12 The law requires that, where a Member of the Council is a director of a regulated
company, the Member may only receive payment for that directorship up to the
amount payable for that role under the authority’s Special Responsibility
Allowance (SRA)15, set as a result of the recommendation of the Independent
Remuneration Panel16. These payments may be made by the company directly
or, more normally and as would be the case here, by the Council for reasons of
simplicity, accounting and accountability.
10.13 The view behind this is that the regulated company is, in fact, simply a part of
the Council. In the same way that there is a bar on Members of the Council
being employees, the philosophy runs akin to that for officers in that the Council
may not pay a councillor for any other activities they may carry out as a Member
of the Council other than through their SRA.

11.

Conflicts of interest

11.1 The Government Guidance states that “Local authority members and officers
should be aware of potential conflicts of interest when carrying out their roles
for their authorities, or when acting as directors of trading companies.”
11.2 There will always arise a point where, in matters of reporting, contractual
discussion, investment requests or resourcing agreements, there is potential
for the same person to be a decision maker or advisor both for the Council and
the company.
11.3 This is a reflection of the position of each company as a separate legal entity
and that the directors of each company are subject to. As the Corporate
Governance Guidance and Principles puts it:
‘An important principle of Company Law is that directors have a duty to
promote the success of the company as a whole. They are specifically
prohibited from directing the activities of the company in favour of themselves
or particular shareholders and/ or stakeholders’.
14

s117(2) of the Local Government Act 1972
Article 5 of the Local Authorities (Companies) Order 1995
16
Reg 21 of the Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003.
15

CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES
CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE

Page 238

Pg 17
February 2018

11.4 Appendix 3 sets out a briefing for directors’ duties.
11.5 An essential element of this in terms of this Code is that, whilst changes to the
Companies Act and current articles of association allow for appropriate
provisions dealing with conflicts of interest and the ability of company directors
to authorise them, an officer of the Council or a Member can never waive their
duty to act in the public interest in exercising their responsibility for functions of
the Authority. This will, on occasion therefore, create an inescapable conflict of
interest between someone’s role as a Member or, more likely, as an officer of
the Council and as a director of a company, of which those involved need to be
aware.
11.6 There are also natural points where it is expected that the Council and one of
its trading companies will take a different approach. In this respect, the
Government Guidance states that:
“The local authority should consider appointing a ‘contract officer’ and/or
‘contract member’ with primary responsibility for liaison between the
company and the authority, and for access to information about it. It might
wish to place limitations on these individuals to ensure that they are fully
accountable to the authority as a whole and to ensure that the Section 151
Officer/Monitoring Officer countersigns major decisions about the company’s
operations.”
11.7 This is the role of the Shareholder Group. In support of that function, the Council
will appoint a lead authority and client-side officer to lead on managing
contractual arrangements with the companies and in holding of the companies
to account.
11.8 A certain form of wholly owned local authority also exist to provide services
directly to or for the Council (known as a ‘Teckal’ company). The relationship
between the authority and the company are set out in a contract for services In
this scenario, clear separation is required between commissioner and provider
and there will be a requirement for further support to be provided, beyond the
position of lead authority and client officer.
11.9 Officers placed into any of these roles are, at some point, likely to find
themselves in a position where they are, or are negatively seen to be, acting
against the interest of their own authority and also challenging the Council as
their employers or senior managers to whom they might normally answer to. As
a result of such activities, their performance in the company or actions they feel
are required of them by the company, some of those officers may even find
themselves in a position where it is no longer felt tenable that they can be
appointed by the authority as a director of a company. The Council as an
employer, from the viewpoint of both the executive and overview and scrutiny,
wholly recognises these unusual positions that such officers may find
themselves. The Council therefore undertakes that no officer will suffer any ill
affect to his or her employment or career with the authority for fulfilling these
activities to the best of their ability or in undertaking these actions asked of
them.
CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES
CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE

Page 239

Pg 18
February 2018

12.

Managed Services, Support Arrangements and Employees

12.1 The authority is required under the 2009 regulations to recover the costs of any
accommodation, goods, services, staff or any other thing it supplies to a
company in pursuance of any agreement, or arrangement in place. It cannot
subsidise the operation of the company in this way.
12.2 The Government Guidance in addition clarifies that
“Because the power to trade is subject to a restriction requiring it to be
exercised through a company, it follows that the authority has the requisite
power to enter into arrangements with a company in order for the trading
power … to be exercised. It is not necessary therefore, for the company to
be expressly designated as a public body under the Local Authorities (Goods
and Services) Act 1970, in order for the authority to be able to provide it with
staff, goods etc, for the purpose of exercising the power to trade.”
12.3 This means that the authority may enter into an agreement with the companies
to provide services at cost or as a surplus service charge and that staff time
and resources utilized for company purposes should be carefully accounted for.
Where this is done at cost, which shall be the norm, it is helpfully stated in the
Guidance that the approach should be in accordance with the CIPFA definition
of ‘whole cost’.
12.4 Referred to above as the ‘managed services’, those areas of the authority’s
resources so utilized might include project management, initial set-up staff,
human resources, audit, business continuity, communications, procurement,
legal or finance and so on. Equally, it may be that the main source of staffing
for the company’s trading activities comes from Council staff seconded for that
purpose, be that whole time or on a client by client, job by job basis. It is for the
company and the executive to agree what level of authority led resource is
appropriate, should or could be delivered to the company in each case. The
parameters of those services can be agreed through a Resourcing Agreement
or what is known as a Service Level Agreement (SLA).
12.5 The authority as shareholder, however, does need to be assured that there are
effective and robust support services in place in certain areas. This is to satisfy
itself that sufficient standards of operational governance, legal and company
secretarial compliance and effective financial management within the company
are adhered to. The authority will reserve to itself the ability under the
Shareholder Agreement to insist on supplying these services to a controlled
company, at cost, if it feels that these standards are not otherwise being met or
are not in its opinion likely to be met.
12.6 In particular, the Company Secretary role should have a consistent approach
across all of the companies or group of companies. This is to ensure consistent
interpretation of the compliance standards across the companies and of the
governance relationship between the companies and between the companies
CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES
CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE

Page 240

Pg 19
February 2018

and the Council. In addition, it ensures that appropriate and proper intelligence
is shared across the companies and the authority. In relation to all authority
controlled companies and their subsidiaries, therefore, the position of company
secretary as an officer (not a director) of each company in the group is to be
fulfilled by the Council’s Monitoring Officer, being the equivalent corporate
governance, assurance and general counsel position for the Council. All
company secretarial and general counsel duties for the companies will then be
carried out through that office, either directly or through the position of an
assistant company secretary, with the exception of where a conflict of interest
is identified and is acknowledged by that officer.
12.7 With the exception of those staff supplied by or seconded from the authority for
trading purposes or for managed services as described above, it is expected
that staff of the companies will be directly recruited and employed by the
companies themselves. Where the business case includes that staff are
transferred this will be subject to full reporting and then consultation and
requirements under TUPE legislation and guidance.

Adopted in accordance with the Cabinet decision of DDD
[To be] Presented to the NNN Council Audit Committee of DDD.

CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES
CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE

Page 241

Pg 20
February 2018

APPENDIX 1
NNN COUNCIL
SHAREHOLDER GROUP - TERMS OF REFERENCE

Overview
The purpose of the Shareholder Group is to advise the Mayor/Leader in the exercise
of his/her responsibility for the Council’s functions as corporate shareholder of a
company or group of companies and in their role to represent the interests of the
Council as Shareholder Representative at meetings of a company.
Decision making
The Mayor/Leader (or other Cabinet member appointed by the Mayor/Leader for this
purpose) may make decisions concerning companies in which the Council is or is
proposed to become a shareholder, either:
(a)

in Cabinet; or

(b)

in the presence of the Shareholder Group.

Membership and Arrangements
The Shareholder Group shall consist of the Mayor/Leader (or other Cabinet member
appointed by the Mayor/Leader for this purpose) in the presence of:
(a)

Such Members of the Cabinet as are appointed by the Mayor/Leader (which
shall be at least two);

(b)

Two co-opted members, who will be independent persons providing relevant
expertise and appointed on merit (but which process may be carried out in
association with the Audit Committee’s arrangements for co-opted
appointments); and

(c)

Relevant senior officers of the Council as are appointed by the head of paid
service (or their deputies); together with

(d)

The Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Management Board, as a Member of the
Council from outside of the Cabinet, to act in the capacity of Observer.

The Service Director for Finance (s151 officer) and the Service Director for Legal
and Democratic Services (monitoring officer), or their deputies, will be advisors to the
Group to provide open and strong advice.
Other members of the Cabinet (who are not directors of any of the companies
concerned) may attend and vote as substitutes in the event that an appointed
member of the Shareholder Group is unable to attend
CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES
CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE

Page 242

Pg 21
February 2018

Restrictions on Membership
As the Shareholder Group is to advise and discharge executive functions in relation
to company matters and the role of the Shareholder Representative, only Cabinet
members can be members of the Shareholder Group with voting rights, although
other Cabinet members and non-Cabinet members can be invited to attend, without
voting rights.
Meetings
The Shareholder Group shall meet on a basis agreed by itself and normally in
private.
The quorum shall be the Mayor/Leader (or other Cabinet member appointed by the
Mayor/Leader for this purpose) in the presence of a minimum of:
(a)
one other Cabinet Member;
(b)
one independent co-optee; and
(c)
one senior officer appointed to the Group (or their appointed deputy).
An invitation to attend must have been provided to the Chair of Overview and
Scrutiny Management Board/Committee (or their nominated deputy) at least three
clear days in advance of the meeting taking place. This notice period may be waived
if the Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Management Board/Committee (or their
nominated deputy) so agrees.
An invitation to attend must also have been provided to the section 151 officer and
the monitoring officer (or their nominated deputies), which will normally be at least
three clear days in advance of the meeting taking place.
The Mayor/Leader (or appointee) will chair the Shareholder Group and a Vice Chair
will be selected from the elected members of the Shareholder Group.
Sub Groups
To assist it in its functions the Shareholder Group:
1.

may establish and consult standing sub-groups, such as might be required in
respect of:
(a) Audit and Risk;
(b) Ethical practices; or
(c) Nominations and Remuneration

2.

may establish and consult ad-hoc or task and finish sub-groups in respect of
any matter; and

3.

may establish and consult stakeholder groups on any particular aspect or the
generality of the objects of the trading companies

CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES
CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE

Page 243

Pg 22
February 2018

A sub-group or stakeholder group may contain such co-opted members, advisors or
observers as the Shareholder Group sees fit.
Functions
1.

Monitor the performance of a company in relation to its Business Plan and, in
particular, the company’s performance:
(a) in financial matters
(b) against the social goals of the company as set out in the company’s
Objects, Business Case or Business Plan; and
(c) against the values of the Council.

2.

Evaluate and monitor:
(a) the financial and social returns on investment (be that shareholding,
loans or direct investment); and
(b) risks and opportunities
including those arising from joint ventures or new opportunities.

3.

Consider matters reserved to the Council for shareholder approval, such as:
(a) Varying Articles of Association
(b) Varying ownership and structure
(c) Variations to shares (number of, rights, etc.
(d) Entering contracts that:
(i)
have a material effect on NNN Council business (including other
companies within the group)
(ii) are outside of the business plan or do not relate to the business
(iii) significant in relation to the size of the business, the business plan, etc.
(e) Material legal proceedings outside of ordinary business
(f)
Adopting and amending business plans each year and strategic plans
(3 years)
(g) Appointment, removal and the remuneration of directors (members of
the company board)
(h) Selection of the chair of the board
(i)
Appointment of auditors
(j)
Issue of dividends
as more particularly set out in a company’s Articles of Association or
Shareholder Agreement.

Relationship
The Shareholder Group as it considers appropriate in accordance with its functions
described above, may:
1.

report and make formal recommendations to the Mayor/Leader, directly or to

CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES
CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE

Page 244

Pg 23
February 2018

the wider Cabinet;
2.

make reports to and consult Overview and Scrutiny (including full Council) or

3.

make reports to and consult the Audit Committee, in relation to that
Committee’s particular functions.

CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES
CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE

Page 245

Pg 24
February 2018

APPENDIX 2
OUTLINE OF THE
SHAREHOLDER AND COMPANY AGREEMENT

1.

DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

2.

FINANCING THE COMPANY

3.

DIVIDEND POLICY

4.

SUBSIDIARIES

5.

MANAGEMENT OF THE COMPANY

6.

SHAREHOLDER GROUP

7.

THE BUSINESS PLAN AND COMPLIANCE WITH THE BUSINESS PLAN

8.

REPORTING AND ACCOUNTING MATTERS

9.

BANKING ARRANGEMENTS

10.

TERMINATION

11.

UNLAWFUL FETTER ON THE COMPANY'S POWERS

12.

ASSIGNMENT AND SUB-CONTRACTING

13.

FURTHER ASSURANCE

14.

REMEDIES AND WAIVERS

15.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT

16.

VARIATION

17.

CONFLICT WITH THE ARTICLES

18.

SEVERANCE

19.

CONFIDENTIALITY

20.

NOTICES

21

NO PARTNERSHIP OR AGENCY

21.

COUNTERPARTS

22.

CONTRACTS (RIGHTS OF THIRD PARTIES) ACT 1999

23.

GOVERNING LAW AND JURISDICTION

CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES
CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE

Page 246

Pg 25
February 2018

APPENDIX 3

Guidance Note to NNN Council Members and Officers when acting as
Directors of Council Companies

CODE OF GOVERNANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY INTERESTS IN COMPANIES
CABINET AND SCRUTINY EXAMPLE

Page 247

Pg 26
February 2018

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 16

Title of meeting:

Cabinet

Date of meeting:

14th July 2020

Subject:

Portsmouth's Transport Recovery Plan

Report by:

Tristan Samuels, Director of Regeneration

Wards affected:

All

Key decision:

No

Full Council decision:

No

1.

Purpose of report

1.1

In response to the transport challenges faced by the Covid-19 pandemic,
Portsmouth City Council has produced a draft Transport Recovery Plan, in line
with government's recommendations for encouraging safe and sustainable travel
as the city recovers from lockdown.

1.2

This report outlines the content of the draft Portsmouth Transport Recovery Plan,
including proposed temporary measures to assist with the economic recovery of
the city. This report will also set out how the draft Transport Recovery Plan fits
with the emerging Local Transport Plan 4 (LTP4) and the wider transport policy
framework.

2.

Recommendations
It is recommended that Cabinet:

2.1

Approves the strategic direction to PCC's Covid-19 transport response as
set out in the draft Transport Recovery Plan;

2.2

Approves the delivery of the proposed temporary measures, and process
for prioritising further measures as set out in the draft Transport Recovery
Plan;

2.3

Note that the measures proposed within the draft Transport Recovery Plan
are intended as temporary measures to be implemented quickly in
response to public health concerns and to support the city's economic
recovery. Therefore proposals will not be subject to the usual public
consultation process prior to implementation;

1 249
Page

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

2.4

Note that proposals in the draft Transport Recovery Plan are conditional
upon sufficient funding being provided secured through government's
Emergency Active Travel Fund;

2.5

Give delegated authority to the Assistant Director for Transport to amend
the draft Transport Recovery Plan in line with the recommendations of
Cabinet and in relation to the agenda item on LTP4 for this decision
meeting.

3.

Background

3.1

Following the announcement from the Government in mid-May regarding the
gradual easing of the lockdown restrictions implemented in response to the
Covid-19 Pandemic, Local Transport Authorities were advised to commence
planning to ensure that local transport networks were prepared for the change in
travel demand.

3.2

Since the government introduced lockdown measures, use of motorised traffic in
the city has decreased to as low as 34% of pre-lockdown levels and cycling
numbers have increased to as much as 156% compared to last year. However,
as restrictions on movement are loosened traffic volumes are continuing to rise
with 87% of pre-lockdown traffic now back on the main roads around the city.

3.3

The Department for Transport has outlined a number of areas which need to be
considered in preparation for the local transport restart, and in particular in
response to the green and active travel agenda to ‘help embed altered
behaviours and demonstrate the positive effects of active travel’ as requested by
Transport Minister Grant Shapps:
 Collaboration
 Green Transport Restart and Recovery
 E-Scooters
 Data and Evidence
 Public Transport
 Travel Planning
 Role of the Car
 Transport Users
 Resources

3.4

The Transport Recovery Plan seeks to address these points, setting out the
transport measures that have been delivered and are proposed to help start the
economic recovery of the city.

4.0

Relationships with Local Transport Plan 4

4.1

On 10th March 2020 Portsmouth City Council Cabinet considered and approved
the draft vision and objectives for Local Transport Plan 4 (LTP4). The LTP sets
out the transport strategy for the city and under the Transport Act 2000 as
amended by Local Transport Act 2008 Portsmouth City Council has a statutory
duty to produce a LTP for Portsmouth, and to keep it under review. LTP4 will
Page 2250

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

replace the current LTP3 (2011-2031), presenting the strategic direction for
transport policy in the city up until 2036.
4.2

The draft Transport Recovery Plan does not replace the emerging LTP4. The
recovery plan instead uses the draft LTP4 as a foundation and applies that draft
vision and objective to the current scenario of responding in real time to the
challenges posed by Covid-19.

4.3

It is noted that the draft LTP4 is being considered by Cabinet at the same
decision meeting that this report is being presented. Therefore it is recommended
that the Assistant Director for Transport is given delegated authority to make
editorial changes to the draft Transport Recovery Plan in order to take account of
any amendments to the draft LTP4 that may be required as a result of this
decision meeting.

5.0

Approach to identifying the transport response

5.1

The transport network is identified as being central to local economic recovery
and it is expected that resources are made available and quickly mobilised to
respond to changes in demand and attitudes towards transport as the city begins
to recover from the pandemic. In order to respond in a way that meets emerging
needs but that also supports the longer term reliance of the city the following
principles have been applied throughout the draft Transport Recovery Plan:
 Reduce travel demand. This will help the highway network to cope with
increased demand as a result of reduced public transport capacity
 Making best use of limited capacity. This will help ensure that everyone
who needs to travel can do so quickly and safely
 Keeping people safe. This will give people the confidence to come to the
city as more workplaces, facilities, and services begin to reopen.
 Improve lives locally. Measure to improve walking and cycling around
local neighbourhoods will provide improved connectivity enabling residents
to carry out their day to day activities sin their local community

5.2

These principles align with the vision and objectives of the draft LTP4 and also
strongly aligns with four of the council's core priorities, namely:
 Make Portsmouth a city that works together, enabling communities to
thrive and people to live healthy, safe and independent lives.
 Make our city cleaner, safer and greener.
 Make Portsmouth a great place to live, learn and play, so our children and
young people are safe, healthy and positive about their futures.
 Make sure our Council is a caring, competent and collaborative
organisation that puts people at the heart of everything we do.

6.0

Proposed activities

6.1

The activities proposed within the draft Transport Recovery Plan are presented in
relation to the four key objectives of the draft LTP4, which are: delivering cleaner
air; prioritising walking and cycling; transforming public transport; and supporting
our businesses and protecting our assets. Under each of these objectives the
3 251
Page

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

draft recovery plan details the activities that have already been undertaken by
PCC in response to the Covid-19 pandemic as well as the activities that are
planned.
6.2

7.0

The proposed activities are summarised on page 19 of the draft Transport
Recovery Plan and as shown below:

Figure 1: Activities proposed and delivery timescales for the draft Transport
Recovery Plan
Rationale for proposed activities

7.1

As noted within the Transport recovery Plan a number of activities have already
been delivered including reallocation of road space to provide more and safer
space for walking and cycling at Southsea Seafront and along a number of roads
in Portsmouth city centre. These measures have been implemented in response
to the public health emergency posed by the Covid-19 pandemic and the need to
provide space for safe social distancing.

7.2

The schemes that are proposed and yet to be implemented also seek to deliver
benefits to public health. In addition to this these schemes are also intended to
play a key role in the recovery of the city's economy by providing enough space

Page 4252
www.portsmouth.gov.uk

for people to safely walk and cycle around the city. In this regards government
expects local authorities to make significant changes to their road layout to allow
more space for cyclists and pedestrians, especially in areas with high public
transport use. It encourages local authorities to take measures as swiftly as
possible.
7.3

The schemes proposed as part of the Recovery Plan are intended to complement
the existing infrastructure and facilities available for cycling and walking in the
city. For example the parking suspension at the Hard provides connectivity of the
existing fragmented cycle lane here and has the added benefit providing a
cycling route from the Brompton Dock bike hire facility that is already available at
the Hard.

7.4

The Brompton Dock bike hire facility is separate to the bike hire scheme that was
planned for delivery in the city earlier this year. This bike hire scheme was not
delivered due to performance issues with the selected supplier. It is anticipated
that a new bike hire scheme can be delivered in the city in 2021 as part of the
Future Transport Zone project that PCC are working on in collaboration with
Solent Transport.

8.0

Monitoring and review of activities

8.1

The Transport Recovery Plan outlines that traffic and cycling data from around
the city will be used alongside other data collection methods to monitor the use of
the temporary measures that are put in place. This data will be discussed at an
Emergency Transport Recovery Review Board whose purpose will be to review
the status of planned and implemented activities and to ensure that they remain
valid and proportionate.

8.2

The Review Board will appraise the measures in accordance with current advice
and guidance considering the following: assessment of risk to public safety;
public acceptability; stakeholder views; and, operational effectiveness. Any
recommendations made by the Review Board about the continuation or removal
of measures will be passed to Members for decision making.

9.0

Engagement and consultation

9.1

As noted in paragraph 3.1 above the draft Transport Recovery Plan has been
developed to set out how PCC are planning to ensure that local transport
networks were prepared for the change in travel demand. Due to Covid-19 being
a novel pandemic the government advice and public's response to the challenges
posed by the pandemic are quickly evolving. As such there is a need for the
activity planned with the draft recovery plan to also evolve and be implemented
quickly as required.

9.2

It is for this reason that for activities proposed within the recovery plan we are
changing our approach to stakeholder communication and engagement.
Stakeholders within areas that are being changed will be informed of the changes
and have a way of feedback any questions or changes they made need so that
5 253
Page

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

their business can operate. Comments and views will be welcomed once
measures are in place and operational, and we will be as responsive as possible
to these comments. This ongoing dialogue with stakeholders and communities
will help to inform future scheme development and decisions about the
continuation or indeed permanence of measures going forward. We will engage a
wider audience through the normal communications methods identified in the
previous section.
10.0

Funding proposed activities

10.1

Government have announced two rounds of funding that can be accessed by
Local Authorities to deliver the emergency changes to transport needed to
support the recovery from Covid-19. The initial round of funding is focused on
delivery of measures that can be implemented quickly to provide more space for
people to move around the city safely.

10.2

Government have provisionally allocated £192,000 to PCC in the first tranche of
the Emergency Active Travel Fund. PCC have submitted a bid into the
Department of Transport (DfT) to secure this funding to deliver the temporary
schemes listed below:
 Reallocation of road space1 along Southsea Seafront (already
implemented)
 Reallocation of road space at Isambard Brunel Road (already
implemented)
 Reallocation of road space at Guildhall Walk (already implemented)
 Pop-up cycle lanes2 along Elm Grove and Ordnance Row
 A low traffic neighbourhood around Languard/ Maxwell/ Reginald and
Tredegar Roads
 Filtered permeability3 introduced on Canal Walk
 Filtered permeability introduced on Castle Road
 Pop-up pedestrian crossing on Eastern Parade

10.3

The DfT have announced that PCC has been awarded £214,515 for tranche one
of the Emergency Active Travel Fund. This is £22,515 more than the £192,000
initially earmarked for PCC and has been awarded due to the DfT describing
PCC's submission as 'particularly strong'.

10.2

The second round of funding is focused on delivery of longer term projects that
can help to make permanent improvements to the local environment by providing
a safe and coherent network of active travel infrastructure to support the city’s
recovery.

10.3

Accessing this second tranche of funding is dependent on successful delivery of
the schemes funded through tranche one. If these schemes are successfully

1

Reallocation of road space- Changing the layout of a road to provide more space for a particular road userin this case pedestrians and cyclists.
2 Pop-up cycle lanes- Cycle lanes that are implemented on a temporary basis
3 Filtered Permeability- A road that allows through-access for walking and cycling, but removes it for motor
traffic

Page 6254
www.portsmouth.gov.uk

delivered PCC are then able to access up to £769,000 in the second funding
tranche. As outlined in the Transport Recovery Plan Officers will work with
Councillors and key stakeholders to develop a shortlist of sites to be taken
forward for the tranche two funding submission.
11.0

Reasons for recommendations
It is recommended that Cabinet:

11.1

Approves the strategic direction to PCC's Covid-19 transport response as
set out in the draft Transport Recovery Plan
Without approval of the draft Transport Recovery Plan there is a risk that the
transport response to Covid-19 is not coordinated and the measures
implemented will not be coherent with the aims of objectives of the draft TLP4.
Approval of the draft recovery plan ensures that PCC has a clear way forward
outlined to support securing funding to deliver the required transport recovery.

11.2

Approves the delivery of the proposed temporary measures, and process
for prioritising further measures as set out in the draft Transport Recovery
Plan
A funding proposal for the temporary measures outlined in governments
Emergency Active Transport Fund has been submitted to the DfT. If this funding
proposal is successful and measures are delivered as proposed this will open up
opportunities for further funding to be allocated to PCC.

11.3

Note that the measures proposed within the draft Transport Recovery Plan
are intended as temporary measures to be implemented quickly in
response to public health concerns and to support the city's economic
recovery. Therefore proposals will not be subject to the usual public
consultation process prior to implementation
As outlined in paragraphs 7.1 and 7.2 of this report, the changeable nature of the
Covid-19 response and the speed at which activities need to be delivered means
that it will not be possible to that our usual approach to consulting before
implementation. Instead stakeholders will be informed prior to implementation
and comments welcomed to help improve measures once they are in place.

11.4

Note that proposals in the draft Transport Recovery Plan are conditional
upon sufficient funding being provided secured through government's
Emergency Active Travel Fund
As outlined in paragraph 8.2 of this report a funding proposal has been submitted
to DfT to access up to £192,000 that has been provisionally allocated to PCC. At
the time of writing this report the final amount of funding granted to PCC has not
been confirmed.

7 255
Page

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

11.5

Give delegated authority to the Assistant Director for Transport to amend
the draft Transport Recovery Plan in line with the recommendations of
Cabinet and in relation to the agenda item on LTP4 for this decision meeting.
As outlined in paragraph 4.1 of this report the draft Transport Recovery Plan has
been developed based on the vision and objectives as set out in the draft LTP4
that was approved by Cabinet on 10th March 2020. Since this date further work
has taken place to develop the draft LTP4 and therefore the draft Transport
Recovery Plan should be updated to reflect the latest version of the LTP4 as this
is developed.

12.0

Integrated Impact Assessment

12.1

An Integrated Impact Assessment has been completed in reference to the draft
Transport Recovery Plan. Please see Appendix 2 to this report.

13.0

Legal implications

13.1

The Secretary of Transport has produced some statutory guidance on
management of the road network in the light of the Covid-19 pandemic. This
guidance was last updated 23 May 2020. The guidance does not replace the
original Network Management Duty Guidance but provides additional techniques
for managing roads to deal with Covid-19 response related issues.

13.2

The government expects local authorities to make significant changes to their
road layout to allow more space for cyclists and pedestrians, especially in areas
with high public transport use. It encourages local authorities to take measures
as swiftly as possible, and in any event, within weeks

13.3

There are 3 types of traffic order:






Permanent: this process includes prior consultation on the proposed
scheme design, a 21-day notice period for statutory consultees and others
who can log objections; there can be a public inquiry in some
circumstances.
Experimental: these are used to trial schemes that may then be made
permanent. Authorities may put in place monitoring arrangements, and
carry out ongoing consultation once the measure is built. Although the
initial implementation period can be quick, the need for extra monitoring
and consultation afterwards makes them a more onerous process overall.
Temporary: these can be in place for up to 18 months. There is a 7-day
notice period prior to making the TRO and a 14-day notification
requirement after it is made, plus publicity requirements. These are most
suitable for putting in place temporary measures and road closures.

Notice of the order can be given digitally rather than in a local newspapers in
cases of emergency. It is still required to publish a second notice in the local
newspaper within 14 days of the digital notice.

Page 8256
www.portsmouth.gov.uk

13.4

Authorities should seek input from stakeholders during the design phase. They
should consult with the local chiefs of police and emergency services to ensure
access is maintained where needed, for example to roads that are closed to
motor traffic. Local businesses, including those temporarily closed, should be
consulted to ensure proposals meet their needs when they re-open. Kerbside
access should be enabled wherever possible for deliveries and servicing.

13.5

Local authorities may also need to consider access for Blue Badge holders,
deliveries and other essential services. The needs of disabled people and those
with other protected characteristics should be considered as well.

13.6

There is an alternative power under section 14(2) of the Road Traffic Regulation
Act 1984 to introduce restrictions on the use of a road by notice without delay
where it is necessary because of the likelihood of danger to the public. Such
notice may restrict or prohibit temporarily the use of a road, or any part of it, by
vehicles of any class or by pedestrians to such an extent and subject to such
conditions or exceptions as are necessary.

13.7

Such notices should not continue for more than 21 days. The restrictions can be
extended by a further notice for a further period of 21 days, but any further
extension must be implemented by traffic regulation order.

14.0

Director of Finance's comments

14.1

Activities proposed within the draft Transport Recovery Plan are anticipated to be
funded through one of the tranches of the government's Emergency Active
Travel Fund.

Signed by:
Tristan Samuels- Director of Regeneration
………………………………………………….

Appendices:
Appendix 1- Portsmouth's Transport Recovery Plan (June 2020)- Draft
Appendix 2- Integrated Impact Assessment
Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972
The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a
material extent by the author in preparing this report:
Title of document

Location
9 257
Page

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

LTP4 Cabinet Report -10th March
2020

https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/documents/s2
6332/Local%20Transport%20Plan%204%20Develo
pment%20report.pdf

The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ deferred/
rejected by ……………………………… on ………………………………

………………………………………………
Signed by:

Page 10
258
www.portsmouth.gov.uk

DRAFT

Portsmouth’s
Transport
Recovery Plan
– Draft
JUNE 2020

Page 259
www.portsmouth.gov.uk

E

ET
T HICK

AD

RO

ON

ND

E

LA

N

POR T SDOWN AVENUE

RN

HO

OK
CRO

E
AV

AD
RO

ROAD

N
ER

ST

LEALAND

EA

RO AD

ROAD

RR

Y

N

FE

ROAD

RN

N

A
RL
BE
M

U

R

EASTE

ROAD

NEY

ST

D

L ANE
C O U RT

NS
DE

RO A D

D

ROA

D

ADAIR

E R
OA
VIC

SER
PORT
AIR

RD
.

S
AM
LLI
WI

I N S O N W AY

ROB

DAS
D UN

S LA
NE

NDA

DU

Portsmouth
College

Commercial Rd/Guildhall Seafront

RR

Y

Rudmore Roundabout Eastern Road
FE

Connects to green route at Rudmore roundabout
and orange route on Eastern RoadMarina

EY

ROAD
M AU R I C E
R O AD
KINGSLEY

R D.

G UA R

D

ROAD
ROAD

ST

CADNA
SO N

EA

CE RD
.

GRO

EASTERN

VE

ADAIR

COLLINS R
OAD

H

NS

ROAD
RO A D

D

ER
EN D

DE

HIGHLAN

Highland
Road
Cemetery

LID

DIA

RO

Eastney
Pumping
Station

A

D

RD

M

OA

RO A

D

B R A N S B U R Y R OAD
R

MER

E

LAND

Bransbury Park

Portsmouth & Southsea Station
Milton Locks

ROAD

W

N

LK

A

TN

SUFFO

FortE S T F I E L D
Cumberland

Connects
to green route at Northern Parade
Milton
and orange route on Eastern Road

RL

UE

D

ROAD

Northern Parade Eastern Road

RO AD

D

D

BE

EN

H ASL E

S T.

Portsmouth
University Halls
of Residence

ROA

NEY

TO R I A

A

MEON

D

Eastney

Fort
Cumberland

M

AV

W I T ROA

U

RO AD

TH

Y

MI

ROAD

Milton
Park

FE
RO

ROAD

A U G U SU
TMI N E

DS

RR

ROAD

T

FRENSHAM

B R A M S H OT

F EST ING

BRU

FESTING

N’

I N S O N W AY

S LA
NE

NDA

DU

BURRILL A
VENUE

Y L ANE

ROAD

AY L E N

ROAD

R
DOV E

ROAD

BAFFINS
GOL

B E ROAD
RL
A
N
D

NE

ROAD

AV E U

CIS

B AT H

FRAN

C

ROAD

A

AD

AT E
R

ESW

CR A N

S TA
TIO

ENUE

AV

ROAD

BAFFINS
ROAD

E

MER

S
NG

D

Y R
OA

RLE

BYE

D

ROA
NY

EN

TAL BO

ROAD
TT

RO

CR
ES

IDGE
B E MB R

Havant Road
Milton
BaffinsParade and Esplanade

E

FORT

MEL

VILLE

RO

C

AD

Gunwharf Quays
Hayling Island Ferry/Eastney

GA

R

Southsea Leisure Park
(Caravan)

Royal Marines’
Museum

PA R A D E

Cycle infrastructure*

ST

.H
ELE

ROAD

G OD

D

R O AD

T

R OAD

ROB

DAS
D UN

RN
HO

OK

ROAD

H ASL E

BRU

CE RD
.

FESTING

AD

RO

N
LON ’
DON

WOO

WEST

.H
ELE

ST

AD

RO

ON
ND

ROAD
RD

OXFO

D

ROA

IER
NAP

EY
RL
VE
WA

LANE

ROAD

AY L E N

R
DOV E

E

N
LA

HIGH

OUTH R
D.

FRENSHAM
ROAD

TINE

AU G U S

S T.

ROAD

E

AD

D R
OAD
RO
CR A N
AD
ESW
AT E
R
A

E ANSOT ER R N
THE RO
B E MB R
RN AD
IDGE
CR
PA R
ES

R OAD

LO

D

R OA

SEA

R

ROAD

ET

T HICK

D

Y R
OA

RLE

D

BYE

T

ST R E ET

STREE

RO

AD

ROAD
EN
NY
ROA
LEALAND

EA
D
ST
E
ROAD RN

RN

RT

THE

OR
NE
AV E U

ROAD

CIS

FRAN

B AT H

ROAD

TT

HIL

SE

FAW C E

ROAD
RD

OXFO

H
RT

NO

AD

RO

NS
DE

C HEL

ROA
A NY
D
LB

FAW C E

ROAD

NEY

A D A IR

RR

UE
PO RTSDO W
S ENV EANVOEN
AKS

ROAD

N

S TA
TIO

E A S T E TAL BOT
RN
R O AD
RO
AD

RO

ROAD

ROAD
INS

MA L
T

EE
R D.
W’S

A

S T. A N D
RE

V I C TORI

GREE

RO A D

CRO

R OA D

NG LA N
E
WYM ERI

D

R OA

SEA

C HEL
D

ROA
IER

NAP

EY
RL

VE
WA

E

D

RA

PA

I N S O N W AY

ROB

LANE

DAS
D UN

S TA M
ROAD
DUS H A W
NDA
S LA
NE

LONDON
MILE

.

N R D.

ST

AS

SM

ON

H
RT

AD

NO

R D.

W’S

A

V I C TORI

S T. A N D
RE

ROA
A NY
D

LB
RD
.

S
AM

LLI
WI

D

ROA
D

EN
GU
I
WALDHALL
LK
R

T LE

E
MER
H ASL E

CE RD
.

BRU

’
EN

.H
EL
ST

LO

AD

RO

ON
ND

LONDON

AD

RO

ROAD

ND

LO

MA L
T

EE

R E S CENT

.

L ANE

GREE

D

ROA

IC E
SERV

PORT

AIR

AY

RW

TO
MO
75

M2
ROAD

AY L E N

ROAD

R
DOV E

ROAD
BAFFINS
R

ALF
RE
D

ROAD

FRENSHAM

ROAD

ROAD

TINE

ROAD

S T.

ROAD
FESTING

CR A N

ESW

RO
AD
AT E
R
A

CR
ES

IDGE
B E MB R

WINTE
RH
ROAD ILL

E
BURRILL A
VENU

Y L ANE

R

T LE

AS

S
NG

D

T

EE
NE

AV E U

CIS

B AT H

FRAN

AU G U S

TA LB

ROAD

TT
FAW C E

ROAD
RD

R OAD

INS

D

ROA
D

EN
MILE

C

R

ALF
RE
D

GU
I
WALDHALL
LK

RT

SM

EE O R T H
ERN
T
AD

RO

DON

Y R
OA

RLE

BYE

D

ROA

NY

EN

ST. D

’S

GE

OR

ST.

GE
GUNWHARF
R D.

RO AD
OT

H
RT
NO

AD

RO

D
R OA
SEA

C HEL

OXFO
D

ROA

IER
NAP

EY

RL

VE

FIELDS

B R A D I N G AV.

WA

C O U RT

T
HIGH

OUTH R
D.

GUNWHARF
R D.

E
AD

PA R
D
D R
OA
WOO

WEST

LON

AD
RO

ON

ND
LO

ROAD
LONDON

MA L

T

EE
R D.

W’S

A

S T. A N D
RE

V I C TORI

Great Salterns
Golf Course

D

D

Langstone
Harbour

Connects to green route at Paulsgrove andHayling Ferry
St. James’
orange Hospital
route on Eastern Road

AD

ROA

Farlington Marshes
Nature Reserve

AD

Paulsgrove Eastern Road

RO

A NY

RO

Southsea Leisure Park
(Caravan)

Milton
Common

S

LB

N R D.

ST.

’S

ROAD

GE

ST.

SE

HIL

ERN

RTH
NO

E
D
RA

PA
AD
S HAW RO

S TA M

ROAD

INS

D

ROA

VILLE

ROAD

D

RR

KS

S E V E N OA

GE

STREE

WINTE
RH
ROAD ILL

OR

ST R E ET

NG LA N
E
WYM ERI

C

R E S CENT

R OA D

B R O WNING

PENT L A ND R I SE

B A Y LY A V
ENUE

AY

Fort
Cumberland

ERN

LANE

RA

ROAD

S TA M

DRAFT

RW

7

C

EAST

EN

RO

MILE

ICE

.

RV

S T R I D E AV E
NUE

ROAD

N R D.

SE

NU

Baffins
Pond

EA

GREE

A

TO

DR.

MO

MEL

E

75

FORT

H O RP

M2

A2

D

LT

Y A
VE

MARINA GROVE

R

RO A

R

D

ALF
RE
D

Eastney
Pumping
Station

D

Bus stops

ROA
NLE

HOLLAM

GU
I
WALDHALL
LK

M

CADNA
SO N
D ER

OA

AD

INE
MA
S TA

ROAD

R

SS

Paulsgrove The Hard

TO N

T LE

A

Admiral Lord
Nelson School

MIL

AS

-P

D T
A N
O VA
HR A

Royal Marines’
Museum

RE
ART
QU

ST.

GA

RD

R D.

’S

AD

BY

Marina

No through route for vehicles

HIGHGROVE

GE

R D.

AD

Low traffic neighbourhood

AV E N U E

OR

G TO N

RO

RO

ON

Anchorage
Park

WHITECLIFFE

GE

FA R L I N

D

S

A LT

IVE
F O X L E Y DR

CHESTERFIELD RD.

ST.

LOWER

ROA

RO

PopEastney
up cycle lane

H EN

DIA

AD

RA

DE

W

RO

PA

ROAD

AD E

E RT

Cycling and walking space

Bransbury Park

B R A N S B U R Y R ODA D
A

N

A

R
PA

RB

To Hava
& Emswor

ROAD
M AU R I C E
R O AD
KINGSLEY

Milton
Cross

LTO

S

HE

Pedestrian crossing

EA

MI

NT
CE

Hayling Ferry

Great
Salterns
Lake

LICHFIELD ROAD

S

W AT E R W O R K S

AV E N U E

R O AKDI

ROAD

AD

N’

VE NU E

To Hava

Cosham Station Fratton Station
Moneyfields

WIM
B
R O AO R N E
D

Southsea Leisure Park
(Caravan)
ROA
D

ROAD

D

TREGARON

HOLLAM

TO N

RO

AD

FITZ

CRESCEN T

ROAD

COPNOR

T

AV E N U E

ROAD

MIL

H I GHATE R D .

NA

M ERT HYR AVENUE

COSH A
M

R D.

ROAD

ROAD

RO

O SS

BURR

Fratton Park
Portsmouth F.C.

G

RO

Portsmouth
University Halls
of Residence

Milton

LD

Connects to purple route at Paulsgrove

NUE

BER

VILLE

W I T ROA

ROAD

NT

FIE

ROAD

EVELEGH

H AVA

Springfield
School

Milton
Cemetery
Hayling Ferry

EL

EE

MARINA GROVE

C A R M A RT H E N

E AST

G TO N

VERNON

St. Mary’s
Hospital

PRE

FORT

WOOD

Fratton Park The Pyramids Centre

ID

AD

SOLENT ROAD

Passing place

R OAD

HE

GUNWHARF
R D.

R D.

AV E N U E

AD

FA R L I N

RO

AD
COPNOR RO

ELDS

Kingston
Cemetery

AVE

RO

Farlington

D U NDAS SP U R

University Halls
of Residence

ITH

UE

A V.

ROAD

VIEW

St. James’
Hospital

DYS A R T A
VENUE

A
R OPortsmouth

ON E

AV E N

Park and Cycle

AD

ROAD

D.
FORD R

R

I N G TO N

M O O RTO W N

Milton
SEA
Common

Fort Purbrook

Great
Salterns
Golf Course

EET
FIFTH STR

GUILD

NAD

RO

GE R O

Existing quieter cycle routes*
BURRFI

RD .

GRA

LID

LLE

ROAD

A I R P ORT

T
EE

Y’S

A D A M ES

GAINS

S T.

HIGHGROVE

WHITECLIFFE

LICHFIELD ROAD

B R A D I N G AV.

AY

OR

R

ROAD

to Ryde

Page 260

RW

HILL

FA R L

EA

GROV E

ROAD

F UNT IN G TO N
RO A D

D

SHEARER

AD

D

The Pyramids Centre

BEDHAMPTON
ROAD

OAD
LANGLEY R

ST

E

PORTSDOWN

D

A L L C OT R O A D

College
Park

Marina

A LBE RT

SOUTH

Castle
Fields

WESLEY

ROAD

R D.

DE

Southsea
Skate
Park

RO

NO

City of
Portsmouth

Golf Course
Portsmouth
College

Safe walking routes

R D.

ROAD

COLLINS R
OAD
BER
LINE
ROA
D

PA R A D E

ROAD

E R
OA D
D

ER

SM

MEL

AD

Southsea

N

PAR
A

LIM

VE

BROW

Baffins

EY

LK

Langstone
Harbour

K E N S I N G TO N

PAU L S G R O V E

AD

SUFFO

CO

Hilsea

ROAD

ROAD

RO

CE

DO

TN

To South Dow
Colle

DALE

E

Drayton
Park

ROAD

COPN

TH E

C ROFTON

ROAD

RE
N

EN

AD

RANDOLPH

CLA

AR

RS

NW E R
LO

RO

D

Eastney

RO

R

LTO

N

Eastney
Pumping
Station

LAWRENCE ROAD

D
OA

RO A

FLORE
NCE R
OAD
.
M A LV E R N R D
ROA

E

ADE

ROA

TELEPH

Royal Marines’
Museum

CLARENCE

ROAD

AD

PA R

V I L LIE

.
LENNOX RD

PA R A D E

GA

RD

M

ROA D

CL
CE

CADNA
SO N

D ER

GRO

NU

Additional pedestrian space

ROA
NR

ROAD

STREET

CL I V

GOLD

ROAD

EN

DIA

ROAD

T

LID

RG

MAR

WA L M

FAW C E T

A

ROAD

ROAD

AV E N U E

ROAD

D

.

GUILDFORD ROAD

COLLINS R
OAD

OSB O R N E

H EN

D

NEW ROAD EAST

Fratton

ROAD

R ODA D

IRE

ST

ON

Bransbury Park

RT

H I GKHE NLTA N

EA

QU E E N ’ S
CR E S C.

FIELD

G UA R

Copnor

N EWCOME
W I T ROA

F R AT T

R O A D RD.

.

ROAD
M AU R I C E
S TA N S T D
ED
ROA
KINGSLEY

B R A N S B U R Y R OAD

VE

I

RO AD

D

OOK

RD

D

DO

ROA

ROAD

HOLBR

GRO

AD

ROAD

LON

ST

F R AT TO N

D

ELM

Y’S

TT

ROAD

Portsmouth City
Girls School

Milton
Priory
School

ALBE

High School

AR

HAMPSH

ROA

GRO
VE
R D.

.

SCO

EASTERN

ROAD

GEO

MAN O R ROAD

OOK

GE

LK

RD

RO

D

SUFFO

E

OA

T TA

RG R

CO

S

WEST

AVE N U E

ERNE

ROAD

S.

S

IN

A27
LAND

To Waterlooville

E
TH

Great
Salterns
Lake

THE

Drayton

MEON

Highbury
College

Farlington Marshes
H I G HReserve
Nature
LAND

ROAD

KIRBY

R D.

ROA

AY

RE

RO

PA

G

R OA D

ROAD

AD

NW

RS

AT

ILE

RVOAA D

HA

F EST ING

EY

MAY F IEL D

BALFOUR RD.

RO

HA

EA

ME

T N SO
E YMA

BER

ON

ERN

N

S T. J A M E S ’

UE

BA

NT

PA

Fratton

AV EN U E
AD

BY

Mayfield School

QUEENS

TO

ROAD

ROAD

EN

Housing
Offices

LL

S T.

IELD A V.

Highbury
SS

Highland
Road
Cemetery

RID

P O W E R S C O U RT

Milton
Common

St. James’
Hospital

CA
RL
LD
IS
R O AACK
Wilmcote LE
RO FRI
A D ARS House

B

TO N

CHURCHI

Milton
ParkWATERLOO
AV

HOLLAM

MIL

TH

AL W
ALK

E

To Havant
Milton
&
Emsworth
GOL H
Park
DASW T H
M I ORN
TH
CR
ROAD
A V ESCEN
EN T
G R OV
UE
E

T

NT

TO R I A

7

To Waterlooville

Great
Salterns
Golf Course

G OD

WIM
B
R O AO R N E
D

PRE

AD E

P

S T R I D E AV E
NUE

LD

Fratton Park R O S
EBE
F.C.
R RY

B R A M S H OT

ROAD

THE

AD

HILA RY AVENUE

B AT T E N B U R G A V E N U E

EAST

GS

D
CH ROA

D

Y A
VE

Milton
Cemetery

AD

H I G H B U RY

A2

NLE

COMPTON ROAD

LBR

RA

STRE
Charter ET
Academy

MEON

EL

ND

LAWRENCE ROAD

KIN

HO

CHUR

St. Edmund‘s
V I EW
O N S T School
AY
I LW

Guildhall

ID

ROAD

D
OA

RO

.

D

CAN

HE

T

DR.

D

MULB

D

ROA

ES

E

ROAD

ROA

IE
OODF

Cosham
Portsmouth

D

AMBER L

NEW
Portsmouth
College

STREET

L

R
PA

DE

Great
OR T C HE S T E R
PSalterns
Golf Course

KE

PA R K L A N

D.
FORD R

W

H O RP

CARDIFF

LA

W AT E R W O R K S

GUILD

FAW C E T

LT

NT
CE

Great
Salterns
Lake

G OD

AR U N D E

PO

Hilsea

VE NU E

CHICHESTER

R

RCH

Milton
Cemetery

AD

LA ROA

North
End

.

RO

MI

RD .

ROAD

R O A D RD.

ROA

S

S TA

Baffins
Pond

ON

ND

BEAC ONSF
RO

E RT

ERB

T U D O R CRE S C E

ROAD

C

ST

OA
E R

AVE

H
FITZ

CoshamN U E
Park
RO

Trafalgar
School

E AV
EN UE

RA

Portsdown

E

M AGDA

FIELDS

Temporary improvementCrookhorn
measures

Milton
Cross
To Havant
H AVA N T
ROAD

Cosham
High Street

COPYTHORN

ROAD

D U KE

ST

WAY

N

ROAD

ROAD

ROA
LEGE

A D A M ES

ON

OOK

ICE

ELD

EET
FIFTH STR

ROAD

GUILDFORD ROAD

F R AT T

HOLBR

RV

MARINA GROVE

AV E N U E

GFI

A

ITH

S T U B B I N G TO N

Buckland
Housing Office

S U L TA N

CHU
St. Agatha’s Church
Milton
C R A S S W E L L S T.
Cross

FIELD
ROAD
D
OA
GSUTA R
. D RO
E D WARDA’DS
R D.
Portsmouth

Road
Cemetery

AN

N

CHESTERFIELD RD.

D

SHEARER

ROA

ROAD

D

SE

D
R D.

Baffins
Pond

AD

ST

F R AT TO N

ROA

NCE R
OAD

ROA

ROAD

FIELDS

S T.

RO

ERNE

ROAD

S.
FLORE

INE
MA
HIGHGROVE

WHITECLIFFE

MI

U Highland
RG

PL

RO

SCENT

’S

L

W

St. Mary’s
R O A DHospital

NT

TORRIN GTON

Buckland
Baffins

LAK

WEST

VE

NA

Great Salterns
Golf Course

STIRLING

E

Landport Housing
Office PAT H N .

S RO
AD

Southsea
Common

A

ELD RD.

NU

COPNOR

WA L K

AY

RE

RT

.

ROA

F R
HAR OAD

Y A
VE

WIDLEY

AD

NW

SM

A LBE RT

DO YL

NAD

PA

UE
E N D AV E N

H

F UNT IN G TO N
RO A D

RO

HA

ALBE

DE

M A LV E R N R D

CLARENCE

RT

WAY

LAND

ES

R

R

OAD
H A RT L E Y R
ROAD

ORIEL

N G S TO N C R
ESC

NLE

BEDHAMPTON
ROAD

N

LANE

OAD
LANGLEY R

TO

MILL

GS

OOK
LBR
M ERT HYR HAOV ENUE

CR E

A

RO

OPHIR

BURR

G A R FI

R D.

KIN

E

A V E N UBE

RE
ART
QU

NO

WI N

ROAD

ROAD

EASTERN

S T.

Admiral Lord
Nelson School

AY

WIM
B
R O AO R N E
D

B R A D I N G AV.
CL S E R P E N TINE

AD E

D

GRA

N

AY

DS

AS TL E Y S T.

R
PA

PAU L S G R O V E

PI

TREGARON

.
LENNOX RD

ROAD
JERVIS

S TA

S TAT I

ROAD

KING

GRO

H AVA

R

GAINS

SOUTH

Moneyfields

E B YN
G

CHESTERFIELD RD.

RO

DE

EN R O A D

CHU
S T R I D E AV E
RC
NUE
H

AD

RA

S

R
HE
R T AD

NO

W
G E O RG

RO

ROAD

PA

.

RG

The Pyramids Centre

Portsmouth
and Southsea

C

F EST ING

ROA

N

D

A PA N

Mountbatten
Leisure Centre

T

TW

LTO

NT
CE

.

TO R I A

RN

e

ROAD

EVELEGH

E R
OA D
D

TELEPH V
King George
ON
Playing Field E

TE

Widley
Moneyfields

To South Downs
College

LO

Fratton

AD

Alexandra
Park

A I R P ORT

O

E
RK

MI

AD

Isle of Wight
Hovercraft Terminal

R OO X L E Y
AD

D

E L DO S

LICHFIELD ROAD

PRE

E
D R IV

F

M

H I GHAT E R D .

S

N

PAR
A

M EY R ICK ROAD

75

ROAD

M2

N’

GEO
NHOUS

SCE N T

KI

AD

Stamshaw

VERNON

E R
O

T

CE

A

RD

EN

SOUTH

NAD

AV E N U E

AD
E RO

OK

VENU E

Hovercraft to Ryde

GRA

CO

S E R P E N TIN

A
ON

y
er Ferr

The Pyramids Centre

R

UM

R

ROA

ROAD

g
Passen

D

CL

BR

B R A M S H OT

AY

GAINS

S T.

SE

AR

AD

AD

A LBE RT

l Ferries
Continenta

DE

to Ryde

Castle
Fields

RO

Car Ferry to Fishbourne

PAR
A

Southsea
Skate
Park

A

W

AD

N

MU

Y
NN
P E S T.

M

RO

ND

AD

GOL

CL

CE

DO

C A R M A RT H E N

AY

AD

Southsea
FLORE
NCE R
OAD
.
M A LV E R N R D
ROA

RE
N

RO

RO

CE

NEWCOMEN ROAD

RO

RS

EN

CLARENCE

CLA

AR

.
LENNOX RD

AD
E RO

CE

S E R P E N TIN

EN

E

ADE

V I L LIE

RE
N

DO

Southsea
Skate
Park

WA L D

COPNOR

CL

AR

AD

PA R

PE

ST

H

AD

Kingston
Cemetery

Fort Purbrook

UE

LO

RO

W

ROA D

CL
CE

RO

CLA

AD

EN

B

AY

EN

A

AD

TY

RO

Fields

Fratton Park
Portsmouth F.C.
W I N S TO N

Nuffield
Centre

Indoor
A V Tennis
EN

IS

AL

ITH

K R

OAD

U

IR

ET

PA R

ROA

E
WA L M

Anchorage
Park
Southsea

GREE THAM

Fratton

CL I V

DUNDAS SPUR

Victoria
Park

D

M

A N G L E S E A R D.

W

CL

AN

AD

AD
COPNOR RO

B

y
er Ferr

Hovercraft to Ryde

g
Passen

l Ferries
Continenta

Car Ferry to Fishbourne

PL

OSB O R N E
AR

RO

ROAD

Portsea
Housing
Office

ROAD

IS

Southsea
Common

ES

T

Royal Navy
Submarine Museum
and H.M.S. Alliance

RG

QU E E N ’ S
CR E S C.

STREET

G

U

U

R D.

F UNT IN G TO N
RO A D

KEN

D
Isle of Wight
Hovercraft Terminal

Bridge

Portsmouth
High School

.

St. Mary’sD
Hospital

BER

VE

RS

Tipner
Castle

R OAD

U
R.N. Sports CentreE

G
HI
RE

C

D

AY

Hilsea

GROV E

M

NE
O R OCentre
RO
G
AD
E’
S
RO
AD
Portsmouth
Grammar
School

D

RT

E R
OA

Old
Portsmouth
ROAD

LAWRENCE ROAD

OK

ADE

Kingston
Cemetery

EL

Isle of Wight
Car Ferry Terminal

S TA N S T E D

ALBE

BR

V I L LIE

RE

SOLENT ROAD

GOLD

ROAD

S TA N S T E D

M AT

KI

ID

.

E

AR

W

HE

VE

D.
FORD R

AD

RD

SM

S T. G E

RO

.

ST

RE

GRO

RD

RD

AV E N

Cosham
Fratton

Springfield
School

Priory
School

C RBE S C E N T
AIL
EY
’S

AD

A

CL

D

RW

T
EE

E RO
AD
D

GUILD

ELM
D
OA
STHaslar
.
E D WARD’S

S

ROAD

Y’S

TELEPH

GUNWHARF QUAYS

ROAD

GRO

S RO
AD

Gunwharf

Priory Quays
School

T

GE

IN

E

Y’S

GOLD

FAW C E T

KING

T TA

AT

ILE

RD
HA
ROAD
E

.

S
ER P
A

BA

D

R

R
S T. A
KE NT RO
ER

WA L M

Portsmouth
Harbour

AV EN U E
A
RO

ROA

Portsea

BROA

RD

TR

M
SO
MA
CO

RG

UM

Housing
Offices

C H U R CFerry
HILL
.
WATERL O O S T

Gosport

SE

Y
NN
P E S T.

M

B

STREET

ROAD

ST

PE

S

STREET
S T. J A M E S ’

GH

Gosport

W I N S TO N

AS TL E Y S T.

MU

AD

HIGH

TH

SOU

CA

RL
LA
IS
C
Wilmcote LE
RO KFRI
A D ARS House

Y

Indoor
Tennis

RO

Nuffield
Centre

R.N. Sports Centre

O R Centre
G
E’
S
RO
AD
Portsmouth
Grammar
School
HI

ET

MB

BROA
D

D

The Hard
Interchange

R O A D RD.

MU

Old
Portsmouth

S T. G E

Gunwharf
Quays

ROA
ARK

AL W
ALK

STRE
Charter ET
Academy

TH

RD

P

GUNWHARF QUAYS

CAN

GREE THAM
Guildhall

CL IV

QUEEN

ON

RA

Portsmouth
and Southsea

MAR

Fratton

F R AT T

St. Edmund‘s
V I EW
O N S T School
AY
I LW

.

N EWCOME

OOK

HA
Portsmouth
Harbour

Isle of Wight
Car Ferry Terminal

S TAT I

HOLBR

S T.

AD

Victoria
Park

O SS

D

RD .

D

E

KENT

Portsea
Housing
Office

Royal Naval
Museum

STREET

L
AR U N D E
RO

TH

Portsea

A N G L E S E A R D.

STREET

QUEEN

ST

ROA
EAD

ROAD

r

Farlington

N EWCOME

AV EN U E

NR

RW ROAD
AY
W H A L E I SL
A

STREET

A D A M ES

ROA

S T.

CRASSWELL

D
CH ROA

PA R

BURRFI

EET
FIFTH STR

St. Agatha’s Church

D.

CHUR

OOK

CHURCH

ST

E

ROAD

Landport Housing
Office PAT H N .

GUILDFORD ROAD

Mary Rose Ship
D
and Exhibition
OA
E R

LAK

AY

IRE

RG

Portsmouth City
Girls School

LBR

W

HO

ET

HAMPSH

MAN O R ROAD

ROAD

.

M

Royal Naval
Museum

K
AR

SHEARER

D

D

ROA

KE

CE

D

GEO

ROA

LA

ROAD

ST

F R AT TO N

R

ST

LL

QU E E N ’ S
CR E S C.

ROA

NEW ROAD EAST

ERNE

ROAD

ST

H

K E N S I N G TO N

AY

S.

RC

AD

ROAD

NW

AD

HA

RO

C

RE

ELD

CHU

OR

N

ROAD

D U KE

R D.

TO

OAD
LANGLEY R

GS

S U L TA N

Housing
Offices

ST

Portsmouth City
Girls
M OSchool
O RTO W N A V.
Queen
HYTHE
R D.
ST
Alexandra
.
M AHospital
R OAD
VIEW ROAD R Y ’ S
SEA

H A L S TEAD ROAD

CA
RL
LA
IS
C
Wilmcote LE
RO KFRI
A D ARS House

RO

ROA D

LINE

EN

Copnor

ROA

NEW

Buckland
Housing Office

L WA
LK
SDTYRSEA R T
ET A V E N U E

ROAD

NO

ROAD

ROAD

QUEENS

Buckland

GFI

RD .

P O W E R S C O U RT

S T.

COPN

CHICHESTER
PORTCHE STER

STIRLING

Whale
Island

H
IER
R O APD

ELD RD.

WAY

WI N

AVE N UE

BEDHAMPTON
ROAD

E BY NG

RO A D

KIRBY

North
End

ESC.

M P TO N

Charter
Academy

CHURCHI

A L L C OT R O A D

College
Park

COPYTHORN

KIN

F R
HAR OAD

GE O RG

G A R FI

AN

WESLEY

ROAD

RO AD

MAY F IEL D

PAU L S G R O V E

N G S TO N C R

CE

AY

KI
W

EN

W

D

HEA

PL

BER

AR

AR

T

PIER

CL

O

AY

I

ROAD

RO A D

ROAD

M

RW

ND

EY

ES

Mayfield School

S T U B B I N G TO N

D
ROA

Southsea
Common

B AT T E N B U R G A V E N U E

CR OFTO N

75
W H A L E I SL
A

CARDIFF

M2

M EY R ICK ROAD

O

RA N R
OAD
CAN
A

.
WATERL O O S T

AD
M A N O RF A RRLOI N
G TO N

BELL RD.

STREET

GREE THAM

COMPTON R OAD

BALFOUR RD.

NEWCOMEN ROAD

UE
E N D AV E N

H

RT

S T. J A M E S ’

B

AMBER L

ROAD

NO

RID

TORRIN GTON

RANDOLPH

ROAD

JERVIS

Stamshaw

Whale
Island

ROAD

ORIEL

EN R O A D

WA L D

TH E

OAD
H A RT L E Y R
ROAD
OPHIR

ROAD

IS

Hovercraft to Ryde

N

Isle of Wight
Hovercraft Terminal

UE

T

OSB O R N E
LIM

AD

ER

E AV
EN

KEN

ROAD

RO

TH

R
NO

SHA M

TT

ROAD

CH
CHUR

RG

Portsmouth
Harbour

to Ryde

Mountbatten
Leisure Centre

DO YL

RCH

CRASSWELL

Y AV E N
UE

Horsea
Island

U
U

N
Trafalgar
School

y
er Ferr

P

Tipner

g
Passen

l Ferries
Continenta

Car Ferry to Fishbourne

Alexandra
Park

E AST

SCO

D

SCENT

DO

D

D

Hilsea

LON

ROA

OA

R OA D

Portsmouth
Harbour

A PA N

F R
HAR OAD

ON

CR E

A

ERR

THO

D

Wymering

Landport Housing
Office PAT H N .

Highbury

ND

AD

TY

M AT

SEB

H AW

S T.

D

DraytonS O U T H A

Guildhall

IELD AV.

W I N SR OT O N

Cosham

R OA

Portsmouth
and Southsea

HI LARY AVENUE

BEAC ONSF

ROA

KE

BURR

A

AY

Nuffield
Centre

LA

ST
C

St. Edmund‘s
V I EW
WE
O N S T School
S T E W AY
RI L

S TAT I

E

C

ROAD

To Waterlooville

CO

Fort
E T Widley

Portsmouth

SOU Golf Course R G E
THW
GEO
ICK
HILL
ROA
D
PORTSDOWN
HILL
REET
I R E R OSAT D
HAMPSH

R

ST

H

L
AR U N D E

ROAD

RE

AL

ROAD

MULB

D

AS TL E Y S T.

ST

IR

CH

RO
PA R K L A N

BROA

M

LA ROA

RC

E
LAK

E LT E N H A M R O A C H U
St. Agatha’s
Church D

AD

Victoria
Park E

Y

ELD

CHU

AY

H AVA N T

A
W

ET

D
OA

RE
RO

AD

TW

D U KE

i

Crookhorn
Copnor

ROAD

ELDS

Great Salterns
Golf Course

Admiral Lord
Nelson School

To Waterlooville

NEW ROAD EAST

POTRHTESDOB R O W
AD
WN
HILL W R O
OAD of
N E RCity

ROAD

.
RN
OA
RS
Drayton
CRE
M E PA I
D
SCE
N S Park
SO
NT
RD
H I G H B U RY
MA
Portsmouth O M
.
G R OV
E
US
Grammar P
AT
EU
E
CO
School
M
N
T TA
RO
RD
AD
GE
.
R
GRO
KING
T U D O R CRE S C E
ST
VE
S RO
NT
Highbury
AD
GH
College
HI
ELM
Y
LO
NN
P E S T.
GRO
A27 D
VE
A
PE
O
M
ST.
BR
W
E D WARD’S
A LT
OK
ON
E R
R D.
C Portsmouth
OA
High School
D

R

ET

and H.M.S. Alliance

A N G L E S E A R D.

RN

D

Horsea
Royal Navy
Island
Submarine Museum

R
TO
MO

ES

TE

KE

ROAD

M AGDA

R.N. Sports Centre
M A O Centre
R IN
R GA
Cosham
King GeorgeEV’ SK EE P Park
Playing Field R

Old
Portsmouth

Haslar
Bridge

WAY
OAD
K R

AR

GFI

DALE

THE

E

TH

ROAD

QUEENS

Buckland
Housing Office

S U L TA N

C RE

B R O M YA R D

D.

Cosham
High Street

7

W

ST

Portchester

P TO N

M2

PA R

Isle of Wight
Car Ferry Terminal

Portchester
Castle

.

ROAD

Portsea
Housing
Office

S T.

Port
Solent Indoor
Tennis

GUNWHARF QUAYS

Gosport

L

A

STREET

S T. G E

STREET

LE

GR.

KENT

Gunwharf
Quays

ST

P

SOUTHAM

WI N

AD

ON

D
ON

M

Portsmouth
Harbour

STREET

TH

RO

P O W E R S C O U RT

Buckland

Portsdown
BLAK E M E R E

OLL I N G T O N C RESC

.

Paulsgrove

RD

D

Castle Shore Gosport
Open Space Ferry

HIGH

To Fareham

ROMAN

AD

RD

Queen Housing Office
Alexandra
Hospital

HA

RO

RNE

D

Portsea

E

ROA

W O O F F E RTO N

RO

The Hard
Interchange

RN

CA

KE E

STE

TH

T
EE
TR
Y
LE S
MB

A
W

Y

SOU

A

WE

GR OVE

Portsdown

Cosham
QUEEN

MU

R
TO
MO

R IN

EEP
THE K

CAST

7

MA

BELL RD.

HAMI LTO N RD .

ROAD

M2

Port
Solent

R D.

M P TO N
U T H ARoyal Naval R O A D
N S TREAODA D
S O U T HSAOM P T OMuseum
ROAD
HAL

ROAD

LIME

ELD RD.

LA
N
S T.
S T I R LEI N G

D O R M I N G TO N R

C O L E S B OU

R
ON

A

AM

EAST STREET
P TO N

HYTHE

Wymering

C H E LT E N H

VE

K H
ILL R
OAD

ST

RO

King Richard
School

Portchester

King Richard
School

SOUTHAM

BE
D

MOUSEHOLE R
D.

Mary Rose Ship
and Exhibition
C

B R O M YA R D

K E LV I N G R OV E

Paulsgrove
Housing Office

ROA

Paulsgrove
Fort Widley

G A R FI

R D.

P OR T C HE S T E R

.

Widley

WAY

WA L K

LANE

N E W B O LT

.

D

ROAD

MILL

RD.

D O R M I N G TO N R

e

E B YN
G

JAMES CALLAGHAN DR
IVE

ROAD

WIC

G E O RG

H a m p s
h
ROAD
To Waterlooville
CHICHESTER

ROAD

W

E

C RE

OLL I N G T O N C RESC

r

WIDLEY

ONHOUS

RD

SOU
TH

C O L E R I D GE

BLAK E M E R E

HILL

SCE N T

ON

ROAD

ST

O U S EHOL E RD
.

RNE

PORTSDO
WN

Portsdown

D

C O L E S B OU

R

NE

EN U E
AV

ROAD

TO N

.

VE

CARL

OA

BE

D

HILL ROAD

RD.

W O O F F E RTO N

GE

LA

GROVE

ANSON

GR OVE

i

Fort Southwick

N G S TO N C R
ESC

ROAD

COPYTHORN

H I GHATE R D .

T

PIG
E

LIME

W

BURRFI

End

To Waterlooville

KI

H a m p s
h

M27 MOTORW
AY

Paulsgrove

D

ROAD

O

AY

ROAD

ROAD

M

H

PIER

JAMES CALLAGHAN DR
IVE

ROA
EAD

ROAD

BALFOUR RD.

75

RW

ND

CARDIFF

M2

O

ERN

D U NDAS SP U R

AVE N U E

S T U B B I N G TO N

EAST

D

College
Park

ROAD

KIRBY

Langstone
Harbour

EASTERN

M2

D

RO

ROA

LO

ICE

PA

RV
AD

INE
MA

MAY F IEL D

VERNON

AD
S HAW RO

SE

RE
ART
QU

K E N S I N G TO N

RO AD

A L L C OT R O A D

AD
COPNOR RO

Mayfield School

C ROFTON

H

RT

B AT T E N B U R G A V E N U E

ROAD

UE
E N D AV E N

GROV E

COMPTON ROAD

RANDOLPH

NO

M EY R ICK ROAD

W H A L E I SL
A

Portsdown

The Hard
Interchange

ROAD

ORIEL

WESLEY

ROAD

This map shows the proposed Emergency Active Travel Fund (tranche 1) and Reopening Highstreets Safely Fund measures
Whale
alongside existing cycling routes. Further improvements
to existing routes and the addition of new infrastructure will be
Island
brought forward from the Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan and if bidding for tranche North
2 funding is successful.

Fort Southwick

A M P TO N

OAD
H A RT L E Y R
ROAD

ROAD
JERVIS

NEWCOMEN ROAD

ROA

TORRIN GTON

OPHIR

EN R O A D

Connecting active travel and onward journeys
Stamshaw

N E W B O LT

ROAD

A I R P ORT

Transport recovery plan
RN

HE

RT

NO

WA L D

EY

AD

AMBER L

Mountbatten
Leisure Centre

Tipner

*This identifies areas that have items in place for cycling
including cycle lanes and shared paths. Note that
some of the quieter routes also have areas with cycle
infrastructure in place too.

DRAFT

Contents
Transport recovery plan

2

2.0 Current Context

5

1.0 Managing the impact of COVID-19
3.0 Supporting a resilient city 

4.0 Draft Local Transport Plan 4
5.0 Proposed Activities 

5.1 Delivering cleaner air 

5.2 Prioritising walking and cycling 
5.3 Transforming public transport 

4
6
8

10
10
11
12

5.4 Supporting business and protecting our
assets 
14

6.0 Communication and Engagement

16

Glossary of terms

20

7.0 Next Steps

18

Page 261
Portsmouth’s Transport Recovery Plan • June 2020 • 3

DRAFT

1.0 Managing the
impact of COVID-19
The Coronavirus Pandemic necessitated
immediate and wide-spread changes to the way
the city operates and to each of our day to day
lives. To slow the spread of the virus a nationwide
‘lockdown’ was imposed that dramatically
reduced travel demand as offices, shops,
industry and schools closed. We expect that
there will continue to be significant disruption to
travel over the coming year, not least because
until a vaccine is found social distancing
restrictions are likely to remain in place meaning
the capacity of public transport will be
dramatically reduced. If everyone who previously

caught the bus or train chose instead to drive
there will be gridlock and air quality would worsen.

However, even out of this terrible crisis there are
opportunities; individuals and businesses have
learnt how to make best use of digital meeting
platforms and home working which has reduced
commuter travel, there has been an increased
uptake in walking and cycling as people made this
part of their daily exercise, reduced traffic levels
have resulted in less noise, air pollution and safer
streets, while many have had the opportunity to
explore their local area increasing their
appreciation of the local community they live in.

Page 262
4 • Portsmouth’s Transport Recovery Plan • June 2020

Following the announcement from the
Government in mid-May regarding the gradual
easing of the lockdown restrictions implemented
in response to the COVID-19 Pandemic, Local
Transport Authorities were advised to commence
planning to ensure that local transport networks
were prepared for the change in travel demand.
Since the government introduced lockdown
measures, use of motorised traffic in the city has
decreased to as low as 34% of pre-lockdown
levels and cycling numbers have increased to as
much as 156% compared to last year. However,
as restrictions on movement are loosened traffic
volumes are continuing to rise with 87% of
pre-lockdown traffic now back on the main roads
around the city.
The Department for Transport has outlined a
number of areas which need to be considered in

preparation for the local transport restart, and in
particular in response to the green and active
travel agenda to ‘help embed altered behaviours
and demonstrate the positive effects of active
travel’ as requested by Transport Minister Grant
Shapps:
• Collaboration

• Green Transport Restart and Recovery
• E-Scooters

• Data and Evidence
• Public Transport
• Travel Planning
• Role of the Car

• Transport Users
• Resources

Page 263
Portsmouth’s Transport Recovery Plan • June 2020 • 5

DRAFT

2.0 Current Context

DRAFT

3.0 Supporting a resilient
city
The transport network is identified as being
central to local economic recovery and it is
expected that resources are made available and
quickly mobilised to ensure that the network is
as prepared as possible for when the
government changes, and in time, removes all
travel restrictions.

Portsmouth City Council is working closely with
our liaison officer at the Department for Transport
(DfT) to share progress and seek assistance in
any areas of concern.
Portsmouth must be resilient in the face of the
COVID-19 crisis. The transport response will
focus on keeping people safe and the city moving.
The following principles are essential and will
guide this process:

Reduce travel demand. To cope with reduced
capacity on public transport while ensuring
the highway network continues to function
safely. We will encourage businesses and
organisations to reduce travel demand during
peak hours. This will include encouraging
greater working from home, staggering arrival
and departure times for staff and pupils and
re-moding journeys to non-motorised modes
where possible. We will facilitate greater use of
on-line services by providing improved
consolidation facilities, including local
collection lockers that can minimise the
impact of multiple delivery vehicles.
Making best use of limited capacity. Due to
reduced capacity of public transport and not
enough space for everyone to drive on the
highway network. For example one traffic lane

can carry 2,000 people per hour in cars,
14,000 on bikes or 19,000 on foot[1]. To
ensure that everyone who needs to travel can
do so quickly and safely we will prioritise
walking, cycling and emerging modes such as
e-scooters above car use; something that is
all the more challenging in Portsmouth’s
narrow streets. We will focus our efforts on key
routes to the city centre, local centres, health
and education facilities and major
employment sites, using research gathered
through LCWIP route audits and consultation
with ward councillors.

Keeping people safe. If people are to have the
confidence to access the city over the coming
months. There will be places where people
continue to gather during this crisis, including
bus stops and train stations, shops and
pharmacies. We will provide more space for
pedestrians where possible in these locations
so that they can access the city safely, taking
into account social distancing guidelines.
Improving our lives locally. There is likely to
be a continued increase in local travel within
our neighbourhoods as work from home
becomes a norm and residents carry out their
day to day activities nearby. To give people the
confidence to walk and cycle locally we will
provide additional space for walking and
cycling and reduce ‘rat running’ traffic in
residential streets and provide improved
connections to local centres and green
spaces through initiatives such as low traffic
neighbourhoods and school streets.

Page 264
6 • Portsmouth’s Transport Recovery Plan • June 2020

• follow the draft vision and objectives of the LTP
4, agreed by Council on the 10th March 2020;
• maximise opportunities provided by existing
and planned projects and funding.

• identify opportunities to align delivery with the
planned highway maintenance programme;

• implement schemes as trials or temporary
measures (using Temporary and/or
Experimental Traffic Regulation Orders initially),
with options for future conversion to
permanent status where appropriate;

• co-ordinate with other highway and planning
processes;

• engage and work with the Ward Councillors,
Solent Transport, partners, and key
stakeholders including business and
transport operators, and ensure that members
of the public are kept informed of and involved
with any changes being made ;and
• undertake ongoing monitoring and review of
all schemes and measures on a regular basis.

Page 265
Portsmouth’s Transport Recovery Plan • June 2020 • 7

DRAFT

In prioritising, designing and delivering schemes
and supporting packages within this plan, we will:

DRAFT

4.0 Draft Local
Transport Plan 4

The draft Local Transport Plan (LTP 4) vison and objectives were considered and approved by the
Portsmouth City Council Cabinet, 10th March 2020. These will guide the measures implemented to
restart the local transport provision:

Vision:

‘By 2036 Portsmouth will have a people centred travel network, prioritising inclusive,
active and sustainable connectivity, that creates a safer, healthier and more
prosperous city.’

This vision is supported by four strategic objectives, which in turn are supported by a number of
policies which will be developed following the confirmation of the proposed direction of the strategy:
Strategic objectives:

Delivering cleaner air

• Implement a Government directed city centre clean air zone in 2021
• Supporting infrastructure for alternative fuelled vehicles

• Maintaining residents’ parking permit system alongside policy that
encourages fewer and greener vehicles

• Expand the Portsmouth park and ride to reduce pollution and congestion
in the city centre
• Explore private non-residential parking restrictions to encourage mode
shift and help pay for improved walking, cycling and public transport
infrastructure

Prioritising walking and cycling

• Reallocate road space to walking and cycling to deliver:
Ƿ
Ƿ
Ƿ

A network of attractive, inclusive and accessible walking routes and
associated pedestrian priority
A comprehensive network of continuous cycle routes
Cycle parking in local centres and street

• Reduce through traffic in residential neighbourhoods, and manage
parking through parking controls

• Improve the city centre, local and district centres by reducing or removing
general traffic, with access focussed on sustainable methods
• Deliver innovations in micro mobility to promote transport choice and
active transport options

Page 266
8 • Portsmouth’s Transport Recovery Plan • June 2020

• Develop a rapid transit network that connects key locations in the city with
South East Hampshire, and facilitates the future growth of Portsmouth

• Prioritise local bus sevrvices over general traffic to make journeys by public
transport quicker and more reliable
• Work with transport operators to deliver integrated, efficient and affordable
services promoting local and regional connectivity
• Work with bus operators to explore alternative fuels for the bus network within
Portsmouth

• Deliver physical and digital integration of travel modes and fares to improve
the usability of the travel network
• Deliver high quality public transport interchanges, stations and stops as
well as first mile/last mile connectivity to them

Supporting business and protecting our assets
• Protect access to the port and naval bases

• Support businesses and other organisations to consolidate their
operational journeys, including use of zero emission vehicles for last mile
deliveries
• Deliver a micro and macro freight consolidation centre to serve
Portsmouth’s businesses, and support opportunities for increased rail
freight

• Develop and deliver schemes to incentivise behaviour change and
minimise highway occupation at peak times in sensitive locations such as
applying charges through lane rental
• Ensuring a high quality, well-functioning highway network through
developing and delivering maintenance of all highways and transport
assets

• Management of the kerbside to deliver variable use for essential access

Page 267
Portsmouth’s Transport Recovery Plan • June 2020 • 9

DRAFT

Transforming public transport

DRAFT

5.0 Proposed Activities
The following activities are proposed in relation to
delivering the 4 key objectives of the LTP 4 as
part of our transport response to COVID-19.

5.1 Delivering cleaner air

Supporting infrastructure for alternative
fuelled vehicles

We are continuing to roll out additional electric
vehicle charging points in the city and we are
recruiting a dedicated project manager to
accelerate the delivery of this essential
infrastructure. As more of our residents return to
work we will be encouraging them to travel to
their place of work using active modes where
possible. However, we are aware that this will not
be an option for everyone and therefore for those
who few who have to use a car it is essential that
we enable as many of these car journeys as
possible to be made in the least polluting
vehicles.

We are also working closely with our partners
Solent Transport and with the DfT to bring
forward a trial of hired electric scooters in the city.
We have submitted an expression of interest to
the department for Transport for Portsmouth to
be included in the trial, and we expect trails of
e-scooters to be launched in the city by 31st
August. It is hoped that such a trail could provide
a realistic alternative to some car journeys in the
city and we are talking to businesses about how
the trial could help with their return to work.

operation of residents parking zones and made
council car parks and on-street pay and display
parking free, to support key workers during a time
when few vehicles were moving. The focus
moved to safety critical parking enforcement. As
government eases lockdown restrictions we
expect vehicle movement to continue increasing
and it is essential we support residents by
responding to this change and manage parking
through lifting the suspension on residents
parking zones. From 1 June the enforcement of
residents parking zones and pay and display car
parks resumed.

Portsmouth Park & Cycle to reduce
pollution and congestion in the city centre
The Transport Secretary encouraged people to
drive close to, but not right into a town or city
centre where they work. The idea being they
could park up and then walk or cycle for the
remainder of the journey.

Park and Cycle provision is being considered
from the Portsmouth Park and Ride, Junction 1 of
the M275, and from Farlington Playing Fields car
park in the East of the city. This will enable
commuters to drive the majority of their journey
to work, but make the final part of their journey on
bike, on an e-scooter or on foot, therefore
reducing the pressure on the road network in the
centre of the city.

Maintaining residents’ parking permit
system

Whilst government guidance to England was to
stay at home, we temporarily suspended the

Page 268
10 • Portsmouth’s Transport Recovery Plan • June 2020

Reallocation of Road Space

In order to support increased numbers of people
cycling and walking, and enable social distancing
a number of proposals have been put forward,
and enacted, to reallocate road space to walkers
and cyclists:
• Seafront roads closed

Ƿ

Ordinance Row

Ƿ

Elm Grove

The Hard

We have also submitted an expression of interest
to the first round of government’s emergency
active travel fund, requesting funding to deliver
the following measures in addition to those listed
above:
• Low traffic neighbourhood between Highland
Road and Goldsmith Avenue
• Filtered permeability on Castle Road
• Filtered permeability on Canal Walk

• City centre roads closed:

Ƿ

Ƿ
Ƿ

As a majority island city, with only three roads
connecting to the mainland, and some of the
highest population densities outside London,
competition for road space is intense.

Ƿ

• Suspension of parking to allow for pop-up
cycle lanes:

Charlotte Street - from Landport View to
Cascades Approach;

Isambard Brunel Road - from Station Street
roundabout to Greetham Street roundabout
Guildhall Walk - from the junction of Alec
Rose Lane to the junction of Spring
Gardens.

It is clear that the demand for space in the city will
change as more people resume normal activity.
We are therefore continuing to work with interest
groups such as the Portsmouth Cycle Form, Ward
Councillors and Portsmouth Friends of the Earth
to identify further opportunities for road closures
through introducing point closures, play streets or
school streets and to respond in an agile way and
the focus on transport and mobility shifts.

Page 269
Portsmouth’s Transport Recovery Plan • June 2020 • 11

DRAFT

5.2 Prioritising walking and
cycling

DRAFT

5.3 Transforming public
transport

vehicle) or 20 passengers on a double deck.

Bus Service Levels

Bus service levels have been reduced since late
March 2020 following the outbreak of COVID-19
and government guidance on travel and at
present there are around 20% of the passengers
than at this time last year. From 31 May, these
have increased to near pre-COVID levels to cater
for increased return to work and retail openings.
Initially funding was provided by the DfT to bus
operators providing they did not operate more
than 50% of their previous commercial network.
Further funding from DfT is being made available
to support the increase in service levels.
In response to the gradual easing of the
lockdown and the increasing numbers of people
using public transport, bus operators are
increasing bus services in Portsmouth and
government is amending its funding provision
accordingly.

Portsmouth City Council will continue to work
with the bus operators closely and key employers
over the coming months to ensure that the most
appropriate service is delivered for the city that
responds to demand for public transport as
people begin returning to work.

Vehicle Capacity

In response to social distancing, new restrictions
are being introduced that limit the number of
people who can be carried on buses. This is
between 9 and 11 passengers per single deck
vehicle (dependent on the actual size of the

This will mean that once a bus reaches this
number of passengers the bus will show the bus
destination as FULL due to COVID-19 and
passengers will be left behind at bus stops.
Notices will be placed on the buses and at bus
stops to advise passengers of this.

Updated Mobile Phone app

First bus have updated their mobile app this
week. Now, in addition to real time journey
information and the ability to buy m-tickets on
your phone, you can see how many seats are on
the next buses before they arrive so you can
adjust your plans if needed.

Social Distancing and Bus Services

With recent new guidance from the government,
and the easing of lockdown measures in England,
the bus companies have now introduced social
distancing measures for our services. These
include marking seats out of uses and stopping
standing. The Council is supporting these
messages through our communication channels
and through providing information at bus stops.

The Government announced on the 4th June
2020, that the wearing of face coverings will be a
compulsory requirement of using public transport
from 15th June 2020. This will apply to any
passengers travelling on bus, coach, train, tram,
ferry and aircraft, on their whole journey to help
reduce the risk of transmission when social
distancing is not always possible.
Portsmouth City Council are working closely with
operators to ensure consistent messaging to
passengers, as well as identifying measures to

Page 270
12 • Portsmouth’s Transport Recovery Plan • June 2020

Bus Stops and Shelters

The Council is responsible for all bus stops and
shelters within Portsmouth, and have undertaken
audits at the busiest key transport hubs where
increased passenger flow could impact on safe
waiting, boarding and alighting public transport.
We have introduced messaging about social
distancing at bus stops at the busiest stops
across the city. This will be complemented by
footway markings. We have worked with bus
operators to introduce locations in which
separate boarding and alighting stops at the
busiest locations, to reduce potential contact
between passengers. Any changes put in place

are being clearly communicated to users and bus
operators, and reviewed regularly to ensure that
they are working effectively. We are also working
closely with our neighbouring authorities to
ensure that all public transport messaging is
consistent and clear to users.

Gosport Ferry

Portsmouth City Council, together with Gosport
Borough Council and Hampshire County Council
have come together to provide a two month
funding package which, deferral of some monthly
charges, will allow continuity of the ferry service.

Communication with Transport Users

We are continuing to deliver our robust strategy
for strong and real time communications with all
transport users, particularly those with
protected characteristics under the PublicSector Equality Duty.

Page 271
Portsmouth’s Transport Recovery Plan • June 2020 • 13

DRAFT

support this at the Council’s key public transport
interchanges. Additional risk assessments are
being undertaken by all staff working at
interchanges to ensure they have access to face
coverings.

DRAFT

5.4 Supporting business and
protecting our assets
Proactive Traffic Management

As businesses re-open, often with new operating
processes to enable social distancing, there is
the potential for significant impact on the road
network.
The council will work with key businesses to
deliver proactive traffic management to minimise
congestion on the network, and support the
restart of the local economic.
In particular, at sites such as Gunwharf Quays
(now reopened) and the Paulsgrove Household
Waste Recycling Centre (HWRC)- opened 11th
May, we are undertaking pro-active engagement
to support their traffic management.

In the case of the HWRC, a temporary traffic
management plan was implemented to create
additional queuing space, diverting other through
traffic via an alternative local road. Demand for
the HWRC was managed by allowing cars with
odd numbered registration (last digit) on odddated days and evens on evens. Queuing time
signs were deployed and 2 hrs before the HWRC
closure time, any traffic trying to join the queue at
the 2 hr marker was advised that they would not
get in and to return in two days’ time.

Engagement and Travel Planning

As set out by the DfT’s latest advice, we will be
undertaking engagement with stakeholders and
businesses in order to support their return to
work and other usual activity. We will be asking
employers to consider ways in which their

workforce can continue to work from home where
possible. Where this cannot be achieved we will
be asking that employers encourage their staff to
walk or cycle to work, and consider ways in which
they can reduce the number of vehicle trips to
their sites, particularly at peak times.
We are aware that many workplaces and other
organisations do not have suitable facilities to
support an increased number of people walking
and cycling to their sites. We will therefore be
making funding available that can be used
towards providing new or additional facilities for
secure cycle parking and changing facilities.

Schools opening to more pupils

We are engaging with schools to understand their
plans for re-opening, and in particular their
expectations for how many children will be
returning to school and how they will get there.
This will help us to work in collaboration with the
schools to manage localised congestion
hotspots and maintain social distancing on the
school run and restarting School Crossing Patrols
where possible.
We are continuing to work with colleagues in
Education to provide school transport for those
children with special educational needs and we
are planning for increased demand for this
service as schools open to more pupils in
September. There is growing pressure on this
service as the number of minibuses and staff
required to transport the children to school has
increased so that social distancing can be
maintained. The Transport Operations team are
working with colleagues in Education, Human
Resources, schools and transport operators to

Page 272
14 • Portsmouth’s Transport Recovery Plan • June 2020

For Home to School Transport the biggest
challenge in September will be the requirement to
transport all of the children who have a statutory
entitlement in a safe and socially distanced manner.

For more mainstream schools there is an
expectation that all pupils will to return to school,
we are working with colleagues across the
council and with a number of schools in the city
to consider how we can implement ‘School
Streets’ and similar measures to improve road
safety outside of the school gates.

Page 273
Portsmouth’s Transport Recovery Plan • June 2020 • 15

DRAFT

ensure the continued delivery of the current
service and try to plan the for the upcoming
school year 2020/21 in very exceptional
circumstances.

DRAFT

6.0 Communication and
Engagement
Communications and promotion

We have a variety of communication channels to
inform residents and businesses about greener,
cleaner and safer travel during the COVID-19
recovery and to provide an opportunity to
comment on the temporary measures that we
introduce. We will also use our communication
channels to reinforce government messaging.
Some channels are targeted to specific
audiences, others provide an opportunity to
share messages more widely Communication
channels that we will use to keep the city updated
about the emerging plans and individual schemes
include social media, the PCC website, Flagship
magazine and real time information signs.

Engagement

We are changing the approach to stakeholder
engagement for the emergency transport response
to the pandemic as required by government to
make swift changes. Stakeholders within areas
that are being changed will be informed of the
changes and have a way of feedback any
questions or changes they made need so that
their business can operate.

Comments and views will be welcomed once
measures are in place and operational, and we will
be as responsive as possible to these comments.
This ongoing dialogue with stakeholders and
communities will help to inform future scheme
development and decisions about the continuation
or indeed permanence of measures going forward.
We will engage a wider audience through the
normal communications methods identified in
the previous section.

Page 274
16 • Portsmouth’s Transport Recovery Plan • June 2020

A number of road closures schemes to
reallocate road space to walking and cycling are
being introduced in promote public safety by
enabling social distancing in response to the
COVID-19 pandemic.
The legal basis for these schemes is Section
14:2b of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984,
which gives highway authorities the right to
close roads without consultation for up 42 days
(a 21 day closure which can be renewed once) if
the public safety need is so great as to warrant
this action.

As such, Portsmouth City Council is not ordinarily
be able to consult and engage with the public and
stakeholders in the way that we would ordinarily do.

Comments and views will be welcomed once
measures are in place and operational, and we will
be as responsive as possible to these comments.
It is, however, of course vitally important that
stakeholders, residents and businesses are
informed of forth coming changes. As such, the
following processes are in place to give
information about the closures, and this will be
undertaken with as much advance notice as
possible:
• Briefing with Opposition Spokespeople

• Letter to members of the Transport
Liaison Group which has representatives
from the following transport organisations:
Ƿ

AA

Ƿ

Blue Lamp Trust

Ƿ
Ƿ
Ƿ
Ƿ
Ƿ
Ƿ
Ƿ
Ƿ
Ƿ
Ƿ
Ƿ
Ƿ
Ƿ
Ƿ
Ƿ
Ƿ
Ƿ
Ƿ
Ƿ
Ƿ

• Letter outlining changes emailed to all
affected Ward Councillors

Ƿ

• Press Release

Ƿ

• Social Media Campaign (Twitter, Facebook
etc.)

Ƿ

Ƿ

• PCC Website Updates

• Statutory Stakeholders as per obligations in
Section 14.2b
• Letter outlining changes emailed to all
affected businesses and residents

Ƿ
Ƿ
Ƿ
Ƿ
Ƿ
Ƿ

Aquacars

British Cycling

City Wide Taxis
Clearchannel
Cycling UK

Driver and Vehicle Standards Agency
Driving Instructors Association
Driving-Pro.com

Federation of Small Businesses
First Group

Freight Transport Association
Friends of the Earth
Gosport Ferry

Govia Thameslink Railway
Gunwharf Quays

Hampshire Constabulary
Hovertravel

Independent taxi trade representative
Motorcycle Action Group

Portsmouth Cycle Forum

Portsmouth Group Ramblers
Road Haulage Association
South Western Railways
Stagecoach

Sustrans Ranger / Portsmouth Cycle
Forum
Uber

University of Portsmouth

Vehicle and Operator Services Agency
Walking Friends Portsmouth
Wightlink

Page 275
Portsmouth’s Transport Recovery Plan • June 2020 • 17

DRAFT

Consultation Programme

DRAFT

7.0 Next Steps
We will continue to work quickly to deliver
temporary changes to the local transport system
to enable the restart of the economy in a safe
and sustainable way. Many of these changes will
need to be made at short-notice to address
immediate safety concerns to allow social
distancing. However, as we move through the
later stages of Government’s roadmap to lifting
the Covid-19 restrictions our focus will shift
towards the role that local transport can play in
maximising the number of activities that can take
place safely.

As we adjust to new ways of working, spending
our leisure time and moving around the city it will
be vital that we take the opportunity to shape the
travel habit of residents and visitors to city. We will
build upon the principles embedded in our
Covid-19 response of: reducing travel demand;
making best use for limited capacity; keeping
people safe; and improving lives locally to deliver
a Local Transport Plan 4 that is transformational
for the city.

Short Term

These are the activities that we
will take within the next 3
months to act in an agile way to
provide space for social
distancing and ensure that key
transport infrastructure is
running smoothly

Action Plan

Government have announced two rounds of
funding that can be accessed by Local
Authorities to deliver the emergency changes to
transport needed to support the recovery from
Covid-19. The initial round of funding is focused
on delivery of measures that can be implemented
quickly to provide more space for people to move
around the city safely. These measures will be in
place in the city by the end of June.
The second round of funding is focused on
delivery of longer term projects that can help to
make permanent improvements to the local
environment by providing a safe and coherent
network of active travel infrastructure to support
they city’s recovery.

The diagram oppisite sets out the timeline for
delivering measures in the short, medium and
long term that will be implemented to manage the
impact of COVID-19 and help towards achieving
the objectives of Portsmouth LTP4.

Medium term

These are the activities that we
will undertake in the next 3-6
months to drive the local
transport recovery in the city
and to help our residents to
travel around the city by active
and sustainable modes

Page 276
18 • Portsmouth’s Transport Recovery Plan • June 2020

Longer Term

These measures look beyond
the next 6-12 months and
towards the delivery of our
Local Transport Plan 4

Prioritising walking and cycling

Transforming public transport

3 months

12 months

6 months

Real Time
Information
Hard
Interchange
Modifications
Bus Stop
Modifications
Increased
Park and Service
Ride Frequencies
Reopen

Tap-on
Tap-off

Fratton Bridge
Relining

Road closure Guildhall
Walk/ Charlotte Street/
Isambard Brunel Road
Canal Walk
filtered
permeability
Parking
Suspension
The Hard

Eastern
Parade
Crossing

Routes
4 U app

East-west
active travel
Southampton corridor
Road/ Compass
Road junction
School
redesign
Streets

Freight
Consolidation
Parklets

Active
Bike
Travel
Hangars
Campaigns
Trial

Low Traffic
Neighbourhood

Re-introduce
parking charges
and enforcement
Cycle
Parking

Variable
Message Signs

By 2036 Portsmouth will
have a people centred travel
network, prioritising inclusive,
active and sustainable
connectivity to create a safer,
healthier and more
prosperous city

E-Scooter Hire
Trial

Park and
Cycle

Elm Grove /
Ordnance Row
Cycle Lanes

Seafront road
closures

Increased bus
priority

Vision

Workplace
Sustainable
Travel Fund

Castle Road filtered
permeability
Safe space
Engagement
to queue
with Businesses
Supporting business and protecting our assets

Cleaner air

Note: Activities that we are seeking Government emergency active travel funding for are highlighted in bold

Evaluating impact

To ensure the success of the emergency
response interventions is understood by PCC we
will continue to collect data on both vehicular and
cycle traffic within the network.
This data is being used to inform short term
emergency interventions, but will also inform how
those interventions evolve over time and is being
shared with the DfT on a regular basis.

1.
2.

How to get involved

We will continue to meet weekly with Traffic and
Transportation Opposition Spokespeople and
quarterly with all ward councillors to ensure we
take into account the views of stakeholders and
the local community. We will also use these
meetings to provide updates on the development
of schemes and to discuss potential for making
any of the measures permanent.

If you have any suggestions for transport
measures that can help support the city’s
response to the COIV-19 pandemic then please
get in touch with your ward councillor1 or log your
suggestions on the widen my path website2

https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
www.widenmypath.com

Page 277
Portsmouth’s Transport Recovery Plan • June 2020 • 19

DRAFT

Transport recovery plan – 2020 to 2021

DRAFT

Glossary of terms
Like many sectors the world of ‘Transport’ has its own jargon and acronyms. This glossary provides
definitions for terms that are used within this document.
Accessible - This means that transport services
are easy to access for all, including anybody who
experiences limited mobility and, or people who
may be using wheelchairs

Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) - An
area where national air quality objectives set by
the government are not being achieved and
changes are needed to reduce air pollution levels
Artificial Intelligence - Computer systems used
to carry out tasks, usually requiring human
intelligence
Carbon Footprint - The total greenhouse gas
emissions generated by a person, household or
organisation, usually measured over the course
of a year

Car Club - Offers members access to locally
parked vehicles without being tied to ownership

Clean Air Zone (CAZ) - A zone where a package
of measures will be brought forward to improve
air quality in order to meet the national air quality
objectives set by the government. It may or may
not include a charging element. Portsmouth City
Council has been directed by government to
implement a Class B Charging CAZ

Connected Vehicles - Vehicles that use
technology to communicate with each other and
the world around them, to help the driver or
vehicle make assisted decisions. A basic
example is GPS information that helps find the
quickest route

Autonomous Vehicles - Autonomous vehicles
currently on the road are semi-autonomous with
some functionality that does not need a driver,
such as self-parking or auto-collision avoidance
features. In the future there could be fully
autonomous vehicles that don’t need a driver at all
Collaborative Traffic Management - Use of
online/cloud based traffic management systems
to coordinate management of Strategic Road
Network (SRN) with Local Highway Authority
(LHA) networks

Consolidation centres - This is where goods are
delivered from many suppliers. Then, when
needed, multiple goods are collected as part of a
fuller load by smaller more environmentally
friendly vehicles, for example into the city centre
reducing the impact of freight journeys. The
centres can be:
• Macro - large centres on the edge of cities,
goods are delivered by Heavy Goods Vehicles
(HGVs) or trains and collected by smaller
vehicles
• Micro - small centres in neighbourhoods,
goods are delivered by larger vans and
collected by smaller electric vans or electric
cargo bikes

Page 278
20 • Portsmouth’s Transport Recovery Plan • June 2020

Our five priorities are:

1. Make Portsmouth a city that works together,
enabling communities to thrive and people to
live healthy, safe and independent lives.
2. Encourage regeneration built around our
city’s thriving culture, making Portsmouth a
great place to live, work and visit.
3. Make our city cleaner, safer and greener.

4. Make Portsmouth a great place to live, learn
and play, so our children and young people
are safe, healthy and positive about their
futures.

5. Make sure our Council is a caring, competent
and collaborative organisation that puts
people at the heart of everything we do.

Cycle Hangars - These are covered structures
that provide secure cycle p arking in locations
where it is difficult to store bicycles. For example
in residential areas where terrace properties have
no rear access. In these locations the hangars are
located where car parking spaces would have
been, providing space for six bicycles
Demand Responsive Transport - This is a form
of shared transport that can be pre-booked by
individuals which offers services that have the
flexibility to alter their routes based on demand
for trips, rather than by using a fixed route and
timetable

Electric Vehicle (EV) - A vehicle that uses one or
more electric motors for propulsion. Distinct
from a hybrid vehicle that uses two or more
sources of power, such as diesel and electricity
Filtered Permeability - A road that allows
through-access for walking and cycling, but
removes it for motor traffic

First and Last Mile trips - These are the trips
made at either end of a longer public transport
journey and may be from your house to a
transport interchange, or between a transport
interchange and your place of work, a school or a
leisure location. They are usually short distance
trips that may not be well-served by local public
transport, but may be possible to make with more
flexible ‘Shared Transport’ or ‘Demand
Responsive Transport’ (see individual definitions
in glossary)
Future Transport Zone (FTZ) - A zone that will
provide a real-world testing ground for innovative
ways to transport people and goods. We are part
of the Solent Transport partnership that has
secured funding from government for a FTZ in
Portsmouth. This will trial innovative measures to
provide new modes of travel and ways to plan
and pay for it, alongside innovative measures to
reduce the impacts of freight movements in the
city
Heavy Goods Vehicle (HGV) or Large Goods
Vehicle (LGV) - A large vehicle that’s purpose is
to transport heavy loads (these terms cover all
commercial trucks that feature a gross
combination mass of over 3500kg)

Kerbside space - The area in which the
carriageway (road) joins the footway (path).
Kerbside space can be utilised (drop off and
loading) and enforced (double yellow lines) in a
manner of ways to enhance road space for users
Lane Permit Scheme - A means of requesting
space to carry out work on the highway either as
a statutory undertaker or as a highway authority
in line with New Roads and Streetworks Act
(NRSWA) 1991
Lane Rental Scheme - Allows a local highway
authority to charge works promoters for the that
street and road works occupy the highway

Page 279
Portsmouth’s Transport Recovery Plan • June 2020 • 21

DRAFT

Council Priorities - Each year, the council sets
out its priorities. These are the areas where we
will be focusing our efforts to improve life in the
city for everyone.

DRAFT

Local Cycle and Walking Infrastructure Plan
(LCWIP) - A strategy document that sets out the
approach to developing local cycling and walking
networks over a ten-year period. This is part of
the Government’s strategy to double the number
of cycling journeys made and substantially
increase walking activity by 2025
Local and District Centres - Focus points that
encompass a grouping of units (such as
shopping facilities)

Low Traffic Neighbourhood - A street or group
of streets in which through vehicle traffic is
removed or discouraged

Local Transport Plan (LTP) - A strategy
document that sets out the vision, objectives,
policies and implementation plan for improving all
of the transport network. This document is the
LTP, Edition 4 for Portsmouth

Micro mobility - Any range of modes making use
of small vehicles, principally e-scooters and
bicycles, including e-bikes
Mobility as a Service (MaaS) - An on-line
platform or smartphone app that allows a user to
view travel options, timing, costs associated with
a range of shared and public transport modes
and to book and pay for such journeys.

Mobility Hubs - Locations, usually at key
transport interchanges such as train or bus
stations, piers, busier bus or rapid transit stops,
which provide access to a range of transport
modes and facilities. These can include rail, bus,
rapid transit, cycle and scooter hire, car club,
cycle parking but also facilities such as shopping
lockers, cafes and bike shops. They are designed
to make it easier for people to access the core
public transport network and make ‘first or last
mile’ trips by other modes.

Mode of Transport - This refers to the different
ways people and goods can be transported such
as public transport, Heavy Goods Vehicles
(HGVs), bicycles, walking and private car.
Mode Share - The proportion of trips made by
each mode of transport.

Mode Shift - A change in the proportion of trips
made by different modes of transport, often
reflecting changes to the transport network or
the services that use it
My Journey - Online site for travel information
and advice in Hampshire

Multi-Purpose Vehicle (MPV) - A type of car that
offers a more spacious interior and taller ride
height than a standard car. Often referred to as a
minivan or people carrier
On-Demand Buses - As with Demand
Responsive Transport, these buses would
operate on a pre-booked basis by individuals,
rather than on a fixed route and schedule

Parklet - A green space created to be publically
accessible, usually in an urbanised environment
in a former roadside parking space
Play Streets - Street’s where the road is closed
to through traffic for periods of time to allow
children to safely play outside
Pro-Active Network Management - Use of
technology and collection of data to predict
changes in highway flow/use and to react to
mitigate impacts of change

Public Realm - The space between buildings that
is open to the public, including streets, squares,
forecourts, parks and open spaces
Rapid Transit - High capacity, high frequency,
road based public transport services that often
run in dedicated lanes separate from general
traffic with priority at junctions to ensure fast and
reliable journey times. The proposed rapid transit
network in Portsmouth will form part of the South
East Hampshire Rapid Transit scheme

Page 280
22 • Portsmouth’s Transport Recovery Plan • June 2020

DRAFT

Residents Parking Zone - A zone where car
parking is only permitted on-street for vehicles
that have an eligible parking permit

Shared transport - This is a demand-driven
vehicle-sharing arrangement, in which people
share a vehicle over time, like car clubs, car share,
and bike or scooter hire schemes. This can save
the user money and reduces vehicles on the road
Smart Parking App - An app that allows drivers
to see the availability of on street pay and display
parking spaces near to their destination
Solent Go - is a pay as you go top up card that
allows passengers to travel seamlessly across
South Hampshire using buses and ferries

Sustainable Transport - Any form of transport
that produces low or zero levels of carbon
emissions, including walking, cycling and public
transport

Transforming Cities Fund (TCF) - This is a
funding package from government that aims to
improve productivity and spread prosperity
through investment in public and sustainable
transport in England’s city regions. Portsmouth
City Council is part of a partnership that has
secured funding from government from the
Tranche 1 TCF, and are submitting a rebid for
Tranche 2 TCF funding to bring forward the next
phase of the South East Hampshire Rapid Transit
network in Portsmouth

Workplace Parking Levy (WPL) - A scheme that
places a charge on employers who provide
workplace parking for employees. The funds
raised are used towards future sustainable
transport schemes
Zero Emission Vehicles - These are vehicles
that produce no carbon emissions at their point
of use. They may be powered by electric or other
fuel sources such as hydrogen

Page 281
Portsmouth’s Transport Recovery Plan • June 2020 • 23

DRAFT

You can get this information in large
print, Braille, audio or in another
äà
å ã language by calling 023 9284 1193
Produced by: marketing@portsmouthcc.gov.uk • Published:Page
June 2020282
• Ref: 74.534
www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA)
Integrated impact assessment (IIA) form December 2019

www.portsmouth.gov.uk
The integrated impact assessment is a quick and easy screening process. It should:
identify those policies, projects, services, functions or strategies that could impact positively or
negatively on the following areas:
Communities and safety
Regeneration and culture

Environment and public space
Equality & - DiversityThis can be found in Section A5

Directorate:

Regeneration

Service, function:

Transport

Title of policy, service, function, project or strategy (new or old) :
Portsmouth’s Transport Recovery Plan

Type of policy, service, function, project or strategy:
Existing

★

New / proposed
Changed

What is the aim of your policy, service, function, project or strategy?
To set out the strategic approach that PCC will take in delivering a transport response to the covid-19
pandemic.

Page 283

Has any consultation been undertaken for this proposal? What were the outcomes of the consultations? Has
anything changed because of the consultation? Did this inform your proposal?
Individual measures within the Plan have been developed based on discussions with Councillors, key stakeholders and local
interest groups.

A - Communities and safety

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
A1-Crime - Will it make our city safer?

★

In thinking about this question:
•
•
•
•

How will it reduce crime, disorder, ASB and the fear of crime?
How will it prevent the misuse of drugs, alcohol and other substances?
How will it protect and support young people at risk of harm?
How will it discourage re-offending?

If you want more information contact Lisa.Wills@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cou-spp-plan-2018-20.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?
Motoring offences are frequently mentioned as a problem in communities; particularly among children and vulnerable road users.
This strategy will help to reduce motor vehicle traffic and allocate more space to vulnerable road users.

How will you measure/check the impact of your proposal?
Continue to review KSI data and reports regarding road safety

A - Communities and safety

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
A2-Housing - Will it provide good quality homes?

★

In thinking about this question:
•
•
•
•

How will it increase good quality affordable housing, including social housing?
How will it reduce the number of poor quality homes and accommodation?
How will it produce well-insulated and sustainable buildings?
How will it provide a mix of housing for different groups and needs?

If you want more information contact Daniel.Young@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/psh-providing-affordable-housing-in-portsmouth-april-19.
pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?

Page 284

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

A - Communities and safety

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
A3-Health - Will this help promote healthy, safe and independent living?

★

In thinking about this question:
•
•
•
•

How will it improve physical and mental health?
How will it improve quality of life?
How will it encourage healthy lifestyle choices?
How will it create healthy places? (Including workplaces)

If you want more information contact Dominique.Letouze@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cons-114.86-health-and-wellbeing-strategy-proof-2.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?

Prioritising walking and cycling will encourage people to lead healthier lives. Reducing motor vehicle traffic congestion will
encourage community interaction and improve the broader wellbeing of residents. Reduce car use could also help to reduce air
pollution in the city, providing a benefit to everyone's health, particularly those with pre-exisiing conditions and those in at high risk
for contracting covid-19.

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?
Data on traffic and cycling counts. Air quality monitoring data.

A - Communities and safety

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
A4-Income deprivation and poverty-Will it consider income
deprivation and reduce poverty?

★

In thinking about this question:
• How will it support those vulnerable to falling into poverty; e.g., single working age adults and lone parent
households?
• How will it consider low-income communities, households and individuals?
• How will it support those unable to work?
• How will it support those with no educational qualifications?

Page 285

If you want more information contact Mark.Sage@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cou-homelessness-strategy-2018-to-2023.pdf
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/health-and-care/health/joint-strategic-needs-assessment

Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?
Access to private transport, and the cost of public transport can be a barrier for some to access work. By providing more an safer
walking and cycling routes in the city individuals may be able to more easily access employment and education opportunities.

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?
cycling and traffic count data.

A - Communities and safety

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
A5-Equality & diversity - Will it have any positive/negative impacts on
the protected characteristics?

★

In thinking about this question:
• How will it impact on the protected characteristics-Positive or negative impact (Protected characteristics
under the Equality Act 2010, Age, disability, race/ethnicity, Sexual orientation, gender reassignment, sex,
religion or belief, pregnancy and maternity, marriage and civil partnership,socio-economic)
• What mitigation has been put in place to lessen any impacts or barriers removed?
• How will it help promote equality for a specific protected characteristic?
If you want more information contact gina.perryman@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cmu-equality-strategy-2019-22-final.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?
Likely positive impact on those with physical disabilities. Many of the existing footways in Portsmouth are not wide enough to allow
individuals with mobility impairments to pass others, let alone when social distancing measures are in place. By reallocating road
space to pedestrians and cyclists this provides more space for those with physical disabilities to move safely around the city.

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

Page 286

B - Environment and climate change

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
B1-Carbon emissions - Will it reduce carbon emissions?

★

In thinking about this question:
•
•
•
•

How will it reduce greenhouse gas emissions?
How will it provide renewable sources of energy?
How will it reduce the need for motorised vehicle travel?
How will it encourage and support residents to reduce carbon emissions?

If you want more information contact Tristan.thorn@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cmu-sustainability-strategy.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?
Motor vehicle traffic contributes a significant amount of CO2 to the cities emissions. By promoting, encouraging and enabling
citizens to favour walking or cycling over driving the city will reduce its transport emissions.

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

B - Environment and climate change

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
B2-Energy use - Will it reduce energy use?

★

In thinking about this question:
•
•
•
•

How will it reduce water consumption?
How will it reduce electricity consumption?
How will it reduce gas consumption?
How will it reduce the production of waste?

If you want more information contact Triston.thorn@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/pln-portsmouth-plan-post-adoption.pdf
https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/documents/s24685/Home%20Energy%20Appendix%201%20-%20Energy%
20and%20water%20at%20home%20-%20Strategy%202019-25.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

Page 287

B - Environment and climate change

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
B3 - Climate change mitigation and flooding-Will it proactively
mitigate against a changing climate and flooding?

★

In thinking about this question:
•
•
•
•

How will it minimise flood risk from both coastal and surface flooding in the future?
How will it protect properties and buildings from flooding?
How will it make local people aware of the risk from flooding?
How will it mitigate for future changes in temperature and extreme weather events?

If you want more information contact Tristan.thorn@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/env-surface-water-management-plan-2019.pdf
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cou-flood-risk-management-plan.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

B - Environment and climate change

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
B4-Natural environment-Will it ensure public spaces are greener, more
sustainable and well-maintained?

★

In thinking about this question:
• How will it encourage biodiversity and protect habitats?
• How will it preserve natural sites?
• How will it conserve and enhance natural species?
If you want more information contact Daniel.Young@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/pln-solent-recreation-mitigation-strategy-dec-17.pdf
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/pln-portsmouth-plan-post-adoption.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

Page 288

B - Environment and climate change

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
B5-Air quality - Will it improve air quality?

★

In thinking about this question:
•
•
•
•

How will it reduce motor vehicle traffic congestion?
How will it reduce emissions of key pollutants?
How will it discourage the idling of motor vehicles?
How will it reduce reliance on private car use?

If you want more information contact Hayley.Trower@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/env-aq-air-quality-plan-outline-business-case.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?
Reducing congestion, and prioritising walking and cycling, will likely have a positive impact on air pollution due to reduced vehicle
emissions as a result of fewer car journeys.

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

B - Environment and climate change

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
B6-Transport - Will it improve road safety and transport for the
whole community?

★

In thinking about this question:
•
•
•
•

How will it prioritise pedestrians, cyclists and public transport users over users of private vehicles?
How will it allocate street space to ensure children and older people can walk and cycle safely in the area?
How will it increase the proportion of journeys made using sustainable and active transport?
How will it reduce the risk of traffic collisions, and near misses, with pedestrians and cyclists?

If you want more information contact Pam.Turton@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/travel/local-transport-plan-3
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?
New road infrastructure for people and cyclists will improve the safety of vulnerable road users.

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

Page 289

B - Environment and climate change

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
B7-Waste management - Will it increase recycling and reduce
the production of waste?

★

In thinking about this question:
• How will it reduce household waste and consumption?
• How will it increase recycling?
• How will it reduce industrial and construction waste?
If you want more information contact Steven.Russell@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

Page 290

C - Regeneration of our city

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
C1-Culture and heritage - Will it promote, protect and
enhance our culture and heritage?

★

In thinking about this question:
•
•
•
•

How will it protect areas of cultural value?
How will it protect listed buildings?
How will it encourage events and attractions?
How will it make Portsmouth a city people want to live in?

If you want more information contact Claire.Looney@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/pln-portsmouth-plan-post-adoption.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?
Improving the ability of people to walk, cycle and engage with their local community will help to make Portsmouth a city people
want to live in.

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

C - Regeneration of our city

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
C2-Employment and opportunities - Will it promote the
development of a skilled workforce?
In thinking about this question:
•
•
•
•

How will it improve qualifications and skills for local people?
How will it reduce unemployment?
How will it create high quality jobs?
How will it improve earnings?

If you want more information contact Mark.Pembleton@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cou-regeneration-strategy.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?
Many local and young people rely upon walking, cycling and public transport to study and work. Prioritising the travel of local and
young residents in their ability to get to work or study will help to support the workforce.

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

Page 291

C - Regeneration of our city

Yes

No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?
C3 - Economy - Will it encourage businesses to invest in the city,
support sustainable growth and regeneration?

★

In thinking about this question:
•
•
•
•

How will it encourage the development of key industries?
How will it improve the local economy?
How will it create valuable employment opportunities for local people?
How will it promote employment and growth in the city?

If you want more information contact Mark.Pembleton@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cou-regeneration-strategy.pdf
Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative
impacts?
The majority of customers of local SMEs walk or cycle to the highstreet. By prioritising people and cyclists more custom will be
directed to city based independent SMEs. This will benefit the local economy by prioritising local businesses.

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

Q8 - Who was involved in the Integrated impact assessment?

This IIA has been approved by:
Contact number:
Date:

Page 292

Agenda Item 17

Agenda item:
Title of meeting:

Cabinet

Date of meeting:

14th July 2020

Subject:

Covid-19 - Road to Recovery and plans for the future

Report From:

Chief Executive

Report by:

Paddy May, Strategy Unit

Wards affected:

All

Key decision:

NO

Full Council decision:

NO

1.

Purpose of report

1.1

The purpose of this report is to provide Cabinet with a proposed framework for
how the city might best position itself in response to the Covid-19 pandemic.

2.

Recommendations

2.1

Cabinet:
2.1.1 Expresses its condolences to those that have lost loved ones, and
its huge appreciation to the many agencies and individuals that have
responded so selflessly and effectively to the Covid-19 pandemic.
2.1.2 Agrees the process for developing the Vision for the City and
alignment with its own priorities, outlined in Section 5.

3.

Background

3.1

Whilst the rates of Covid-19 infection so far in Portsmouth have been low
compared to other places within Hampshire and nationally (see Figure 1), the
impact on the city, our communities and individuals within it has been
significant and in many cases tragic and traumatic. As the strict lockdown
measures are lifted nationally, the city council will show leadership and energy
in supporting our communities and our economy to recover from the impact of
the virus and the lockdown in the best way possible. In doing so, the council
has the key role in leading the process of reflection and response and work to

Page
1 293

galvanize how the city expresses its priorities and values for the future. This
includes identifying where opportunities might emerge from the tragic
experiences we have been through.

Figure 1 - Covid-19 infection rates / 10,000 population

3.2
The Impacts of Covid-19
3.2.1 We already know1 that the impact of Covid-19 will be most detrimental to
those already most disadvantaged and that the pandemic will lead to a
national and global recession. Clearly, there has been a direct impact of
Covid-19 on many people's health within Portsmouth and there will be many
grieving families and individuals suffering from the long term consequences of
having caught the virus. As has been reported nationally, there have also
been many indirect health impacts which will have a long term consequences.
This will include some of the mental health issues that dealing with the virus
will have caused, as well as the impact of delayed treatment of other illnesses
whilst the NHS prepared to deal with the first Covid-19 peak, and the effects
of confinement, social isolation and lost opportunity, including the very
significant impact on structured learning and skills development for our young
people.

1

https://www.health.org.uk/publications/long-reads/will-covid-19-be-a-watershed-moment-for-healthinequalities

Page 2294

3.2.2 The impact on local businesses and on the employment of many people
locally has also been significant. In a recent report. the Resolution Foundation
found that 69% of UK households reported that they have experienced a
reduction in income as a result of Coronavirus and that this has led to 23% of
households needing to use savings to cover living costs and 13% struggling to
pay bills.
3.2.3 In terms of employment, the Institute of Employment Studies in a report
"Dealing with the Labour Market Impacts of the Covid-19 Recession" found
that :
 Unemployment has already risen far quicker than in any of the last three
recessions
 The labour market will not pick up where it left off, as many businesses need
to repair their balance sheets and ongoing disruption due to the virus
 Younger people will be at greater risk
 Long-term unemployment leads to permanent labour market 'scars', with
those affected more likely to be out of work later in their lives, to be in poor
quality work and lower earnings
 A stronger sectoral bias is anticipated, with retail and hospitality appearing
particularly vulnerable.
3.2.4 For children and young people there has been a huge loss in education during
the lockdown with only around 3-5% of children attending school. Even now,
with wider opening, only 25% of children are able to attend school. We know
from reports from schools that the engagement of children in home learning
has been very patchy and now that more children are returning, the loss in
skills is clear. While the Government is funding schools for catch up provision
it will be extremely challenging to make up this loss quickly. We know, too,
that without the structure of school and college some young people are
engaged in less positive activity. Also, referrals to social care from contacts to
the MASH are higher than normal levels despite the majority of children being
less visible to schools. With increasing family poverty as a result of job losses
there is likely to be continued pressure on this service.
3.2.5 All of this demonstrates the importance of a strong response to the Covid-19
crisis that is multi-faceted dealing with health and economic issues at both the
system and the individual level. Clearly, much of the response to this will be
led by national policies and national initiatives but there is still much that the
council can do to help the city and our communities recover from the impacts
of the Covid-19 pandemic.
4.

The Council's response to Covid-19

4.1

We have witnessed much that is positive and uplifting in the City's response to
the Covid-19 pandemic and it is important that any response looks to lock

Page
3 295

these positive changes in and build on them. Examples of this include the
community spirit and work of the voluntary and community sector, and in
particular the HIVE, who supported our local communities and most
vulnerable residents superbly. Further examples would include strong interagency collaboration across the health and care sector; a reduction in traffic
with more people cycling and walking and using the green spaces that we
have within the city; providing accommodation for rough-sleepers; closer
working between the schools and the local authority; people working from
home and greater use of technologies.
4.2

With regard to the council's own operations, during the crisis the council has
maintained its grip and focus on delivering and re-designing services to meet
the needs of the community. It has successfully delivered all its business
critical services such as social care, housing and supporting the homeless,
support to schools, waste management and road safety, as well as the
sourcing and distribution of PPE - all despite many challenges. It implemented
changes to support the policy of allowing people to work from home wherever
possible and has enhanced its infrastructure and support regimes to allow this
to happen. Staff from less critical services have been redeployed to support
elsewhere, including supporting the work of the HIVE and privately run care
settings.

4.3

A number of council services were delivered in different ways, e.g. virtually,
and the council's business continuity group (Gold) have constantly reviewed
the delivery of services, when and how to set them back up and how to
manage the risks. A survey has been undertaken with staff about their
experience and reaction during Covid (with over 2000 responses), and
extensive dialogue has been maintained with the Trade Unions.

4.4

The vast majority of council services have been stood back up following the
initial emphasis on supporting and supplementing the most critical services
This is being done whilst there remain, and will continue to remain, significant
reductions in capacity due to shielding / isolation and in the expectation that
we need to be planning for a significant circulation of the virus at least into
early 2021.

4.5

To help this a brief appraisal (see Appendix 1) is being undertaken, in
consultation with portfolio holders, to ensure that any service can be reopened safely. This checks that appropriate risk assessments are undertaken
to protect the public and staff, and to make sure that standing-up one service
does not inadvertently impact on others, for example by displacing redeployed staff from more urgent work.

4.6

Of those services that have not been resumed, a majority are due to
Government imposed restrictions. As the restrictions are lifted we should
ensure that we look to operate services in a way that is consistent with our

Page 4296

priorities - and check how our priorities might have changed in the light of our
Covid experience and its consequences. Attached at Appendix 2 is an
indicative timeline showing how a range of Council services have been set up
or will operate. We should also consider how we can operate in a way that
does not cause more disadvantage to groups that have suffered most from
the pandemic and the lockdown such as young people, BAME communities or
other communities that suffer disadvantage. This work links into the council's
Outbreak Plan which has been developed for the city and for which
democratic oversight has been put in place
(www.portsmouth.gov.uk/covidoutbreakplan).
4.7

The financial impact of Covid-19 on the council has been significant. It is
currently estimated that the impact of the increased costs, lost income and
loss of funding will be £32m. At the time of writing, the government had
provided additional grant of £12m leaving an overall forecast shortfall of
£20m. Even if there is an immediate bounce back in income levels, which
during any future recession is unlikely, there is still a significant funding gap
that will need to be dealt with. This is also true nationally and so it is likely that
all public services in Portsmouth could be challenged financially coming out of
Covid-19. The Council has an obligation to plan responsibly in order to protect
the financial resilience of the Council which underpins the continued delivery
of its critical and essential services throughout this pandemic. This may
require the Council to consider a Revised Budget and Capital Programme
during the year. On the 2nd July, Government made an announcement of a
further funding package to Local Authorities to help deal with the, as yet,
unfunded additional costs of the pandemic plus some support to reimburse
irrecoverable income losses for some income streams. The statement also
mentioned an announcement in the forthcoming Spending Review regarding
an apportionment of Council Tax and Business Rate losses between Central
and Local Government. Until the details of this latest funding package are
released, it is not possible to estimate the extent to which it will reduce the
currently forecast £20m shortfall. Government have stated however that
"there will be some shared financial pain".

4.8

Economic recovery is a key part of the overall recovery plan and the council is
working closely with businesses and with business organisations such as the
Chamber, Solent LEP and Shaping Portsmouth to support economic recovery.
The council has successfully disbursed the various business grants provided
by central government and, where possible, has been assisting applicants
where their initial applications fall short of the government's criteria. The
council is working closely with the Hampshire and Isle of Wight Local
Resilience Forum in developing its recovery plan and holds the chair of a
number of its workstreams. Through the LRF, the council has petitioned
central government to allow local councils to disburse any unallocated

Page
5 297

business grant made available by the government; for our LRF area this is a
significant sum, c£70m - much needed by local businesses.
5.

Refreshing the City's vision and values - process underway

5.1

Before the pandemic and lockdown, the council's political leadership set out
its priority themes (see Figure 2):

5.2

With the whole country easing out of lockdown, it is very tempting for the
council to rush back to pre-lockdown priorities and ways of delivering services.
However, prior to Covid-19, we had embarked on a dialogue across the city
about the city's future vision and values. Indeed, on 14 March, as part of the
process, we hosted a conference attended by 100 members of the public
comprising a reasonably representative cross section of the city. The work
leading up to that conference, and the steps we have taken subsequently are
set out in the timeline below:
 initial partner workshops - October 2019
 20 focus groups with stakeholders and communities - November 2019 February 2020
 citizens' conference - March 2020
 post-coronavirus survey with citizens' conference attendees - June 2020
 Imagine Portsmouth partner board - initial meeting - June 2020
 citywide consultation - summer/autumn 2020

Page 6298

5.3

The priorities identified by the Administration resonate well with the emerging
views expressed through the Vision consultations. This now gives us a major
opportunity to consider how our proposed actions and those of our partners
across the city priorities might best deliver the city's aspirations and whether
we can achieve the these outcomes in a different and more effective way in
the light of what we have learnt from the Covid experience.

5.4

Cabinet have taken time out to reflect on their priorities and the Vision
workshops 2 will inform whether these remain the right priorities and what
programmes of activity can best help deliver them. Prior to the pandemic the
City was in a strong economic position to drive forward an ambitious
economic programme. The Council needs to do what it can to minimise the
economic harm of the pandemic and to remain ambitious in what it is trying to
do to support the local economy.

5.5

The council has an important role to play in engaging with partners on the
recovery of the city. The impact of the virus will be significant and so we
should work together for the benefit and overall wellbeing of our communities.
On this basis the Cabinet are represented along with other agencies on a
'Partners Board' that has been established to guide the Vision work. 'Shaping
Portsmouth' is represented on the Board and is working closely with the
council to help drive local economic recovery, including setting up 'Futures
Together' providing a collaborative framework. The Deputy-Leader and key
officers are represented on the Futures Together Board. The Futures
Together Board have identified some draft objectives and these are detailed
below:
 Ignite the Portsmouth business activity and support using current analysis
in order to take advantage of the UK economy re-opening.
 Ensure that Portsmouth schools needing support from Businesses get
access to those resources.
 Support the Portsmouth charity and not-for-profit sector with any required
and available resources and mentors.
 Coordinate our Communications so that our citizens & businesses have the
best access to knowledge and information.

5.6

2

The Government have made it clear that they see investment in infrastructure
as an important way to aid national economic recovery. They have already
asked LEPs to identify "shovel ready" projects that support green growth and
housebuilding. PCC has submitted a prioritised list of potential schemes to the
LEP. It is likely that there will be further funding opportunities and on this
basis, alongside our Vision, it may be sensible to have a clear set of
investment schemes that will support recovery and rejuvenation in the city.

https://imagineportsmouth.co.uk/citizen-conference/

Page
7 299

6.

Role of the Local Resilience Forum

6.1

Finally, it is worth noting the role of the Local Resilience Partnership in
responding to the 'critical incident'. In addition to directing the overarching
emergency response to Covid, the Hampshire & Isle of Wight Local Resilience
Forum (LRF) has also developed information and guidance to assist the multiagency work on recovery. The agreed objectives for the LRF Recovery Coordination Group are attached as Appendix 3. The council is an active part of
the LRF and is engaging with their recovery plans. Important to note is that a
clear principle of subsidiarity has been adopted by the LRF Recovery Coordination Group, especially with regard to community engagement work
which is seen as the proper remit of the directly elected local authorities
across its geography. However, as with the outbreak plans, there are benefits
of working together on themes that cross local authority boundaries such as
economic growth and sub-regional infrastructure. As such, we can build on
this work in developing our tailored, city-specific responses.

6.2

As with all local authorities in the LRF area, we are establishing a Community
Engagement group and will make sure that the local community voice is heard
through the recovery process.

7.

Reasons for Recommendations

7.1

As we move from response to recovery we need to consider what the city's
and our organisational priorities are for recovery, how we can best engage
with partners and support those that have been most disproportionally
affected by Covid-19 and the lockdown.

8.

Impact assessment

8.1

A preliminary Impact Assessment has been completed

9.

Legal Implications/City Solicitor comments

9.1

The current reaction to the Covid situation as managed through adherence to
Central Government Guidance, statutory enactment and sensible planning on
the part of all is such that there have, at this juncture, been no failings in key
delivery of statutory obligations. It is noteworthy that there has been no
functional challenge to anything undertaken by the Authority in the sense of
either complaint or legal challenge as to the rationale of any decisions or
indeed the implementation of such decisions.

9.2

Additional to the above there is a clear understanding of the key requirements
associated with the Authority discharging its statutory and common law
obligations with respect to its workforce and invitees to the premise and out
post sites owned and run by the Authority.

9.3

The reaction of the Authority is such that there has been meaningful
engagement with the Public Sector Equality Duty with clear consideration of

Page 8300

the impact of Covid within the context of those groupings within our
community that have protected characteristics - particular efforts have been
made with respect to the elderly, disabled and the BAME groups. The
chances of a functional challenge based upon any omission upon the part of
the Authority is remote.
9.4

The above said, there is a need to maintain the current focus as clearly there
will be ongoing challenges to the current enforced situation. However, given
that the Authority has clearly engaged and is performing well there is a good
position on the ground to respond to any challenges by way of complaint or
indeed put upon a formalised legal basis if and when they are made.

10.

Director of Finance and Resources comments

10.1 The overall financial implications associated with the Council's response to the
pandemic are currently estimated to cost £32m which after £12m of
Government support will leave the Council with a financial shortfall of £20m to
address. A further funding package from Government has recently been
announced but the detailed allocations to the Council have yet to be received.
The extent to which this will reduce the £20m shortfall therefore is not yet
known although it is expected that the Council will still have a significant
financial shortfall to manage.

Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972
The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a
material extent by the author in preparing this report:
Title of document

Location

Appendices:
Appendix 1 - Standing up Services Template
Appendix 2 - Indicative timeline for resumption of Council Service
Appendix 3 - The LRF Recovery Coordinating Group Objectives

Signed by:

Page
9 301

………………………
DAVID WILLIAMS
Chief Executive
Portsmouth City Council

Page 10
302

APPENDIX 1

Standing up Services - Decision Template for Gold Command
Introduction.
Directorates are asked to review all services across all priority areas to maintain a
dynamic assessment of partially or fully closed services or those that are being delivered
in a different way. As COVID continues, directorates will need to adjust the delivery of
services recognising community impact and any changes in their prioritisation, as the
risks and impact changes.
Whilst not to belittle a traumatic event, we must remember that we are doing this from a
position where Portsmouth, for many reasons, has a relatively low infection rate, and has
demonstrated good adherence to social distancing. We should not throw this away, but
do need to take measures to support the most vulnerable and impacted by the lockdown
measures, including young people and the economy.
Our management of ceasing, limiting and standing up services has been in place since
the 17th March. PCC is currently operating at a business critical setting ensuring that it is
providing critical and essential services. In business continuity terms these are classed
as critical (level 1 services). Following a recent review a number of other high, medium
and low services (priority 2, 3 and 4) have already been set up. A number of services are
being delivered in different ways.
Role of Corporate Business Continuity Group (AKA PCC Gold Command)
PCC Gold provides the mechanism to review and agree re-prioritisation of service
delivery. This has direct political as well as professional input. Directors are asked to
bring to Gold proposals to stand up service delivery. Gold will provide a check and
balance to the decision and ensure consistency in approach across all PCC services; we
shouldn't assume that what we stood down is necessarily a priority for standing back up.
There is an opportunity to shift resources across the organisation and this process
enables that to happen.
The template provides the mechanism to enable Gold to be engaged in a consistent way.
Directors are asked to consider:
 What is the trigger and need to stand the service back up? e.g. HMG guidance
has changed (and we agree to follow it) or the impact of closure is too significant
 In what sense are we looking to stand the service back up e.g. to start a service
back up that has not been operating or moving from a virtual setting to a physically
open setting?
 Is there an alternative way to deliver the service to achieve the same result? How
should the service be restarted?
 Is there demonstrable evidence to support the consequence of not standing back
up the service? Is it need, financial or symbolic?
 Are there sufficient resources available to deliver the service within existing cash
limits? What is the opportunity cost?
 Can support services support any implications for standing the service back up?
Where appropriate this should could engagement with the City Helpdesk so that
they are aware of changes in the delivery of services.

Page
11 303

APPENDIX 1







Have Comms been involved to explore whether there is a need to communicate
the service changes, and if so who this needs to be communicated to - this will be
a pre-requisite for gold approval?
Have you approved the appropriate risk assessment and have you engaged with
Public Health re infection risks?
Are there any PPE or office/space requirements and are these understood,
supported and can they be met?
Has engagement with Members and/or partners occurred before the proposal is
presented to Gold?
What communications will be required to support the implementation?

Bringing forward requests to PCC Gold Command
The Director is asked to inform the PCC Gold Command Chair of the intention to bring a
request to stand up services - these can be fed through via Paddy May. This will enable a
view to be taken as to whether a specific Gold agenda item is required (e.g. if there is a
wider impact of the decision or it is a high priority public facing service) or whether it can
be approved without this.
At Gold, the director, or their representative, will be asked to provide a summary which
outlines clearly the rationale, evidence and confirmation that the plan for implementation
is ready including any key dates or outstanding preparation.
The Gold chair will guide Gold to a decision on the request. In the event that additional
resources are required, or the discussion creates additional points to consider, the
decision may be delayed pending the resource investigation / additional work.
Any decision of Gold will be formally recorded and the Gold Chair will update Group
Leaders (Wednesdays) and All Members (Fridays). Directors are responsible for the
implementation of the decision and any further Cabinet engagement as part of the prework and the implementation.

Page 12
304

APPENDIX 1
Standing up Services Pro-Forma
Directorate Name
Service looking to be stood up
Proposed date for standing-up?
Brief description of normal
service operation
What is current state of service?
e.g. not running / running
virtually / partially running etc.
(please describe briefly)
What is the rationale for wanting
to set the service back up
again?
What would happen if service
wasn’t stood back-up?
Briefly explain how you wish to
set the service back up?
Have you undertaken a risk
assessment?
Please confirm that you have
engaged with Public Health to
check there are no additional
requirements to be considered
re infection risks where
appropriate?
Are there any PPE
requirements?

YES / NO (If YES please confirm that there is sufficient
mitigation in place to respond to the risks and
that public health are content with plans)

YES / NO (if yes please confirm that appropriate supplies
are in place via ppe@portsmouthcc.gov.uk)

Are there any office
requirements?

YES / NO (if yes please confirm you have engaged with
Facilities Management and have their
approval)

Do you have the resources in
your cash limit to set up the
service as planned and run it as
planned?

YES / NO (Please quantify and explain how you wish to
fund this)

Have you engaged with support
services to ensure that they can
support any implications?

YES / NO (please highlight any issues discussed)

Please confirm you have
engaged with Comms to explore
what Comms may be needed?
Have you engaged with
Members (including portfolio
holder) - and partners (if
appropriate)?

(please highlight any issues discussed)

Submitted to Gold Chair

YES / NO (if YES please highlight any issues discussed if NO please explain why not?)

DD/MM/YYYY

Page
13 305

APPENDIX 1
Discussed with Gold Chair
Send to Gold for discussion?

DD/MM/YYYY
YES / NO Reason:

Decision of Gold
Signed by Director / Gold Chair

Director

Page 14
306

Gold Chair

APPENDIX 2

Indicative timeline for setting up Council Services

Page 307
15

APPENDIX 3

LRF Recovery Coordinating Group - Objectives
1.

Help HIOW communities and businesses to recover and move forward as
speedily as possible through an effective, collaborative, and well-communicated
multi-agency response led by the local authorities

2.

Develop and maintain an impact assessment for the COVID 19 pandemic in
HIOW

3.

Develop a concise, balanced, and affordable (whatever that means now)
recovery action plan

4.

Ensure a system is in place for the monitoring and protection of public health and
that plans are in place to manage response alongside recovery (second wave or
non-covid-19 incident)

5.

Critical services including our utilities and transport networks continue to be
supported to be supported and maintained

6.

A pro-active and integrated framework of support to businesses is established

7.

Help those traumatised by their experience of the impact of COVID 19 on
themselves, their families and their loved ones address their trauma (and grieve
their loss)

8.

Maintain and enhance confidence in the resilience of public agencies to respond
to civil emergencies

9.

Celebrate and commemorate the contributions made to support our communities
through the incident and give the public opportunities to express their
appreciation

10. Collaborate to help re-build those critical services most ravaged by the incident
and reflect on future prioritisation
11. Co-ordinate environmental protection and recovery issues arising
12. Information and media management of the recovery process is co-ordinated
13. Establish effective protocols for public involvement and liaison and restore public
engagement in all levels of the democratic process.
14. Cherish and implement the learning from the incident, including capturing best
practice and reflect on future priorities in the light of collective experience.

Page 16
308

